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PART I— NOTIFICATION

The information requested shall be provided in the order which follows specifying each item
number; the text of each item as presented in this form may be omitted. All items shall be
addressed and negative responses should be included.

ITEM 1. Significant Parties:

List the full names and business and residential addresses, as applicable, for the following

persons:

(a) the Directors;

I. Board of Directors for Class A Shareholders

Director

Business Address

Residential Address

Dr. Carl E. Bendeck

Doctors Bush and Murthy
121 East Ravine Road, Suite 400
Kingsport, TN 37660

1328 Belmeade Drive
Kingsport, TN 37664

Dr. Arthur M. Boyd

Mountain Region Family Medicine,
P.C.

105 W. Park Drive

Kingsport, TN 37660

2209 Lamont Street
Kingsport, TN 37664

Dr. Gary O. Casey

Mountain Region Family Medicine,
P.C.

105 W. Park Drive

Kingsport, TN 37660

116 Chippendale Court
Kingsport, TN 37660

Dr. Stephen P. Combs

Gray Station Primary Care
2103 Forest Drive
Gray, TN 37615

405 West Field Place
Kingsport, TN 37664

Dr. Gregory L. DeMotts

Mountain Region Family Medicine,
P.C.

102 Meade Avenue

Nickelsville, VA 24271

353 Norma Drive
Kingsport, TN 37660

Dr. Mark C. Dixon

Holston Anesthesia Associates, P.C.

135 W. Ravine Road
Kingsport, TN 37660

1008 Oldham Court
Kingsport, TN 37660

Dr. Herbert D. Ladley

Cardiovascular Associates, P.C.
2050 Meadowview Parkway
Kingsport, TN 37660

1611 Fairidge Place
Kingsport, TN 37660
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Dr. Anthony D. Seaton

The Regional Eye Center
1920 Brookside Drive, Suite 1
Kingsport, TN 37660

5301 Canova Court
Kingsport, TN 37660

Dr. Robert D. Strickland

Gastroenterology Associates
135 W. Ravine Road, Suite 3 A
Kingsport, TN 37660

152 Chip ‘N Dale Square
Kingsport, TN 37660

Dr. Lenita Thibault

Kingsport Women’s Group, P.C.
117 W. Sevier Street, Suite 120
Kingsport, TN 37660

3401 Netherland Inn Road
Kingsport, TN 37660

11 Board of Directors for Class B Shareholders

Director

Business Address

Residential Address

' Dr. Jere W. Ferguson

Inter-Mountain Pathology Assoc.,
Inc., P.C.

1918 West State Street

Bristol, TN 37620

568 Henson Hill Road
Bristol, TN 37620

Dr. Richard W. Foster

Blue Ridge Radiology, P.C.
1039 Highway 126
Bristol, TN 37620

121 Westover Drive
Bristol, TN 37620

Dr. Matthew M. Gangwer

Bristol Family Medical Center
2811 W. State Street
Bristol, TN 37620

417 Shanks Road
Blountville, TN 37617-6543

Dr. Thomas W. Green

Drs. Green, P.C.
1 Medical Park Blvd., Suite 450-W
Bristol, TN 37620

105 Longview Drive
Bristol, TN 37620

Dr. John G. Griffith

Bristol Urological Associates
350 Blountville Highway, Suite 105
Bristol, TN 37620

128 Amity Heights
Bristol, TN 37620

Dr. D. Nelson Gwaltney

Bristol Surgical Associates, P.C.
350 Blountville Highway, Suite 105
Bristol, TN 37620

243 Roscommon
Bristol, TN 37620

Dr. Thomas E. Mitoraj

Youthcare Pediatrics
212 Midway Medical Park
Bristol, TN 37620

19484 Haskell Station Road
Bristol, VA 24202
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Dr. Bert E. Tagert

Appalachian Orthopaedic Associates,
P.C.

1 Medical Park Blvd., Suite 300 E
Bristol, TN 37620

25 Knightsbridge
Bristol, TN 37620

Dr. David E. Thompson

Bristol Medical Associates
1 Medical Park Blvd., Suite 200E
Bristol, TN 37620

125 Westover Drive
Bristol, TN 37620

Dr. Ronald L. Williams

Bristol Emergency Physicians
BRMC-Emergency Department
1 Medical Park Blvd.

Bristol, TN 37620

298 Essex Drive
Bluff City, TN 37618

I11. Other Members of the Board of Directors

Director

Business Address

Residential Address

Dr. Christopher Stapleton

Lonesome Pine Pediatrics
1980 Holston Avenue, E
Big Stone Gap, VA 24219

5034 Back Valley Road
Big Stone Gap, VA 24219

(b)  the Officers;

Officer

Business Address

Residential Address

Dr. D. Nelson Gwaltney
President

Bristol Surgical Associates, P.C.
350 Blountville Highway, Suite 201
Bristol TN 37620

243 Roscommon
Bristol, TN 37620

Dr. Herbert D. Ladley
Vice President

Cardiovascular Associates, P.C.
2050 Meadowview Parkway
Kingsport, TN 37660

1611 Fairidge Place
Kingsport, TN 37660

Dr. Gregory L. DeMotts

Mountain Region Family Medicine,

353 Norma Drive

Secretary/Treasurer P.C. Kingsport, TN 37660
102 Meade Avenue
Nichelsville, VA 24271
(c) the General Partners: None
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(d) record owners of five percent (5%) or more of any class of the issuer's equity
securities:  None

(e) Promoters of the Issuer:  None
® Affiliates of the Issuer: None

(g Counsel to the Issuer with respect to the proposed offering:

Ross & Hardies
150 North Michigan Avenue
Suite 2500
Chicago, Illinois 60601
Attention: Kathleen Swan, Esquire
(h) Each Underwriter with respect to the proposed offering: None
(i) The Underwriter's directors: None
() The Underwriter's officers: None
(k) The Underwriter's general partners: None
t)) Counsel to the Underwriter: | None

ITEM 2. Application of Rule 262:

(a) None of the persons identified in response to Item 1 are subject to any of the
disqualification provisions set forth in Rule 262.

(b)  Not Applicable

ITEM 3. Affiliate Sales:
No part of the proposed offering involves the resale of securities by affiliates of the Company.

ITEM 4. Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered:

(a) The securities to be offered and sold hereunder shall only be offered and sold by
Dr. D. Nelson Gwaltney, the President and a director of the Company. Mr. A. Walter
Hankwitz, the Executive Director of the Company, will assist Dr. Gwaltney by
administering the sales of the securities. At no time will the securities to be offered and
sold hereunder be offered or sold by persons acting as underwriters, dealers or
salespersons for the Company.

(b)  The securities to be offered and sold hereunder shall only be offered and sold by
Dr. D. Nelson Gwaltney, the President and a director of the Company. Mr. A. Walter
Hankwitz, the Executive Director of the Company, will assist Dr. Gwaltney by
administering the sales of the securities. The securities to be offered and sold hereunder
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shall be sold only to individuals who have completed the Company’s credentialing
process and are going to serve as participating providers (physicians) in the Company’s
network of healthcare providers, hospitals and clinics and who reside in the
Commonwealth of Kentucky, the Commonwealth of Virginia, the State of Tennessee or
the State of West Virginia. The securities are only offered by the Company once a
physician has successfully completed the credentialing process.

ITEM S. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year:

(a) As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer or any of its
predecessors or affiliated issuers within one year prior to the filing of this Form 1-A,
state: None

1) the name of such issuer:  Not Applicable
) the title and amount of securities issue:  Not Applicable

3) the aggregate offering price or other consideration for which they
were issued and basis for computing the amount thereof: Not
Applicable

“) the names and identities of the persons to whom the securities were
issued: Not Applicable

(b) As to any unregistered securities of the issuer or any of its predecessors or
affiliated issuers which were sold within one year prior to the filing of this Form 1-A
by or for the account of any person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter
or principal security holder of the issuer of such securities, or was an underwriter of
any securities of such issuer, furnish the information specified in subsections (1)
through (4) of paragraph (a). Not Applicable

(c) Indicate the section of the Securities Act or Commission rule or regulation
relied upon for exemption from the registration requirements of such Act and state
briefly the facts relied upon for such exemption. Not Applicable

ITEM 6. Other Present or Proposed Offerings:

State whether or not the issuer or any of its affiliates is currently offering or contemplating
the offering of any securities in addition to those covered by this Form 1-A. If so, describe
fully the present or proposed offering. = None

ITEM 7. Marketing Arrangements:

(a) Briefly describe any arrangement known to the issuer or to any person
named in response to Item 1 above or to any selling securityholder in the offering
covered by this Form 1-A for any of the following purposes:
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1) To limit or restrict the sale of other securities of the same class as
those to be offered for the period of distribution: Not Applicable

(2)  To stabilize the market for any of the securities to be offered: Not
Applicable

3) For withholding commissions, or otherwise to hold each underwriter
or dealer responsible for the distribution of its participation: Not
Applicable

(b) Identify any underwriter that intends to confirm sales to any accounts over
which it exercises discretionary authority and include an estimate of the amount of
securities so intended to be confirmed. Not Applicable

ITEM 8. Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement.

If any expert named in the offering statement as having prepared or certified any part
thereof was employed for such purpose on a contingent basis or, at the time of such
preparation or certification or at any time thereafter, had a material interest in the issuer
or any of its parents or subsidiaries or was connected with the issuer or any of its
subsidiaries as a promoter, underwriter, voting trustee, director, officer or employee
furnish a brief statement of the nature of such contingent basis, interest or connection.

Not Applicable

ITEM 9. Use of a Solicitation of Interest Document.
Indicate whether or not a publication authorized by Rule 254 was used prior to the filing of

this notification. If so, indicate the date(s) of publication and of the last communication
with prospective purchasers. Not Applicable




Offering Circular dated January 25, 2002

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC
2550 East Stone Drive, Suite 220, Mailbox 8
Kingsport, Tennessee 37660
423.392.1920

This Offering Circular is part of an Offering Statement covering shares of common stock of Highlands Physicians, Inc. The
following summarizes all of the Highlands Physicians common stock being offered:

10,000 shares of Class A Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing in Kingsport, Tennessee;
10,000 shares of Class B Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing in Bristol, Tennessee;
3,800 shares of Class D Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing in Big Stone Gap, Virginia;
2,500 shares of Class E Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing in Rogersville, Virginia;
10,000 shares of Class F Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing with the Holston Medical
Group in Kingsport, Tennessee; and
) 7,500 shares of Class G Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing in Johnson City, Tennessee.

Highlands Physicians, Inc. is an independent practice association of physicians incorporated in Delaware on August 20, 1993.
We have entered into a strategic partnership with Wellmont Health System (“Wellmont™), a group of health and wellness hospitals and
clinics in Tennessee and Virginia, to create Highlands Wellmont Network, Inc, a collaborative association between physicians and
Wellmont hospitals and clinics (the “PHO”). As part of the strategic partnership between Highlands Physicians and Wellmont, we
have prepared this Offering Circular to offer to sell Highlands Physicians common stock to physicians credentialed by us to participate
in the PHO. SEE “SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING” and “DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS.”

This offering of shares of our common stock is only available to physicians who are credentialed by us and who satisfy the
other requirements listed in the next paragraph. Each credentialed physician must purchase 100 shares of our common stock for
$1,500 and no credentialed physician may own more than 100 shares of that class of common stock assigned to the credentialed
physicians practicing in a specified Jocation. Failure to purchase the common stock, when offered, results in the credentialed
physician being unable to continue as a member of Highlands Physicians. We will only offer and sell shares of our common stock
directly to physicians credentialed by us. Under our Stock Repurchase Plan, we have the right, but are not obligated, to repurchase the
common stock when a credentialed physician resigns, for $1,500, plus any additional capital contributions made to us. We will
commence this offering on the date of this Offering Circular and we will continue this offering until December 31, 2001, or until we,
in our sole discretion, terminate this offering which shall, in no event, be later than June 30, 2002. We will use the proceeds from the
sale of the common stock as ordinary working capital for us. SEE, “USE OF PROCEEDS.” We have not retained any underwriters,
brokers, or placement agents in connection with this offering. Dr. Nelson Gwaltney, President and a member of our Board of
Directors, and Mr. A. Walter Hankwitz, our Executive Director, will conduct this offering on our behalf.

You will only be permitted to purchase our common stock if (1) you are a physician credentialed by us, (2) you live in
Virginia, Kentucky, Tennessee or West Virginia, and (3) you satisfy the practice location requirements. If you qualify to purchase our
common stock in this offering, you must (A) execute and deliver to us a Subscription Agreement, a Stockholders Agreement and a
1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreement, all of which are attached to this Offering Circular, and (B) pay, by check, $1,500 to
Highlands Physicians, Inc. We will not offer or sell shares of our common stock in exchange for delivery of a promissory note or
credit. We reserve the right to reject any proposed purchase, in part or in its entirety. If we reject any proposed purchase, we will
return to you the funds we received from you without interest or deduction.

PRICE TO THE UNDERWRITING PROCEEDS TO
PUBLIC DISCOUNT AND ISSUER ©®
COMMISSIONS @
Per share of common stock $ 15 -0- $ 15
Total per credentialed physician $ 1,500 -0- $ 1,500
Total Offering $600,000 -0- $600,000

THE SHARES OF OUR COMMON STOCK BEING OFFERED INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK. SEE, “RISK
FACTORS” FOR A DISCUSSION OF RISK FACTORS THAT YOU SHOULD CONSIDER BEFORE MAKING ANY
INVESTMENT IN THIS OFFERING. YOU SHOULD NOT INVEST IN THE SECURITIES IF YOU ARE NOT IN A
POSITION TO LOSE YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT.

[¢D) Each investor must purchase 100 shares of common stock for an aggregate investment of $1,500. All payments for our common stock must be made by
check for readily available cash.

2) We have not retained any underwriters, brokers or placement agents in connection with this offering.

(3) We will offer and sell shares of our common stock only to physicians who we have credentialed.

4) We estimate that our legal and accounting expenses for this offering will not exceed $125,000. Those expenses will be deducted from the proceeds of this

offering.
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THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS UPON THE MERITS
OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR
DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER
SELLING LITERATURE. THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION. HOWEVER, THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE AN
INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE EXEMPT FROM
REGISTRATION.

WE ARE OFFERING AND SELLING THESE SECURITIES IN RELIANCE UPON REGULATION A OF THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS THEREUNDER. NO
PUBLIC OR OTHER MARKET EXISTS, OR MAY EVER DEVELOP, FOR THE SECURITIES AND YOU SHOULD
PROCEED ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT YOU MAY HAVE TO BEAR THE RISK OF YOUR INVESTMENT
INDEFINITELY.

SEE “RISK FACTORS” FOR A DESCRIPTION OF THE RISKS OF PURCHASING SECURITIES IN THIS
OFFERING. THE CONTENTS OF THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR DO NOT CONSTITUTE INVESTMENT OR TAX
ADVICE AND YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN INVESTMENT OR TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE
ADVISABILITY OF INVESTING IN THE SECURITIES.

NO PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY
REPRESENTATION CONTRARY TO THE INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATIONS MADE IN THIS
OFFERING CIRCULAR OR IN THE DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO HEREIN, AND, IF GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH
OTHER INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATION MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON.

PRIOR TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THIS OFFERING, YOU WILL HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO ASK US
QUESTIONS AND TO RECEIVE ANSWERS FROM US OR A PERSON ACTING ON OUR BEHALF
CONCERNING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS OFFERING, OUR COMPANY AND/OR ANY OTHER
RELEVANT MATTERS. YOU WILL ALSO HAVE AN OPPORTUNITY TO OBTAIN ANY ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION YOU DEEM IMPORTANT TO YOUR INVESTMENT DECISION, TO THE EXTENT THAT WE
POSSESS SUCH INFORMATION OR CAN ACQUIRE IT WITHOUT UNREASONABLE EFFORT OR EXPENSE.

ANY DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO OR INCORPORATED IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR BY REFERENCE,
BUT NOT OTHERWISE INCLUDED IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR, WILL BE MADE AVAILABLE UPON
THE WRITTEN REQUEST (BY MAIL OR FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION) OF ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR
TO HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC. 2550 EAST STONE DRIVE, SUITE 220, KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE 37660,
TEL. NO. (423) 392-1920. FAX. NO. (423) 392-0006, ATTENTION: A. WALTER HANKWITZ, EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR.

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS SUMMARIES OF RELEVANT CONTRACTS, AGREEMENTS AND
OTHER DOCUMENTS. THE SUMMARIES OF THE RELEVANT CONTRACTS, AGREEMENTS AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS ARE QUALIFIED BY COPIES THEREOF WHICH ARE EITHER ATTACHED TO THIS
OFFERING CIRCULAR AS EXHIBITS OR ARE AVAILABLE AT OUR OFFICES. IF THE DOCUMENT YOU ARE
INTERESTED IN REVIEWING IS NOT ATTACHED AS AN EXHIBIT, PLEASE CONTACT US AT OUR OFFICES
AT THE ADDRESS LISTED IN THE PREVIOUS PARAGRAPH. ALL SUMMARIES DESCRIBED IN THE FIRST
SENTENCE OF THIS PARAGRAPH ARE QUALIFIED IN THEIR ENTIRETY BY REFERENCE TO THE
ACTUAL DOCUMENTS.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION SET FORTH IN THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933. THESE SECURITIES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE TENNESSEE
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND INSURANCE. SUCH REGISTRATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT OF ANY SECURITY, NOR HAS THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT
OF COMMERCE AND INSURANCE PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THE
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS OFFERING DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE
CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

ii




TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING .....ccovienimiiiiinninecssiiesessisssississsasssissssssssssesssnsssissssssssssssasssssessossessosssnsonsasens 1
RISK FACTORS ... uitiitrininiesnisnisnsseisscseesiissessiesisnisssssissssssssssstessssnssssssstsstssssssssssstassssssosssssosssssessontsssossassnsnssns 6
Our limited operating history makes it difficult to predict OUF SUCCESS. .....cunucvirvessonnvecnnreenseenserinensecnsisnanns 6
Our obligations under the PHO’s Stockholders Agreement limit our ability to sell our
shares of stock in the PHO. The PHO may terminate our Preferred Provider Agreements. ..........u.eecunn. 6
We may not be able to compete in OUF iINAUSIEY. c...evvveenvireioriicsiorssennninnicisiesicsnieeiessisensssessoeses 6
The continued operation of the PHQ is IMPOFIANE [0 US. ...uuuveevruverssnisseisssossuiossessssessssssssssssansssssssssssasossassans 7
We, or our strategic partners, could be found liable for violations of practice
of medicine or anti-kickback laws and regulAtioNs. .........cvoeevrivsenrivinsiniincinscssniinnsencssissssisssseesessessssn 7
We could face liability and sanctions for our previous gainsharing Activities. .......ucirscevssercsusrscvinsecsssores 7
Our potential inability to manage risks could trigger our guarantee under
the PHO’S Letter 0f CPEUIL. auuouueeineeenressrissiisisssnecsnssssssnssssssssssnsssessassossassssssssesssstasssssnssonssssssssssssssssasssssansssns 8
We may face liability for our role in CHIRICAL tFIAIS. .a.ueoneevornionuericiriiisiinsaciiinicsseecssnnsssssssssisniesssssssssssosssssssses 8
We may face liability for violations of Qnti-trust JAWS. .........eeecoeiovnvninnicninseissnnsinsssnisssnisssssnisssssssssessones 8

We and our strategic partners are interdependent on one another, and the failure

of one party to perform, could adversely affect our ability to perform or could

Adversely affect OUF ODEFALIONS. ......vuvovineeirnenricsrverisesricserissssrsssssisscsssnecssniesssnissssassssssessssssessssaesssrasssasssssansssses 9
We could be adversely affected by the volatility of the healthcare envirORMERL. .........covvveervenierrsrvcrnicsransanes 9
There is currently no public market for our common stock and there may never

be a public market for our common stock and the Company has limited resources

10 rePUICHASE 1118 COMMION STOCK. .ev.nnnneerneneeeecnnreensnerescsesiccanisssssessastossssuassssasessssssssssssssssessassesssssessaensasnsssssnssss 9
We may not be able to conduct our transactions at Qrms’ [ERGLN. .....uueevruienvrivssirsncrsnesssiessasisersssosssesssnens 10
We have never issued dividends to our stockholders and we do not intend to issue
Aividends 10 OUF SIOCKROIAEES. ...unouunnueinenneennicnensnioriesinsenssenssisssssessnsisssssissessessssnsssssssssssssssssssssossssssssssssnee 10
Qur common stock is subordinated to our other liabilities and 0bligAtiONS. .........uveneerneeeineinsneirunrsnensuennne 10
We may be subject to legal proceedings that could adversely affects our BUuSiness.....uueeueeveeriveervecenseennnns 10
Our success is dependent on the efforts of our executive officers and on our ability
to attract and retain qUAlIfied eMPLOYPEES. .....wourivveeosiissricerirsesssrissssiisscsecssanessssssssessssesssssssssssssssasesssssses 10
Superior Voting Rights of Class A and Class B Common StockRolders. ............ouneeesveessuvssorsverseccssiennns 11
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION.....cocnvininensnansuiscssissiesiossssscsnsssessssssssesssssssasessssessssssose 12
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS AND OTHER RISKS ....cotivininnincnnnicnncsnissnessnnssecsesssessisssssens 13
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION....uciniiiniinnminnniesissiossesmisssssissessisssssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesassssssessssnsesssssssssssssssssnss 14
USE OF PROCEEDS ....uocciniiintinitinnieisnonisessssssssisssssiessssssssssssssssssssssssisssssssssossssssssissessssstassssssstsssssssssssasssssns 15
CAPITALIZATION .cuoitinireieicrnnsenssessecnsssssmossssmsssssnsosssstssssssssssssossssssssssssssssosssssssssstessessossssssestossssssssssssssones 16
DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSIINESS ...t 17
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES .....cccovvvvmnicrenrecserceereans 29
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS......cconviminminrnnneneissnissisnisiiniesissstossmossosesses 37
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS.................. 38

1ii



0

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS ....ccoiiirencinniniensnsssssacsensesssasennss 39

TERMS OF THE OFFERING ....utermiiiciicninntenesninisesitcsminessissesssessssssmsssmessossasessassessasessesssssssessessessas 40
MARKET FOR COMMON STOCK AND STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.......ccceeuee. sereeserssenssensssnstisenaes 43
TAX MATTERS ..ciiiinitiniinnnsiiesniiessiissssesssisssnssnssssstessisiisssssesssstessesnassssssssesssssssssessissesssessessessssasssans 44
LEGAL MATTERS ... cttitectintennenninesiieiieieiiaesneoniestisessissesssmesstsssssssissssssisssssssssssssassasssssesstassesssessssnss 46
EXPERTS cuoiitiitniitininneinieinisenissiiinesiessissssssitssisisssestiosssiessssssessessssssssssssssossasssssssasssssssnsssessssssnssns 46
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...iooiininniinninninennisecsnistieessimesssissermssssmessssssossassssssssasasssnee F-1
EXHIBITS:

FORM OF 1997 RESTATED PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT. ......ccccoviiineieerieeeneieee E-1

FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT ........cooiiiiiiiicicis et senenss s E-28

iv




SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING

THIS SUMMARY DOES NOT CONTAIN ALL OF THE INFORMATION THAT YOU
SHOULD CONSIDER BEFORE INVESTING IN COMMON STOCK OFFERED IN THIS
OFFERING. YOU SHOULD READ THE ENTIRE OFFERING CIRCULAR CAREFULLY,
ESPECIALLY “RISK FACTORS” BEGINNING ON PAGE 6 HEREOF.

The Common Stock

Set forth below are the six classes of voting common stock that are currently authorized under
our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and 1998 Restated By-laws. Also set
forth below are the current number of authorized, issued and outstanding shares of voting common stock
as of the date of this Offering Circular, as well as the additional number of shares of voting common
stock that are being sold, as follows:

Total of 27,000 authorized shares of Class A Common Stock; 14,900 shares of Class A Common
Stock have been authorized, issued and are outstanding as of the date hereof; a maximum of an
additional 10,000 shares of Class A Common Stock will be offered hereunder to credentialed
physicians practicing in Kingsport, Tennessee;

Total of 27,000 authorized shares of Class B Common Stock; 12,800 shares of Class B Common
Stock have been authorized issued and are outstanding as of the date hereof; a maximum of an
additional 10,000 shares of Class B Common Stock will be offered to credentialed physicians
practicing in Bristol, Tennessee;

Total of 5,000 authorized shares of Class D Common Stock; 1,200 of which are authorized,
issued and outstanding as of the date hereof; a maximum of an additional 3,800 shares of Class
D Common Stock will be offered to credentialed physicians practicing in Big Stone Gap,
Virginia,

Total of 2,500 authorized shares of Class E Common Stock; 2,500 of which are authorized; none
of which has been issued or is outstanding; a maximum of 2,500 shares of which will be offered
to credentialed physicians practicing in Rogersville, Virginia;

Total of 10,000 authorized shares of Class F Common Stock; 10,000 of which are authorized;
none of which has been issued or is outstanding; a maximum of 10,000 shares of which will be
offered to credentialed physicians practicing with the Holston Medical Group in Kingsport,
Tennessee; and

Total of 7,500 authorized shares of Class G Common Stock; 7,500 of which are authorized; none
of which has been issued or is outstanding; a maximum of 7,500 shares of which will be offered
to credentialed physicians practicing in Johnson City, Tennessee.

14,900 shares of the Class A Common Stock are authorized, issued, outstanding and are owned by
credentialed physicians practicing in Kingsport, Tennessee. 12,800 shares of the Class B Common
Stock are authorized, issued, outstanding and are owned by credentialed physicians practicing in Bristol,
Tennessee. 1,200 shares of the Class D Common Stock authorized, issued and outstanding are owned
by credentialed physicians practicing in Big Stone Gap, Virginia. The common stock that is being sold
hereunder will be offered and sold solely to physicians who have been credentialed by us and who have
subscribed for, but not yet purchased, common stock. The class of the common stock that will be




offered and sold to any credentialed physician is determined solely by where that credentialed physician
practices medicine: All of the credentialed physicians who work in Kingsport, Tennessee will be
offered and sold Class A Common Stock; all of the credentialed physicians who work in Bristol,
Tennessee will be offered and sold Class B Common Stock; all of the credentialed physicians who work
in Big Stone Gap, Virginia will be offered and sold Class D Common Stock; all of the credentialed
physicians who work in Rogersville, Virginia will be offered and sold Class E Common Stock; all of the
credentialed physicians who practice medicine with the Holston Medical Group in Kingsport, Tennessee
will be offered and sold Class F Common Stock; and all of the credentialed physicians who work in
Johnson City, Tennessee will be offered and sold Class G Common Stock. No credentialed physician
may choose the class of common stock that he purchases, rather each credentialed physician is offered
shares of that class of common stock which has been designated by us for the credentialed physicians
practicing in a specified geographical area or with a specific practice group.

Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote on all matters that are voted on by the
common stockholders. For any action to be authorized by the common stockholders, an affirmative vote
of a majority of all of the outstanding common stock (excluding the Class C Common Stock) is
required. In addition, the affirmative vote of a majority of Class A Common Stock and the Class B
Common Stock, voting as separate classes, is required.

The holders of our Class A Common Stock have the right to elect ten members to our Board of
Directors; five members must be primary care physicians, such as family practice physicians, internal
medicine physicians, pediatricians and emergency medicine physicians. The holders of our Class B
Common Stock have the right to elect ten members to our Board of Directors; five members must be
primary care physicians. Each of the remaining classes of the common stock, including the Class D
Common Stock, the Class E Common Stock, the Class F Common Stock, and the Class G Common
Stock, but excluding the Class C Common Stock, have the right to elect two members of our Board of
Directors; one member representing each of these classes of stock must be a primary care physician.

Common stockholders are also entitled to vote on matters provided for by the Delaware General
Corporation Law including an amendment to our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation or a merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all our assets. Common
stockholders have no right to receive dividends (unless declared by the Board of Directors), and the
common stock is not subject to any liquidation preferences, preemptive rights, sinking fund provisions
or liability to further calls or assessment by us. Common stockholders are not, as a result of their
ownership of common stock, liable for our debts or obligations.

An act of our Board of Directors requires the affirmative vote of a majority of all of the members
of the Board of Directors; provided, that some matters require the affirmative vote of a majority of each
of the following: (1) the Class A Directors, (2) the Class B Directors, (3) the primary care physicians on
the Board of Directors, and (4) the specialist physicians on the Board of Directors. The matters which
require the approval of the Board of Directors based on their class of Board membership or their
professional specialty include: (a) the issuance of shares of our capital stock, (b) the amendment or
repeal of our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, (c) the amendment or repeal of
our 1998 Restated By-laws, (d) authorization for us to borrow funds, (e) the approval of our budget and
expenditures in excess of the amounts provided in our previously approved budget, (f) the approval of
risk contracts, (g) the distributions of our cash or property, (h) the engagement or dismissal of our
executive director, (i) the engagement or dismissal of our management company, (j) the engagement or
dismissal of our independent auditing firm, (k) the engagement or dismissal of our legal counsel, (1) the
engagement or dismissal of our utilization management firm, (m) the subcontracting of any of our



obligations, (n) the hiring or termination of our employees or independent contractors, (o) the purchase
or acquisition of any property exceeding $5,000 in value and (p) the sale, exchange or other disposition
of any property exceeding $5,000 in value.

The Offering

We are offering shares of our common stock to physicians (1) who are credentialed, (2) who live
in Virginia, Kentucky, Tennessee or West Virginia, and (3) who satisfy the practlce location
requirements listed in the table below.

You should carefully review the table below to determine whether you qualify as an investor in
this offering. In addition, we reserve the right to reject, in our discretion, any subscription delivered to
us in connection with this offering.

Terms of the We are offering a maximum of 10,000 shares of our Class A Common
Offering/Practice  Stock, $1.00 par value per share, to credentialed physicians practicing in
Location Kingsport, Tennessee;
Requirements:
We are offering a maximum of 10,000 shares of our Class B Common
Stock, $1.00 par value per share, to credentialed physicians practicing in
Bristol, Tennessee;

We are offering a maximum of 3,800 shares of our Class D Common Stock,
$1.00 par value per share, to credentialed physicians practicing in Big Stone
Gap, Virginia;

We are offering a maximum of 2,500 shares of our Class E Common Stock,
$1.00 par value per share, to credentialed physicians practicing in
Rogersville, Virginia;

We are offering a maximum of 10,000 shares of our Class F Common
Stock, $1.00 par value per share, to credentialed physicians practicing with
the Holston Medical Group in Kingsport, Tennessee; and

We are offering a maximum of 7,500 shares of our Class G Common Stock,
$1.00 par value per share, to credentialed physicians practicing in Johnson
City, Tennessee.

Amount of Only subscriptions in an amount equal to $1,500, representing the
Investment: subscription price for 100 shares of common stock, will be accepted.

Capitalization 17,000 Shares of Class A Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
Prior to Offering:  authorized, 14,900 outstanding;

17,000 Sharés of Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
authorized, 12,800 outstanding;

3,000 Shares of Class C Common Stock (non-voting), par value $1.00 per
share, authorized, none outstanding; and
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5,000 Shares of Class D Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
authorized, 1,200 outstanding.

Capitalization 27,000 Shares of Class A Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
After Offering: authorized, 24,900 issued and outstanding;

27,000 Shares of Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
authorized, 22,800 issued and outstanding;

3,000 Shares of Class C Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, none
authorized, no shares issued;

5,000 Shares of Class D Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
authorized, 1,200 issued and outstanding;

2,500 Shares of Class E Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
authorized, 700 issued and outstanding;

10,000 Shares of Class F Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
authorized, 5,300 issued and outstanding; and

7,500 Shares of Class G Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
authorized, 900 issued and outstanding.

Qualifications to  This offering is not underwritten. Nevertheless, management believes that

Offering: approximately 202 of the credentialed physicians practicing in various
jurisdictions or with select practice groups will purchase the common stock.
Management’s estimates of these purchases are reflected above in the
number of shares of each class to be issued and outstanding. Additional
shares of common stock are being provided for hereunder for sale by those
physicians who are credentialed by us after the date hereof, but before the
offering is terminated.

Suitability Only physicians (1) who have been credentialed by us as described in the

Standards: 1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreement and who have executed all
required documentation required by us in our credentialing process,
including a Physician Membership Application and the Conditions of
Application; (2) who practice (a) at a Wellmont-owned facility, (b) in a
community where a Wellmont-owned facility is located, or (c) in a
professional service company, one or more of whose stockholders are also
stockholders of Highlands Physicians and all of whom meet our
credentialing criteria; (3) who live in Virginia, Kentucky, Tennessee or
West Virginia; (4) who satisfy the practice location requirements listed in
this table above; and (5) whose subscriptions we accept, are eligible to
purchase shares of our common stock.

Use of Proceeds:  The net proceeds of this offering will be used for general working capital
purposes, including the payment of salaries for our employees, costs
associated with meetings of the stockholders and Board of Directors, rent,
legal fees and accounting fees for both this offering and incurred on an
ongoing basis.
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Summary Financial and Operating Data

The following summary financial information and operating data have been derived from the
audited financial statements of Highlands Physicians for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2000 and
December 31, 1999, and the unaudited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1998. This information should be read in conjunction with Highlands Physicians’s financial statements
and the notes thereto attached to this Offering Circular.

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 1999

December 31, 2000 December 31, 1998

(audited) (audited) (unaudited)
Statement of Income:
Total Operating Revenues $741,639.52 $546,078.77 $489,697.50
Total Operating Expenses 802,218.79 768,118.30 612,639.28
Net Operating (Loss) (60,579.27) (222,039.53) (122,941.78)
Total Other Income 25,685.50 20,646.44 9,336.77
Net (Loss) from Continuing
Operations before Income Taxes (34,893.77) (201,393.09) (113,605.01)
Income Tax Benefit on Net Loss from
Continuing Operations before
Income Taxes 4,314.00 68,474.00 46,232.00
Net (Loss) from Continuing
Operations after Income Taxes (30,579.77) (132,919.09) (67,373.01)
Discontinued Operations 0.00 356,922.53 97,425.60
Equity in Highlands Wellmont Health
Network, Inc. 188,756.00 124,500.00 14,500.00
NET INCOME 158,176.23 348,503.44 44,552.59
Balance Sheet Data:
Total Current Assets $427,243.64 $612,124.07 $275,498.03
Total Fixed Assets 12,942.03 14,394.46 22,046.50
Total Other Assets 371,801.44 173,992.44 49.492.44
Total Assets 811,987.11 800,510.97 347,036.97
Total Current Liabilities 40,775.45 181,475.54 55,504.98
Stockholders’ Equity Capital Stock:
Class A Common, $1.00 par value,
17,000 shares authorized, 15,000
shares issued and outstanding 15,000.00 15,300.00 16,100.00
Class B Common, $1.00 par value,
17,000 shares authorized, 12,800
shares issues and outstanding 12,800.00 12,900.00 13,500.00
Class C Common, $1.00 par value,
3,000 shares authorized, no
shares issued and outstanding —
non-voting 0.00 0.00 0.00
Additional Paid-In Capital 389,200.00 394,800.00 414,400.00
Retained Earnings 354,211.66 196,035.43 (152,468.01)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 771,211.66 619,035.43 291,531.99
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND $347,036.9

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

1 1

$800,510.97
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in our shares of common stock is highly speculative and involves a high degree of
risk, including the risks described below. In addition to the other information presented in this Offering
Circular, you should carefully consider the following risk factors before making an investment decision.

Our limited operating history makes it difficult to predict our success.

We were incorporated for the purpose of forming an independent practice association of
physicians and other healthcare providers that (i) would not be involved with management of the
physicians’ or other healthcare providers’ individual private medical practices, but rather would
facilitate clinical integration among the participating providers by facilitating their consultation and
cooperation in connection with patient care, and (ii) would negotiate contracts on behalf of our
participating providers. To further this objective, we have entered into a joint venture with Wellmont
Health Systems (“Wellmont™) to establish the Highlands Wellmont Health Network, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, owned equally by Wellmont and us (the “PHO”), which represents a network of provider
facilities and physicians which, in turn, gives Wellmont access to a network of physicians. We and the
PHO have been operational for approximately seven years. Since commencement of operations, we
have undertaken significant strategic changes including the hiring of a full-time Executive Director and
expansion of our administrative staff commencing in November 1977, and the implementation and
subsequent termination of our gainsharing activities in 1998-1999. Because of these significant strategic
changes, and our interest in becoming a clinical research organization, our historical operational and
financial information is of somewhat limited value as an indication of our future operations and business
prospects. Accordingly, an investment in our common stock may be subject to a higher degree of risk
than investment in a company that has experienced fewer strategic changes or whose shareholders and
strategic partners are involved in unregulated industries.

Our obligations under the PHO’s Stockholders Agreement limit our ability to sell our shares
of stock in the PHO. The PHO may terminate our Preferred Provider Agreements.

Pursuant to the Stockholders Agreement among Highlands Physicians, Wellmont and the PHO,
we are obligated to offer the common stock that we own in the PHO, to the PHO, and then to Wellmont,
prior to selling said common stock to a third party. This limits our ability to dispose of the common
stock that we own in the PHO. The Stockholders Agreement also provides for the dissolution of the
PHO under certain circumstances. In addition, the Preferred Provider Agreements between Highlands
Physicians and the PHO and Wellmont and the PHO provide for the possible termination of one or both
of these agreements. If the PHO is dissolved or if either of the Preferred Provider Agreements are
terminated, the value of the common stock in the PHO that we own would be severely reduced due to a
lack of a physician-hospital organization or a hospital partner in a managed healthcare market and you
may lose your entire investment in us.

We may not be able to compete in our industry.

Although the PHO’s Stockholders Agreement provides that the PHO will serve as the exclusive
managed care organization of Wellmont, and that neither Wellmont nor Highlands Physicians will own
or invest in or in any manner own, establish or operate an entity which competes with the PHO in
certain geographic areas, neither Wellmont nor Highlands Physicians are precluded from entering into
contracts to provide services to managed care networks competing with the PHO. Direct contracts
between Wellmont or Highlands Physicians and competing managed care organizations, contracts that
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otherwise might have been entered into and the economic benefit derived from or realized by the PHO,
could severely damage the viability of the PHO and reduce the value of the investment by us in the
PHO, thereby decreasing the value of our common stock.

The continued operation of the PHO is important to us.

The PHO is an independent physician hospital organization that relies upon the continued
success of Highlands Physicians and Wellmont. If the PHO would be unable to continue to do business
as contemplated under the existing agreements between Wellmont, the PHO and us, we would no longer
receive $22,950 per month from the PHO for credentialing, recruitment and other provider related
services. This constitutes in excess of 50% of our revenues. The loss of these revenues would be
material and adverse to us.

We, or our strategic partners, could be found liable for violations of practice of medicine or
anti-kickback laws and regulations.

In recent years, the Office of the Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services (“OIG™) has more actively investigated arrangements between hospitals and physicians and
physician groups to determine if such arrangements violate anti-kickback laws and other applicable
statutes and regulations. If the OIG or other state or local authorities determine that transactions
contemplated by the agreements between Highlands Physicians, Wellmont and PHO or the actual
operation of the agreements violate applicable laws, either Highlands Physicians or Wellmont may be
required to dissolve the PHO pursuant to the Stockholders Agreement. Alternatively, the OIG or other
regulatory authority may cause the dissolution of PHO and/or impose criminal or economic sanctions on
the PHO.

We could face liability and sanctions for our previous gainsharing activities.

Highlands Physicians and Wellmont entered into a Consulting Agreement in October 1997 for
the implementation and operation of gainsharing projects. In general, gainsharing projects were a
collaborative effort between our physicians and Wellmont to establish and implement guidelines to
control costs in specific areas of healthcare. Several gainsharing projects were established by Highlands
Physicians and Wellmont and the net savings were distributed equally to Highlands Physicians and
Wellmont.

In July 1999, the OIG issued an advisory bulletin prohibiting any hospital from “knowingly
making a payment directly or indirectly to a physician as an inducement to reduce or limit service to
Medicare or Medicaid beneficiaries under the physician’s care.” The OIG advised that the expeditious
termination of existing gainsharing arrangements would be considered in exercising its enforcement
discretion. The gainsharing arrangements between Wellmont and us were immediately terminated and
no payments pursuant to those arrangements were distributed to Wellmont or to us following the
issuance of the OIG advisory bulletin. These gainsharing arrangements were a significant source of our
income which is unlikely to be repeated without significant restructuring pursuant to subsequent OIG
opinions. In addition, the OIG still has the discretion to pursue enforcement actions against us, which
could result in civil monetary penalties and criminal sanctions against us.
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Our potential inability to manage risks could trigger our guarantee under the PHO’s Letter of
Credit. :

We currently own 50% of the PHO. Recently, the PHO introduced a health insurance product
for small groups. Under the terms of this insurance product, if the medical-loss ratio exceeds the
targeted percentages, the PHO is obligated to cover twenty percent (20%) of the shortfall. To ensure
that funds are available, the PHO has established a Letter of Credit in an amount equal to $120,000 to
ensure the required payments are made. In the event that the PHO is unable to meet its obligations
under the Letter of Credit, we will have an obligation to pay some or all of the amount outstanding
under the Letter of Credit. If we are unable to manage the risks of this arrangement, our viability could
be jeopardized.

We may face liability for our role in clinical trials.

We are developing the infrastructure to become a clinical research organization to perform non-
medical duties for clinical trials required by the United States Department of Health and Human
Services, Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) for the approval of pharmaceuticals and medical
devices. As a clinical research organization, we will (1) elicit clinical trials from sponsoring companies,
such as pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies; (2) obtain and monitor investigative
sites by providers who choose to participate in the clinical trials; (3) perform administrative tasks; and
(4) work with an institutional review board composed of healthcare professionals and other members of
the community to monitor compliance with governing regulations. We estimate that we have expended
a total of approximately $15,000 (and all such expenditures have occurred since December 31, 2000 and
therefore are not reflected on our audited financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2000),
to achieve this goal, but to date no clinical trials have been contracted for and there is no guaranty that
we will be selected to perform such trials. To date, we have not received any income as a clinical
research organization. In connection with these clinical research organization duties, we may be subject
to liability for our role in the performance and outcome of the clinical trials, including civil penalties and
criminal sanctions for violation of laws governing clinical trials, all of which could have a material
adverse affect on our business operations or financial condition.

We may face liability for violations of anti-trust laws.

The actual operation of the PHO or our network of participating providers may be deemed to
violate antitrust laws as enforced by the United States Department of Justice or the Federal Trade
Commission. In general, the antitrust laws make it illegal for parties to enter into a cooperative
arrangement for the purpose of fixing fees or preventing any other party from competing with them in
that marketplace. A violation of the antitrust laws may be deemed a criminal offense and appropriate
sanctions may be imposed.

We negotiate managed care agreements with payors on behalf of our network of participating
providers and the PHO, including the negotiation of fee schedules. Based upon a review of the
Statements of Antitrust Enforcement Policy in Healthcare issued by the United States Department of
Justice and the Federal Trade Commission in 1996, as amended, we and our legal counsel believe that
we and the PHO are sufficiently clinically integrated and take sufficient financial risk to avoid a finding
of illegality by the Department of Justice and the Federal Trade Commission. However, neither the
Department of Justice or the Federal Trade Commission have been presented with the specific facts
regarding the operation of Highlands Physicians or the PHO. Therefore, the Department of Justice or
the Federal Trade Commission could review the specific operations of Highlands Physicians and the
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PHO, and determine that they violate the antitrust laws and order remediation or other actions that could
materially and adversely affect us and our common stockholders.

We and our strategic partners are interdependent on one another, and the failure of one party
to perform, could adversely affect our ability to perform or could adversely affect our operations.

The rights and obligations of our participating providers, the PHO, and payors are interconnected
through a series of contracts. The failure of any party to comply with its obligations under any contract
could result in the breach by another party under these contracts. For example, we and/or the PHO
could, through no action of our own or their own, be deemed in breach of an agreement with a payor for

~ failure to provide an adequate network of providers or for failure of a provider to accept the negotiated

fee schedule as payment in full. Such a breach could result in liability for us and/or the PHO.
We could be adversely affected by the volatility of the healthcare environment.

Due to the volatility of the healthcare environment, healthcare companies and providers must
continuously make strategic changes in our operations and activities to adapt to changing economic,
political, legislative, consumer and provider imperatives. We cannot assure you that we will continue to
successfully adapt to every change or that our efforts will sufficiently address new demands in our
marketplace. Moreover, our inability to successfully execute strategic changes in our operations, or the
PHO’s inability to do the same, could result in our dissolution and/or the dissolution of the PHO.

There is currently’no public market for our common stock and there may never be a public
market for our common stock and the Company has limited resources to repurchase the common
stock.

The shares of Highlands Physicians common stock offered for sale in this offering are exempt
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, because we have complied
with Regulation A of the Securities Act of 1933. If you purchase common stock in this offering you,
along with all of our stockholders, will be required to enter into our Stockholders Agreement, which will
severely limit your ability to sell your common stock. Our Stockholders Agreement specifically requires
you to offer to sell your common stock back to us before you can sell your common stock to a third
party. In addition, our Stockholders Agreement provides that we have an option to repurchase your
common stock upon termination of the Participating Provider Agreement that you will also sign in
connection with purchasing the common stock. There can be no assurance that we will have the
resources available to repurchase your common stock, that other investors will be interested in
purchasing your common stock, or that there will be third parties available to purchase your common
stock in the event you determine that you are interested in selling it. Accordingly, you may not be able
to liquidate your investment in Highlands Physicians and may be required to hold it for an indefinite
period of time. SEE, “TERMS OF THE OFFERING.”

There is no public or other market for shares of Highlands Physicians common stock, nor is a
public market likely to develop in the near future. You should assume that it will be difficult or
impossible to liquidate your investment in us, and you should expect to retain your Highlands
Physicians common stock indefinitely.
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We may not be able to conduct our transactions at arms’ length.

Currently, our primary customer is the PHO, of which we are a stockholder. Many of the
physicians in our provider network provide services for the PHO. We are furthermore dependent on the
PHO for payment of compensation for services which we provide to the PHO. We will use our best
efforts to conduct all negotiations and transactions with the PHO at arms’ length. However, because of
the interdependence of our operations and ownership with those of the PHO and Wellmont, and because
many of the physicians in our provider network practice at a Wellmont facility, we are required to
negotiate with the PHO based upon a recognition of both the needs of our provider network and
Wellmont and, therefore, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain as favorable terms in
our transactions with the PHO as though we were bargaining with an unaffiliated entity. SEE,
“DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS.”

We have never issued dividends to our stockholders and we do not intend to issue dividends to
our stockholders.

We have never paid dividends on shares of our common stock and we do not anticipate that we
will pay dividends in the foreseeable future. If you anticipate that you will need dividend income, you
should refrain from purchasing shares of our common stock.

Our common stock is subordinated to our other liabilities and obligations.

Our common stock is unsecured and subordinated in right of payment to most of our other
liabilities and obligations. In the event of any insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding, or of any
receivership, liquidation, reorganization or other similar proceeding, or in the event of any proceeding
for voluntary liquidation, dissolution or other winding up of Highlands Physicians, whether or not
involving insolvency or bankruptcy, then the holders of any indebtedness obligations of Highlands
Physicians will be entitled to receive payment in full of all principal and interest on all indebtedness
before the holders of shares of our common stock may receive any payments. Further, if any of the
events listed in the prior sentence occur, there may be few, if any, funds available to distribute to
stockholders after we satisfy the obligations we owe to our creditors.

We may be subject to legal proceedings that could adversely affects our business

We are not currently involved in any material litigation. However, due to the laws to which we
are subject and the rules and regulations applicable to such laws and judicial decisions interpreting such
laws, it is not uncommon for industry participants to be named as defendants in litigation alleging
violations of such rules and regulations or the failure to comply with such rules and regulations.
Therefore, there can be no assurance that we will not be named as a defendant in any future suits or that,
if named, the effect will not adversely impact us or our financial condition.

Our success is dependent on the efforts of our executive officers and on our ability to attract
and retain qualified employees.

Our success depends upon the continued contributions of our management, including A. Walter
Hankwitz, our Executive Director. The loss of services of any of our key personnel, including Mr.
Hankwitz, could adversely affect our operations and our financial condition. Currently, we have a
continuously renewable Employment Agreement with Mr. Hankwitz initially effective on November 1,
1997 and amended effective November 15, 2000. Mr. Hankwitz’s Employment Agreement continues
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through December 31, 2001, but is automatically renewed annually, unless it is terminated by either Mr.
Hankwitz or us. If Mr. Hankwitz’s Employment Agreement is not continued for any reason, we may be
unable to replace him with an individual of similar expertise and skill and our business may be
adversely affected. SEE, “DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES -
Biographical Information About our Executive Director.”

Superior Voting Rights of Class A and Class B Common Stockholders.

Under the Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, in addition to other required
approvals, an affirmative vote not only of the majority of the common stockholders, but a majority of
the Class A Common Stockholders and the Class B Common Stockholders, each voting separately as a
class, is required. This may result in the interests of the Class A Common Stockholders and the Class B
Common Stockholders becoming paramount to those of any other class of voting common stock of the
Company.

11




"WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

After the closing of this offering, we will not be subject to the reporting requirements of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and we will not be required to deliver an annual report or any periodic
reports to our stockholders. We will, at any time, deliver to any stockholder, at the request of the
stockholder, financial statements covering the two previous full fiscal years, which will include a Statement
of Financial Condition, Statement of Income, Statement of Stockholders’ Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows.

We have filed an Offering Statement on Form 1-A and Amendment No. 1 thereto (collectively,
the “Offering Statement”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) pursuant to
Regulation A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Offering Statement, which includes this
Offering Circular, contains information not described in this Offering Circular, including copies of certain
documents referred to in this Offering Circular, and we hereby refer to the Offering Statement and its
exhibits for further information about our company and this offering.

The Offering Statement may be inspected, without charge, at the Commission’s offices at 450 Fifth
Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Copies of all or any part of the Offering Statement may be obtained
from the Commission’s Public Reference Room, 450 Fifth- Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549, upon
payment of the prescribed fees.

In addition, we have filed the Offering Statement with the Kentucky Department of Financial
Institutions; the Tennessee Department of Commerce and Insurance, Securities Division; the Virginia State
Corporation Commission, Division of Securities; and the West Virginia Sate Auditor’s Office. Copies of the
Offering Statement are available at the following offices of such authorities.

Kentucky Department of Department of Commerce and

Financial Institutions Insurance

1025 Capital Center Drive Securities Division

Suite 200 500 James Robertson Parkway

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 Volunteer Plaza, 6™ Floor, Suite 680
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

State Corporation Commission West Virginia State Auditor’s Office

Division of Securities and Retail Securities Division

Franchising Building 1, Room W-110

1300 East Main Street, 9" Floor Charleston, West Virginia 25305

Richmond, Virginia 23219

Requests for additional information concerning us, including a copy of our Certificate of
Incorporation, and additional copies of the Offering Circular (including all agreements and documents
attached to the Offering Circular as exhibits), should be directed to:

Mr. A. Walter Hankwitz
Executive Director
Highlands Physicians, Inc.
2550 East Stone Drive, Suite 220
Kingsport, Tennessee 37660
423.392.1920
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS AND OTHER RISKS

This Offering Circular contains forward-looking statements, including most importantly, but not
limited to, information concerning possible or assumed future results of operations of Highlands
Physicians, Inc. listed under “DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS” and those statements preceded by,
followed by or that include the words “may,” “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “estimates,”
“anticipates” or the negation thereof, or similar expressions. The achievement of the outcomes
described in any forward-looking statements is subject to both known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors that may cause actual results, performance or achievements of those involved in the
healthcare industry, in general, and of Highlands Physicians, Inc., in particular, to be materially different
from any outcomes expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Prospective Purchasers
should understand that several important factors, in addition to those discussed under “RISK
FACTORS” herein and elsewhere in this document, could affect the future results of Highlands
Physicians, Inc. and could cause those results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-
looking statements contained herein. Such additional factors include, among other things, future
economic, competitive and regulatory conditions, financial market conditions and future business
decisions (of Highlands Physicians, Inc. and its competitors), all of which are difficult or impossible to
predict accurately and many of which are beyond the control of Highlands Physicians, Inc.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We are offering to sell an aggregate of the following shares of our common stock in this
offering:

e 10,000 shares of Class A Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing
in Kingsport, Tennessee;
10,000 shares of Class B Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing
in Bristol, Tennessee;
3,800 shares of Class D Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing
in Big Stone Gap, Virginia;
2,500 shares of Class E Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing
in Rogersville, Virginia;
10,000 shares of Class F Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing
with the Holston Medical Group in Kingsport, Tennessee; and
7,500 shares of Class G Common Stock to our credentialed physicians practicing
in Johnson City, Tennessee; and

We do not have any required minimum aggregate amount of shares of our common stock to be
sold pursuant to the offering. The offering will begin on the date of this Offering Circular and continue
either until December 31, 2001 or until we, in our sole discretion, determine that it is in our best interest
and that of our common stockholders to terminate the offering, which in any event shall not be later than
June 30, 2002. We plan to offer and sell our common stock directly to investors and we have not
retained any underwriters, brokers, or placement agents to conduct or consummate this offering. Dr.
Nelson Gwaltney, President and a member of our Board of Directors, and assisted by Mr. A. Walter
Hankwitz, Executive Director, will conduct this offering on our behalf.

If we accept your subscription to purchase our common stock, you must purchase $1,500 of that
class of our common stock for which your subscription is tendered and accepted, and you may purchase
no more than $1,500 of that class of common stock.

Our market for this offering will be limited to physicians (1) who have been credentialed by us
as described in the 1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreement and who have executed all required
documentation required by us in our credentialing process, including a Physician Membership
Application and the Conditions of Application; (2) who practice (a) at a Wellmont-owned facility, (b) in
a community where a Wellmont-owned facility is located, or (c) in a professional service company, one
or more of whose common stockholders are also common stockholders of Highlands Physicians and all
of whom meet our credentialing criteria; (3) who live in Virginia, Kentucky, Tennessee or West
Virginia; (4) who satisfy the practice location requirements; and (5) whose subscriptions we accept. We
intend to publicize this offering by personal letter directed solely to physicians who have been
credentialed by us for service in the PHO. SEE, “DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS.”

If you qualify for participating in this offering and you would like to purchase our common stock
in this offering, you must (1) execute and deliver to us (A) a Subscription Agreement and (B) a
Stockholders Agreement, and (2) pay $1,500, by check, payable to Highlands Physicians, Inc. You must
also have executed, or be a member of a company that has executed a 1997 Restated Participating
Provider Agreement. We reserve the right to reject any Subscription Agreement. If we reject your
Subscription Agreement, we will return to you the funds we received from you without interest or
deduction. We will not offer any shares of our common stock for the account of our current common
stockholders.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We anticipate that the net proceeds from the sale of our common stock in this offering will be
$600,000, after we deduct the expenses of this offering from all proceeds we receive. We anticipate that
our expenses for this offering will not exceed $125,000. We intend to use the all of the proceeds of this
offering for working capital, including the payment of salaries for our employees, costs associated with
meetings of our stockholders and Board of Directors (including committees thereof), rent, legal fees and
accounting fees for both this offering and those incurred by us on an ongoing basis.
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CAPITALIZATION

’

The following table contains the capitalization of Highlands Physicians, Inc. as of September 30,
2001 on a historical basis and on an adjusted basis, to reflect the issuance by Highlands of an estimated
$303,000 shares of common stock. SEE, “USE OF PROCEEDS.” This table should be read and
considered in conjunction with other portions of this Offering Circular, including the financial
statements of Highlands Physicians, Inc. made a part hereof.

September 30, 2001*

(unaudited)
Pro Forma
Actual As Adjusted
Indebtedness:
Total Current Liabilities $ 24,938.40 $ 24,938.40
Total Long-Term Liabilities 2,635.00 2,635.00
Total Liabilities 27,573.40 27,573.40
Stockholders’ equity:
Capital Stock:
Class A Common, $1.00 Par Value, 27,000 Shares Authorized,
24,900 Shares Issued and Outstanding 14,900.00 21,600.00
Class B Common, $1.00 Par Value, 27,000 Shares Authorized,
22,800 Shares Issued and Outstanding 12,800.00 18,200.00
Class C Common, $1.00 Par Value, 3,000 Shares Authorized, No
Shares Issued and Outstanding - Non-Voting 0.00 0.00
Class D Common, $1.00 Par Value, 5,000 Shares Authorized, 1,200
Shares Issued and Outstanding 1,200.00 1,200.00
Class E Common, $1.00 Par Value, 2,500 Shares Authorized, 5,000
Shares Issued and Outstanding 0.00 700.00
Class F Common, $1.00 Par Value, 10,000 Shares Authorized,
10,000 Shares Issued and Outstanding 0.00 5,300.00
Class G Common, $1.00 Par Value, 7,500 Shares Authorized, 7,500
Shares Issued and Outstanding 0.00 900.00
Additional Paid-In Capital 387,800.00 670,600.00
Retained Earnings 326,898.27 326,898.27
Total Stockholders’” Equity 743,598.27 1,045,398.27
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $771.171.67 $1,072.971.67

Please note that while the offering is not underwritten, management is reasonably confident that approximately 202 of the credentialed physicians
who are not at the time of the offering already common stockholders of Highlands Physicians will purchase our common stock as required. Thus
the pro forma calculations reflect this assumption. Additional shares of common stock will be offered for sale to those physicians who become
credentialed by us after the date hereof but before the offering is terminated.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

The following section contains a discussion of the business of our company, Highlands
Physicians, Inc., and summary discussions of our material agreements, which form the basis of our
primary commercial relationships. We do not represent that the discussion of our material agreements
addresses every matter about which you may be interested. We encourage you to review our material
agreements for a complete understanding of all of the terms and conditions of our commercial
relationships. Agreements not attached to this Offering Statement are available upon request.

Highlands Physicians

Highlands Physicians, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was incorporated on August 20, 1993 and
qualified to do business in Tennessee on February 1, 1994. We operate as an independent practice
association designed (1) to facilitate the consultation and cooperation of our members so that their
various medical expertises are provided in a coherent and seamless manner to their patients, and (2) to
perform management services for our common stockholders and those physicians who are part of the
Highlands Physicians, Inc. network (often called our “participating providers”). The services we
provide include (i) recruitment of physicians and other healthcare providers; (ii) negotiation of contracts
with healthcare providers, hospitals, clinics, and third party payors; (iii) management of contracts on
behalf of healthcare providers, hospitals and clinics; (iv) utilization review and management; and (v)
credentialing of physicians and other healthcare providers. We are not a practice management company
and we do not manage the day-to-day operations of our participating providers, including the physicians
who are part of our network, and those physicians who are both part of our network and who are also
our common stockholders.

To fully understand our operations, it is important to understand the strategic alliance
documented by our contractual relationship that we have formed with Wellmont Health System
(“Wellmont™). Wellmont, a Tennessee non-profit corporation, operates hospitals and clinics in northeast
Tennessee and southwest Virginia. Together with Wellmont, we formed and we operate the Highlands
Wellmont Health Network, Inc. (the “PHO”). It is through the PHO that we support our network of
participating providers, by negotiating and establishing commercial relationships with insurance
companies, other payors and managed care organizations to obtain patients for our participating
providers. Our participating providers are not required to contract with insurance companies, other
payors and managed care organizations exclusively through us, but can enter into these contracts
individually or through their practices or other groups.

The PHO is a Delaware corporation, owned equally by Wellmont and Highlands Physicians:
Wellmont owns 100% of the authorized and issued Class A Common Stock, and we own 100% of the
authorized and issued Class B Common Stock. The PHO’s Certificate of Incorporation provides that
each of the PHO’s Class A Common Stockholders and the PHO’s Class B Common Stockholders have
identical rights. Eight of the 16 members of the PHO’s Board of Directors are elected by Wellmont, as
the Class A Stockholder, and the remaining eight members of the Board of Directors are elected by us,
as the Class B Stockholder.

We are the PHO’s exclusive physician network. We provide our network of participating
providers to the PHO. Individual physicians must be credentialed by us to participate in Highlands
Physicians and, through us, the PHO. Physicians are not able to participate directly in the PHO, but
rather must participate through us by executing a Participating Provider Agreement with us and satisfy
our credentialing criteria. As its contribution to our strategic alliance, Wellmont supplies the facilities to
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the PHO. As a result of its ownership by Wellmont and us, the PHO is able to represent a network of
both physicians and provider facilities. Accordingly, the PHO, as it is comprised of both physician and
hospital services, it is able to provide both physician and hospital services to healthcare providers (and
ultimately to individuals who meet eligibility requirements and for whom premiums are paid under
health benefit arrangements (the “covered lives™) through a single organization; such an organization
which (i) establishes mechanisms to monitor and control costs and to assure the quality of care provided,
(i1) selects those physicians to participate therein who are qualified practitioners, and (iii) makes a
significant investment in the infrastructures needed to achieve these goals, is often referred to as a
“clinically integrated healthcare system”. Management believes that this clinically integrated healthcare
system, including our independent practice association, makes us an attractive managed care
organization to healthcare providers as it streamlines and facilitates the provision of healthcare services
for both the healthcare provider and the covered lives.

The PHO negotiates contracts with health insurance companies, other payors and managed care
organizations for the reimbursement for all services rendered by the physician network on a discounted
fee-for-service basis; no capitation arrangements exist. In addition to standard and health benefit
services, the PHO also offers self-funded employers the following products: Case Care, Employee
Solutions and Wellness products. The PHO has entered into 19 contracts for 28 products with insurance
companies and/or managed care organizations and 22 contracts pertaining to 45,000 covered lives with
self-funded employers. The PHO earns its revenues primarily in three ways: (1) charging clients fees
for its Case Care, Employee Solutions and Wellness products; (2) charging self-funded employers
network access fees; and (3) charging all of its participating providers, including independent practice
association members and Wellmont facilities, an administrative fee. Although the members of the
physician network are allowed to negotiate contracts with health insurance companies, managed care
organizations and payors directly, most of the network physicians, who are also our common
stockholders, rely on us, in concert with the PHO, to negotiate those agreements. Further, as discussed
below, we support the PHO in its activities and contracts with insurance companies, other payors and
managed care organizations.

We identify new potential physicians to join our physician network in several ways. When
Wellmont adds a new facility to its network of hospitals and clinics, Wellmont or we identify the
number of physicians and health care specialties which will be necessary to operate the new facility. As
part of the efforts to identify the needs of the new facility, we hold a meeting with the new facility’s
existing medical staff to determine what staffing needs are being adequately addressed. In addition, our
Executive Director and our Physician Needs Committee work to determine the number of physicians
and health care specialties which should be recruited to adequately staff the new facility and the
surrounding health care market. Any physician whom we have identified as a potential member of our
network of participating providers is sent a letter and an application packet and, upon receipt by us of a
completed application packet, the physician begins our credentialing process. In addition, our Physician
Needs Committee works to proactively identify need based on the PHO’s plans to expand
geographically or to fill voids in a needed physician specialty within our current market.

To become a member of the Highlands Physicians’ physician network, but not a common
stockholder of Highlands Physicians, a physician must submit a completed Participating Provider
Agreement and application to us, satisfy rigorous credentialing criteria, and have the same approved by
both our and the PHO’s Boards of Directors. We currently have Participating Provider Agreements with
more than 650 physicians.
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Under those Participating Provider Agreements, the physicians agree to provide professional
services in accordance with specified terms and conditions to patients whose health benefits are covered
by health insurance companies, other payors and managed care organizations. In the event that the
physician satisfies the credentialing criteria, is approved by both Boards of Directors, and works at a
specified Wellmont location, he then is required to become a common stockholder of Highlands
Physicians. In the event he does not work at a specified Wellmont location, then he cannot purchase our
common stock, but rather simply continues to be a participating provider in the network and to receive
the full benefits that such participation in the network provides.

To become a common stockholder of Highlands Physicians, a credentialed physician must
execute and deliver to us a Subscription Agreement and a Stockholders Agreement, and pay us $1,500
in cash. Under the terms of the Stockholders Agreement, the credentialed physician may not pledge or
assign his common stock, and must offer his common stock to us, for repurchase by us, for $1,500 plus
all additional amounts of paid-in capital, in the event he resigns from Highlands Physicians. Currently,
only 277 of the 650 physicians who participate in our physician network are common stockholders.
With the completion of this offering, management anticipates that approximately 200 participating
providers, who have already completed the credentialing process and who satisfy the location
requirements, will become common stockholders of Highlands Physicians, bringing the total number of
common stockholders of Highlands Physicians to about 477. It is furthermore anticipated that
additional physicians will be credentialed and become common stockholders.

We currently enjoy three streams of revenues: First, revenue is generated under the terms of the
Preferred Provider Agreement with the PHO which provides that we will be paid $22,950 per month for
providing certain specified services set forth above. Our second stream of revenue is derived from a fee
of $250 for each new participating provider application received which must undergo our credentialing
process. Our third stream of revenue is an administrative fee invoiced quarterly to our physician
members as 1.25% of the reimbursement received through contracts accessed through the PHO for
which we provide support.

We provide limited direct services to our common stockholders. Periodically we answer
participating providers’ questions regarding a term, condition or reimbursement for specific services
regarding a contract in place with a health insurance company, managed care organization or payor. We
also provide utilization review and management services. These services are overseen by our
Utilization Management Committee which meets monthly in tandem with our Quality Improvement and
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committees (collectively, the “Committees”). PHO personnel prepare
updated schedules on a monthly basis delineating various utilization statistics for contracts at which we
are at financial risk of loss and which are tied to fiscal performance of individual contract fund pools.
These schedules are reviewed and discussed and corrective action plans are created at our monthly
Committees meetings. We also employ a full-time Contract Administrator who manages the contracts
negotiated by the PHO. Routinely, we generate reports delineating volumes of business and
reimbursements that should be received by providers accessing those contracts through their relationship
with us and the PHO. The Contract Administrator also assists our Executive Director in negotiating the
terms, conditions and reimbursements for new and renewing contracts. We are also pursuing
participations in clinical trials and gainsharing programs. These potential additional revenue streams are
very preliminary and subject to regulation, and there is no assurance that they will result in income to us.

Our common stockholders also elect a Board of Directors to which each of our seven standing
committees reports. Our seven standing committees include the Finance/Audit Committee which
oversees our fiscal performance and capital needs; the Credentialing Committee which oversees the
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credentialing of our members; the Physicians Needs Committee which determines the need for network
providers; the Quality Improvement Committee which oversees quality issues and develops practice
guidelines; the Utilization Management Committee which oversees utilization issues; the Pharmacy and
Therapeutics Committee which oversees drug issues and formulary development; and the Clinical
Research Committee which oversees all aspects of clinical research performed by our physician
members as investigators.

The PHO’s operations affect us strategically and tactically. Strategically, we, together with
Wellmont, provide the elements necessary for the PHO to function as a clinically integrated healthcare
system under a unified management. It is because of the existence of the clinically integrated healthcare
system that the PHO is able to assure the provision of quality healthcare and to contract on favorable
terms, conditions and reimbursements with health insurance companies, other payors and managed care
organizations. Tactically, while the rights and obligations of the PHO and payors are interconnected
through a series of contracts, the medical practices of the participating providers are wholly independent
from Highlands Physicians, Wellmont and the PHO. Because of this independence, in the event that we
were to agree with Wellmont to disband the PHO, the medical practices of the individual participating
providers could continue independently and the medical care to the patients continue. We do, however,
acknowledge, that both the Wellmont facilities and our physicians are subject to extensive governmental
regulation. We fully anticipate that material changes in said governmental regulations may directly
impact Wellmont and our credentialed physicians and potentially may affect the activities that we can
undertake.

Historically, in order to finance our operations, we have borrowed money from Wellmont and
pledged our assets as security for obligations of the PHO. As of the date of this Offering Circular, all
our obligations on these loans from Wellmont have been repaid and our pledges have been terminated.

Our Relationship With The PHO

1. QOur prior private placement offerings of shares of our common stock.

In 1993 and 1994, we conducted our first private placement of our Class A Common Stock, with
a par value of $1.00 per share, to our network physicians practicing in Bristol, Tennessee. In 1997, we
conducted our second private placement of our Class A Common Stock, with a par value of $1.00 per
share, to our network physicians practicing in Kingsport, Tennessee. In 1998, we conducted our third
private placement of our Class D Common Stock, with a par value of $1.00 per share, to our network
physicians practicing in Big Stone Gap, Virginia. As a condition to their purchase of shares of our
common stock, the physicians, as stockholders of our company, were required to execute a Stockholders
Agreement, dated November 2, 1993, as amended effective May 6, 1996, and a Participating Provider
Agreement with us.

2. Our purchase of shares of the Class B Stock of the PHO.

The funds raised in the first private placement of stock to the Bristol physicians served as our
initial capital. We used this initial capital to purchase 100 shares of the PHO’s Class B Common Stock,
par value $1.00 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of $100,000. Bristol Memorial Hospital, Inc.,
which has since formed a part of, and changed its name to, Wellmont, purchased 100 shares of the
PHO’s Class A Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of $100,000.
The Certificate of Incorporation of the PHO provides that each of the shares of the Class A Common
Stock and the Class B Common Stock have identical rights, except that the holders of the Class A
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Common Stock have the right to elect eight directors and the holders of the Class B Stock have the right
to elect eight directors. Actions must be approved by holders of a majority of each of the Class A
Common Stock and the Class B Common Stock present at a meeting at which a quorum (consisting of a
majority of the Class A Common Stock and a majority of the Class B Common Stock) is present. The
affirmative vote of two-thirds of the PHO Board of Directors is required to take any action, provided
that a minimum of two votes from each of the Class A Directors and the Class B Directors is required.

In addition, on June 25, 1996, we obtained the commitment of Wellmont to match our
contributions to the capital of the PHO in excess of $25,000.

3. The PHO Stockholders Agreement.

In our capacity as a common stockholder of the PHO, we, along with Wellmont and the PHO,
have entered into a Stockholders Agreement which requires all of the PHO’s stockholders to offer their
shares of the PHO’s common stock, first to the PHO, and, second to the other party to the Stockholders
Agreement, before selling the stock to a third party. The Stockholders Agreement also provides that
during the term of the Stockholders Agreement, neither Wellmont nor we will become a partner,
stockholder, or investor in, or otherwise in any manner own, establish or operate an entity which
competes with the PHO in the geographic areas in and around Bristol, Tennessee and Kingsport,
Tennessee, or solicit the PHO’s payors or referral sources referring payors to the PHO for any
competing entity. This prohibition against competition and solicitation does not preclude Wellmont, us
or our individual common stockholders or credentialed physicians from conducting general marketing or
advertising efforts in the Bristol and Kingsport, Tennessee areas or from entering into contracts to
provide services in managed care networks competing with the PHO outside of the Bristol or the
Kingsport, Tennessee areas. It does not require that our individual physician members use the PHO as
their exclusive managed care organization in any geographical area. Accordingly, any member of the
physician network may enter into contracts directly with health insurance companies and other managed
care organizations that compete with the PHO in any geographical area. In addition, these prohibitions
on competition and solicitation, excludes the independent practice associations in existence as of May 1,
1996 comprised of physicians on the medical staff of Holston Valley Hospital.

The PHO Stockholders Agreement provides that the PHO may be dissolved under the following
circumstances:

A. The non-breaching party may dissolve the PHO if there is a material breach of the
Stockholders Agreement or the Preferred Provider Agreement between Wellmont and the
PHO or the Preferred Provider Agreement between us and the PHO which is not
remedied in a timely manner;

B. Wellmont may dissolve the PHO if the Internal Revenue Service requires dissolution of
the PHO for the continuation of Wellmont’s tax exempt status; or

C. Either party may dissolve the PHO if the Office of the Inspector General of the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services or similar state or local authority requires the

dissolution of the PHO as a condition for not imposing sanctions for violations of
applicable statutes or regulations. SEE “RISK FACTORS”
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4, Preferred Provider Agreements.

The PHO has also entered into Preferred Provider Agreements, effective November 9, 1993,
with both us and Wellmont, which forms another basis for our relationships with both the PHO and
Wellmont. Our Preferred Provider Agreement with the PHO can be terminated (1) by mutual agreement
of the parties; (2) by either party during the thirty day period beginning on March 15 of each year
beginning in 2002; or (3) by either party if the other party is adjudicated bankrupt, becomes insolvent,
has a receiver of its assets or property appointed or makes a general assignment for the benefit of
creditors or institutes or causes to be instituted any proceeding in bankruptcy. Finally, each of these
Preferred Provider Agreements contain confidentiality provisions.

Our Preferred Provider Agreement with the PHO governs the obligations and duties of the PHO
and us. Under the terms of this agreement, we are required to perform the following:

A. To manage the execution of our Participating Provider Agreements we have signed with
our physicians network;

B. To recruit a sufficient number of credentialed physicians to enable the PHO to market the
PHO to payors to obtain payor agreements;

C. To recruit credentialed physicians who agree to a competitive maximum benefit schedule
to enable the PHO to market the PHO to payors to obtain payor agreements; and

D. To maintain a sufficient number of credentialed physicians to enable the PHO to fulfill its
obligations under existing payor agreements.

In addition, under the terms of our Preferred Provider Agreement with the PHO, the PHO is
required to perform the following:

A. To enter into payor agreements on behalf of credentialed physicians;

B. To implement and maintain systems to respond to payors, eligible persons and
credentialed physicians requests for information; and

C. To provide to credentialed physicians information and/or clarification concerning the
policies of the operation of the individual and group health benefit contracts or plans of a
payor with respect to which services are to be provided under our Preferred Provider
Agreement with the PHO.

Further, in order to strengthen the PHO’s role in our operations, we made the PHO a third party
beneficiary of our Participating Provider Agreements. We believe that by combining the strengths of
Wellmont, the PHO, and our network of physicians, we improve our ability to form commercial
relationships with third party payors, to broaden our reach to the covered lives and to improve the
delivery of quality healthcare thereto.

The PHO has also entered into a Preferred Provider Agreement with Wellmont to memorialize
the relationships between the PHO and Wellmont. The relationships memorialized in the Wellmont
Preferred Provider Agreement indirectly provide our network of providers and the PHO with access to
Wellmont’s substantial healthcare facilities. Under the terms of the Preferred Provider Agreement
between Wellmont and the PHO, Wellmont is obligated to perform the following:
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To provide covered services to eligible persons in the same manner, and in accordance
with the same medical and temporal standards, as is given to all other patients;

To comply with the utilization management program of the PHO and of payors;

To accept specified amounts as payment in full for covered services provided by
Wellmont to eligible persons;

To use its best efforts to negotiate fees to enable the PHO to obtain and maintain payor
agreements; and

To assist credentialed physicians in the referral of eligible persons to other credentialed
physicians when the covered services required by eligible persons are not provided by
Wellmont, if medically appropriate.

Under the terms of the Preferred Provider Agreement between Wellmont and the PHO, the PHO
is obligated to perform the following:

A.

B.

To enter into payor agreements on behalf of credentialed physicians;

To implement and maintain systems to respond to payors, eligible persons and
credentialed physician requests for information; and

To provide to Wellmont information and/or clarification concerning the policies of the
operation of the individual and group health benefit contracts or plans of a payor with
respect to which services are to be provided under the Preferred Provider Agreement.



Company’s Strategic Position

1. Marketplace.

We operate in and around the Kingsport, Johnson City and Bristol, Tennessee and Bristol,
Virginia (collectively, the “Tri-Cities”) market area. This market includes northeast Tennessee and
southwest Virginia. Our physician network is comprised of more than 650 physicians who provide a
complete line of primary care and specialty care throughout our market area. In addition, our market
consists of primary, secondary and tertiary level hospitals. In the past few years, management has noted
the emergence of two major health delivery systems in this market: Wellmont and Mountain States
Health System. We are affiliated with Wellmont, and, as detailed above, together with Wellmont, we
own and operate the PHO. Management believes that the PHO has experienced significant growth as it
now provides healthcare services for more than 46,000 covered lives covered by self-funded employers.
Based upon the information contained in the January 2001 Harkey Report (Tennessee Market Guide),
management believes that this represents about 28% of the preferred provider organization business in
this market.

We believe that the demographics of the Tri-Cities market engenders a high rate of insurance
coverage and potential for growth in the healthcare services industry. The Kingsport Chamber of
Commerce has indicated that the Tri-Cities market has a population of 462,800, which has recently
grown at less than 1% per year. This region has a diverse economic base and strong manufacturing
sector. The labor force is 226,000 persons strong with a low unemployment rate of 3.9%. The
employment for the region is broken down as follows: 29% administration, 12% sales, 18% service, 2%
farming, 31% manufacturing, 7% transportation. This employment mix creates a high rate of insurance
coverage for the region. The average age for the region is thirty-five (35) years of age. We believe that
the advancing age of the population will create more demand for healthcare services.

2. Products and Services.

We, through our relationships with the PHO, provide healthcare products directed to commercial
businesses that are self-funded as well as fully insured. The PHO’s main products include direct
contracting with self-funded employers for group health, behavioral health and wellness programs.
Specifically, under “Employee Solutions”, in collaboration with Occupational Health Consultants of
America, we provide a behavioral health product to the markets that we serve which includes
counseling, mental health and chemical dependency programs, wellness seminars, referrals services ,
case management review programs and claims payment services. Through our “Wellness Programs”,
we provide personal wellness profiles (including comprehensive fitness assessments and exercise and
nutrition guidelines), disease management and intervention, self-care workshops and membership in the
Bristol Wellness Center. Direct Choice, a new venture, which is a fully insured product, is scheduled to
launch in the summer of 2001.

To support the group health product with self-funded employers, the PHO operates Case Care, a
case management program which provides preadmission approval, conducts concurrent reviews, and
manages out of network services. Through these products and services, we provide quality healthcare to
the covered lives we service. Through our relationship with the PHO, the physicians in our network
provide many of the healthcare services offered through the PHO’s sale and distribution of its healthcare
products.

In addition, as discussed above, we perform management and contracting services for our
network of physicians and for the PHO to support both the delivery of healthcare to patients and the
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formation of commercial relationships with insurance companies, managed care organizations and other
payors. The services we provide include (1) recrunitment of physicians and other healthcare providers;
(2) negotiation of contracts with healthcare providers, hospitals, clinics, and third party payors; (3)
management of contracts on behalf of healthcare providers, hospitals and clinics; (4) utilization review
and management; and (5) credentialing of physicians and other healthcare providers.

3. Competition.

As detailed in the next section, we face significant competition in our market regions. Our
competitors range from national managed care organizations to physician groups that participate in our
network of providers. Our main competitors are insurance companies such as Blue Cross Blue Shield,
which offer preferred provider organization products, as well as other regional provider organizations
that are involved in direct contracting of healthcare products. Local medical groups also have direct
contracts with managed care organizations for specific services. These groups also may be members of
Highlands Physicians also, and therefore compete with us in the delivery of healthcare products and
services.

4. Target Clients.

We offer our products and services to all commercial health businesses. Direct contracting is
focused mostly at self-funded companies, which tend to have in excess of 100 employees. In addition,
we will provide management services to support the PHO’s new product, Direct Choice, which will be
focused at the smaller employer that purchases fully insured plans. With this full array of products and
services, such as wellness programs and Case-Care, we believe that we, as the owner and partner of the
PHO, are positioned to market to a wide range of commercial businesses.
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Competition

Competition in our industry is multi-faceted. Our principal competitors can be categorized into
three components: (1) large local medical groups which participate in the PHO, but choose to contract
with managed care organizations directly rather than through us; (2) other independent practice
associations and physician hospital organizations in northeastern Tennessee and southwest Virginia that
have provider networks which include physicians and other healthcare providers which are also
members of our networks; and (3) managed care organizations and preferred provider organizations
which provide services similar to the products and services we offer.

1. Medical groups which contract directly with managed care organizations.

As an independent practice association, we focus our operations primarily on recruiting and
representing physicians in contract negotiations and formations with health insurers, managed care
organizations and other payors. Many physicians and medical groups choose to contract directly with
healthcare insurers, managed care organizations and other payors directly, rather than join an
independent practice association. However, we believe that as we have been able to show “value added”
to our network of physicians in contracting with health insurers, managed care organizations and other
payors through us rather than directly, the number of physicians and medical groups participating in
payor contracts through us has increased thereby strengthening our position in the marketplace with
payor organizations. We intend to continue to expand our network of physicians and our contracts with
health insurers, managed care organizations and other payors by demonstrating the value we add
through our ability to operate as a network. However, there can be no assurance that this expansion will
continue or that we will be able to continue to maintain or expand our network of providers.

2. Independent practice associations and physician hospital organizations.

As an independent practice association, we compete with other independent physician
associations for physicians practicing in our market areas. In addition, as an owner and provider of
services. to the PHO, competitors of the PHO may be regarded as our competitors.

Prior to its dissolution effective August 1, 2001, there was one other independent practice
association and two physician hospital organizations in the northeastern Tennessee and southwestern
Virginia market that competed directly with us and the PHO. Consolidated Physicians Network was an
independent practice association that was created as a result of the merger of the Kingsport and State of
Franklin independent practice associations. As a result of the dissolution of the Consolidated Physicians
Network, management believes that some of the former members thereof may be amenable to joining
us. We are actively working to recruit these former members in Washington, Carter and Unicoi counties
in Tennessee to join and participate as members.

In addition, because we are a strategic partner of Wellmont, a large network of hospitals and
clinics in Tennessee, competitors of the PHO and Wellmont, may be considered as our competitors. The
PHO’s primary competition in the geographic region known as the “Tri-Cites” area (collectively,
Kingsport, Johnson City and Bristol, Tennessee and Bristol, Virginia) is the Johnson City Hospital.
Johnson City Hospital is based in Johnson City, Tennessee and is regarded as a strategic partner of
Mountain States Health Alliance, Wellmont’s main competitor. Mountain States Health Alliance is a
90% equity owner in PHP/Cariten, a company that offers a preferred provider network to self-funded
employers and a fully insured health maintenance organization and point-of-service products to non-self
funded employers. Even though these products compete with those offered by the PHO, the PHO has a

26




)

contract to participate as a provider in the PHP/Cariten products. In addition, Wellmont has submitted
and obtained Certificate-of-Need approval to develop a 65-bed full service community hospital in
Johnson City, Tennessee. The Certificate-of-Need approval is being appealed by Mountain States
Health Alliance and resolution of the appeal is expected in the first half of 2002. Should Wellmont’s
Certificate-of-Need prevail over this appeal, Wellmont will be the only entity with a hospital in each of
Kingsport, Johnson City and Bristol, Tennessee. Moreover, should some of the member of the
Consolidated Physicians Network providers in the greater Johnson City area join our network of
providers, then the PHO will be the only physician hospital organization in the Tri-Cities area with
integrated delivery system components in each of the Tri-Cities.

We and the PHO also have operations in southwest Virginia. Southwest Virginia Health Net,
based in Abingdon, Virginia, is another competing physician hospital organization that consists of
Johnson Memorial Hospital and the physicians on its medical staff. For the last couple of years,
Southwest Virginia Health Net has participated with us in a direct contract with a large local self-funded
employer, and has recently decided that the hospital will terminate its participation in this contract
effective June 1, 2001. However, we believe that it is likely that many of the physician-members of
Southwest Virginia Health Net will continue to participate in this contract. Last year, Southwest
Virginia Health Net established an alliance with Virginia Carolina Managed Care, Inc., a Virginia
corporation, that serves as a physicians hospital organization based in eastern Virginia, to develop the

“infrastructure necessary to market its network of providers, in direct competition to the PHO, to self-

funded employers in southwest Virginia. The alliance between Southwest Virginia Health Net and
Virginia Carolina Managed Care could pose a competitive challenge to our operations and the PHO’s
operations in southwest Virginia. We believe that by continuing to pursue avenues of expansion in our
network of providers and by working collaboratively with both the PHO and Wellmont, we will be able
to meet these new competitive challenges in southwest Virginia. However, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to continue to successfully compete with any independent physician associations or
physician hospital organizations in our market areas. ~

3. Managed care organizations and preferred provider organizations.

Employee healthcare is very competitive in the Tri-Cities market, the primary market for our
products and services. Most of the competition is in health maintenance organizations and preferred
provider organizations. According to the January 2001 Harkey Report (Tennessee Market Guide),
health maintenance organizations service 12% of all of the contracted covered lives in northeastern
Tennessee; another 20% of the covered lives are serviced by point of service products, of which John
Deere Health, Inc. dominates the market; the largest sector of the northeastern Tennessee market has
preferred provider organization which provide medical insurance coverage for approximately 68% of
the remaining covered lives in northeastern Tennessee.

The preferred provider organization market in the Tri-Cities market has grown, and managed
care organizations, regional providers and national preferred provider organization networks compete
for customers in this market. Within this product in the Tri-Cities market, we estimate that Blue Cross/
Blue Shield has captured approximately 40%, the PHO has captured approximately 28%, Mountain
States Managed Care has captured approximately 16% (via PHP/Cariten) and Consolidated Physician
Network has captured approximately 7%.

In southwest Virginia, another market in which we compete, the dominant managed care

organization is Trigon Healthcare, Inc., a company that had its beginnings as Blue Cross/Blue Shield of
Virginia and claims nearly 2,000,000 members and a 32% market share (or one in three Virginians in its
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licensed service area.). Trigon Healthcare, Inc. offers two products in southwest Virginia. One product
is “gatekept” (a health maintenance organization) and the other is “open access” (a fully-insured point of
service or self-funded preferred provider organization product). Although other managed care
organizations have a presence in southwest Virginia, none have provider networks as comprehensive as
Trigon Healthcare, Inc. Trigon Healthcare, Inc. is the main competitor to our fully insured Direct
Choice product, which we anticipate will capture market share in southwest Virginia.

We believe that as both we and the PHO further develop our provider networks throughout the
greater Tri-Cities market and introduce products that will satisfy the needs of commercial purchasers,
the number of covered lives covered by our products will increase resulting in a commensurate increase
in market share penetration. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to increase the
number of covered lives covered by our products or the products of the PHO.

Description Of Property

We lease approximately 3,473 square feet of office space located at 2550 East Stone Drive, Suite
220, in Kingsport, Tennessee, at a cost of $43,412.50 per year. The five year lease expires in
February 28, 2003. We believe that our leased office space is adequate for our intended use and is
adequately covered by insurance.

Intellectual Property

We have no patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secret or other proprietary information (except
for information regarding our financial statements).
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DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
Directors

All directors of Highlands Physicians hold office until the next annual meeting of the
stockholders of Highlands Physicians, or until their successors are duly qualified and elected.

1. The following persons currently serve as Class A Directors of Highlands Physicians:
Name of Director Age Position Director Since
Carl Bendeck, M.D.("® 47 Director September, 2000
Arthur Boyd, M.D.? 54 Director October, 1999
Gary O. Casey, M.D. 50 Director June, 2001
Stephen Combs, M.D. © 36 Director June, 2000
Gregory DeMotts, M.D. @ 50 Director, Secretary, March, 1998
Treasurer
Mark Dixon, M.D. 40 Director October, 1999
Herbert Ladley, M.D. 49 Director, Vice President March, 1998
Tony Seaton, M.D. © 40 Director October, 1999
R. Douglas Strickland, M.D. 40 Director March, 1998
Lenita Thibault, M.D. 50 Director March, 1998
2. The following persons currently serve as Class B Directors of Highlands Physicians:
Name of Director Age Position Director Since
Jere Ferguson, M.D. ® 53 Director August, 1993
Richard Foster, M.D. 51 Director October, 1999
Matthew M. Gangwer, M.D. 48 Director October, 1999
Thomas W. Green, M.D. 56 Director June, 1998
John Greg Griffith, M.D. © 39 Director July, 1996
David Nelson Gwaltney, M.D. 49 Director, President August, 1993
Thomas E. Mitoraj, M.D. ©© 41 Director October, 1999
Bert E. Tagert, M.D. 42 Director October, 1999
David E.Thompson, M.D. 52 Director August, 1993
Ronald L. Williams, M.D. 52 Director March, 2001
3. The following persons also serve as Advisory Directors of Highlands Physicians:
Name of Director Age Position Director Since
Christopher P. Stapleton, M.D. 40 Director August, 1998
(1) Member of the Contract Review Committee
2) Member of the Credentials Committee
3) Member of the Finance Committee
4) Member of the Information Services Committee
(5) Member of the Physician Needs Assessment Committee
6) Member of the Quality Assurance/Utilization Review/Pharmaceutical and Therapeutic Committee
(7N As President of Highlands Physicians, Dr. Gwaltney is an Ex-officio member of each committee of the Board of Directors of Highlands
Physicians.
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4. Biographical Information About the Directors.

Carl E. Bendeck, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since
September, 2000. Dr. Bendeck is currently self employed in Kingsport, Tennessee. From January 15,
1995 until June 16, 1996, he was employed by Bendeck, P.A. in West Palm Beach, Florida. From
June 17, 1996 to June 30, 1997, he was employed by Mountain Region Internal Medical Associates in
Kingsport, Tennessee. Dr. Bendeck is certified by the American Board of Internal Medicine. Dr.
Bendeck received his M.D. from Emory University School of Medicine in Atlanta, Georgia. Dr.
Bendeck completed his residency and internships at Tulane University in New Orleans, Louisiana.

Arthur M. Boyd, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since
October, 1999. For the last five years, Dr. Boyd has been employed by the Mountain Region Family
Practice. Dr. Boyd is certified by the American Board of Family Practice. Dr. Boyd received his M.D.
from University of Tennessee, in Memphis Tennessee. Dr. Boyd completed his residency and
internships at Baptist Memorial Hospital in Memphis, Tennessee.

Gary O. Casey, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since June
2001. Dr. Casey has practiced medicine with the Mountain Region Family Practice since 1990. Dr.
Casey is certified by the American Board of Family Practice. Dr. Casey received his M.D. from the
Medical College of Virginia, Richmond Virginia. Dr. Casey completed his residency and internship at
East Tennessee State University in Johnson City, Tennessee.

Stephen P. Combs, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since June,
2000. Dr. Combs is currently employed by Gray Station Primary Care, Gray, Tennessee. From July 1,
1995 to December 31, 1998 he was a partner with Mountain Region Pediatrics, P.C., in Kingsport,
Tennessee. Dr. Combs is certified by the American Board of Pediatrics. Dr. Combs received his M.D.
from East Tennessee State University in Johnson City, Tennessee. Dr. Combs completed his residency
and internships at Duke University Medical Center in Durham, North Carolina.

Gregory L. DeMotts, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since
March, 1998. Currently, Dr. DeMotts also serves as our Secretary and Treasurer. Dr. DeMotts has been
a member of our Needs Assessment Committee since November, 1996, and a member of our Finance
Committee since April, 1998. For the last five years, Dr. DeMotts has practiced family medicine with
the Mountain Region Family Medicine, Inc. in Nickelsville, Virginia. He is certified by the American
Board of Family Practice. Dr. DeMotts attended the University of Florida in Gainesville, Florida. He
completed his residency and internship at Roanoke Memorial Hospitals in Roanoke, Virginia.

Mark Dixon, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since October,
1999. For the past three years, Dr. Dixon has practiced medicine with the Holston Anesthesia
Associates in Kingsport, Tennessee. Prior to his association with Holston Anesthesia Associates, Dr.
Dixon practiced medicine for two years with Affiliated Anesthesiologists P.C. of Memphis, Tennessee.
Dr. Dixon is certified by the American Board of Anesthesiology. Dr. Dixon received his M.D. and
completed both his residency and internship at the University of Tennessee in Mempbhis, Tennessee.

Jere Ferguson, M.D. has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since August,
1993. Currently, Dr. Ferguson also serves on the Physician Needs Assessment Committee of the Board
of Directors. For over five years, Dr. Ferguson has been an owner, director and on the staff of the
Intermountain Pathology Association, P.C. in Bristol, Tennessee. Dr. Ferguson is certified by the
American Board of Pathology. Dr. Ferguson received his M.D. from the University of Tennessee in
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Memphis, Tennessee. He completed his internship at the City of Memphis Hospital in Memphis,
Tennessee and his residency at Baptist Memorial Hospital in Memphis, Tennessee.

Richard W. Foster, M.D. has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since
October, 1999. For the last five years, Dr. Foster has been employed by Blue Ridge Radiology P.C. in
Bristol, Tennessee.. Dr. Foster is certified by the American Board of Radiology. Dr. Foster received his
M.D. from Eastern Virginia Medical School in Norfolk, Virginia. He completed his internship at
Eastern Virginia Graduate School of Medicine in Norfolk, Virginia and his residencies at Eastern
Virginia Graduate School of Medicine in Norfolk, Virginia and the University of South Alabama
Medical Center in Mobile, Alabama.

Matthew M. Gangwer, M.D. has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since
October, 1999. For the last eight years, Dr. Gangwer has been employed by Bristol Family Medical
Center in Bristol, Tennessee. Dr. Gangwer is certified by the American Board of Family Practice. Dr.
Gangwer received his M.D. from West Virginia University School of Medicine in Morgantown, West
Virginia. Dr. Gangwer completed his residency and internships in Family Practice (ETSU) at Bristol
Regional Medical Center in Bristol, Tennessee.

Thomas W. Green, M.D. has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since June,
1998. For the last five years, Dr. Green has been in private practice. Dr. Green is certified by the
American Board of Internal Medicine. Dr. Green received his M.D. from the Medical College of
Virginia in Richmond, Virginia. He completed his internship at the Roanoke Memorial Hospital in
Roanoke, Virginia and his residency at the University of Virginia Veterans Administration Hospital in
Salem, Virginia.

John Greg Griffith, M.D. has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since July,
1996. Dr. Griffith has practiced medicine at the Bristol Urology Associates for 6-1/2 years, of which the
last three years he has been a partner in the clinic. Dr. Griffith serves on various hospital committees.
Prior to joining Bristol Urology Associates, Dr. Griffith was a resident at West Virginia University. Dr.
Griffith is certified by the American Board of Urology. Dr. Griffith received his M.D. from the
University of Oklahoma in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. He completed his internship at West Virginia
University in Morgantown, West Virginia and his residencies at the Mercy Hospital in Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania and West Virginia University in Morgantown, West Virginia.

David Nelson Gwaltney, M.D. has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since
Highlands Physicians’s inception in 1993. From 1995 until the present, Dr. Gwaltney has also served as
our President. Dr. Gwaltney has practiced medicine as a General Surgeon at the Bristol Surgical
Associates, P.C. in Bristol, Tennessee since 1984. Dr. Gwaltney is certified by the American Board of
Surgery. Dr. Gwaltney received his M.D. from the University of Arkansas in Little Rock, Arkansas. He
completed his internship at Grady Memorial Hospital in Atlanta, Georgia and his residency at Emory
University Affiliated Hospitals in Atlanta, Georgia.

Herbert Ladley, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since April,
1998 and currently serves as our Vice President. For the past 17 years, Dr. Ladley has practiced
medicine as a cardiologist for The Heart Center in Kingsport, Tennessee. Dr. Ladley is certified by the
American Board of Internal Medicine. Dr Ladley received his M.D. from the Eastern Virginia School
of Medicine in Norfolk, Virginia. He completed his internship and residency at University Hospital in
Jacksonville, Florida and a fellowship at Oregon Health Science University Hospital in Portland,
Oregon.
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Thomas E. Mitoraj, M.D., has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since
October, 1999. For the past five years, Dr. Mitoraj has been employed by YouthCare Pediatrics. Dr.
Mitoraj is certified by the American Board of Pediatrics. Dr. Mitoraj received his M.D. from the
University of Louisville in Louisville, Kentucky. He completed his internship at St. Louis Children’s
Hospital in St. Louis, Missouri and his residency at the Children's Hospital of Norfolk, Virginia.

Anthony D. Seaton, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since
October, 1999. For the past five years, Dr. Seaton has been employed by The Regional Eye Center in
Kingsport, Tennessee. Dr. Seaton is certified by the American Board of Ophthalmology. Dr. Seaton
received his M.D. from the Bowman Gray School of Medicine in Winston-Salem, North Carolina. He
completed his internship and his residency at the North Carolina Baptist Hospital in Winston-Salem,
North Carolina.

Chris Stapleton, M.D. has served as a member of our Advisory Board since August, 1998. For
the past eight years, Dr. Stapleton has been employed by Lonesome Pine Pediatrics in Big Stone Gap,
Virginia. Dr. Stapleton is certified by the American Board of Pediatrics. Dr. Stapleton received his
M.D. from the University of Virginia in Charlottesville, Virginia and completed both his residency and
internship at Geisinger Medical Center in Danville, Pennsylvania.

R. Douglas Strickland, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since
March, 1998. From 1993 until the present, Dr. Strickland has practiced medicine with Gastroenterology
Associates in Kingsport, Tennessee. Dr. Strickland is certified by the American Board of Internal
Medicine. Dr. Strickland received M.D. from Eastern Tennessee State University in Johnson City,
Tennessee. He completed his internship at the University of Kentucky in Lexington, Kentucky.

Bert E. Tagert, M.D. has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since October,
1999. For the past five years, Dr. Tagert has been employed by Appalachian Orthopedic Associates
P.C. He has practiced in Bristol since 1992. Dr. Tagert is certified by the American Board of
Orthopedic Surgery. Dr. Tagert received his M.D. from the University of Florida in Gainesville,
Florida. He completed his internship at Baylor University Medical Center in Dallas, Texas and his
residencies at Baylor University Medical Center in Dallas, Texas and the Campbell Clinic at the
University of Tennessee in Memphis, Tennessee. Dr. Tagert has also completed a Fellowship at the
Hughston Clinic in Columbus, Georgia.

Lenita Thibault, M.D. has served as a Class A Director of our Board of Directors since March,
1998. For over five years, Dr. Thibault has been the owner of and practicing obstetrician/gynecologist
at the Kingsport Women’s Group in Kingsport, Tennessee. Dr. Thibault is certified by the American
Board of Obstetrics and Gynecology. Dr. Thibault received her M.D. from Vanderbilt University in
Nashville, Tennessee. She completed her internship at Walter Reed Army Medical Center in
Washington, D.C., and her residency at Letterman Army Medical Center in San Francisco, California
and Fitzsimons Army Medical Center in Denver, Colorado.

David E. Thompson, M.D. has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since
March, 1993. Dr. Thompson also served as our Secretary and Treasurer from 1993 until April, 1998.
Dr. Thompson is currently employed by Bristol Medical Associates (an owned practice of Wellmont
Health System) in Bristol, Tennessee. Dr. Thompson practiced medicine at Bristol Medical Associates,
a medical partnership, until October, 1994. Dr. Thompson has also served as a Medical Director of the
Bristol Medical Center Skilled Nursing Unit, since July, 1994 and a Medical Director of the Wellmont
Physician Services since January, 1997. Dr. Thompson is certified by the American Board of Internal
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Medicine. Dr. Thompson received his M.D. from Bowman School of Medicine in Winston-Salem,
North Carolina. He completed his residency and internship at Vanderbilt University Hospital in
Nashville, Tennessee.

Ronald L. Williams, M.D. has served as a Class B Director of our Board of Directors since
March, 2001. For the past five years, Dr. Williams has been employed by the Bristol Emergency Room
Physicians. Dr. Williams is certified by the American Board of Emergency Medicine and the American
Board of Family Practice. Dr. Williams received his M.D. from the University of Tennessee, Memphis,
Tennessee. Dr. Williams completed both his internship and residency at Bristol Memorial Hospital in
Bristol, Tennessee.

3. Committees.

We currently have seven committees comprised of both members and non-members of our
Board of Directors. Our committees include the Behavioral Health Committee, the Contract Review
Committee, the Credentials Committee, the Finance Committee, the Information Services Committee,
the Physician Needs Committee and the Quality Assurance/Utilization Review/Pharmaceutical and
Therapeutic Committee. Committee members are appointed by our Board of Directors.

6. Advisory Directors.

According to the terms of our Amended and Restated Bylaws, the Board of Directors may also
select a maximum of 20 advisory directors, each of whom shall serve for a maximum of three years.
We currently have one advisory director.
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Executive Officers and Significant Employees

Our executive officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors. There are no family
relationships among our directors or executive officers. As of April 1, 2001, we have elected three
executive officers to our management.

1. Listed below are our executive officers and significant emplovees, their ages and present
position with our company.

Name Age Position(s)

Dr. David Nelson Gwaltney M 49 President and Director

Dr. Herbert D. Ladley @ 49 Vice President and Director

Dr. Gregory L. DeMotts @ 50 Secretary and Treasurer and Director
Mr. A. Walter Hankwitz 56 Executive Director

2. Biographical Information About our Executive Director.

A. Walter Hankwitz became our Executive Director in November, 1997. From February 1997
through October, 1997, Mr. Hankwitz served as an independent healthcare management consultant to
various healthcare organizations. For eleven years prior to that, Mr. Hankwitz served the Centinela
Hospital Medical Center in Inglewood, California (“Centinela Hospital”) in various capacities. Mr.
Hankwitz served as Senior Vice President for Healthcare Contracting at Centinela Hospital from
January, 1993 through January, 1997. During that same period, Mr. Hankwitz also served as
Executive Director of the Centinela Independent Practitioners Association in Inglewood, California.
From January, 1992 to January, 1993, Mr. Hankwitz served as the Executive Director of Centinela
Hospital’s Fitness Institute. Mr. Hankwitz also served as Vice President of Personnel at Centinela
Hospital from January, 1990 to January, 1992. Concurrently, from January 1986 to January 1993, Mr.
Hankwitz served as Vice President for Strategic Business Development at Centinela Hospital. Mr.
Hankwitz received his MBA in Healthcare Administration from George Washington University in
Washington, DC in 1973. He is a Diplomat of the American College of Healthcare Executives and is
board certified in healthcare management.. Mr. Hankwitz has an employment agreement with
Highlands Physicians. SEE, “Employment Agreements.”

(1)  For a brief biography on Dr. Gwaltney, See “Biographical Information About the Directors”.
(2) For a brief biography on Dr. Ladley, See “Biographical Information About the Directors.”
(3) For a brief biography on Dr. DeMotts, See “Biographical Information About the Directors.”



Employees

We currently employ 1 person, who is employed on a full-time basis. SEE “Executive
Officers and Significant Employees.” Further, we have entered into a management relationship,
approved by our Board of Directors, with Dr. David Nelson Gwaltney, who serves as our President.
SEE, “Employment Agreements.”

In addition, we have entered into a Leased Employee Agreement with Wellmont, dated as of
March 15, 1998. Under the Leased Employee Agreement, Wellmont provides additional leased
employees to us sufficient to support and facilitate our day-to-day operations. Under the terms of this
Leased Employee Agreement, we are responsible for reimbursing Wellmont for the costs of each
employee, including each employee’s salary and benefits. As of March 1, 2001, Wellmont provided to
us 6 full-time employees, 4 of whom work at our offices at 2550 East Stone Drive in Kingsport,
Tennessee and 2 of whom work at the Bristol Regional Medical Center at 1 Medical Park Boulevard,
Bristol, Tennessee.

Employment Agreements.

Currently, we have entered into one Employment Agreement with A. Walter Hankwitz, our
executive director. We have not entered into an employment agreement with any other officer or
employee.

Under his employment agreement, Mr. Hankwitz shall receive an annual salary of $150,000,
which may be increased by the Board of Directors. Mr. Hankwitz is also eligible for such bonuses as
shall be determined by the Board. The employment agreement continues through December 31, 2001,
and absent the termination thereof shall be automatically renewed for successive one-year periods
thereafter.

In the event that we are sold, Mr. Hankwitz may elect to receive a one-time bonus equal to 100
shares of common stock of Highlands Physicians. We may terminate Mr. Hankwitz’ employment,
with or without cause, and in the event of the latter, we shall continue to pay Mr. Hankwitz’ salary for
one year from the date of termination. If we terminate Mr. Hankwitz’ employment for cause, we shall
continue to pay his salary for the lesser of six months or the date on which he obtains new
employment. If Mr. Hankwitz resigns or is indicted for embezzlement, his salary shall terminate
contemporaneously with his employment. In the event of a change of control of the company which
results in an assignment to Mr. Hankwitz of a position or duties inconsistent with those specified in the
employment agreement, or a material disruption of his then current position, Mr. Hankwitz may elect
to terminate the employment agreement and shall receive his salary through the end of the then current
term. Mr. Hankwitz is also subject to a confidentiality agreement with respect to our confidential
information, and to a covenant not-to-compete and covenant not-to-solicit in connection with the
termination of his employment in the event he is terminated by us for cause, he terminates the
employment agreement, or non-renewal of the employment agreement by either party. All disputes
under the employment agreement shall be submitted to binding arbitration and shall be appealable in
accordance with Tennessee law.

Pursuant to a resolution of our Board of Directors, we pay Dr. Gwaltney a monthly consulting
fee of $2,500 (which includes all fees that he would receive as a member of the Board of Directors and
all committees thereof on which he serves), plus an additional consulting fee of $150 per hour for
every hour in excess of 48 hours per quarter that he allocates to Highlands Physicians.
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Stock Option Plans And Profit Sharing Plans.

We have not issued any options, warrants or other rights to purchase securities of our company.
We maintain a qualified profit sharing plan for select employees of our company through American
Express Financial Advisors, Inc.



REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

According to the terms of our amended and restated bylaws, directors may be paid their
expenses of attending board of directors meetings and any committee meetings, as well as any meeting
of the board of directors of the PHO. For the past year, directors have been paid $150 for attending any
meeting of the board of directors and committees, as well as any meeting of the board of directors of
the PHO. We anticipate that we will continue to compensate our directors in this manner.

Executive Compensation

In the table below, we have listed the compensation paid by us to each of our officers for
services rendered to our company during the period January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2000. We have
also included an estimate of annualized compensation to be paid by us to our officers for the full
calendar year of 2001.

Aggregate Estimated Annual
Remuneration Remuneration for
Name of Individual December 31, 2000 Fiscal 2001
Dr. David Nelson Gwaltney $30,000 $30,000
Dr. Herbert D. Ladley $1,950 $2,000
Dr. Gregory L. DeMotts $6,150 $6,000
Mr. A. Walter Hankwitz $172,500 $157,500
Total $210.600 $195.500
¢)] Mr. Hankwitz participates in our qualified profit-sharing plan administered by American Express Financial Advisors, Inc., pursuant to which he

received $22,500 for fiscal year ending December 31, 2000.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT
AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS

Below, we have listed information, current as of September 30, 2001, on the stock ownership
of each of our directors, executive officers and all of our directors and executive officers as a group.
To our knowledge, there are no persons who beneficially own five (5%) percent or more of the
outstanding shares of our common stock:

Amount Owned Amount Owned Percent of Stock

Name and Address of Owner Before Offering After Offering Qutstanding
Carl E. Bendeck, M.D. 100 100 @
Arthur M. Boyd, M.D. 100 100 @
Gary O. Casey, M.D. 100 100 @
Stephen P. Combs, M.D. 100 100 @
Gregory DeMotts, M.D. 100 100 @
Mark Dixon, M.D. 100 100 @
Jere W. Ferguson, M.D. 100 100 ®
Richard W. Foster, M.D. 100 100 “
Matthew M. Gangwer, M.D. 100 100 @
Thomas W. Green, M.D. 100 100 “
John Greg Griffith, M.D. 100 100 “)
Nelson Gwaltney, M.D. 100 100 )
Herbert D. Ladley, M.D. 100 100 @)
Thomas E. Mitoraj, M.D. 100 100 “
Anthony D. Seaton, M.D. 100 100 @
Christopher P. Stapleton, M.D. 100 100 @
R. Douglas Strickland, M.D. 100 100 @)
Bert E. Tagert, M.D. 100 100 @
Lenita Thibault, M.D. 100 100 @
David E. Thompson, M.D. 100 100 @
Ronald L. Williams, M.D. 100 100 ®
All officers and directors as a 2,100 2.100

group (21) persons

D) See Part I of the Offering Statement for the addresses of all officers and directors.

2) 1,500 shares of Class A Common Stock or less than 1.0% of outstanding common stock.

3) Member of the Advisory Board of Directors.

4) 1,500 shares of the Class B Common Stock or less than 1.0% of the outstanding common stock.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The only transactions between our officers and directors and our company have been the
purchase of shares of our common stock and the employment, for compensation, of some of our
stockholders. We have no arrangements with any outside entity or party which include, as owners or
otherwise, our stockholders, officers or directors. Any future transactions, if any, between our officers,
directors and 5% stockholders and our company will be on terms no less favorable than could be
obtained from independent third parties and will be approved by a majority of the directors and
stockholders.
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TERMS OF THE OFFERING

We are making this offering of shares of our common stock to a limited number of prospective
investors. Our market for this offering will be limited to physicians (1) who have been credentialed by
us as described in the 1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreement and who have executed all
required documentation required by us in our credentialing process, including a Physician Membership
Application and the Conditions of Application; (2) who serve in the PHO as part of our network of
physicians; (3) who live in the Commonwealth of Virginia, the Commonwealth of Kentucky, the State
of Tennessee or the State of West Virginia; (4) who practice (a) at a Wellmont-owned facility, (b) in a
community where a Wellmont-owned facility is located, or (c) in a professional; service company, one
or more of whose stockholders are also stockholders of Highlands Physicians and all of whom meet
our credentialing criteria; and (5) whose subscriptions we accept are eligible to purchase shares of our
common stock. We intend to publicize this offering by personal letter directed solely to physicians
who have been credentialed by us for service in the PHO. SEE, “DESCRIPTION OF THE
BUSINESS.”

The Offering

If you qualify for participating in this offering and you would like to purchase shares of our
common stock in this offering, you must (1) execute and deliver to us (A) a Subscription Agreement
and (B) a Stockholders Agreement, and (2) pay $1,500, by check, payable to Highlands Physicians,
Inc. You must also have executed, or be a member of a company that has executed, a 1997 Restated
Participating Provider Agreement. We reserve the right to reject any Subscription Agreement. If we
reject your Subscription Agreement, we will return to you the funds we received from you without
interest or deduction.

The following are summaries of certain documents (with the exception of the Physician
Membership Application which has already been provided). For a complete statement of the terms of
such agreements, please refer to the agreements themselves, which are either attached as an exhibit to
the Offering Statement or filed with this Offering Statement. You should not rely on the summaries of
these agreements below, which do not purport to be complete nor to address every matter which may
be of interest or concern to you as a prospective investor.

Subscription Agreement

The Subscription Agreement, which is attached as an exhibit to this Offering Statement,
contains certain representations as to the suitability of the investment for the prospective investor. It
also contains representations as to documents received in connection with this offering.

Stockholders Agreements

The Stockholders Agreement of Highlands Physicians, Inc., which is filed with this Offering
Statement, restricts each of our stockholders in their ability to transfer their shares of our common
stock. Under the Stockholders Agreement, each stockholder must provide written notice to our
company of any proposed sale or transfer of his or her shares of our common stock. Once we receive
notice of a proposed sale, we have the option, but not the obligation, to purchase all of the stock being
offered at the original price paid by the stockholder for his or her stock. In addition, if the
Participating Provider Agreement between Highlands Physicians and a stockholder is terminated for
any reason, we have the option, but not the obligation, to redeem the shares of stock owned by such
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terminated stockholder for a purchase price equal to the original purchase price plus any additional
capital contributions made by such stockholder. There can be no assurance that we will have the
resources available to exercise either of these options. Finally, any transferee of a stockholder will be
subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Stockholders Agreement.

1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreement

The 1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreement, attached as an exhibit to this Offering
Circular, governs the relationships between a provider and us. Any provider who enters into this non-
exclusive Agreement will be required to provide healthcare services, within the dictates of medical
standards, in accordance with certain standard terms and a fee schedule. We will negotiate and enter
into agreements with purchasers of healthcare services for providers who enter into our 1997 Restated
Participating Provider Agreement (including through our agreements with other networks) to provide
healthcare services to eligible persons pursuant to certain individual or group health benefit contracts.
In addition, the PHO is a third-party beneficiary of the 1997 Restated Participating Provider
Agreement.

The terms of the 1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreement provide that we may modify
the standard terms and fee schedule on behalf of the participating provider and create separate terms
and fee schedules for our various programs. These modifications and additional terms will be
submitted to the participating provider for acceptance or rejection. However, we have the option to
terminate the 1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreement if the participating provider rejects our
suggested modifications or additions. As we have previously stated, the termination of the 1997
Restated Participating Provider Agreement gives us the option to purchase the shares of the terminated
stockholder in accordance with our Stockholders Agreement.

The 1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreement has an initial term of one year and
provides for automatic one year renewals unless written notice is given by either party at least 120
days prior to the end of any one-year term. Either party may terminate the Agreement for unremedied
breaches on 30 days’ notice. We may terminate the Agreement at any time upon the following: (1) we
receive notice that the provider has failed to satisfy the credentialing criteria; (2) we receive notice that
the provider has failed to purchase or maintain policies of insurance as required by the credentialing
criteria; (3) we receive notice that the provider has been disqualified or suspended from practice or is
threatened with the same or has any license, certification or authorization required to perform any
duties under the Agreement restricted, suspended or terminated; (4) we receive notice that the provider
has been disciplined or threatened with disciplinary action by any governmental authority or agency,
managed care organization, hospital or other facility; (5) we receive notice that the provider is no
longer a member in good standing of the medical or professional staff of any hospital of which
provider was a member as of the effective date of the Agreement, that any hospital restricts in any way
or terminates any privileges granted to provider; (6) we receive notice that the provider has committed
professional misconduct or violated the code of professional ethics; (7) we receive notice that the
provider has become subject to an indictment or information for a felony; or, (8) we determine, in our
discretion, that the provider has an unacceptable and excessive number of professional liability claims
filed or resolved. In addition, we retain the right to terminate the Agreement upon the office relocation
of a participating provider.

Participating providers are required to provide medically appropriate covered services, for
which the participating providers are qualified, to eligible persons of payors which are parties to our
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payor agreements. We are not responsible or liable for any claims decisions or for the payment of any
claims submitted by a participating provider for furnishing covered or noncovered services to eligible
persons. We are not an insurer, guarantor or underwriter of the responsibility or liability of any payor
to provide benefits pursuant to any plan. Providers are to accept as full payment from each payor for
covered services deemed medically appropriate pursuant to the utilization management program the
lesser of charges customarily charged to other patients or the consideration provided in the fee
schedule. The Agreement contains non-disclosure and confidentiality obligations of the provider and
Highlands Physicians. Further, the Agreement provides that Providers grant their consents to the
inspection by us or our network lessees, independent credentialing entities, independent accreditation
entities, their agents and their representatives of the contents of the credentialing file of provider and
- all documents that may be material to an evaluation of qualifications and competence of provider.

As compensation for the services provided by Highlands Physicians under the 1997 Restated
Participating Provider Agreement, each provider has paid or will pay to our company a credentialing
fee and administration fee in the aggregate amount of $250. Currently, there is no annual fee
associated with the 1997 Restated Participating Provider Agreements. However, we have the option to
amend the annual fee and to terminate the Agreement if the provider objects to such increase. We, by
resolution of our Board of Directors, have the authority to receive reasonable administrative fees,
either from deductions from payments made by payors due to providers or from capitation payments
paid to our company by payors, by negotiation with payors for direct payment to our company or by
requiring provider to pay such fees.

Physician Membership Application
Each prospective investor must complete the Physician Membership Application and be

accepted as a participating provider by us prior to the sale of shares of our common stock in this
offering.
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MARKET FOR COMMON STOCK AND STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

There are currently 149 holders of shares of our Class A Common Stock, holding an aggregate
of 14,900 shares; 128 holders of shares of our Class B Common Stock, holding an aggregate of 12,800
shares; and 12 holders of Class D Common Stock holding an aggregate of 1,200 shares. There is no
public trading market for shares of our common stock and we do not anticipate that one will develop.

Holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to dividends if, as and when declared by the
Board of Directors. Under our Amended and Restated By-laws, dividends and other distributions may
only be authorized by a special vote of the Board of Directors. SEE “SUMMARY OF THE
OFFERING: The Common Stock.” We have never paid dividends on our capital stock and we do
not anticipate that we will pay dividends in the foreseeable future.
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TAX MATTERS

The following is a summary discussion of the principal United States federal income tax
consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of shares of our common stock. This
summary discussion is based on current provisions of the 1986 Internal Revenue Code, as amended,
and existing and proposed Treasury Regulations, in each case in effect and available on the date of this
Offering Circular (collectively, the “Code”), existing court decisions and existing rulings and
administrative decisions of the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), all of which are subject to change or
modification, possibly with retroactive effect. The summary discussion addresses only the tax
considerations of individual holders and initial purchasers of shares of our common stock, and who
will hold their shares of our commons stock as capital issues. Unless otherwise noted, this summary
assumes that the holder of common stock is a U.S. Holder. For purposes of this summary, a “U.S.
Holder” means a holder who is an individual, and for United States federal income tax purposes, a
citizen or resident of the United States.

The summary discussion does not address all of the tax considerations that might be relevant to
you in light of your particular circumstances and does not address tax considerations applicable to you
if you are subject to special tax rules, such as the rules dealing with brokers, dealers or traders in
securities. The summary discussion assumes that the shares of our common stock will be treated as
stock for United States federal income tax purposes.

You are strongly advised to consult your own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of
acquiring, holding or disposing of shares of our common stock in light of your personal investment
circumstances, and the consequences under state, local and foreign tax laws.

1. Distributions on Common Stock.

Cash distributions with respect to shares of our common stock will constitute dividends to the
extent paid out of current or accumulated earnings and profits of Highlands Physicians as determined
under United States federal income tax principles.

If cash distributions with respect to shares of our common stock exceed our current and
accumulated earnings and profits, the excess will be applied against and reduce your adjusted tax basis
in your shares of our common stock to the extent of the excess. Any amount in excess of the amount
treated as a dividend and the amount applied against the holder’s adjusted tax basis will be treated as a
capital gain, which will be subject to preferential tax rates. '

Distributions of property other than shares of our capital stock (or rights to acquire shares of
our capital stock) will be considered a distribution in an amount equal to the value of the property and
will be subject to tax in accordance with the rules discussed above. Distributions of shares of our
capital stock generally will not be taxable unless the distribution (i) at the election of the holder, is
payable in shares of our capital stock or cash, (ii) results in receipt by some stockholders of an increase
in their proportionate interests in our company’s assets, (iii) results in some receipt by some
stockholders of shares of our common stock and by some stockholders of shares of our preferred stock,
or (iv) is a distribution of convertible preferred stock.
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2. Redemption of Common Shares.

A redemption of shares of common stock by Highlands Physicians for cash will be treated as a
distribution taxable as a dividend to redeeming stockholders to the extent of our current and
accumulated earnings and profits as determined under United States federal income tax principles
unless the redemption (a) results in a “complete termination of interest” of the stockholder in our
capital stock (within the meaning of section 302(b)(3) of the Code), (b) is “substantially
disproportionate” with respect to the stockholder (within the meaning of section 302(b)(2) of the
Code), (¢) is “not essentially equivalent to a dividend” (within the meaning of Section 302(b)(1) of the
Code) or (d) in the case of a redemption of stock held by a stockholder who is not a corporation, is
made in partial liquidation of Highlands Physicians (within the meaning of section 302(b)(4) of the
Code), in which event the redemption will be treated as a distribution in part or full payment in
exchange for the stock. A redemption will be “not essentially equivalent to a dividend” if it results in a
“meaningful reduction” in the stockholder’s stock interest in Highlands Physicians. Because section
302(b)(1) of the Code employs a subjective standard, there can be no certainty that its requirements
will be met. Satisfaction of the “complete termination of interest” and “substantially disproportionate”
requirements depends on compliance with objective testes set forth in section 302(b)(3) and 302(b)(2)
of the Code, respectively. In determining whether any of these tests has been met, shares considered to
be owned by the holder by reason of the constructive ownership rules set forth in section 318 of the
Code, as well as shares of our common stock actually owned, must generally be taken into account. If
common stock is redeemed for cash, and if the redemption is treated as a distribution in part or full
payment in exchange for shares of our common stock, taxable gain or loss equal to the difference
between the amount of cash received and the holder’s adjusted tax basis in the redeemed shares of our
common stock will be recognized. Any such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss, and, as long as
the holder’s holding period of the shares of our common stock is more than one year, the gain will be
subject to preferential tax rates. If a redemption of shares of our common stock is treated as a
dividend, the holder loses his adjusted tax basis in the shares of our common stock, unless the holder
owns other stock in Highlands Physicians, to which the adjusted tax basis would be transferred.

3. Sale of Common Stock.

If a holder of shares of our common stock sells some or all of his shares of our common stock
to a person which is neither Highlands Physicians nor an agent of Highlands Physicians, then the
holder will recognize gain or loss for United States federal income tax purposes equal to the difference
between the amount of sale proceeds received in exchange for the shares of our common stock sold
and the stockholder’s adjusted tax basis in the shares of our common stock. Assuming the shares of
our common stock constitutes a capital asset in the hands of the stockholder, such gain or loss will be
capital gain or loss and will be long term capital gain or loss if the stockholder has held the shares of
our common stock for more than one year at the time of the sale.

THE PREVIOUS SUMMARY DISCUSSION IS NOT INTENDED AS A SUBSTITUTE FOR
CAREFUL TAX PLANNING, PARTICULARLY SINCE THE INCOME TAX
CONSEQUENCES OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE COMMON STOCK VARY
SIGNIFICANTLY WITH THE PARTICULAR SITUATION OF EACH PROSPECTIVE
INVESTOR. ACCORDINGLY, YOU ARE STRONGLY URGED TO CONSULT YOUR OWN
TAX ADVISORS WITH SPECIFIC REFERENCE TO YOUR OWN SITUATIONS
REGARDING THE POSSIBLE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF AN INVESTMENT IN SHARES
OF OUR COMMON STOCK.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Ross & Hardies, Chicago, Illinois, will pass upon certain legal matters in connection with our
common stock.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of Highlands Physicians for the fiscal year ending December 31, 1998
were reviewed by Baylor and Backus, certified public accountants, as stated in their report appearing
herein and have been included in reliance upon the report of such term as experts in accounting and
auditing. The financial statements of Highlands Physicians for the fiscal years ending December 31,
1999 and December 31, 2000 have been audited by Baylor and Backus, certified public accountants, as
stated in their respective reports appearing herein and have been included in reliance upon the reports
of such firms as experts in accounting and auditing.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Highlands Physicians, Inc.
Kingsport, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial condition of Highlands Physicians, Inc. (a corporation) as
of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reascnable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material respects, the financial position
of Hightands Physicians, Inc. as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The 1998 financial statements were reviewed by us, and our report thereon, dated February 16, 2001, stated that we
were not aware of any material modifications that should be made to these statements for them to be in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. However, a review is substantially less than an audit and does not
provide a basis for the expression of an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.

As discussed in Note 4 to the financia! statements, substantially all of the Company’s revenues were generated from

services provided to the Highlands Wellmont Health Network, Inc., the Company’s members, and to gainsharing
activities provided to facilities utilized by the Company's members.

6@2{2@\&”\& /%QJJ&U.Q/

BACKUS
Certified Public Accountants

Johnson City, Tennessee

March 6, 2001
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC,
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
As of December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Accounts Receivable
Stock Subscription Receivable
Prepaid Insurance
Prepaid Expenses — Other
Prepaid Payroll Taxes

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Leasehold Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets
Other Assets

Tax Refunds Receivable
Deposit Made

Investment in Highlands Wellmont Health Network,'lnc.

Total Other Assets

Total Assets
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2000 1999 1998
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
275,651.36 485,578.42 92,445.07 .
110,144.62 108,444.61 160,042.77
- - 4,500.00
16,312.03 16,573.70 17,962.72
25,135.63 208.08 -
- 1,319.26 547.47
427.243.64 612,124.07 275,498.03
5,101.70 5,101.70 5,101.70
25,432.71 21,871.13 21,871.13
(. 17,592.38) ( 12,578.37) (__4,926.33)
12,942.03 14,394.46 22.046.50
9,053.00 - -
4,992 44 4,992.44 4,992.44
357,756.00 169,000.00 44,500.00
371,801.44 173,992.44 49,492 .44
811,987.11 800,510.97 347,036.97
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Personnel Costs
Accrued Taxes — Other
Subscribed Stock
Accrued Interest
Deferred Federal Income Tax Liability

Total Current Liabilities

Stockholders' Equity

Capital Stock:

Class A Common, $1.00 Par Value, 17,000 Shares Authorized,
15,000 Shares Issued and Outstanding

Class B Common, $1.00 Par Value, 17,000 Shares Authorized,
12,800 Shares Issued and Outstanding

Class C Common, $1.00 Par Value, 3,000 Shares Authorized,
No Shares Issued and Outstanding - Non-Voting

Additional Paid-In Capital

Retained Earnings

Total Stockholders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

EQUITY
2000 1999 1998
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
11,608.95 4,050.00 25,809.80
6,562.50 15,519.54 6,250.00
1,969.00 142,406.00 3,237.00
18,000.00 19,500.00 19,500.00
- - 708.18
2,635.00 - -
40,775.45 181,475.54 55,504.98
15,000.00 15,300.00 16,100.00
12,800.00 12,900.00 13,500.00
389,200.00 394,800.00 414,400.00
364,211.66 196,03543  (152,468.01)
771,211.66 619,035.43 291,631.99
811,987.11 800,510.97 347.036.97

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Operating Revenues
Credentialing
Medical Service
Contract Revenue

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel Costs
Qutside Services
Committees and Meetings
Facility and Office Costs
Other Operating Costs
Contract Reward Distribution

Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating (Loss)
Other Income

Interest Income

Miscellaneous Income

Total Other Income

Net (Loss) from Continuing Operations

before Income Taxes

Income Tax Benefit on Net (Loss)

from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes

Net (Loss) from Continuing Operations

after Income Taxes

Discontinued Operations

Income from Operations of Gainsharing Activities
(Less Applicable Income Taxes of 183,880.00
and $50,190.00 for 1999 and 1998, respectively)

Equity in Highlands Wellmont Health Network, Inc.

Net Income

Earnings Per Share

2000 1999 1998
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
58,848.28 24,500.00 10,333.32
254,400.00 233,400.00 232,000.00
428,391.24 288.178.77 247.364.18
741,639.52 546,078.77 489,697.50
319,408.72 304,872.78 236,735.32
100,287.45 200,424 .43 102,337.58
93,857.43 94,672.49 100,228.96
110,320.37 124,668.79 124,541.61
16,605.42 43,479.81 48,795.81
161,639.40 - -
802,218.79 768,118.30 612.639.28
(060,579.27) (222,039.53) (122,941.78)
18,273.32 17,371.33 6,179.67
7.412.18 3,275.11 3,157.10
25.685.50 20,646.44 9,336.77
( 34,893.77) (201,393.09) (113,605.01)
4,314.00 68,474.00 46,232.00

( 30,579.77) (132,919.09) ( 67,373.01)
356,922.53 97,425.60

188,756.00 124,500.00 14,500.00
158,176.23  348,503.44  _44,552.59
5.66 12.06 1.49

:

The accompanyinn nntes are an intenral nart of the financial statements.
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Balance, December 31, 1997 (Unaudited)
Net Income

Common Stock Redeemed

Balance, December 31, 1998 (Unaudited)
Net Income

Common Stock Redeemed

Balance, December 31, 1999 (Audited)
Net Income

Common Stock Redeemed

Balance, December 31, 2000 (Audited)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Common Paid-In Retained
Stock Capital Earnings Total
30,300.00 424,200.00 (197,020.60) 257,479.40
- - 44,552.59 44,552.59
(__700.00) (__9,800.00) - (_10,500.00)
29,600.00 414,400.00  (152,468.01)  291,531.99
- - 348,503.44 348,503.44
(_1,400.00) (_19,600.00) - {_21,000.00)
28,200.00 394,800.00 196,035.43 619,035.43
- - 158,176.23 158,176.23
(__400.00) (__5.600.00) - (_6,000.00)
27,800.00 389,200.00 354,211.66 771,211.66
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
(Increase) in Investment in Equity
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Decrease in Prepaid Insurance
(Increase) in Prepaid Expenses - Other
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Taxes
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Taxes — Other
(Increase) Decrease in Accrued Tax Refund
Increase in Deferred Tax Liability
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Interest
Increase (Decrease) in Subscribed Stock
Increase in Deposits
Decrease in Accrued Personnel Costs

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Expenditures for Equipment

Net Cash (Used) for Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Wellmont Line of Credit
Payment on Welimont Line of Credit
Capital Stock Repurchases

Net Cash (Used) by Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash at Beginning of Year

Cash at End of Year

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash Paid During the Period for:
Taxes

Interest
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2000 1999 1998
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
158,176.23 348,503.44 44,552.59
5,014.01 7,652.04 4,926.33
(188,756.00) (124,500.00) ( 14,500.00)
( 1,700.01) 51,598.16 ( 91,595.37)
261.67 1,389.02 7.825.28

( 24,927.55) ( 208.08) -
1,319.26 ( 771.79)  ( 547.47)
7,558.95 ( 12,490.26) ( 29,750.20)
(140,437.00) 137,684.00 3,237.00
( 9,053.00) 5,985.00 -
2,635.00 - -

- ( 708.18) 708.18

( 1,500.00) - 19,500.00
- - ( 4,992.44)
(__8,957.04) - (_36,250.00)
(200,365.48) 414,133.35 { 96,886.10)
(__3,561.58) - ( 26,972.83)
(__3,561.58) - ( 26,972.83)
- - 50,000.00

- - ( 50,000.00)
(_6,000.00) (_21.000.00) ( 10,500.00)
(__6,000.00) (. 21,000.00) ( 10,500.00)
(209,927.06) 393,133.35 (134,358.93)
485,578.42 92 .445.07 226.804.00
275,651.36 485,578.42 92.445.07
135,266.00 - _3,958.00
- 708.18 2.416.06

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Note 1

Note 2

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Organization and Operations

Organization and Background: Highlands Physicians, Inc. (Company) is an independent practice
association of physicians and other health care providers formed in 1993 to negotiate contracts on
behalf of its participating providers, provide clinical integration to service those contracts, and engage
in other managed care activities. The Company was organized and capitalized pursuant to a private
placement memorandum and stockholders' agreement that provided for the sale of certain common
stock. Additional capitalization was effected in 1997 under a private offering and creation of the
separate classes of common stock.

Only physicians practicing in Kingsport, Tennessee, in respect of the Class A Common Stock and
physicians practicing in Bristol, Tennessee, in respect of the Class B Common Stock who enter into
and meet the credentialing criteria set forth in a participating provider agreement and are accepted by
the Company are eligible to participate in ownership of the Company. The shares of the Class A and
the Class B Common Stock have similar designations, preferences, rights and qualifications. The
related stockholders' agreement provides, among other matters, certain restrictions and obligations
upon the stockholders of the Company with respect to the sale, redemption or transfer of the stock.
The Company has also authorized the sale of certain Class C Common Stock, which has not been
issued. The Company is holding funds advanced to it for subscribed but unissued Class D Common
Stock in respect of physicians practicing in Big Stone Gap, Virginia. These shares are expected to
be issued in early 2001.

Stock Redemptions: The Company accepts requests from stockholders who have retired or relocated
to redeem their stock at the original issue price, at the Company’s discretion.

Operations: The Company has entered into various agreements with Welimont Health System, a
multi-hospital Tennessee non-profit corporation (Wellmont), in a joint venture to form and operate
Highlands Wellmont Health Network, Inc., a physician-hospital organization (the PHO). Welimont
was formed to assume operations of Bristol Regional Medical Center and Holston Valley Medical
Center, Inc. which were merged and consolidated into Wellmont effective July 1, 1996. Lonesome
Pine Hospital was merged into Wellmont effective January 1, 1997. Wellmont entered into a twenty
year operating lease of Hawkins County Memorial Hospital effective July 1, 2000, and into an
agreement to manage Buchanan General Hospital effective October 1, 2000. The Company also
engages in various consulting activities for the PHO.

The Company has never declared or paid a dividend. There is no current plan to declare dividends.

Summary of Significant Accouriting Policies

The Company's financial statements are prepared using the accrual method of accounting. Earnings
per share are calculated using the average number of shares outstanding for the period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investment in Related Organization: The Company has a 50% interest in the PHO and accounts for
its investment using the equity method of accounting.

Accounts Receivable from Related Party: The Company's revenues consist primarily of contract
revenues which are based on a percentage of the allowed managed care claims paid related to
covered medical services provided by network physician providers to eligible persons covered under
various managed care contracts, as well as other contractual services provided to the PHO or to
Wellmont. Contract revenues are recognized when claims are received and processed by the PHO
or its delegate. Accounts receivable represents amounts due the Company under these
arrangements and are not collateralized.
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Note 2

Note 3

Note 4

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Continued

Fixed Assets: Fixed assets consist primarily of computer and other office equipment and are stated
on the basis of historical cost. Depreciation is provided utilizing accelerated methods over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to ten years. .

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Investment in Related Organization

The Company shares ownership equally with Wellmont in Highlands Wellmont Health Network, Inc.,
a physician-hospital organization established to develop and operate a physician and hospital
network to contract with providers, employers, insurers and other third-party payers for the delivery
and payment of health care services. Ownership in the PHO by the Company consists of 100 shares
of Class B common stock which have identical designations, preferences, rights and qualifications to
the 100 shares of Class A common stock owned by Wellmont. The Company's original investment in
the PHO was $319,000.00 which has been adjusted by its share of gains and losses incurred by the
PHO.

Assets of the PHO at December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 were approximately $878,800.00,
$760,000.00 and $664,700.00, respectively, and consisted primarily of cash and contract fee
receivables. Liabilities at December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 were approximately $163,450.00,
$422,000.00 and $575,600.00, respectively, and consisted of amounts due to Wellmont for expenses
and long-term financing and payables to providers for withholdings related to certain health insurance
arrangements for Wellmont employees. Equity at December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 was
approximately $715,512.00, $338,000.00 and $89,100.00, respectively. Netincome of $377,512.00
and $249,000.00 was reported for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The
Company'’s share of this net income was $188,756.00 and $124,500.00, respectively.

Related Party Transactions

The Company provides certain physician recruitment, credentialing, medical direction and other
network administration services to the PHO under terms of a preferred provider agreement, as
amended. The agreement provides for payment to the Company of $19,450.00 per month, which
was increased to $22,950.00 per month beginning July 2000..

Credentialing income consists of charges to physician-applicants for certification requirements they
must meet to become a member of Highlands Physicians, Inc.

The Company also provided certain clinical consulting services to Wellmont under terms of a
consulting agreement. Under terms of the agreement, the Company received a base fee which is
substantially equal to the costs incurred by the Company for time spent by individual physicians on
specified projects. The Company was also entitled to receive certain incentive compensation, based
on future savings or other results achieved by the related projects.

Accounts receivable at December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 are primarily amounts related to

managed care contract revenues which are due from the PHO and which arose from health care
services provided by physician owners of the Company.
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Note 4

Note 5§

Note 6

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Continued

Effective January 5, 1998, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Wellmont whereby the
Company may borrow up to $150,000.00 through the two-year period of the agreement. Borrowings
bear interest at a local bank prime rate and all principal and interest payments shall be due and
payable on January 5, 2000. Borrowings are not collateralized; however, the Company's assessment
fee on managed care claims cannot be reduced until the loan is paid and any incentive compensation
under the consulting agreement with Wellmont will be used to extinguish any outstanding
indebtedness before any payments are made to the Company. The Company borrowed $50,000.00
under this agreement in January 1998. This loan was repaid in full during 1998.

The Company has entered into an employee lease agreement with Welimont. Wellmont provides
employees on a full time basis for the purpose of facilitating and supporting the day-to-day operations
of the Company. Wellmont pays all compensation and benefits of the leased employees and the
Company reimburses Wellmont. This agreement went into effect for the period March 15, 1998
through December 31, 1998 and automatically renews thereafter for additional periods of six months
each unless otherwise terminated by either party.

Investments and Credit Risk

Investments consist of short-term certificates of deposit at a financial institution. The amount of
deposits at the financial institution that exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance
coverage limit was approximately $175,000.00 and $385,000.00 at December 31, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Management is of the opinion that the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

Lease and Other Commitments

The Company has entered into an arrangement to lease office space through a lease agreement
effective March 1, 1998 through February 28, 2003. The agreement provides for an annual rental of
$39,940.00 through February 28, 2001 and $43,413.00 thereafter, including normal maintenance and
utilities.

The Company also pays $2,500.00 per month under a Board approved management arrangement to
one of the physician owners who serves as President. During 1997, the Company entered into an
employment agreement with a key employee which provides for a base salary of $150,000.00 per
annum, bonus, benefits and expense reimbursement as provided in the agreement. The agreement
also provides for additional benefits upon the sale of all of the stock or substantially all of the assets
of the Company. The initial term of the agreement is through December 31, 2000 with two automatic
one-year renewals.
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Note 7

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax

purposes. The primary financial statement and tax difference relates to the investment in related

organization.

A reconciliation between the effective income tax expense or benefit and the amount computed by
multiplying the projected statutory federal income tax rate for the periods ended December 31, 2000,

1989 and 1998 is as follows:

Net Income
Current Income Tax (Benefit) Liability

Expected Taxable Income

Computed “Expected” Tax (Expense) Benefit

Amount Attributable to Change in Value of
Investment in Highlands Wellmont Health
Network, Inc.
Amount Attributable to Taxable Effect of Net

Operating Loss Previously Offset by a Valuation

Allowance
Tax Effect of Nondeductible Penalties

Current Income Tax (Benefit) Liability
Income Tax (Benefit) Liability

before Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred Tax Liability
Current Income Tax (Benefit) Liability
Deferred Tax Assets:

‘Due to Investment in Highlands Welimont
Health Network, Inc.

Reserve for Deferred Tax Assets:
Beginning Balance
Reversal of Reserved Amount
Ending Balance
Deferred Tax Assets ~ Net:
Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Due to Investment in Highlands Wellmont
Health Network, Inc.
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2000 1999 1998
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
158,176.23 348,503.44 44,552 .59
(_ 4,314.00) 115,406.00 ~3,958.00
153,862.23 483,909.44 48.510.59
43,256.27 157,729.21 7,053.83
( 47,570.27) ( 42,323.21) ( 2,175.00)
- - ( 1,100.85)

- - 180.02
(__4,314.00) 115,406.00 3,958.00
{ 6,949.00) 115,406.00 3,958.00
2,635.00 - -
(__4,314.00) 115,406.00 3.958.00
- 44 9835.27 87.258.48

- 44,935.27 87,258.48
44,935.27 87,258.48 90,534.33 -
((44,935.27) ( 42,323.21) (_3,275.85)
- 44.935.27 87,258.48
(__2,635.00) - -
(__2,635.00) - -




Note 8

Note 9

10

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Discontinued Operations - Gainsharing

Gainsharing refers to the practice of physicians receiving a percentage of hospitals’ savings when
they make treatment choices that save money. In a special bulletin released in July, 1999, by the
Department of Health and Human Services’ Office of Inspector General (OIG) that as pertaining to
fee-for-service Medicare and Medicaid patients, gainsharing would be considered a violation of
federal law on a prospective basis. While the OIG recognized that appropriately structured
gainsharing arrangements may offer significant benefits where there is no adverse impact on the
quality of care received by patients, the Social Security Act clearly prohibits such arrangements. In
exercising its enforcement discretion, and in the absence of any evidence that a gainsharing
arrangement violated any other statutes or adversely affected patient care, the OIG stated it would
take into consideration whether a gainsharing arrangement was terminated expeditiously following

the publication of the special bulletin.

The Company immediately ceased all gainsharing projects effective July 9, 1999. Inspector General
June Gibbs Brown noted in a statement that “with appropriate regulatory safeguards, the concept of
gainsharing might be acceptable, but congressional action would be necessary to change existing
law.” At this time, there is no expectation that gainsharing will be resumed. There was no gain or

loss on the discontinuance.

Gainsharing Revenues:

Gainsharing Administration Reimbursement
Gainsharing Participation Reimbursement

Gainsharing Bonus Payments
Total Gainsharing Revenues
Gainsharing Expenses:
Gainsharing Participation BRMC
Gainsharing Participation HYHMC
Gainsharing Legal Fees
Gainsharing Distribution

Total Gainsharing Expenses

Net Gainsharing Income before taxes

Personnel Costs

Salaries and Wages
Leased Employees
Retirement Contribution
Employee Benefits
Payroll Taxes
Temporary Employment

Total Personnel Costs
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1099 1998

___(Audited) (Unaudited)

31,350.00 88,403.00

5,400.00 17,650.00

692,902.50 223,239.00

729.652.50 329,292.00

3,150.00 11,450.00

5,837.50 9,310.00

17,959.00 836.40

161,903.47 160,080.00

188,849.97 181,676.40

540,802.53 147.615.60

2000 1999 1998
__(Audited) (Audited) {(Unaudited)
150,312.50 150,000.00 156,250.00
124,165.42 117,174.41 64,528.94
22,500.00 22,500.00 -
8,762.52 8,277.05 8,851.32
7,401.62 6,921.32 7,105.06
6,266.66 - -
319.408.72  304,872.78  236,735.32




Note 10

Note 11

Note 12

11

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Outside Services

Accounting - Audit

Accounting

Consulting

Credentialing

Legal - Counsel

Consulting Fees - Gainsharing
Consulting Fees - Clinical Trials
Management

Total Outside Fees

Committees and Meetings

Board of Directors’ Meeting

Clinical Pathway Service Committee
PHO Board of Directors’ Meeting
Behaviora!l Health Committee
Contract Review Committee
Credentialing Committee

Finance Committee

QA/UM/PT Committee

Physician Needs Committee

Total Committee and Meetings

Facility and Office Costs

Supplies

Computer Software
Telephone
Depreciation
Equipment Rental
Postage

Office Lease

Meetings and Seminars
Insurance

Bank Service Charges

Total Office Costs

2000 1999 1998
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
7,800.00 - -
6,323.36 7,629.50 11,628.82

22,291.99 49,662.27 16,419.33
16,352.83 8,098.50 -
9,918.95 71,861.49 27,929.60
6,627.82 29,722.67 9,534.83
972.50 - -
30,000.00 33,450.00 36,825.00
100,287.45 200,424.43 102,337.58

2000 1999 1998

(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

25,923.97 25,682.60 34,535.90
- - 4,500.00
6,450.00 8,105.25 -
4,741.50 2,786.25 -
15,690.03 22,838.80 25,916.26
11,574.72 8,405.24 6,141.20
7,322.59 6,636.60 5,360.65
17,816.37 16,434.50 20,349.75
4,438.25 3,783.25 3,425.20
93,957.43 94,672.49 100,228.96

2000 1999 1998
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
6,850.69 11,846.99 14,236.38
5,229.20 5,009.80 3,103.90
5,343.82 8,604.03 8,457.75
5,014.01 7,652.04 4,926.33
8,846.22 9,011.06 5,812.91
3,423.30 7,525.20 8,391.75

39,939.48 39,939.48 33,282.90
5,764.89 3,380.34 5,970.29
29,891.67 31,689.02 40,301.04
17.09 10.83 58.36
110,320.37  124,668.79  124,541.61
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2000 and 1999 (Audited) and 1998 (Unaudited)

Note 13 . Other Operating Costs
2000 1999 1998
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
Mileage | 2,265.39 1,761.30 2,319.69
Entertainment 550.14 7794 . 1,473.31
Marketing and Promotion 43.40 2,847.96 12,845.50
Collection Expense - 78.83 -
Dues and Subscriptions 7,875.28 12,284.68 12,722.43
Taxes and Licenses 1,480.65 22,576.41 374.71
Retreat Costs - 3,811.82 16,182.93
Clinical Trials 4,390.00 - -
Other Expenses .56 40.87 2,877.24
Total Operating Costs 16.605.42 43,479.81 48,795.81

Note 14 Earnings Per Share

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 128 that specifies the computation, presentation and disclosure requirements
for earnings per share (EPS). The objective of SFAS No. 128 is to simplify the computation and to
make the United States’ standards more compatible with EPS standards of other countries and with
that of the International Accounting Standards Committee.

2000 1999 1998

(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

Numerator Net Income 158,176.23 348,503.44 44,552.59
Denominator Weighted-Average

Outstanding Shares 279.62 288.98 298.80

Earnings Per Share  Net of Tax 5.66 12.06 1.49

Weighted-average outstanding shares are rounded to two decimal points.
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Current Assets

Cash on Hand and in Banks
Accounts Receivable

Interest Receivable

Prepaid Insurance

Prepaid Expenses-Other

Prepaid Taxes

Deferred Federal Income Tax Asset

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Leasehold Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures, & Equip
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
Prepaid SEC filing expense
Deposits Made

Investment in Highlands Wellmont Health

Network, Inc.

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Statement of Financial Condition

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2001
ASSETS
September 30,
2001 2000 1999
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited)

132,766.51 275,651.36 485,578.42
129,512.31 110,144.62 108,444.61
1,094.84 . )
25,958.54 16,312.03 16,573.70

137.12 25,135.63 208.08

13,506.46 - 1,319.26
41,306.00 - -
344,281.78 427,243 64 612,124.07
5,101.70 5,101.70 5,101.70
30,571.93 25,432.71 21,871.13
(21,210.24) (17,592.38) (12,578.37)
14,463.39 12,942.03 14,394.46
27,950.00 9,053.00 .
4,992.44 4,992.44 4,992.44
357,756.00 357,756.00 169,000.00
390,698.44 371,801.44 173,992.44
749,443.61 811,987.11 800,510.97
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Statement of Financial Condition
For the Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2001

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Personnel Costs

Subscribed Stock

Deferred Federal Income Tax Liablility
St. Anthony Publishing

Total Current Liabilities

Stockholders' Equity

Capital Stock:
Class A Common, $1.00 Par Value, 17,000 Shares
Authorized, 15,000 Shares Issued and Outstanding
Class B Common, $1.00 Par Value, 17,000 Shares
Authorized, 12,800 Shares Issued and Outstanding
Class C Common, $1.00 Par Value, 3,000 Shares
Authorized, No Shares Issued and Outstanding-Non-Voting

Additiona! Paid-In Capital

Retained Eamings

Total Stockholders' Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

September 30,
2001 2000 1999
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited)

15,830.70 11,608.95 4,050.00

6,618.50 8,531.50 157,925.54

15,000.00 18,000.00 19,500.00

2,635.00 2,635.00 .

5,753.74 . )

45,837.94 40,775.45 181,475.54
14,800.00 15,000.00 15,300.00
12,700.00 12,800.00 12,900.00
386,400.00 389,200.00 394,800.00
289,605.67 354,211.66 196,035.43
703,605.67 771,211.66 619,035.43
749,443.61 811,987.11 800,510.97
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Statement of Stockholders' Equity
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2001

Common Paid-In Retained _
Stock Capital Eamings Total
Balance, December 31, 1998 (Unaudited) 29,600.00 414,400.00 (152,468.01) 291,531.99
Net Income - - 348,503.44 348,503.44
Common Stock Redeemed (1,400.00) (19,600.00) - (21,000.00)
Balance, December 31, 1999 (Audited) 28,200.00 394,800.00 196,035.43 619,035.43
Net Income - - 158,176.23 158,176.23
Common Stock Redeemed (400.00) (5,600.00) - {6,000.00)
Balance, December 31, 2000 (Audited) 27,800.00 389,200.00 354,211.66 771,211.66
Net Income (Loss) - - (64,605.99) | (64,605.99)
Common Stock Redeemed {200.00) (2,800.00) - {3,000.00)
Balance, September 30, 2001 (Unaudited) 27,600.00 386,400.00 289,605.67 703,605.67
F-19
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Statements of Income
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2001

September
30, 2001 2000 1999
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited)

Operating Revenues
Contract Revenues 240,651.30 428,391.24 288,178.77
Medical Service Income 206,550.00 254,400.00 233,400.00
Credentialing Income 25,409.94 58,848,28 24,500.00
Total Operating Revenues 472,611.24 741,639.52 546,078.77
Operating Expenses
Personnel Costs 246,982.68 319,408.72 304,872.78
Qutside Services 120,899.12 100,287.45 200,424.43
Committees & Meetings 72,927.19 83,857.43 94,672.49
Facility and Office Costs 88,028.76 110,320.37 124,668.79
Other Operating Costs 35,308.07 12,215.42 43,479.81
Contract Reward Distribution - 161,639.40 -
Clinical Trials Expense 22,809.14 4,390.00 -
Total Operating Expenses 586,954.96 802,218.79 768,118.30
Net Operating (Loss) (114,343.72) (60,579.27) (222,039.53)
Other Income

Interest Income 7,851.73 18,273.32 17,371.33

Miscellaneous income 580.00 7,412.18 3,275.11
Total Other Income 8,431.73 25,685.50 20,646.44
Net (Loss) from Continuing Operations
before Income Taxes (105,911.99) (34,893.77) (201,393.09)
fncome Tax Benefit on Net (Loss)

from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes (41,306.00) 4,314.00 68,474.00
Net (Loss) from Continuing Operations

after Income Taxes (64,605.99) (30,579.77) (132,919.09)
Discontinued Operations
Income from Operations of Gainsharing Activities - - 356,922.53

Equity in Highlands Welimont Health Network, Inc. - 188,756.00 124,500.00
Net Income (Loss) {64,605.99) 158,176.23 348,503.44
Earnings (Loss) Per Share {2.33) 5.66 © 1206
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows
For Nine Months Ended September 30, 2001

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Investment in Equity
{increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Accrued Interest
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Insurance
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses - Other
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Taxes
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Income Tax
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid SEC Filing Expense
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Personnel Costs
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Tax Refund
increase (Decrease) in Accrued Taxes - Other
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liability
Increase (Decrease) in Subscribed Stock
increase (Decrease) in St. Anthony Publishing Liab

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Expenditures for Equipment

Net Cash {Used) for Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Capital Stock Repurchases

Net Cash (Used) by Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease} in Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year

Cash at End of Year

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow [nformation:
Cash Paid During the Period for:

Taxes

Interest

F-21

ﬁ——-—

September 30,
2001 2000 1999
(Unaudited) {Audited) (Audited)
(64,605.99) 158,176.23 348,503.44
3,617.86 5,014.01 7,652.04
(188,756.00) (124,500.00)
{19,367.69) (1,700.01) 51,598.16
(1,094.84) - (708.18)
(9,646.51) 261.67 1,369.02
24,998.51 {24,927.55) {208.08)
(54,812.46) 1,319.26 (771.79)
0.00
(18,897.00) - -
4,221.75 7,558.95 {12,490.26)
(1,913.00) {8,957.04) -
- (9,053.00) 5,985.00
(140,437.00) 137,684.00
2,635.00 -
(3,000.00) (1,500.00)
5,753.74 - .
(134,745.63) (200,365.48) 414,133.35
(5,139.22) (3,561.58) -
{5,139.22) {3,561.58) -
(3,000.00) (6,000.00) (21,000.00)
(3,000.00) (6,000.00) (21,000.00)
(142,884.85) (209,927.06) 393,133.35
275,651.36 485 578.42 92,445.07
132,766.51 275,651.36 485,578.42
135,266.00 -
708.18

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2001

Organizations and Operations

Organization and Background: Highlands Physicians, Inc. {Company) is an independent practice association
of physicians and other health care providers formed in 1893 to negotiate contracts on behalf of its
participating providers, provide clinical integration to service those contracts and engage in other managed
care activities. The Company was organized and capitalized pursuant to a private placement memorandum
and stockholders’ agreement that provided for the sale of certain common stock. Additional capitalization
was effected in 1997 under a private offering and creation of separate classes of common stock.

Only physicians practicing in Kingsport, Tennessee, in respect of the Class A Common Stock and physicians
practicing in Bristol, Tennessee, in respect of the Class B Common Stock who enter into and meet the
credentialing criteria set forth in a participating provider agreement and are accepted by the Company are
eligible to participate in ownership of the Company. The shares of the Class A and the Class B Common
Stock have similar designations, preferences, rights and qualifications. The related stockholders’ agreement
provides, among other matters, certain restrictions and obligations upon the stockholders of the Company
with respect to sale, redemption or transfer of the stock. The Company has also authorized the sale of
certain Class C Common Stock, which has not been issued. The Company is holding funds advanced to it
for subscribed but unissued Class D Common Stock in respect of physicians practicing in Big Stone Gap,
Virginia. These shares are expected to be issuedin 2001.

Stock Redemption: The Company accepts requests from stockholders who have refired or relocated to
redeem their stock at the original issue price, at the Company’s discretion.

Qperations: The Company has entered into various agresments with Wellmont Health System, a multi-
hospital Tennessee non-profit corporation (Wellmont), in a joint venture to form and operate Highlands
Wellmont Health Network, Inc., a physician-hospital organization (the PHO). Welimont was formed to
assume operations of Bristo! Regional Medical Center and Holston Valley Medical Center, Inc., which were
merged and consolidated into Welimont effective July 1, 1996. Lonesome Pine Hospital was merged into
Wellmont effective January 1, 1997. Welimont entered into a twenty-year agreement to manage Buchanan
General Hospital effective October 1, 2000. The Company also engages in various consulting activities for
the PHO.

The Company has never declared or paid a dividend. There is no current plan to declare dividends.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company's financial statements are prepared using the accrual method of accounting. Eamings per
share are calculated using the average number of shares outstanding for the period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investment with an criginal maturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investment in Related Organization: The Company has 50% interest in the PHO and accounts for its
investment using the equity method of accounting.

Accounts Receivable from Related Party: The Company’s revenues consist primarily of contract revenues,
which are based on a percentage of the allowed managed care claims paid, related to covered medical
setvices provided by network physician providers to eligible persons covered under various managed care
contracts, as well as other contractual services provided to the PHO or to Welimont. Contract revenues are
recognized when claims are received and processed by the PHO or its delegate. Account receivables
represent amounts due to the Company under these arrangements and are not collateralized.
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Note 2

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2001

Continued

Fixed Assets: Fixed assets consist primarily of computer and other office equipment and are stated on the
basis of historical cost. Depreciation is provided utilizing accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which range from three to ten years.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

Investment in Related Organization

The Company shares ownership equally with Wellmont in Highlands Wellmont Health Network, Inc. a
physician-hospital organization established to develop and operate a physician and hospital network to
contract with providers, employers, insurers and other third-party pavers for the delivery and payment of
health care services. Ownership in the PHO by the Company consists of 100 shares of Class B Common
Stock which have identical designations, preferences, rights and qualifications to the 100 shares of Class A
Common Stock owned by Wellmont. The Company's investment in the PHO at December 31, 2000, 1999,
and 1988 was $319,000.00, less its share of losses incurred the PHO through those dates.

Assets of the PHO at December 31, 2000, 1999 were approximately $163,450.00, and $422,000.00,
respectively, and consisted of amounts due to Welimont for expenses and long-term financing and payables
to providers for withholding related to certain health insurance arrangements for Wellmont employees.

Related Party Transactions

The Company provides certain physician recruitment, credentialing, medical direction and other network
administration services to the PHO under terms of a preferred provider agreement as amended. The
agreement provides for payment to the Company of $19,450.00 per month, which was increased to
$22,950.00 per month beginning July, 2000.

Credentialing income consists of charges to physician-applicants for certification requirements they must
meet to become a member of Highlands Physicians, inc.

The Company also provided certain clinical consulting services to Wellmont under terms of a consulting
agreement. Under terms of the agreement, the Company received a base fee which is substantially equal to
the costs incurred by the Company for time spent by individual physicians on spegcified projects. The
Company was also entitled 1o receive certain incentive compensation, based con future savings or other
results achieved by the related projects.

Accounts receivable at September 30, 2001, December 31, 2000, and 1999, are primarily amounts related to

managed care contract revenues which are due from the PHO and which arose from health care services
provided by physician owners of the Company,
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Note 5

Note 6

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2001

Continued

Effective January 5, 1998, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Wellmont whereby the Company
may borrow up to $150,000.00 through the two-year period of the agreement. Borrowings bear interest at a
local bank prime rate and all principal and interest payments shall be due and payable on January 5, 2000.
Borrowing are not collateralized; however, the Company's assessment fee on managed care claims cannot
be reduced until the loan is paid and any incentive compensation under the consulting agreement with
Wellmont will be used to extinguish any outstanding indebtedness before any payments are made to the
Company. The Company borrowed $ 50,000.00 under this agreement in January 1998, This loan was repaid
in full during 1998.

The Company has entered info an employee lease agreement with Wellmont. Wellmont provides employees
on a full time basis for the pumpose of facilitating and supporting the day-to-day operations of the Company.
Wellmont pays all compensation and benefits of the leased employees and the Company reimburses
Wellmont. This agreement went into effect for the period March 15, 1998 through December 31, 1998 and
automatically renews thereafter for additional periods of six months each unless otherwise terminated by
gither party.

Investments and Credit Risk

Investments consist of short-term certificates of deposit at a financial institution. The amount of deposits at
the financial institution that exceed the Federal Deposit insurance Comporation (FDIC) insurance coverage
imit was approximately $32,800.00 and $175,000.00 at September 30, 2001 and December 31, 2000
respectively. Management is of the opinion that the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

Lease and Other Commitments

The Company has entered into an arrangement to lease office space through a lease agreement effective
March 1, 1998 through February 28, 2003. The agreement provides for an annual rental of $39,940.00
through February 28, 2001 and $43,413.00 thereafter, including normal maintenance and utlities.

The Company also pays $2,500.00 per month under a Board approved management arrangement to one of
the physician-owners who serves as President. During 1997, the Company entered an employment
agreement with a key employee which provides for a base salary of $150,000 per annum, bonus, benefits,
and expense reimbursement as provided in the agreement. The Board authorized an increase in the base
salary to $157,500.00 per annum effective January 1, 2001. The agreement also provides for additional
benefits upen the sale of all of the stock or substantially all of the assets of the Company. The initial term of
the agreement is through December 31, 2000 with two automatic one-year renewals.

F-24



HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2001

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the camying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The
primary financial statement and tax difference relates to the investment in related organization.

A reconciliation between the effective income tax expense or benefit and the amount computed by multiplying
the projected statutory federal income tax rate for the periods ended September 30, 2001, December 31, 2000,
and 1999 is as follows:

September
30, 2001 2000 1999
(Unaudited)  (Audited) (Audited)
Net Income (Loss) (105,911.90) 158,176.23 348,503.44
Current Income Tax (Benefit) Liability (4,314.00) 115,406.00
Expected Taxable Income (105,911.90) ~ 1563862.23 463909.44

Computed "Expected” Tax (Expense) Benefit 41,306.00 43,256.27 157,729.21

Amount Attributable to Change in Value of

Investment in Highlands Wellmont Health

Network, Inc. - (47,570.27) (42,323.21)
Amount Attributable to Taxable Effect of Net

Operating Loss Previously Offset by a Valuation

Allowance

Tax Effect on Nondeductible Penalties - - -

Cument Income Tax (Benefit) Liability 41,306.00 (4,314.00)  (115,406.00)
Deferred Tax Assets:

Due to Investment in Highlands Wellmont Health

Network, Inc. - - 44,935.27

Deferred Federal Income Tax 41,306.00 - -
Reserve for Deferred Tax Assets:

Beginning Balance - 44,936.27 87,258.48

Reversal of Reserved Amount - (44,935.27) (42,323.21)
Ending Balance 0.00 0.00 44,935.27

Deferred Tax Assets - Net 41,306.00 - -

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Due to Investment in Highlands Wellmont
Health Network, Inc. (2,635.00) (2,635.00)
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Note 8

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2001

Discontinued Operations - Gainsharing

Gainsharing refers to the practice of physicians receiving a percentage of hospitals' savings when

they make treatment choices that save money. In a special bulletin released in July, 1999, by the
Department of Health and Human Services' Office of Inspector General {OIG) that as pertaining

to fee-for-service Medicare and Medicaid patients, gainsharing would be considered a violation of federal
law on a prospective basis. While the CIG recognized that appropriately structured gainsharing
arrangements may offer significant benefits where there is no adverse impact on the quality of care
received by patients, the Social Security Act clearly prohibits such arrangements. In exercising

its enforcement discretion, and in the absence of any evidence that a gainsharing arrangement viclated
any other statutes or adversely affected patient care, the OIG stated it would take into consideration
whether a gainsharing arrangement was terminated expeditiously folllowing the publication of the
special bulletin,

The Company immediately ceased all gainsharing projects effective July 9, 1998. Inspector General
June Gibbs Brown noted in a statement that "with appropriate regulatory safeguards, the concept of
gainsharing might be acceptable, but congressional action would be necessary to change existing law. "
At this time, there is no expectation that gainsharing will be resumed. There was no gain or loss on the
discontinuance.

September
30, 2001 2000 1999

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited)
Gainsharing Revenues:
Gainsharing Administration Reimbursement - - 31,350.00
Gainsharing Participation Reimbursement - - 5,400.00
Gainsharing Bonus Payments - - 692,902.50
Total Gainsharing Revenues - - 729,652.50
Gainsharing Expenses:
Gainsharing Participation BRMC - - 3,150.00
(ainsharing Participation HYHMC - - 5,837.50
Gainsharing Legal Fees - - 17,959.00
Gainsharing Distribution - - 161,903.47
Total Gainsharing Expenses - - 188,849.97
Net Gainsharing Income before taxes - - 540,802.53
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Note 10

Note 11

Note 12

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Nine Months Ended

Personnel Costs

Salaries and Wages
{Leased Employees
Retirement Contribution
Employee Benefits
Payroll Taxes
Temporary Employment

Total Personnel Costs
QOutside Services

Accounting - Audit

Accounting

Constilting

Credentialing

Legal - Counsel

Consulting Fees - Gainsharing
Consulting Fees - Clinical Trials
Management

Total Outside Fees

Committees and Meetings

Board of Directors' Meeting
PHO Board of Directors' Meeting
Behavioral Health Committee
Contract Review Committee
Credentialing Committee
Finance Committee

QA/UM/PT Committee
Physician Needs Committee

Total Committees and Meetings
Facility and Office Costs

Supplies

Computer Software
Telephone
Depreciation
Equipment Rental
Postage

Office Lease

Meetings and Seminars
Insurance

Bank Service Charges

Total Office Costs

September 30, 2001

September 30,
2001 2000 1999
{Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited)
118,125.00 150,312.50 150,000.00
113,089.20 124,165.42 117 ,174.41
- 22,500.00 22,500.00
4,936.25 8,762.52 8,277.05
6,942.50 7,401.62 6,921.32
3,889.73 6,266.66 -
246,982.68 319,408.72 304,872.78
7,800.00 7,800.00 -
4,897.82 6,323.36 7,629.50
17,312.50 22,291.99 49,662.27
5,575.50 16,352.83 8,098.50
62,813.30 9,918.85 71,861.49
- 6,627.82 29,722.67
- 97250 -
22,500.00 30,000.00 33,450.00
120,899.12 100,287.45 200,424.43
21,210.81 25,923.97 25682.60
5,400.00 6,450.00 8,105.25
3,664.50 474150 2,786.25
10,350.75 15,690.03 22,838.80
8,773.85 11,574.72 8,405.24
6,976.53 7,322.59 6,636.60
12,864.50 17,816.37 16,434.50
3,686.25 4,438.25 3,783.25
72,927.18 93,957.43 94,672.49
6,227.05 6,850.69 11,846.99
1,807.25 5,229.20 5,009.80
3,713.62 5,343.82 8,604.03
3,617.86 5,014.01 7,652.04
6,035.49 8,846.22 9,011.06
4,616.28 342330 7,525.20
32,269.97 39,939.48 39,939.48
7,097.75 5,764.89 3,380.34
22,643.49 29,891.67 31,689.02
0.00 17.09 10.83
88,028.76 110,320.37 124,668.79
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Note 13

Note 14

Note 15

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2001

September 30,
2001 2000 1599

Other Operating Costs (Unaudited) (Audited) {Audited)
Mileage 2,270.22 2,265.39 1,761.30
Entertainment 148.07 550.14 77.94
Marketing and Promotion 23,706.55 43.40 2,847.96
Collection Expense - - 78.83
Dues and Subscriptions 4,811.90 7,875.28 12,284.68
Taxes and Licenses 20.00 1,480.65 22,576.41
Retreat Costs 4,350.33 - 3,811.82
Other Expenses - 0.56 40.87
Total Other Operating Costs 35,308.07 12,215.42 43,479.81
Clinical Trials Costs
Research Meetings 1,682.25 4,390.00 -
Consulting Fees 3,777.73 - -
Training 2,669.23 - -
Development Fees 3,257.66 -
Internet Expense 216.76 -
Leased Employee Expense 5,060.70 - -
Sales, Marketing and Promotions 6,144.81 - -

Total Clinical Trial Costs 22,809.14 4,390.00 0.00

Earnings Per Share

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 128 that specifies the computation, presentation and disclosure requirements for eamings per
share (EPS). The objective of the SFAS No. 128 is to simplify the computation and to make the United
States' standards more compatible with EPS standards of other countries and with that of the
International Accounting Standards Committee.

September 30,
2001 2000 1999
~ (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited)
Numerator Net Income (Loss) (64,605.99) 168,176.23 348,503.44
Denominator Weighted Average
Outstanding Shares 276.81 279.62 288.98
Eamings (Loss) PerNet of Tax (2.33) 5.66 12.06

Weighted average outstanding shares are rounded to two decimal points.
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1997 RESTATED

PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT
by and between

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS. INC.

and

(NAME OF PROVIDER)
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1997 RESTATED
PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and

entered into as of the Effective Date set forth on the signature page of this Agreement, by and
between HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC., a Delaware corporation ("Highlands"), and the
person or entity whose name is listed under the heading "Provider" on the signature page of this
Agreement ("Provider").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Provider is either (i) an individual health care provider duly licensed,
certified, accredited or otherwise duly authorized to practice in the states of practice; or (ii) a
partnership, professional service corporation or other entity duly organized and existing under
and pursuant to the laws of the states of practice, the partners, shareholders, members and
professional provider employees of which (together the "Provider") are all duly authorized to
practice in the states of practice; and

WHEREAS, Highlands desires to obtain quality, cost efficient health care services from
selected health care providers and to negotiate agreements with purchasers of such services; and

WHEREAS, Highlands desires to engage Provider to furnish such services and Provder
desires to furnish such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises and
covenants herein contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Preamble and Recitals

The preamble and recitals hereinabove set forth are hereby incorporated into and made a
part of this Agreement.

2. Definitions

2.1 Plans. "Plans" means individual and group health benefit contracts, workers
compensation programs, policies of health insurance, policies of automobile insurance, or other
plans of a Payor which shall be subject to this Agreement.

22 Eligible Persons. "Eligible Persons" means the persons entitled to receive the
Covered Services pursuant to a Plan.




2.3  Covered Services. "Covered Services" means the health care services provided
pursuant to a Plan.

2.4  Participating Provider. "Participating Provider" means those health care
providers, including, without limitation, physicians, facilities, ancillary health care facilities and
ancillary health care providers, who have directly, or indirectly through Highlands agreements
with other networks ("Leased Networks"), entered into an agreement with Highlands to perform
the Covered Services.

2.5  Payor. "Payor" means the party responsible for the actual payment for Covered
Services rendered to Eligible Persons that has, directly or indirectly, entered into a Payor
Agreement with Highlands. Payors "indirectly" entering into Payor Agreements with Highlands
shall include, without limitation, payors of entities leasing the Highlands Network ("Network
"Lessee" ).

2.6  Payor Agreement. "Payor Agreement" means an agreement with a Payor directly,
or indirectly with a Network Lessee, pursuant to which Participating Providers shall provide the
Covered Services.

2.7 Standard Terms. "Standard Terms" means the terms set forth in EXHIBIT 2.7.

28  Fee Schedule. "Fee Schedule" means a schedule of maximum reimbursement
amounts pursuant to which a Payor shall pay Participating Providers to provide Covered
Services. Descriptions of current fee schedules pertaining to Provider are set forth in EXHIBIT
2.8

2.9  Utilization Management Program. "Utilization Management Program" means
either the utilization management program established, administered and/or subcontracted by
Highlands or the Utilization Management Program required by an entity or a Payor in a Payor
Agreement. '

2.10  Credentialing Criteria. "Credentialing Criteria" means the criteria established by
Highlands for the credentialing and recredentialing of Participating Providers which may be
amended from time to time by Highlands in its sole discretion. The Credentialing Criteria
pertaining to Provider are set forth in EXHIBIT 2.10.

2.11  Provider Manual. The "Provider Manual" means the Highlands manual of rules,
regulations, policies and procedures of Highlands as provided to Provider.
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2.12  Medically Appropriate.

2.12.1 "Medically Appropriate" or "Medical Appropriateness" means
services or supplies whicb, under the provisions of this Agreement, are
determined to be: (i) appropriate and necessary for the systems, diagnosis or
treatment of the injury or disease; (ii) provided for the diagnosis or direct care and
treatment of the injury or disease; (iii) preventative services as provided in a Plan;
(iv) within standards of good medical practice within the organized medical
community; (v) not primarily for the convenience of the Eligible Person or of any
provider providing Covered Services to the Eligible Person; (vi) an appropriate
supply or level of service needed to provide safe and adequate care; (vii) within
the scope of the medical specialty education and training of a provider; and (viii)
provided in a selling consistent with the required level of care.

2.12.2 Medically Appropriate services may not be Covered Services
under a Plan.

2.12.3 A Plan may provide a different definition of Medical
Appropriateness. If the definition of Medical Appropriateness shall conflict with
the definition in a Plan, the definition in a Plan shall control.

2.13  Participating Provider Review Procedure. "Review

Procedure" means the Procedure whereby a Participating Provider may request a reconsideration
of (1) the termination of this Agreement by Highlands; or (ii) a suspension as a Participating
Provider.

3.

Terms and Fee Schedules

3.1 Standard Terms and Fee Schedule.

3.1.1 Provider accepts and is hereby bound by the standard Terms and
the Fee Schedule.

3.1.2  Provider shall provide Medically Appropriate Covered Services to
Eligible Persons of each Payor executing a Payor Agreement with Highlands or
revising an existing Payor Agreement if the terms and fee schedules are
substantially similar to the Standard Terms and the Fee Schedule.

3.1.3 If an additional Payor executes a Payor Agreement with Highlands
or an existing Payor revises a Payor Agreement and Section 3.1.2 applies,
Highlands shall provide notice to Provider of the identity of the Payor and any
other information necessary for Provider to fulfill the obligations of Provider
hereunder.



32 Modification of Standard Terms and Fee Schedule.

3.2.1 During the term of this Agreement, Highlands may (i) modify or
create new Standard Terms or a new Fee Schedule; or (ii) create separate terms
and Fee Schedules for various Highlands programs.

3.2.2 Highlands shall submit the modified, created or negotiated terms
and/or Fee Schedules (together "Modifications") to Provider. Provider shall have
the option to reject the Modifications by serving written notice of such rejection
upon Highlands within forty-five (45) days of the effective date of the notice from
Highlands.

3.2.3 Failure to provide notice of rejection within such forty-five (45)
day period shall constitute acceptance by Provider, and the Modifications shall
either replace the existing Standard Terms and/or Fee Schedule or become
additional Standard Terms or Fee Schedules for an Highlands program or for an
individual Payor, as applicable.

3.2.4 If Provider rejects the Modifications for an Highlands program or
Modifications which have been negotiated with an individual Payor, Provider
shall not be required to provide Covered Services to Eligible Persons in such
Highlands program or for such Payor, as applicable.

3.2.5 [IfProvider rejects the Modifications, Highlands shall have the
option to (1) implement the Modifications without inclusion of Provider; (ii)
withdraw the Modifications; or (iii) terminate this Agreement in accordance with
Section 7.3.3.

4. Obligations of Highlands

4.1  Administration. Highlands shall administer and, in its sole discretion, determine
the composition of the network of Participating Providers of Highlands.

4.2  Marketing and Promotion. Highlands shall, within its own discretion: -

4.2.1 market, advertise and actively promote Highlands; and

422 solicit Payor Agreements from Payors offering reasonable levels of
reimbursement and Plans that may include financial incentives or other programs
to encourage Eligible Persons to use Participating Providers:

4.2.3 Payors shall be required to comply with the terms of this

Agreement and shall not be required to establish financial incentives or other
programs to encourage Eligible Persons to use Participating Providers.
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43  Assistance. To permit Highlands to perform its obligations pursuant to this
Agreement, Provider shall assist Highlands in marketing, advertising and promotion. Highlands
shall use its best efforts to furnish Provider with appropriate materials to support such efforts.

44  Information. Highlands shall use its best efforts to (i) obtain current information
from each Payor on a timely basis with regard to the identity of Payors and/or Eligible Persons;
and (ii) maintain and disseminate such information to the Participating Providers as Highlands
shall, within its sole discretion, deem appropriate to keep each Participating Provider reasonably
informed as to the identity of the Eligible Persons.

4.5  Liability for Claims; Decisions and Fees. Highlands shall not be responsible or
liable for any claims decisions or for the payment of any claims submitted by Provider for
furnishing Covered Services or non-Covered Services to Eligible Persons. Highlands shall not be
an insurer, guarantor or underwriter of the responsibility or liability of any Payor to provide
benefits pursuant to any Plan.

S. Obligations of Provider

5.1 Provider Standards. Provider hereby warrants and represents that:

5.1.1 Provider is and, at all times during this Agreement, shall be in
compliance with the Credentialing Criteria; and

5.1.2 the information contained in the application of Provider for
membership in Highlands is true and correct in all respects and does not fail to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein not misleading.

52 Provider Services and Obligations. Provider shall:

5.2.1 provide Medically Appropriate Covered Services to Eligible
Persons for which Provider is qualified and which Provider customarily furnishes
to the general public from the office locations indicated on the signature page of
this Agreement ("Provider's Offices"). Services rendered from sites not listed as
Provider's Offices shall be considered rendered by Provider pursuant to this
~Agreement; and

5.2.2 perform the Covered Services pursuant to the standards of good
medical practice within the organized medical community; and

5.2.3 treat Eligible Persons in all respects no less favorably than
Provider treats all other patients, and determine whether or not to accept Eligible
Persons for treatment or terminate the treatment of Eligible Persons only on the
basis of the same criteria employed by Provider to make such determinations in
connection with all other Patients; and
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5.2.4 obtain from Eligible Persons a written assignment of benefits and
an authorization to release medical records, in a form approved by Highlands,
cooperate and comply with the billing and other procedures established by
Highlands or a Payor and set forth in the Provider Manual or in other written
communications from Highlands; and

5.2.5 submit all claims for Covered Services as provided in the Provider
Manual and pursuant to the Standard Terms. Provider shall accept as full payment
from each Payor for the Covered Services deemed Medically Appropriate
pursuant to the Utilization Management Program the lesser of charges
customarily charged to other patients or the consideration provided in the Fee
Schedule. Provider hereby waives any amounts from any Payor and any Eligible
Person (i) in excess of the fees customarily charged to other patients or the
amounts provided in the Fee Schedule; and (ii) any amount from any Payor or
Eligible Person for services which have been deemed not to be Medically
App~ropriate by the Utilization Management Program. Provider hereby
acknowledges that payment for Covered Services furnished to Eligible Persons
shall be due solely from a Payor and such Eligible Persons; and

5.2.6 subject to Section 6.3, provide any Payor and Highlands, its agents
and any utilization management company engaged by Highlands with access,
upon reasonable notice during normal business hours, to the appropriate records
and information regarding Covered Services rendered to Eligible Persons for
inspection and copying in such a manner as may be reasonably requested by
Highlands or a utilization management company to permit Highlandsora
utilization management company to implement the Utilization Management
Program and perform its administrative obligations set forth herein and to verify
claims for Covered Services submitted by Provider; and

5.2.7 within the dictates of good practice, and in the best interest of
Eligible Persons under Provider's care, refer such Eligible Persons requiring
referral to other Participating Providers except in an emergency; PROVIDED,
HOWEVER, (i) if Provider is unable or unwilling to refer an Eligible Person to
another Participating Provider, Provider shall contact Highlands prior to any
referral to a nonParticipating Provider; and (ii) if Provider shall refer Eligible
Persons to non-Participating Providers, Provider shall, prior to such referral,
obtain the written authorization of the Eligible Person, which authorization shall
include an acknowledgement by the Eligible Person that referred provider is not a
Participating Provider and that the performance of services by the referred
provider may result in higher charges than if such services were performed by a
Participatinq Provider;

5.2.8 comply with the rules, regulations, policies and procedures as
enacted by Highlands from time to time and summarized in the Provider Manual,
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53

. comply with the Utilization Management Program, participate in and observe the

protocols of the Utilization Management Program, submit to performance reviews
in conjunction therewith and be bound by the payment decisions issued pursuant
to the Utilization Management Program; and

5.2.9 within ten (10) days of occurrence, notify Highlands and provide
Highlands with all information with respect to any disciplinary action against
Provider or any malpractice actions, judgments or settlements of Provider.
Provider hereby authorizes any hospital, any governmental agency or professional
licensing, accrediting or certifying agency, or any other person or entity to release
to Highlands any information pertaining to any such matters and pertaining to the
Credentialing Criteria; and

5.2.10 consent to the inspection by Highlands, Network Lessees,
independent credentialing entities, independent accreditation entities, their agents
and their representatives of the contents of the credentialing file of Provider and
all documents that may be material to an evaluation of qualifications and
competence of Provider and consent to the release of such information to such
parties. Provider hereby releases from liability Highlands, Network Lessees, their
respective officers, directors, employees and agents from their acts performed and
statements made, in good faith and without malice, in connection with evaluating
the credentials and qualifications of Provider. Provider hereby releases from
liability Highlands, Network Lessees and any and all individuals who provide
information to Highlands, Network Lessees, their medical directors and their
representatives and agents, in good faith and without malice, concerning the
Credentialing Criteria, Provider's disciplinary actions, professional competence,
background, experience, ethics, character, utilization practice patterns, health
status and other qualifications to be a Participating Provider; and

5.2.11 give written notice to Highlands within ten (10) days if the practice
of Provider shall add a partner, shareholder, member or professional provider
employee or if Provider shall cease to fulfill the Credentialing Criteria.

Fees.

5.3.1 Ascompensation for the services provided by Highlands pursuant
to this Agreement Provider shall, upon the execution of this Agreement, pay to.
Highlands a credentialing fee in the amount of five hundred dollars $500.00, of
which two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) has already been paid to Highlands,
and an annual fee of (§N/A) ("Annual Fee").

53.2 Highlands, by resolution of the Highlands Board of Directors, shall

have the authority to (i) deduct reasonable administrative fees from payments paid
by Payors due to Provider or require provider to pay such administrative fees to
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Highlands; (ii) deduct reasonable administrative fees from capitation payments
paid to Highlands by Payors; and (iii) negotiate reasonable administrative fees
with Payors for direct payments to Highlands.

5.3.3 During the term of this Agreement, Highlands may amend the
Annual Fee by providing at least thirty (30) days notice to Provider. Provider
shall have the option to reject any such amendment to the Annual Fee by serving
written notice of such rejection upon Highlands within the thirty (30) day notice
period. If Provider objects to the increase in fees, Highlands shall have the option
for a period of sixty (60) days thereafter to withdraw the amended Annual Fee or
to terminate this Agreement. If Highlands does not exercise its option to terminate
this Agreement, the amended Annual Fee shall be deemed withdrawn and this
Agreement and the current Annual Fee shall remain in effect.

6. Confidential Information

6.1 Legal Restrictions. Neither party hereto shall be in default for failure to supply
information which such party, in good faith, believes cannot be supplied due to prevailing law,
or for supplying information which such party, in good faith, believes is required to be supplied
due to prevailing law.

6.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information.

6.2.1 Provider acknowledges that (i) due to the nature of this Agreement,
Provider shall have access to and acquire Confidential Information as defined in
this Section related to the business and operations of Highlands; (ii) all
Confidential Information is solely the property of Highlands and constitutes
confidential and proprietary information of Highlands; (iii) the disclosure of
Confidential Information to third parties would cause substantial loss to the
goodwill of Highlands; (iv) disclosure of Confidential Information to Provider
shall be made due to the position of trust and confidence that Provider shall
occupy and due to the agreement by Provider to the restrictions contained herein;
(v) disclosure of Confidential Information would cause Highlands irreparable
harm; and (vi) the restrictions imposed upon Provider herein would not hamper
Provider in earning a living.

6.2.2 Provider (and the respective officers, directors, employees, agents,
successors and assigns of Provider) shall hold any and all Confidential
Information in the strictest confidence as a fiduciary, and shall not, voluntarily or
involuntarily, sell, transfer, publish, disclose, display or otherwise make available
to others any portion of the Confidential Information without the expfress written
consent of Highlands. Provider shall use best efforts to protect the Confidential
Information consistent with the manner in which Provider protects the
confidential business information of Provider; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,

E-9



Provider may disclose the Confidential Information to attorneys, accountants or
consultants of Provider who require the Confidential Information to perform
services for Provider. Any such person shall execute a non-disclosure agreement
reasonably satisfactory to Highlands.

6.2.3 "Confidential Information" shall mean information of Highlands
that shall be subject to patent, copyright, trademark, trade name or service mark
protection, or described as confidential by Highlands or a Payor, or not otherwise
in the public domain and related to the business and operations of Highlands,
including, without limitation, this Agreement and the exhibits hereto, lists of
Payors and Participating Providers and information related thereto, information
relating to earnings, volume of business, methods, systems, practices or plans of
Highlands and its Payors, and all similar information of any kind or nature
whatsoever which is known only to persons having a fiduciary or confidential
relationship with Highlands and its Payors that owns proprietary rights in or to
such information.

6.3 Medical Records. The parties hereto shall maintain the confidentiality of any and
all medical records which shall be in their possession and control, and such information shall
only be released or disseminated pursuant to the valid authorization of the patient whose medical
condition is reflected in such medical records or as shall be otherwise permitted under applicable
law. Medical records shall be maintained in accordance with the Provider Manual.

6.4  Trademarks and Copyrights. Each party acknowledges each other party's sole and
exclusive ownership of its respective trade names, commercial symbols, trademarks and service
marks, whether presently existing or later established (collectively "Marks"). No party shall use
the other party's Marks in advertising or promotional materials or otherwise without the owner's
prior written consent; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that Highlands, Payors and other entities with
agreements with Highlands may, but shall not be required to, list Provider in the Highlands
Participating Provider directory or otherwise publicize the status of Provider as a Participating
Provider.

7. Term and Termination

7.1 Term and Voluntary Termination.

7.1.1 The initial term of this Agreement ("Initial Term") shall commence
on the Effective Date of this Agreement and shall continue for one (1) year.

7.1.2 This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional
periods of one (1) year (each a "Renewal Term") unless either party shall give
written notice to the other party at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to
the end of the Initial Term or of any Renewal Term.
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7.1.3 If Provider shall relocate any of the Offices of Provider, within ten
(10) days of such relocation, Provider shall provide notice to Highlands.
Highlands shall have the option, for ninety (90) days from the effective date of the
notice, to terminate this Aqreement.

7.2 Termination of Agreement.

7.2.1 Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, either party may
terminate this Agreement for cause upon the breach of this Agreement by the
other party not remedied within thirty (30) days after receipt by such other party
of notice thereof from the terminating party.

7.2.2 Anything elsewhere in this Agreement to the contrary
notwithstanding, Highlands shall have the option to terminate this Agreement at
any time upon notice if Provider (i) fails to satisfy the Credentialing Criteria; (ii)
fails to purchase or maintain policies of insurance as required in the Credentialing
Criteria; (iii) is disqualified or suspended from practice or is threatened with
disqualification or suspension in any state, or has any other license, certification
or authorization required to perform any duties hereunder restricted, suspended or
terminated; (iv) is disciplined or threatened with disciplinary action by any
governmental authority or agency, managed care organization, hospital or other
facility; (v) is no longer a member in good standing of the medical or professional
staff of any hospital of which Provider was a member as of the Effective Date, or
if any such hospital restricts in any way or terminates any privileges granted to
Provider; (vi) commits professional misconduct, violates the principles of
professional ethics; (vii) in the sole determination of Highlands, has an excessive
number of professional liability claims filed or resolved against Provider; or (viii)
is subject to an indictment or information for a felony.

7.2.3 If Highlands exercises its option to terminate pursuant to Section
- 3.2.4, this Agreement shall terminate on the date designated by Highlands.

7.3 Procedure Upon Termination. Upon the termination of this Agreement by either party
for any reason, whether for cause or not for cause, whether voluntary or involuntary, all rights
and obligations hereunder shall cease, except (i) those rights and obligations provided in Section
6 and this Section 7.4; and (ii) those rights and obligations which shall have accrued as a result
of the operation of this Agreement. Upon termination Provider shall:

7.3.1 continue to provide Covered Services pursuant to this Agreement (i) until
either the termination of each Payor Agreement in force on the date of termination or
twelve (12) months, whichever is earlier; and (ii) thereafter, to Eligible Persons who shall
be receiving care from Provider until the earlier of the conclusion of any treatment for a
specific condition existing as of such termination or the discharge or transfer of such
Eligible Person, and



7.3.2 immediately discontinue use of any and all signs, plaques,
letterheads, forms or other materials identifying Provider as a Participating
Provider of Highlands and each Payor; and

7.3.3 immediately disclose to each Eligible Person in Provider's care, in
the form prescribed by Highlands or by a Payor, the possible adverse economic
consequences to such Eligible Persons of Provider's termination; and

7.4  Termination and Eligible Persons. In the event of notice of termination of this
Agreement and upon actual termination of this Agreement, Highlands may (i) inform Eligible
Persons of such termination; (ii) inform Eligible Persons of the economic effect of using
Provider as a non-Participating Provider; and (iii) recommend that Eligible Persons engage othe'
Participating Providers.

8. Miscellaneous Provisions

8.1 Provider-Patient Relationship. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall
interfere with or in any way alter any provider-patient relationship and Provider shall have the
sole responsibility for the care and treatment of Eligible Persons under Provider's care. Nothing
contained herein shall grant Highlands or any party performing utilization management the right
to govern the level of care of a patient. Utilization management decisions shall only effect
reimbursement of Provider for services rendered and shall not limit the performance of the
services of Provider or effect Provider's professional judgment.

8.2  Non-Exclusivity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be intended or construed to
prevent either party from entering into substantially similar agreements with other entities
similar to the other party.

8.3  Independent Contractors. Each party, its officers, agents and employees are at all
times independent contractors to the other party. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to
make or render either party or any of its officers, agents, or employees an agent, servant, or
employee of, or joint venturer of or with the other.

8.4  Notices. Notices shall be written and personally delivered or by fax, effective on
delivery, or sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, effective on the third (3rd) day
following the date deposited in the mail, addressed to the parties as set forth below, or to any
other address specified in writing by such party. .

8.5  Gender and Number. The use of the masculine, feminine or neuter gender and the
use of the singular and plural shall not be given the effect of any exclusion or limitation herein;
and the word "person"” or "party" shall mean and include any individual, trust, corporation,
partnership or other entity.
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8.6  Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement and
understanding of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and all prior and
concurrent agreements, understandings, representations and warranties with respect to such
subject matter, whether written or oral, are and have been merged herein and superseded hereby.

8.7  Amendment.

8.7.1 This Agreement may be amended by Highlands at any time upon
written notice to Provider. Provider shall have the option to reject the amendment
by serving notice of such rejection upon Highlands within thirty (30) days of the
effective date of the notice from Highlands. If Provider rejects the amendment
Highlands shall have the option to withdraw the amendment or terminate this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the notice of rejection
from Provider.

8.7.2 The Provider Manual may be amended from time to time in the
sole discretion of Highlands.

8.8  Compliance with Terms. Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the
terms herein (by way of waiver or breach) by either party hereto shall not be deemed to be a
continuous waiver in the event of any future breach or waiver of any condition hereunder.

8.9 Rights of Parties. Except for the right of HighlandsWellmont Health Network, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, to enforce this Agreement as a third party beneficiary, nothing in this
Agreement, whether express or implied, is intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by
reason of this Agreement on any persons other than the parties to this Agreement and their
respective successors and assigns.

8.10  Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the
express written consent of the other party.

8.11 Benefits. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of,
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, executors, administrators,
assiqns.

8.12  Severability. If any portions of this Agreement shall, for any reason, be invalid or
unenforceable, such portions shall be ineffective only to the extent of such invalidity or
unenforceability, and the remaining portion-or portions shall nevertheless be valid, enforceable
and of full force and effect.

8.13  Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute a
sinale instrument. '




8.14  Conflict of Laws. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Tennessee without giving effect to its conflicts of law provisions.




IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have set their hands on the dates set forth
below, as of the Effective Date set forth below.

PROVIDER: HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

Signature of Provider or
Authorized Represetative

Name of Provider Name
Address Title
City, State, Zip Code Effective Date of Agreement

State License, Certificate
or other Authorization Number

Federal Tax I.D. or Social
Security Number
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Date Executed by Provider

IFBY A PARTNERSHIP,
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION OR
OTHER ENTITY, ON BEHALF

THE FOLLOWING PERSONS:

(Print Names)

(signature lines continued)

Provider Offices (as defined
in Section 5.2.1)
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EXHIBIT 2.7
STANDARD TERMS

The following shall constitute the Standard Terms as defined in this Agreement. As part
of a separate agreement between Highlands and Payors, Highlands shall use all reasonable
efforts to have Payors observe the Standard Terms.

1. Covered Services. Participating Provider shall fumnish to Eligible Persons those
Medically Appropriate Covered Services customarily furnished by such Participating Provider in
the same physical setting and in the same manner as such services are customarily provided to
other similarly situated patients of Participating Provider.

2. Payment to Participating Provider. Pursuant to the terms of the applicable Plan,
Payor or its agent and the Eligible Person shall pay to Participating Provider the lesser of
Participating Provider's charges customarily billed to other patients or the amounts set forth in
the applicable Fee Schedule as full payment of any claim submitted by Participating Provider for
Covered Services furnished to Eligible Persons pursuant to such Plan.

3. Payment by Eligible Persons. Participating Provider and/or any provider on call
for Provider shall: (i) charge or bill Eligible Persons directly for, and use best efforts to collect,
any deductible, co-payment or coinsurance for Covered Services specified in the applicable Plan,
unless otherwise prohibited in such Plan, in amounts which, when added to Payor's payments
shall not exceed the lesser of charges customarily charged to other patients or the consideration
provided in the applicable Fee Schedule; (ii) charge or bill Eligible Persons directly for any
services that are not Covered Services; and (iii) charge or bill Eligible Persons directly for any
Covered Services provided to Eligible Persons after the benefits set forth in a Plan to which the
Eligible Person is entitled have been exhausted.

4. Claims Submission. Each Participating Provider shall, as provided in the
applicable Plan, submit claims to Highlands, Payor or Payor's agent, on a UB-82 form or HCFA
1500 form, or successor forms, as applicable. Participating Providers shall use best efforts to
submit claims within thirty (30) days after providing Covered Services. Any claims which have
not been submitted by Participating Provider within six (6) months after providing Covered
Services may be denied pursuant to the Plan of a Payor. Highlands, Payor or Payor's agent shall
apply the applicable Fee Schedule, as of the date of the Covered Services, to each Participating
Provider's claim to determine the amount due such Participating Provider.

5. Time for Payment. Except where coordination of benefits applies, Payor or its
paying agent shall use all reasonable efforts to make all payments due to Participating Provider
within thirty (30) days following receipt by Payor, or its paying agent, of a complete and proper
claim form and other information required to determine that the claim is payable under the Plan.

6. Verification of Eligible Persons. Eligible Persons shall receive Covered Services
from Participating Provider upon the presentation of appropriate written documentation supplied
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by Payor identifying the patient as an Eligible Person. Verification shall be in accordance with
Payor's customary verification procedures or as negotiated by Highlands.

7. Exhaustion of Benefits. If an Eligible Person shall exhaust any benefits under any
Plan, Participating Provider shall arrange for payment to be made by such Eligible Person
directly to Participating Provider.

8. Coordination of Benefits. If additional parties shall be liable, under coordination
of benefits, for payment to Participating Providers for Covered Services rendered to Eligible
Persons, such other party or parties shall not be entitled to the benefit of any rates set forth in the
Fee Schedule, regardless of any coordination of benefit provisions in such party's agreement with
the Eligible Person or Participating Provider and regardless of whether such party is the primary
or secondary insurer.

[The following provision shall apply to a Payor Agreement by and between
Highlands and HMO Payors ("HMO Agreement") (as required by law)].

9. HMO Insolvency. Participating Provider shall not have a right in any event,
including but not limited to nonpayment by an HMO of amounts due the Participating Provider
under this Agreement, insolvency of an HMO (the "HMO") or any breach of this Agreement by
the HMO, to seek any type of payment from, bill, charge, collect a deposit from, or have any
recourse against, the Eligible Person, persons acting on the Eligible Person's behalf (other than
the HMO), an employer or group contract holder for services provided pursuant to this
Agreement except for the payment of applicable co-payments or deductibles for services covered
by the HMO or fees for services not covered by the HMO. The requirements of this clause shall
survive any termination of this Agreement for services rendered prior to such termination,
regardless of the cause of such termination. The HMO's Eligible Persons, the persons acting on
the Eligible Person's behalf (other than the HMO) and the employer or group contract holder
shall be third party beneficiaries of this section. This section supersedes any oral or written
agreement now existing or hereafter entered into between Participating Provider and the Eligible
Person, persons acting on the Eligible Person's behalf (other than the HMO) and the employer or
group contract holder. This Section 9 shall be automatically amended to conform with any
applicable statutory requirements of the state in which services are rendered by Participating
Provider.

10. Service. Provider shall establish procedures, including an appropriate call system,
to provide that Covered Services are available to Eligible Persons twenty-four (24) hours per
day, seven (7) days per week.

11.  Laws Abplving to HMO. All laws applying to HMOs in the appropriate state shall -
be applicable to this Agreement.
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EXHIBIT 2.8

FEE SCHEDULE



PHYSICIAN FEE SCHEDULE

Physician professional fees for this contract are based on the McGraw-Hill relative value
System (RVS), dated December, 1995, and the following conversion factors:

Type Service Conversion Factor
Medical $ 6.29
E&M $ 547
Surgical $105.00
Radiology $ 18.37
Anesthesia - $ 42.00
Pathology $ 14.50

HCPC codes are reimbursed at cost. CPT codes with no relative value units established
are reimbursed at a fixed rate of 85 percent of billed charges.

These conversion factors set the Maximum Fee Schedule (MFS) for this contract.
Reimbursement will be the provider’s actual charges or this MFS, whichever is less.

Employer agrees to pay the MFS as computed above or the physician’s normal fee,

whichever is less. Other insurance industry reimbursement schedules such as Usual and
Customary do not apply.
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EXHIBIT 2.10

CREDENTIALING CRITERIA
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CREDENTIALING INFORMATION AND CRITERIA

Credenézaling of Praoviders iéiperformed by HPI and BHNI
separately. To be credentialed as a BHNI Provider the provider
must be credentialed and recommended as an HPI provider to BHNT.

The Credentialing Criteria of Highlands are as follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL CREDENTIALS (TIER I)

1.1 Provider ig either (i) a person with an unrestricted
license or other authorization to practice in the state of
location; or (ii) a partnership, professional service corporation
or other entity, all of the partmers, shareholders, members and
provider -employees of which have an unrestricted licenge or other
necessary authorization to practice in the state of location. A
copy of Provider’s current valid license shall be provided with
Provider s application to Highlands (“Application?).

1.2 Provider, where applicable, hasg active full and
unrestricted clinical and admitting privileges in Provider’s
specialty at a minimum of one (1) Participating Provider facility
("Participating Facility”) or if Provider is a wember of a non-
admitting specialty, maintain full and unresgtricted privileges
appropriate to such speciality at a Participating Facility.
Provider shall maintain each Participating Facility and other
hospital, wmedical or professional staff appointment and all
clinical and admitting privileges granted in connection therewith -
that Provider possessed as of the Effective Date of Provider’s
Participating Provider Agreement. A letter from each

-Participating Facility stating the Provider has such c¢lipical
privileges shall be provided with the Application.

1.3 Provider shall, if permitted under Provider’s license,
have and maintain unrestricted prescribing privileges. A copy of
Provider’s current DEA certification and state drug registration
("DPS¥), if spplicable, shall be provided with the Application.

1.4 Provider, where applicable, has not and shall not (i)
have any hospital appointment or privileges reduced, limited,
suspended or terminated or been placed on probation by any
hospital at which Provider has had a medical or professional
staff appointment or privileges; (ii) been restricted from
receiving payments from Medicare, Medicaid ox any other third
party reimbursement programsg; (iil) been subject to disciplinary
action by any state or local medical society, specialty society,
state board of medical examiners or the Drug Enforcement Agency;
or (iv) been subject to sanctions of any kind whatsoever by &any
person or entity for improper prescribing procedures or actions;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that, in the discretion of Highlands, the
foregoing shall not apply to suspensions related to a reasonable
delay in completing medical records. Any such actions shall be
reported by Provider on the Application.
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1.5 provider has not and shall not have been disciplined,
suspended or terminated from a PPO, EMO or other managed care
organization. .

1.6 Provider has not been convicted of a felony.
1.7 Provider is in good general health.

1.7.1 Provider shall report on the Application any
physical or mental problems that may -affect Provider’s
ability to practice Provider‘s profession. If Provider has
such disabilitieg the Provider shall provide, with the
Application, a statement from Provider’s personal physician
stating that the disabilities shall not interfere with the
Provider‘’s ability to provide high quality medical care.

1.7.2 Provider shall certify on the Application that
Provider does not have a history of and is not presently
abusing drugs or alcohol. A Provider with a history of drug
or alcohol abuse may be considered for membership in
Highlands, within the sole discretion of Highlands, if such
Provider‘’s personal physician provides a statement that
Provider has been rehabilitated and is continuing with the
rehabilitation program.

1.7.3 Provider shall certify on the Application that
Provider does not have any communicable and/or chronie
infectious disease that may be potential danger to patients.

1.7.4 Highlands shall have sole discretion in the
determination of the impact of the health status of Provider
for purposes of credentialing. .

1.8 Provider shall purchase and maintain, at the sole cost
and expense of Provider, policies of professional liability
insurance in amounts as required by Highlands from time to time.
At the present time such insurance shall be a minimum of THREE
MILLION DOLLARS ($3,000,000.00)/THREE MILLION DOLLARS
($3,000,000.00). Provider shall authorize the insurance carrier
to issue to Highlands a certificate of insurance policies of -
Provider upon the request of Highlands, and each such policy
shall contain an endorsement requiring the insurer to give
Highlands not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of
any cancellation, termination or material altevation of such
policy. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Provider shall provide
Highlands with notification within fifteen (15) days of any
cancellation, termination or material alteration of any such
insurance policies. Prior to the expiration or cancellation of
any such policy, Provider shall secure replacement of such
insurance coverage upon the same terms, and shall furnish
Highlands with a certificate and endorsement as described herein.
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A copy of the issuing section of the policy reflecting such
insurance shall be provided with the Application.

1.9 Provider shall provide the follow1ng information on the
Application:

1.9.1 Details of any professional liability actions
that have resulted in adverse judgments or any financial
settlements.

1.9.2 Detalls of any pending professional liability
actions or claims or threatened claims with respect to
professional liability.

This information shall be reviewed by Highlands. The
evaluation shall consider the frequency of such actions, the
financial impact of such actions and the c¢linical circumstances .
surrounding the alleged acts of malpractice. Highlands is fully
- cognizant of the current litigious conditions in the United
States and its evaluation shall consider the litigious climate as
part of the credentialing process. Providers shall not be
automatically disqualified from participation in Highlands due to
a history of judgments and/or settlements. Highlands shall have
sole discretion in the determination.of the impact of this
information for purposes of credentialing.

1.10 Physician Providers shall be hoard certified in a
specialty recognized by the American Board of Medical Specialties
or other appropriate boards applicable to the spec1a1ty of -
Provider in the sole discretion of Highlands. A copy of
Provider’s hoard certification or appropriation tralnxng shall
accompany the application. Expiration or re-~certification dates
shall be indicated where applicable. Physician Providers who
have recently completed training and are board eligible, may be
considered for probationary membership pending board
certification; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,

1.10.1 if a Provider shall fail to become board
certified within five (5) years, the Participating Provider
Agreement of such Provider shall automatically terminate.

1.10.2 1if a Provider is certified by a board that has
a requirement for mandatory recertification, such Provider
shall be required to satisfy the requirement. for
recertification. If a Provider shall-fail to become
recertified as required, the Participating Provider
Agreement of such Provider shall be automatically
terminated. Providers receiving either ti‘aining oxr board
certification in or by a foreign country/board may be
reviewed on an individual basis for consideration of
granting a waiver of the Credentialing Criteria.
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1.11 The Provider shall provide complete information with
respect to professional training which shall include, without

limitation, the following:

1.11.1 Undergraduate Education

1.11.2 Medical and/ar Professional Education

1.11.3 Internship and Residency

1.11.4 Fellowships

1.11.5 Teaching/Faculty appointments

1.11.6 Professional publications

1.11.7 References where required on the Application

The credentials of Providers shall only be acceptable if the
Provider‘’s practice is limited to the specialty in which the
Provider has received training and Provider has completed an
acceptable residency program. Highlands shall have the sole
discretion with respect to the determination of the impact of
this information for purposes of credentialing. Highlands
reserves the right to require specific formal training in new
procedures and/or technologies prior to credentialing,
recredentialing or, if applicable, recommending payment for
procedures.

1.12 Provider shall request the personal profile of
Provider from the National Practitioner Data Bank and attach a
copy of the request to the Application. Upon receipt of the
profile, the Provider shall forward the original copy to
Highlands, If the profile has not been received by Highlands |
within ninety (90) days of the date of the application, Provider
shall provide an acceptable explanation and request an extension
or the application shall be automatically terminated.

1.12 provider shall, in the sole discretion of Highlands,
demonstrate a commitment to continuing medical education. The
attachment of a current Physician’s Recagnition Award from the
American Medical Association shall satisfy this requirement. In
the absence of this Award, Provider shall attach to the
Application evidence of a minimum of fifty (50) hours of Category
I CME Credits within the previous two (2) year period
satisfactory to Highlands.

1.14 Highlands shall utilize available data sources to
evaluate, where possible, the quality of care provided by the
applicant. Determination of eligibility, or lack thereof, of
Provider based on this information shall be in the sole
discretion of Highlands.

1.15 Applicant shall maintain appropriate medical records
and shall, subject to applicable law, provide such records to

Highlands as deemed necessary by Highlands, in its sole )
discretion, for purposes of utilization management and/or quality

assessment.
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1.26 Applicant shall provide twenty-four (24) hour~a-day
coverage, seven (7) days a week by other Participating Providers
with training equivalent to the Provider. Individual exemptions
of-this requirement may be granted for Providers for which there
are no local equivalently trained Providers. Determinations of
equivalent training and the granting of any waiver of this
requirement shall be in the sole discretion of Highlands.

1.17 Provider shall: (i) properly maintain, calibrate and
license all diagnostic equipment in Provider‘’s offices; (ii)
maintain a formal quality control program.for all office
diagnostic equipment; and (iii) allow diagnostic testing and
procedures to be performed and interpreted only by persons with
appropriate training and/or certification.

1.18 Provider shall execute the appropriate release of
Highlands directing any and all entities that may have
information with respect to the ability to practice high quality
medicine to provide such information to Highlands upon request.
Such entities include, without limitation, hospitals, medical
societies, state examining boards, Medicare intermediaries and

third party payors.

1.19 Highlands reserves the right to require independent
verification of any and all of the Credentialing Criteria and to
perform site visits to the locations of Provider.

2. ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS NEEDS CRITERYA (TIER II)

The Professional Credentials constitute the Credentialing
Criteria for the professional qualifications of Providers.
Providers qualifying under the Professional Credentials shall be
evaluated by Highlands to determine if such Provider fulfills the
Econonic and Business Needs Criteria. The Economic and Business
Needs Criteria of Highlands regard the economic evaluation of the
Provider and a determination of the need for additional
Providers, additional specialties and/or additional geographical

representation:

2.1 Highlands shall utilize available data sources to
evaluate, where possible, the cost effectiveness of the patterns
of practice of a Provider. The evaluation factorxrs wmay include,
without limitation: frequency of service; intensity of service;
average cost per DRG; average cost per encounter; usage of
ancillary services; and a Provider’s charge patterns. A
significant differentiation by Provider in any of the parameters
subject to this evaluation may indicate a practice style and
philosophy incompatible with the business objectives of
Highlands. Highlands may determine, in its sole discretion, to
decline to execute a Participating Provider Agreement with any
Providers based upon this or any other information.
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2.2 Provider shall fully disclose to Highlands, any
ownership in any facility or service to which Provider may refer
Eligible Persons. Provider shall inform, in writing, Eligible
Persons of Provider’s ownership interest in any facility er
service prior to referring Eligible Persons. Provider ghall not
be required to provide such disclosures with respect to services
integrated into the Provider’s office based practice and
available onhly to providers in such practice.

2.3 It is anticipated that the number of Providers
qualifying pursuant to the Professional Credentials shall exceed
the nunber of Providers required by Highlands. Therefore, a .
Provider qualifying under the Professional Credentials shall be
evaluated under the Econonic and Business Needs Criteria by
Highlands to determine if Provider‘s participation enables
Highlands to better fulfill its business needs. The evaluation
shall include, without limitation: Provider‘s specialty; the need
for a Provider in a specific geographic area; the number of '
Providers necessary to service the population; the relationship
of a Provider to other Participating Providers; and, unique
skills such as foreign language proficiency. Qualification under
the Economic and Business Needs Criteria shall be in the sole
discretion of Highlands. A qualifying Provider may become a
Participating Provider immediately or at a subsequent time as
Highlands expands its services, patients and/or service area.

2.4 From time to time, Highlands may, in its sole
discretion, to fulfill its business objectives, offer
Participating Provider Agreements to Providers deemed to be
competent Providers who may not fulfill each aspect of the
Credentialing Criteria. Input may be sought from Payors. For
example, if Highlands required a Provider with a specific ‘
specialty or a specific location and a bhoard certified Provider
was unavailable, the requirement for board certification may be
waived in that location for a particular Provider othervise

qualified. '

2.5 It is anticipated that, from time to time, Highlands
may adopt various additional Economic and Business Needs Criteria
and/or performance standards. The adoption of additional _
Economic and Business Needs Ccriteria and performance standards
shall be at the sole discretion of Highlands.
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HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

Subscription Agreement

Mr. A. Walter Hankwitz
Executive Director
Highlands Physicians, Inc.
2550 East Stone Drive

Suite 220

Kingsport, Tennessee 37600

Dear Sir:

The undersigned hereby tenders this subscription to Highlands Physicians, Inc.
(“Highlands”), and applies to purchase one hundred (100) shares of the class of common stock
of Highlands as is set forth on page 3 hereof (the “Common Stock™). As payment of the
purchase price, the undersigned hereby encloses a check payable to “Highlands Physicians, Inc.”
in the amount of $1,500 (the “Purchase Price Payment”).

Highlands agrees to hold such funds separate and apart from all other funds in a bank
account until this subscription is accepted. It is understood and agreed that Highlands may, in its
discretion, reject this subscription, in whole, for any reason. In the event this subscription is
rejected for any reason, Highlands shall promptly return the funds deposited herewith, without
interest and without deduction, to the undersigned.

The undersigned hereby covenants, represents and warrants to Highlands as follows:

L. Bona Fide Residence.

a. The undersigned is a bona fide resident and domiciliary, not a transient or
temporary resident, of the state indicated below. The undersigned is not a
nonresident alien of the United States.

b. The undersigned resides six months or more each year in the following state:
Kentucky O
Tennessee O
Virginia O
West Virginia O
Other O
II. Documentation. The undersigned has received a copy of the Offering Circular dated
,2001.

III. Availability of Investment Information. Highlands has made all documents pertaining to
this purchase of the Common Stock available to the undersigned’s attorney, accountant
and the undersigned and has provided the undersigned, its attorney and accountant an

\20028\00001\CH202025.DOC-3
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opportunity to ask questions and secure additional information concerning the Common
Stock and Highlands and all additional matters considered by the undersigned to be
relevant to this investment.

Stockholder Agreement. In connection with the purchase and sale of the Common Stock,
each Common Stockholder is required to execute and deliver a Stockholders Agreement.
Under the terms of the Stockholders Agreement, each Common Stockholder is to provide
written notice to Highlands of any proposed sale of Common Stock. Highlands then has
the right, but not the obligation, to repurchase the Common Stock being sold at the
original purchase price. In addition, in the event a Participating Provider Agreement by
and between Highlands and Stockholder is terminated, Highlands again has the option,
but not the obligation, to repurchase the Common Stock then held by the Stockholder at
the original purchase price, plus any and all additional capital contributions made to
Highlands by the Stockholder.

Arbitration. The undersigned agrees that any controversy between Highlands, its
officers, directors, employees or agents, and the undersigned arising out of, or relating to,
(1) the preparation or contents of the information provided by Highlands or this
Agreement, (ii) the offer and sale of Common Stock, or (iii) any transactions in
connection with the foregoing, may be settled by arbitration. Any arbitration hereunder
shall take place before at least three (3) arbitrators, and the award of the arbitrators,
unanimously or by a majority of them, shall be final, and judgment upon the award
rendered may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. The undersigned agrees that
notice of any such arbitration shall be sent to the undersigned by mail at the mailing
address shown on the signature page hereof, and the undersigned waives personal service
thereof.

Cancellation. The undersigned hereby acknowledges and agrees that it is not entitled to
cancel, terminate or revoke this offer or any agreements made by the undersigned
hereunder and that such offer and agreements shall survive the death or disability of the
undersigned.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Subscription Agreement
this___ day of , 2001.

(NOTE: PAYMENT MUST BE MADE BY CHECK MADE PAYABLE TO HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.)

Indicate location of practice:

Kingsport, Tennessee (Class A Common Stock)
Bristol, Tennessee (Class B Common Stock)

Big Stone Gap, Virginia (Class D Common Stock)
Rogersville, Virginia (Class E Common Stock)
Holston Medical Group (Class F Common Stock)
Johnson City, Tennessee (Class G Common Stock)

googooao

Social Security Number

Residence Address Mailing Address (if different)

Signature

(Print or Type Name)
STATE OF )

) SS.

COUNTY OF )

On , 2001, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public,
personally appeared , known to me to be the
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and knowledge that he/they
executed the same.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.
(SEAL)

Notary Public in and for said County and State

My Commission Expires:
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PART 111

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN THE OFFERING CIRCULAR

Exhibit Number Description Page Number (or
cross-reference if
applicable)

2.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of P-3

Incorporation of Highlands Physicians, Inc.
2.2 1998 Restated Bylaws of Highlands Physicians, Inc. P-9
23 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Highlands P-20
Wellmont Health Network, Inc.

3.1 Form of Stockholders Agreement, dated , by P-27

and between Highlands Physicians, Inc. and (the

stockholder-physicians)

3.2 Form of Stockholders Agreement, dated November 2, P-33
1993, by and between Bristol Regional Medical
Center, Highlands Physicians, Inc. and Bristol
HealthCare Network, Inc.

33 Preferred Provider Agreement, dated March 4, 1988, P-42
' by and between Highlands Wellmont Health Network,
Inc. and Highlands Physicians, Inc.

3.4 Addendum to Preferred Provider Agreement, dated P-85
July 1, 2000, by and between Highlands Wellmont
Health Network, Inc. and Highlands Physicians, Inc.

6.1 Employment Agreement, effective November 1, 1997, P-87
by and between Highlands Physicians, Inc. and A.
Walter Hankwitz

6.2 Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective P-99

November 15, 2000, by and between Highlands
Physicians, Inc. and A. Walter Hankwitz

6.3 Leased Employee Agreement, dated March 15, 1998, P-103
by and between Wellmont Health System and
Highlands Physicians Incorporated
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6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

10.1

11.1

Lease Agreement, dated as of the 18" day of
December, 1997, by and between Lakeshore
Properties and Highlands Physicians, Inc. (including
Schedules A, B, C and D)

Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated the 1** day of
March, 1998, by and between Lakeshore Properties
and Highlands Physicians, Inc.

Form of 1997 Restated Participating Provider

< Agreement by and between Highlands Physicians,

Inc. and (name of provider)

Form of Subscription Agreement

Consent of Baylor and Backus, Certified Public
Accountants

Opinion of Ross & Hardies

P-106

P-119

P-121

P-148

P-151

P-152



State of Delaware ' Exhibit 2.1

Office of the Sectétary of State ™" *

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF "HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS,

INC.", FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE FIFTH DAY OF JUNE A.D. 2001,

AT 4:30 O’CLOCK P. M
A FILED COPY OF THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN FORWARDED TO THE

NEW CASTLE COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State

2348226 8100 AUTHENTICATION: 1172057

010269706 DATE: 06-08-01
P-3
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.

CER 0 C N
OF
HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC,
It is hereby certifiod that:

1. The name of the corporation is Highlands Phywicians, Inc. (the “Corporation™) and the
date of filing of the original Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of Delawzre
is August 20, 1993,

2. The Amended and Resisted Certificate of Incompomtion is hereby amended by
deleting the Amended eppd Restated Certificate of Incorporation in its entitety and substituting
the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Highlands Physicians, Inc,,
attached hereto, 238 the certificate of incorporation.

3. The Sccond Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporstion has deen duly
adopted by the stockholders in accordance with the provisions of Sections 228, 242 and 245 of
the General Corporation Law of the Stats of Delaware.

4. The effoctive tims of the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
herein certified shall be upon the date of filing.

Signed and attestedtoon _ June 3 , 2001
Im:__ﬂ.ﬂw
Dr. Nelson Gwaltney)
Its: President

Attest:

:;y Aswiﬂéﬂ/ﬁg,_

Dr. Gregdry L. DeMdtts
Its: Secretary

STATE OF DELAWARE
SECRETARY OF STATE
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
FILED 04:30 PM 06/05/2001
010269706 ~ 2348226

QOERAN0000 NCH 196529 DOC-1
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AMENDED AND RESTATED

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

1: The name of the Corporation is: HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

2: The ad&rass of the résistered office of the Corveration in the State of Delawars is
2711 Centenlle Road, 193@11; the City of wnmmm Ceugty of New Castle. The namo of tbe
végisiered agont of the Corporalion 8f such address 45 1s Premtice-Hall Corporation Sysiem, Inc. ™~

3. The nature of the business or purposas to be conducted or promoted is to engage in any
Jawfu] act or activity for which corporations may be organized wnder the General Corporation
Law of the State of Delaware 2s the sama may be amended from time to tims (*GCL").

4: The total number of shares of capital stock which the Corporation shall have the autherity
to issue is 57,000 shares, par value $1.00 per shars. The capital stock of the Corporation shall be
divided into seven (7) classeg of common stock, designated as Class A Common Stock, Class B
Common Steck, Class C Common Stock, Class D Common Stock, Class E Cammon Stock,
Class ¥ Commog Stock and Class G Common Stock. The Corporation shall have the amthority
to issue 17,000 shares of Class A Common Stack, 17,000 shages of Class B Common Stock,
3,000 shages of Class C Common Stock and 5,000 shares each of Clags D, Class E, Class F and
Class G Common Stock.  The designations, powers, preferances and rights, and the
qualifications, limitatons or restrictions, of the common stock as follows:

D.A  The Class A Commeon Stock shall bs voting stock. The holders of the Class A
Commeon Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directors of the class (“Class A
Directors™), veting as provided in ARTICLE FIFTH, Section 2.

D.B. The Class B Common Stock shall be voting stock. The holders of the Class B
Coramon Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directors of the class (“Class B
Directors™), voting 25 provided in ARTICLE FIFTH, Section 2.

D.C. The Class C Common Stock shall be non-voting.

D.D. Class D Common Steck shall be voting stock. The holders of Class D Commen
Stock shall bave the right to alect all of the dirzctors of the class (“Class D Directors™),
voting as provided in ARTICLE FIFTH, Section 2.

D.E. Class E Common Stock shall be voting stock. The holders of Class E Common
Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directars of the class (“Class £ Directors™),
voling as provided ;n ARTICLE FIFTH, Section 2.

D.F.  Class F Common Stock shall be voting stock. The halders of Class F Commen
Stock shall have the right to eloct all of the directors of the class (“Class F Directors™),
voting 18 provided in ARTICLE FIFTH, Section 2.
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D.G. Class G Common Stock shall be voting stock. The holders of Class G Common
Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directors of the class (“Class G Directors™),
voting 3s provided in ARTICLE FIFTH, Section 2.

S: The following provisions are inserted for the management of the busingss for the conduct
of the affairs of the Corporation, 2nd for further .deflnition, limitation and regulation of the
powers of the Corporation and of its directors and stackholders:

1. The affimmative vote of the majority of the voting Common Stock, issued and
outstanding, including the affirmative vote of the majority of the Class A Conunon Stock
and Class B Comman Stock, issued and outstanding, each voting as a class, shall be
required to pass any resolution of the stockholders; and

: 2. The vete of a class shall be determined by the vote of 2 majority of all of the
shares issued and outstanding in the class, present in pergon or by proxy, at an annual or
special merting, and each share of stock of a class shall be entitled to one (1) vote.

6: The Corporation shall indemnify, and advance expensos to, oach dirocror, officer, trustes,
employee ar agent of the Corporztion and each person who is or was serving a1 the request of the
Corporstion &s 2 director, officer, trustee, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership,
joint venture, trusi or other enterprise, in the manner and to the fullest extent provided in Section
145 of the GCL as the same now exists or may hereafter be amended. No amendment to or
repeal of this Article STXTH shall apply to or have any effect on the liability or alleged liability
of any director of the Corporation for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such director
occurring prior to such amendment or repeal.

7: No director of the Cerporation shall be Jiable 1o the Corporation ar its stockholders for
monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, cxcept for liability (i) for any
breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the carporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of
law, (iii) under Section 174 of the GCL or any successor provision, or (iv) for any trausaction
from which the director derived an improper personal benefit,

8: This Centfficate of Incorporation may only be amended, altered, changed or repealed at
an annual meeting or at any special meeting of the stockholders by the affirmative vote of 2
majority of 2il of the shares of stock of the Corporation issued and ouvistanding and having the
right to vote, provided that notice of the proposed amendment, alteration, change or repeal to be
made ig comtained in the notice of such annual or special meeting.
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| State'of Delaware
Office of the Secretary of State

PAGE 1

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE- OF A T ‘OF ."HIGHLANDS PEYSICIANS,
INC.*, FILED IN THIS OFFICE oN THE FIFTH DAY OF JUNE, A.D. 2001,
vAT 4:31 O'CLOCK P.M. | C

A FILED COPY OF THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN FORWARDED TO THE

NEW CASTLE COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS.

a5 ng&
3 SERA biamermetd 1!1«5‘*? e

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State

2348226 8100 AUTHENTICATION: 1179066

010269707 DATE: 06-08-01
P-7



STATE OF DELAWARE

Lo SECRETARY OF STATE
“ DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
FILED 04:31 PM 06/05/2001

010269707 - 2348226

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED

W
HIG B, IN
It is hereby certified that:

1. mmdmmnhmmmmm.(&W')
date of filing of the ariginal Certifiexts of Incorporation with the Secretwy of Stato of Delaware
is August 20, 1993,

amznided
econd Amended and Resiwted Cenificste of Incorporation is hereby
byddetz:n:zgntpnmmhofmddeFOURmmmmyndmhmmgwfoﬂmg
pxwmmmxmenmcty

OURTH: Tho toml nmimnbar of shamg of capital stock which the
Camor:dgkshulmmcmthndtywhmhmshmwvﬂMSIMw
share, mwmswdm&mdzmbaMmmmm(g
clesses of comman stock, dexignated gs Class A Commen Stock, Clasa
Commmon Stock, Class € Cammon Stock, Cless D Common Stoek, Cless E
Commumn Stock, Class F Cammor Brock and Class G Commoana Stock, The
CmpomﬁonshaﬂhavelhsthymimZ?,ﬂODahrwofChsACommog
sm;zv,mmdcmnmmsma.woma%
CawnStock;S,DOOMofChﬂDCmcnSmdc:ijshmaaa ok
E Commen Stock; 10,000 sheves of Clast F Common Stock: #ad 7,500 shares
Class G Common Stock.

Certificam of
. First Amendmert to the Second Amended and Restated ;
mxp:m?mmm“dmwwmmmmmmwmmwmd
Smmmwlﬂzjdmmwuwdﬁcmum

- —— et —— st g
—— . .

4. The cfiective time of the Firsl Anmumdment t0 the Second Amended snd Restated
Certificate of Incorporatian herein certified shall be upon the date of Alg.

Signed and attested toon __ June § /71001

By
Dr. Nelsgn Gwaltmeg)
Ity: Pregident

_%MA&
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' Exhibit 2.2

1998 RESTATED BYLAWS

OF

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

ARTICLE 1
Offices

1.1 Registered Office. The registered office shall be in the City of Wilmington,
County of New Castle, State of Delaware.

1.2 Other Office. The Corporation may also have offices at such other places both
within and without the State of Delaware as the Board of Directors may from time to time
determine or the business of the Corporation may require.

ARTICLE 2
Meetings of Stockholders

2.1 Place of Meetings. All meetings of the stockholders shall be held at such place as
may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors and stated in the notice of the meeting
or in a duly executed waiver of notice thereof.

2.2 Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the stockholders for the purpose of
electing directors and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting
shall be held on the second Tuesday in October, beginning in 1994, unless the Board of
Directors, not less than ten (10) days prior to any such fixed annual meeting date, designates
another date for such annual meeting, in which event the annual meeting of stockholders for that
year shall be held on the date so designated.

2.3 Notice of Annual Meeting. Written notice of the annual meeting stating the place,
date and hour of the meeting shall be given to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting
not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting.

2.4 List of Stockholders. The officer who has charge of the stock ledger of the
Corporation shall prepare and make, at least ten (10) days before every meeting of stockholders,
a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alphabetical order,
and showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in the name of
each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any stockholder, for any purpose
germane to the meeting, during ordinary business hours, for a period of at least ten (10) days
prior to the meeting, either at a place within the city where the meeting is to be held, which place
shall be specified in the notice of the meeting, or, if not so specified, at the place where the
meeting is to be held. The list shall also be produced and kept at the time and place of the
meeting during the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present.
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2.5  Special Meetings of Stockholders. Special meetings of the stockholders, for any
purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation,
may be called by the president, and shall be called by the president or secretary at the request in
writing of a majority of the Board of Directors, or at the request in writing of stockholders
owning a minimum of forty percent (40%) of the entire capital stock of the Corporation issued
and outstanding and entitled to vote. Such request shall state the purpose or purposes of the
proposed meeting.

2.6 Notice of Special Meetings of Stockholders. Written notice of a special meeting
stating the place, date and hour of the meeting and the purpose or purposes for which the meeting
is called, shall be given not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the
meeting, to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting.

2.7 Business at Special Meetings. Business transacted at any special meeting of
stockholders shall be limited to the purposes stated in the notice.

2.8  Classes of Stock and Voting. The stock of the Corporation shall be divided into
seven (7) classes. The designations, preferences, qualifications, limitations and special and
relative rights with respect to the shares of each class shall be as provided in the Certificate of
Incorporation and as follows:

2.8.1 Class A Stock. Class A Stock shall be voting stock. The stockholders of
Class A Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directors of the class (“Class A
Directors™), voting as provided in Section 2.8.8(ii).

2.8.2 Class B Stock. Class B Stock shall be voting stock. The stockholders of .
Class B Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directors of the class (“Class B
Directors”), voting as provided in Section 2.8.8(ii).

2.8.3 Class C Stock. Class C Common Stock shall be non-voting.

2.8.4 Class D Common Stock. Class D Common Stock shall be voting stock.
The holders of Class D Common Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directors of
the class (“Class D Directors”), voting as provided in Section 2.8.8(ii).

2.8.5 Class E Common Stock. Class E Common Stock shall be voting stock.
The holders of Class E Common Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directors of
the class (“Class E Directors™), voting as provided in Section 2.8.8(ii).

2.8.6 Class F Common Stock. Class F Common Stock shall be voting stock.
The holders of Class F Common Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directors of
the class (““Class F Directors™), voting as provided in Section 2.8.8(ii).

2.8.7 Class G Common Stock. Class G Common Stock shall be voting stock.
The holders of Class G Common Stock shall have the right to elect all of the directors of
the class (“Class G Directors™), voting as provided in Section 2.8.8(ii).
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2.8.8 Voting of Stockholders. (i) The affirmative vote of the majority of all
stockholders including the affirmative vote of the Class A Stockholders and Class B
Stockholders, each voting as a class, shall be required to pass any resolution of the
stockholders; and (ii) the vote of a class shall be determined by the vote of a majority of
all of the shares issued and outstanding in the class, present in person or by proxy, at an
annual or special meeting, and each share of stock of a class shall be entitled to one (1)
vote.

2.8.9 Quorum. The holders of a majority of the stock of each class issued and
outstanding present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at all
meetings of the stockholders for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided
by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation. If, however, such quorum shall not be
present or represented at any meeting of the stockholders, the stockholders entitled to
vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall have the power to adjourn
the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting,
until a quorum shall be present or represented. At such adjourned meeting at which a
quorum shall be present or represented any business may be transacted which might have
been transacted at the meeting as originally notified.

2.8.10 Proxies and Voting of Shares. Each stockholder shall be entitled to vote in
person or by proxy, but no proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven (11) months
from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period.

2.8.11 Informal Action By Stockholders. Any action required to be taken at any
annual or special meeting of stockholders of the Corporation, or any action which may be
taken at any annual or special meeting of such stockholders, may be taken without a
meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent in writing, setting forth the
action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than
the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at
a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted. Prompt
notice of the taking of the corporate action without a meeting by less than unanimous
written consent shall be given to those stockholders who have not consented in writing.

ARTICLE 3
Directors

3.1 Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of directors which shall

constitute the whole Board shall be a maximum of twenty-eight (28). The directors of each class
shall be elected at the annual meeting of the stockholders and each director elected shall hold
office for one (1) year until the next annual meeting or until a successor is elected and qualified.
Directors need not be stockholders.

3.2 Classification and Qualification of Directors and Term of Office. The directors of

the Corporation shall be divided into two (2) classes, with such qualifications as follows:

3.2.1 Class A Directors shall consist of ten (10) directors. Five (5) of the Class
A Directors shall be primary care physicians (family practice physicians, internal
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medicine physicians, pediatricians and emergency medicine physicians). Class A
Directors shall be elected as provided in Section 2.8.8.

3.2.2 Class B Directors shall consist of ten (10) directors. Five (5) of the Class
B Directors shall be primary care physicians (family practice physicians, internal
medicine physicians, pediatricians and emergency medicine physicians). Class B
Directors shall be elected as provided in Section 2.8.8.

3.2.3 Class D Directors shall consist of two (2) directors. One (1) of the Class D
Directors shall be a primary care physician (family practice physician, internal medicine
physician, pediatrician and emergency medicine physician). Class D Directors shall be
elected as provided in Section 2.8.8.

3.2.4 Class E Directors shall consist of two (2) directors. One (1) of the Class E
Directors shall be a primary care physician (family practice physician, internal medicine
physician, pediatrician and emergency medicine physician). Class E Directors shall be
elected as provided in Section 2.8.8.

3.2.5 Class F Directors shall consist of two (2) directors. One (1) of the Class F
Directors shall be a primary care physician (family practice physician, internal medicine
physician, pediatrician and emergency medicine physician). Class F Dlrectors shall be
elected as provided in Section 2.8.8.

3.2.6 Class G Directors shall consist of two (2) directors. One (1) of the Class G
Directors shall be a primary care physician (family practice physician, internal medicine
physician, pediatrician and emergency medicine physician). Class G Directors shall be
elected as provided in Section 2.8.8.

3.3 General Powers. The business of the Corporation shall be managed by or under
the direction of the Board of Directors, which may exercise all such powers of the Corporation
and do all such lawful acts which are not directed or required to be exercised or done by the
stockholders by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation, by agreement of the stockholders or
by these Bylaws.

3.4  Quorum. Unless a greater number is stated in the Certificate of Incorporation, a
majority of the total number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business
at all meetings of the Board of Directors. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of the
Board of Directors, the directors present thereat may adjourn the meeting from time to time.
without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.

3.5 Manner of Acting. The vote of a majority of all of the members of the Board of
Directors shall be required to pass any resolution of the Board of Directors; PROVIDED,
HOWEVER, the following matters shall require the vote of the majority of each of the following:
(i) Class A Directors, (ii) Class B Directors, (iii) the primary care physician directors; and
(iv) the specialist physician directors:

3.5.1 New Stockholders. The issuance of capital stock of the corporation;
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3.5.2 Certificate of Incorporation. The amendment or repeal of the Certificate
of Incorporation;

3.5.3 Bylaws. The amendment or repeal of the Bylaws of the corporation;
3.5.4 Borrowing. Authorization of the corporation to borrow;

3.5.5 Budget. The approval of the budget of the corporation and expenditures in
excess of the amounts provided in such approved budget of the corporation;

3.5.6 Risk Contracts. The approval of contracts where the payment of fees is on
a capitated basis or other non-fee-for-service arrangements where the corporation is at
financial risk;

3.5.7 Distributions. The distributions of any cash or property of the corporation;

3.5.8 Executive Director. The engagement or dismissal of an executive director
to manage the affairs of the corporation;

3.5.9 Management Company or Medical Service Organization (“MSO”). The
engagement or dismissal of a management company or MSO to manage the affairs of the
corporation;

3.5.10 Auditing Firm. The engagement and dismissal of the independent auditin
firm for the corporation; ‘

3.5.11 Counsel. The engagement and dismissal of legal counsel;

3.5.12 Utilization Management Firm. The engagement or dismissal of the firm
performing utilization management for the corporation;

3.5.13 Subcontracting. The subcontracting of any of the obligations of the
corporation;

3.5.14 Employees and Independent Contractors. The hiring or termination of
employees or independent contractors;

3.5.15 Purchase of Property. The purchase or acquisition of any property, real,
personal, or mixed, by the corporation exceeding Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) in
value;

3.5.16 Sale of Property. The sale, exchange or other disposition of any property,
real, personal or mixed, of the corporation exceeding Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00)
in value;

3.5.17 Rights. Nothing in this Section 3.5 shall be construed to limit in any
manner the rights and powers of the Board except as specifically set forth herein.
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3.6 Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors and any directorship
-to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of directors, shall be filled at a special meeting
of the stockholders of the class designated to elect such director voting in accordance with
Section 2.8.8(ii).

3.7 Removal. Except as hereinafter provided, one or more directors may be removed,
with or without cause, at any time by the affirmative vote of the majority of all of the shares
outstanding of the class electing such director, at a special meeting of the stockholders of such
class called for that purpose, voting in accordance with Section 2.8.8(ii).

3.8 Committees.

3.8.1 Generally. The Board of Directors may, by resolution, designate one or
more committees. The composition of the committees shall be determined by the Board.
The Board may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee,
who may replace any absent member at any meeting of the committee.

3.8.2 Vote of Committees. The vote of the majority of director-members of a
committee shall be required to pass any act of the committee. Any act of any committee
shall be ratified by a resolution of the Board of Directors before such resolution becomes
effective.

3.8.3 Executive Committee. The Board of Directors may designate an
Executive Committee to consist of two (2) or more directors of the Corporation with
equal numbers of Class A and Class B directors. Any resolution of the Executive
Committee shall be passed upon the vote of a majority of all of the members of the
Committee. In the absence or disqualification of a director serving on the Executive
Committee, the Board of Directors may appoint another director from the same class of
director as the absent or disqualified director to act at the meeting. Except as otherwise
provided by statute or these Bylaws, the Executive Committee shall have and may
exercise all of the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of
the business and affairs of the Corporation, and may authorize the seal of the Corporation
to be affixed to all papers which may require it.

3.9  Place of Meetings. The Board of Directors may hold meetings, both regular and
special, either within or without the State of Delaware.

3.10 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held
without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time. be determined by the
Board.

3.11 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President
on at least two (2) days’ notice to each director as provided in ARTICLE 5. Special meetings
. shall be called by the President in the same manner upon the written request of two (2) or more
directors.

3.12  Informal Action. Unless otherwise restricted by the Certificate of Incorporation
or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of
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‘Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the
Board or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and the writing or writings
are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board or committee.

3.13 Compensation of Directors. The directors may be paid their expenses, if any, of
attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors and may be paid a fixed sum for attendance
at each meeting of the Board of Directors or a stated salary to serve as a director. No such
payment shall preclude any director from serving the Corporation in any other capacity and
receiving compensation therefor. Members of special or standing committees may be allowed
like compensation for attending committee meetings.

ARTICLE 4
Advisory Directors

4.1 Appointment. The Corporation, by its Board of Directors, may select Advisory
Directors. Advisory Directors may be appointed or removed by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation at any annual or special meeting of the Board of Directors.

4.2 Number and Term. The Advisory Directors shall be a maximum of twenty (20) in
number and shall serve for a maximum of three (3) years.

4.3 Function of Advisory Directors. The function of the Advisory Directors shall be
primarily advisory in nature to the Board of Directors. Any or all Advisory Directors may serve
on Board committees to which they are appointed by the Board of Directors. Advisory Directors
shall attend meetings of the Board of Directors when invited. Advisory Directors may serve, if
appointed, as chairman of a committee. Serving in this capacity, Advisory Directors may be
invited to attend the regular business meetings of the Board of Directors to make committee
reports and recommendations. It is not intended that Advisory Directors be subject to provisions
of the statutes of the State of Delaware as directors.

ARTICLE 5
Notices

5.1 In General. Whenever, under the provisions of the statutes or of the Certificate of
Incorporation or of these Bylaws, notice is required to be given to any director or stockholder,
such notice shall be in writing, delivered personally or by mail, addressed to such director or
stockholder, at his/her address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, with postage
thereon prepaid, and such notice shall be deemed to be given when the notice shall be deposited
in the United States mail.

5.2 Notice to Directors. Notice to directors may be given as provided in Section 5.1
and by fax-or telegram.

5.3 Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the
provisions of the statutes or of the Certificate of Incorporation or of these bylaws, a waiver
thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after
the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent thereto.
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ARTICLE 6
Officers

6.1  Number and Title. The officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the Board
of Directors and shall be a chairman of the board, if any, vice chairman of the board, if any,
president, a vice-president, a secretary and a treasurer. The Board of Directors may choose
additional vice-presidents and one or more assistant secretaries and assistant treasurers. Any
number of offices may be held by the same person, unless the Certificate of Incorporation or
these bylaws otherwise provide.

6.2  Election and Qualification. The Board of Directors at its first meeting after each
annual meeting of stockholders shall choose a president, one or more vice-presidents, a secretary
and a treasurer.

6.3 Appointment of Additional Officers. The Board of Directors may appoint such
other officers and agents as it shall deem necessary who shall hold their offices for such terms
and shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be determined from time to time
by the board.

6.4  Compensation. The salaries of all officers and agents of the Corporation shall be
fixed by the Board of Directors.

6.5  Term of Office Removal and Vacancies. The officers of the Corporation shall
hold office until their successors are chosen and qualify. Any officer elected or appointed by the
Board of Directors may be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of the
Board of Directors. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Corporation may be filled by the
Board of Directors.

6.6 The Chairman of the Board. The chairman of the board, if any, shall be the chief
executive officer of the Corporation and shall have the general direction of the affairs of the
Corporation, except as otherwise prescribed by the Board of Directors. The chairman of the
board shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders, of the Board of Directors and of the
executive committee, if any, and shall designate the acting secretary for such meetings to take the
minutes thereof for delivery to the secretary. The chairman of the board may execute contracts in
the name of the Corporation and appoint and discharge agents and employees of the Corporation.
The chairman of the board shall be ex-officio a member of all committees.

6.7 The Vice Chairman of the Board. In the absence of the chairman of the board, if
any, or in the event of his inability or refusal to act, the vice chairman shall perform the duties of
the chairman, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the
restrictions upon the chairman. The vice chairman shall perform such other duties and have such
other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.

6.8  The President. The president shall be the chief operating officer of the
Corporation, and as such shall direct the operations of the Corporation. The president shall
assume such other duties as the Board of Directors may assign to him from time to time. If there
shall. not be a chairman, or in the absence or incapacity of the chairman of the board and vice
chairman of the board, the president shall perform all duties and functions of the chairman of the
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board. The president may sign, with the secretary, assistant secretary, treasurer or assistant
treasurer. certificates for shares of the Corporation, and may sign any policies, deeds, mortgages,
bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board of Directors have authorized to be
executed except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by
the Board of Directors or by these bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Corporation, or
shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; appoint and discharge agents and
employees of the Corporation, and in general, shall perform all duties incident to the office of
president. The president shall be ex-officio a member of all committees. '

6.9  The Vice-President. In the absence of the president or in the event of his inability
or refusal to act, and in the absence of the chairman of the board and vice chairman of the board,
if any, or in the event of their inability or refusal to perform the duties of the president, the vice-
president (or in the event there be more than one vice-president, the vice-presidents in the order
designated by the Board, or in the absence of any designation, then in the order of their election)
shall perform the duties of the president, and when acting, shall have all the powers of and be
subject to all the restrictions upon the president. The vice-presidents shall perform such other
duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.

6.10 The Secretary. The secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors
and all meetings of the stockholders and record all the proceedings of the meetings of the
Corporation and of the Board of Directors in a book to be kept for that purpose and shall perform
like duties for the standing committees when required. The secretary shall give, or cause to be
given, notice of all meetings of the stockholders and special meetings of the Board of Directors,
and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or president,
under whose supervision the secretary shall be. The secretary shall have custody of the corporate
seal of the Corporation and the secretary, or an assistant secretary, shall have authority to affix
the same to any instrument requiring it and when so affixed, it may be attested by the signature of
the secretary or by the signature of such assistant secretary. The Board of Directors may give
general authority to any other officer to affix the seal of the Corporation and to attest the affixing
by such officer’s signature.

6.11 Assistant Secretaries. The assistant secretary, or if there be more than one, the
assistant secretaries in the order determined by the Board of Directors (or if there be no such
determination, then in the order of their election) shall, in the absence of the secretary or in the
event of the secretary’s inability or refusal to act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of
the secretary and shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of
Directors may from time to time prescribe.

6.12  The Treasurer. The treasurer shall have the custody of the corporate funds and
securities and shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books
belonging to the Corporation and shall deposit all moneys and other valuable effects in the name
and to the credit of the Corporation in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of
Directors. The treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Corporation as may be ordered by the
Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render to the
president and the Board of Directors, at its regular meetings, or when the Board of Directors so
requires, an account of all transactions made by the treasurer and of the financial condition of the
Corporation.
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6.13 Bond. If required by the Board of Directors, the treasurer shall give the
Corporation a bond (which shall be renewed every six (6) years) in such sum and with such
surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the Board of Directors for the faithful performance of
the duties of the office and for the restoration to the Corporation, in case of the treasurer’s death,
resignation, retirement or removal from office, of all books, papers, vouchers, money and other
property of whatever kind in the treasurer’s possession or under the treasurer’s control belonging
to the Corporation.

6.14 Assistant Treasurers. The assistant treasurer, or if there shall be more than one,
the assistant treasurers in the order determined by the Board of Directors (or if there be no such
determination, then in the order of their election), shall, in the absence of the treasurer or in the
event of the treasurer’s inability or refusal to act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of
the treasurer and shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of
Directors may from time to time Prescribe.

ARTICLE 7
Stock and Stockholders

7.1 Stock. The shares of stock of the Corporation shall be uncertificated.

7.2 Fixing Record Date. In order that the Corporation may determine the
stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment
thereof, or to express consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, or entitled to
receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitled to
exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock or for the purpose
of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which shall
not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) days before the date of such meeting, nor more
than sixty (60) days prior to any other action. A determination of stockholders of record entitled
to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the
meeting; provided, however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the
adjourned meeting.

7.3 Registered Stockholders. The Corporation shall be entitled to recognize the
exclusive right of a person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive dividends,
and to vote as such owner, and to hold liable for calls and assessments a person registered on its
books as the owner of shares, and shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to
or interest in such share or shares on the part of any other person, whether or not it shall have
express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of Delaware.

ARTICLE 8
Indemnification

8.1 In General. The Corporation shall indemnify (a) any person who was or is a party
or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in
the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that such
person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or is or was serving at
the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
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partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys’ fees)
actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of
such action or suit, and (b) any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party
to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal,
administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the Corporation) by
reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or
who is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent
of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses
(including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred by him in connection with any such action, suit or proceeding, in each case
to the fullest extent permissible under Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, as
amended from time to time, or the indemnification provisions of any successor statute.

8.2 No Diminution by Amendment of Bylaws; Non-exclusive Effect. The foregoing
provisions of this Article 8 shall be deemed to be a contract between the Corporation and each
director and officer who serves in such capacity at any time while this bylaw is in effect and any
repeal or modification thereof shall not affect any rights or obligations then existing with respect
to any state of facts then or theretofore existing or any action, suit or proceeding theretofore or
thereafter brought based in whole or in part upon any such state of facts. The foregoing rights of
indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which any director or officer
may be entitled apart from the provisions of this Article 8. The Board of Directors in its
discretion shall have power on behalf of the Corporation to indemnify any person, other than a
director or officer, made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he, his
testator or intestate is or was an employee of the Corporation.

ARTICLE 9
Amendment of Bylaws

The bylaws may be adopted, amended or repealed by the stockholders or the Board of
Directors; provided, however, that any amendment of the Bylaws by the stockholders shall not be
amended or repealed by the Board of Directors unless otherwise provided in the amendment.
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STATE OF DELAWARE
SECRETARY OF STATE
DIVISION OF CORPCRATIONS
FILED 08:00 AM 11/12/1983

933165330 - 2359833

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
BRISTOL HEALTHCARE NETWORK, INC.
1. The name of the corporation is:
Bristol Healthcare Network, Inc.

2. The address of its reglistered office in the State of
Delaware is Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, in the
City of Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaware 19801. The name
of its registered agent at such address is The Corporation Trust
Company.

3. The nature of the business or purposes to be conducted or
promoted is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which
corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of
Delaware.

4. The total number of shares of stock which the corporation
shall have authority to issue is 3,000 shares, with a par value of
$1.00 each. All such shares shall be designated as common stock
and shall be of two classges, with 1,500 shares of Class A and 1,500
shares of Class B. The shares of Class A and Class B common stock
shall have 1identical designations, preferences, relative,
participating, optional or other rights and qualifications,
limitatione and restrictions, except with respect to voting for
Directors, in which case the holders of the outstanding shares of
Class A common stock shall be entitled tc elect three (3) directors
and the holders of the outstanding shares of Class B common stock
shall be entitled to elect three (3} directors.

5. The name and mailing address of the incorporator is:
C. Joseph Cain
Clark, Thomas & Winters
P. O. Box 1148
700 Lavaca, Sulte 900
Austin, Texas 78767

6. The name and mailing address of the person who is to
serve as sole director wuntil the first annual meeting of

75466.1
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stockholders or until his successors are elected and duly qualified
is:

Name Address
C. Joseph'Cain Clark, Thomas & Winters

P. 0. Box 1148
700 Lavaca, Sulte 900
Austin, Texas 78767

The number of the corporation's directors to serve after the first
annual meeting of stockholders shall be fixed at six (6) and may be
changed only by amendment of this certificate of incorporation.

7. The corporation expressly elects to not be governed by
the 1restrictions contained in section 203 of the General
Corporation Law of Delaware regarding business combinations with
interested stockholders.

8. The stockholders of the corporation shall have a
preemptive right to purchase, acquire, or. subscribe for any
unissued, additional, or treasury shares of stock of any class or
bonds, notes, debentures, or any securities convertible into stock
of the corporation or carrying any right to purchase, acquire, or
subscribe for stock of any class.

9. No director of this corporation shall be liable to the
corporation for monetary damages for an act or omission occurring
in the director's capacity as a director, except to the extent the
statutes of the State of Delaware expressly provide that the
director's liability may not be eliminated or limited. Any repeal
or amendment of this paragraph that increases the liability of a
director shall be prospective only, and shall not adversely affect
any limitation on the personal liability of a director of the
corporation existing at the time of such repeal or amendment.

10. Any amendment or repeal of any provision contained in
this Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws of the corporation
shall be reserved to the Stockholders of the corporation. Such
amendment or repeal shall be accomplished by a majority vote of
each class of Stockholders of the corporation., All rights herein
conferred are granted subject to this reservation.

The undersigned, being the incorporator hereinabove.named, for

the purpose of forming a corporation pursuant to the General
Corporation Law of Delaware, does make this certificate, hereby
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declaring and certifying that this is his act and deed, and the
facts herein stated are true and, accordingly, he h xecuted this
Certificate of Incorporation this the é day of

W‘m / ? 1993 .
Nam?"oj Incorporator
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STATE OF DELAUWARE
SECRETARY OF STATE
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
FILED 039:00 AW 09/05/1835
850200632 - 2359893

RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
BRISTOL HEALTHCARE NETWORK, INC.

1. LARRY M. SMITH, Executive Director of Bristol Healthcare Network, Inc., do
hereby certify:

Bristol Healthcare Network, Inc. (the "Corporation) was formed pursuant to the
provisions of the Delaware Business Corporation act on November 12, 1993, The
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation is hercby umended and restated as follows:

1. The name of the Corporation is Bristol Healthcare Network, Inc.

2. The address of its registered office in the State of Delaware is Corporation
Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle,
Delaware 1980].

3 The name of its registered ngent at such address is The Corporation Trust
Company.
4. The nature of the business or purposes to be conducted or promoted is to

engage in uny lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the
General Corporation Law of Delaware,

5. The total number of shares of stock which the Corporation shall have
authority 1o issue is 3,00} shares, with a par value of $1.00 each. Al such shares shali
be designated as common stock and shall be of two classes, with 1,500 shares of Class A
and 1,500 shares of Class B. The shares of Class A and Class B common stock shall
have identical designations, preferences, relative, participating, optional or other rights and
qualifications, limitations and restrictions, except with respect to voting for the Directors,
in which case the holders of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock shali be
entitled to elect four (4) directors and the holders of the outstanding shares of Class B
common stock shall be entitled to elect four (4) directors.

6. The number of the Corporation's directors shall be fixed at cight (8) and may
be changed only by amendment of this Certificate of Incorporation,
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7.  The Corporation expressly elects to not be governed by the restrictions
contained in section 203 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware regarding business
combinations with interested stockholders,

8. The stockholders of the Corporation shall have a preemptive right to
purchase, acquire, or subscribe for any unissued, additional, or treasury shares of stock of
any class or bonds, notes, debentures, or any securities convertible into stock of the
Corporation or carrying any right to purchase, acquire, or subscribe for stock of any class.

9.  No director of this Corporation ghall be liable to the Corporation for
monetary damages for an act or omission occurring in the director’s capacity as a director,
except to the extent the statutes of the State of Delaware expressly provide that the
director’s liability may not be eliminated or limited. Any repeal or amendment of this
paragraph that increases the liability of a director shall be prospective only, and shall not
adversely affect any limitation on the personal liability of a director of the Corporation
existing at the time of such repeal or amendment.

10.  Any amendment or repeal of any provision contained in this Certificate of
Incorporation or the Bylaws of the Corporation shall be reserved to the Stockholders of
the corporation. Such amendment or repeal shall be accomplished by a majority vote of
each class of Stockholders of the corporation. All rights herein conferred are granted
subject to this reservation.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, Bristol Healthcare Network, Inc. has caused this
Certificate Of Amendment and Restatement Of Articles Of Incorporation to be signed in
its name and on its behalf by its Executive Director and its corporate seal to be hereunto
affixed and attested to by its Secretary on thisi% _day of August, 1995.

ATTEST: BRISTOL HEALTHCARE NETWORK, INC.
Mwﬂmﬂ/ By: %’M/w . ;m% |
Barbara Morbell,-Secretary / Larry M. Smith

Executive Director and CEQO
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STATE OF DELAWARE
SECRETARY OF STATE
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
FILED 09:00 AM 0B/20/1936
960242542 - 2359893

STATE of DELAWARE
CERTIFICATE of AMENDMENT of
CERTIFICATE of INCORPORATION

»  First: Thatata meeting of the Board of Directors of _ BRISTOL HEALTHCARE NETWORK, INC.

resolutions were duly adopted setting forth u proposed amendment of the Certificate of ’
Incorporation of said corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and calling a meeting
of the stockholders of said corporation for consideration thereof. The resolution setting forth the
proposed amendment is as follows:

RESoLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation of this corpuration be amended by changing the
Article thereof numbered * 1  so that, as amended, said Article

shall be and read as follows:
« The name of the corporation is: HIGHIANDS WELIMONT HEALTH NETWORK, INC.

”

P Seconn: That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of i‘ts Board of Directors, a special meeting of the
stockholders of said corporation was duly called and held, upon notice in accordance with Section
222 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware at which meeting the necessary num-
ber of shares as required by statute were voted in favor of the amendment.

»  Tuirn: That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of
the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

»  Fourtu: That the capital of said corporation shall not be reduced under or by reason of said

amendment.
»  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said __ BRISTOL HEALTHCARE NETWORK, INC.

-

has caused this certificale to be signed by

DAVID A. NOWISKI , an Authorized Officer,
. this day of August JAD. 1996 .
By: M
7z Authorized Officer
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Exhibit 3.1
STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT
by and between

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS. INC.

and

(STOCKHOLDER-PHYSICIANS)
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STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT

THIS STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT effective as of the effective:
date set forth on the signature page, by and among Highlands
Physicians, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Highlands"), and the
parties listed on the signature pages under the heading
"Stockholders" (herein referred to individually as a
"Stockholder" and collectively as the "Stockholders").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Stockholders are the owners of issued and
outstanding shares of capital stock of Highlands ("Shares"); and

WHEREAS, the Stockholders desire to secure continuity of
ownership of the Shares and believe it to be in the best
interests of Highlands and the Stockholders to impose certain
restrictions and obligations upon the Stockholders, Highlands and
the Shares with respect to the transfer of the Shares, to provide
that the Shares owned by any Stockholder or by any transferee of
a Stockholder shall not pass to persons unsuited or unqualified
to serve the best interests of Highlands.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the
mutual promises, covenants and conditions herein contained and
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto
agree as follows: ' :

1. Preamble and Recitals. The preamble and recitals
hereinabove set forth are hereby incorporated into and made a
part of this Agreement.

2. Restriction on Transfer of Shares.

2.1 Except as provided in this Agreement, no Stockholder
shall sell, assign, pledge or otherwise transfer (together a
*transfer") all or any part of the Shares now owned or hereafter
acquired by such Stockholder.

2.2 Any Stockholder may transfer all or any part of such
Stockholder’s Shares to any person or entity with the prior
written consent of Highlands, which consent may be granted or
withheld in the sole discretion of Highlands.

2.3 Any Stockholder (the "Offering Stockholder") may sell

all or any part of such Stockholder’s Shares to any person or
entity without the consent of Highlands, provided that the
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Offering Stockholder complies with each of the following terms
and conditions:

2.3.1 The Offering Stockholder shall obtain a written
offer (the "Written Offer") from the proposed purchaser setting
forth the name and address of the proposed purchaser, the number
of Shares proposed to be transferred ("Offered Shares"), the

‘total consideration, direct or indirect, to be received therefor

and the terms and conditions of payment, upon which the Offering
Stockholder proposes to transfer the Offered Shares.

2.3.2 The Offering Stockholder shall serve wrltten
notice (the "Transfer Notice") on Highlands of the existence of
an offer to purchase the Offered Shares and shall submit to
Highlands a copy of the Written Offer.

2.3.3 Upon receipt of a Transfer Notice, Highlands shall
have the option to redeem not less than all of the Offered
Shares. Highlands may exercise its option by written notice
("Exercise Notice'") to the Offering Shareholder within ninety
(90) days after the receipt of the Transfer Notice ("90-Day
Period"). 1If Highlands shall exercise its option to redeem the
Offered Shares, Highlands shall pay the purchase price, as
computed in Section 4, to the Offering Stockholder as provided in
Section 5. If Highlands shall elect not to redeem the Offered

Shares or shall fail to exercise its option with the 90-Day"”

Period, the Offering Stockholder shall have the right to sell the
Offered Shares to the proposed purchaser, upon the terms and
conditions set forth in the Written Offer, provided such sale is
consummated within thirty (30) days after the 90-Day Period. 1If
such sale is not consummated within such period, then the
restrictions provided in this Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect with respect to any Shares not so transferred.

2.3.4 Any purported transfer in violation of this
Agreement shall be null and void and of no further force and
effect.

2.3.5 No transfer of Shares under this .Section 2 shall
be effective until written notice thereof is served on Highlands.
The transferee of any Shares pursuant to this Section 2 shall
execute any and all documents, in form and substance satisfactory
to Highlands and counsel for Highlands, necessary for transferee
to become bound by all of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. :

3. Redemption of Shares.
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3.1 In the event of the termination of the Participating
Provider Agreement ("Termination") by and between Highlands and a
Stockholder ("Terminated Stockholder") whether for cause or not
for cause, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, Highlands shall
have the option to redeem the Shares owned by the Terminated

Stockholder.

3.2 Upon termination, Highlands may exercise its option by
giving the Exercise Notice to the Terminated Stockholder at any
time within ninety (90) days after the date of the Termination.

3.3 1If Highlands shall give the Exercise Notice to the
Terminated Stockholder within such ninety (90} day period,
Highlands shall purchase, and the Terminated Stockholder shall
sell, all of the Shares then held by the Terminated Stockholder
at the purchase price as defined in Section 4.

4. Purchase Price. The purchase for any Shares redeemed
hereunder shall be (the "Purchase Price'") equal to the sum of:

(i) the original price paid by the Terminated Stockholder for the
Redeemed Shares plus (ii) any additional capital contribution
made by the Terminated Stockholder to Highlands.

S. Payment of Purchase Price. The purchase price shall be paid
in cash at the office of Highlands on the thirtieth (30th) day
following the date of the Exercise Notice. At closing, the
Stockholder shall deliver the certificates representing the
Shares, duly endorsed for transfer. If the Terminated
Stockholder or an employee, officer, director, partner or agent
of the Terminated Stockholder is an officer or director of
Highlands, the Terminated Stockholder shall, upon receipt of the
Exercise Notice or the occurrence of the Termination Event, be
deemed to have resigned from such position and upon request of
Highlands shall execute such resignations, corporate records and
other documents as may be reasonably requested by Highlands.

6. Legend on Certificates. All certificates representing
Shares subject to this Agreement shall be endorsed with the.

following legend:

"This certificate and the shares represented hereby are held
subject to the terms and conditions of the Stockholders
Agreement dated , 199__, among Highlands
and its Stockholders, a copy of which is on file at'the
office of Highlands. No sale or other transfer of the
shares represented by this certificate may be effected
except pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders Agreement.
The shares represented by this certificate have not been
registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or the
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securities laws of any state. The shares have been acquired
for investment only and may not be sold or transferred in
the absence of an effective registration statement covering
the shares under the Securities Act of 1933 and applicable
state securities laws or an opinion of counsel satisfactory
to nghlands that such registration is not required.*"

7. Addltlonal Shares. If any of the Shares are transferred
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or if Highlands issues
any additional Shares to any Stockholder or any transferee of any
Stockholder, such transferee or person or entity to whom such
Shares are issued and the Shares so transferred or issued shall
be subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

8. Miscellaneous Provisions
8.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated:

8.1.1 with the written consent of Highlands and the
Stockholder executing this Agreement;

8.1.2 upon the adjudication of bankruptcy of
Highlands; or

8.1.3 upon the voluntary dissolution of Highlands.

8.2 Notices. Notices shall be written and personally
delivered or by fax, effective on delivery, or sent by United
States mail, postage prepaid, effective on the third (3rd) day
following the date deposited in the mail, addressed to the
parties as set forth below, or to any other address specified in
writing by such party.

8.3 Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire
agreement -and. understanding of the parties hereto with respect to
the subject matter hereof, and all prior and concurrent
agreements, understandings, representations and warranties with
respect to such subject matter, whether written or oral, are and
have been merged herein and superseded hereby. Except as
otherwise specifically provided herein, no amendment to this
Agreement shall be effective against a party to this Agreement -
unless such amendment is in writing, signed by such party.

8.4 Compliance with Terms. Failure to insist upon strict
compliance with any of the terms herein (by way of waiver or
breach) by either party hereto shall not be deemed to be a
continuous waiver in the event of any future breach or waiver of
any condition hereunder.
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8.5 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by a-
Stockholder without the express written consent of Highlands.
Highlands may assign this Agreement, upon notice to a '
Stockholder, to any other entity. :

8.6 Benefits. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and
shall inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their
respective heirs, personal representatives, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns. .

8.7 Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed
in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original and all of which taken together shall constitute a
single instrument.

8.8 Conflict of Laws. This Agreement shall be governed by
the laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to its
conflicts of law provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands
and seals effective as the day and year first above written.

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC. : '~ STOCKHOLDER :

By: _Date _ Date

Title

Effective Date
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Exhibit 3.2

STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT

This Stockholders Agreement effective November 2, 1993, by and
between Bristol Memorial Hospital, Inc., d.b.a. Bristol Regional
Medical Center, a Virginia not-for-profit corporation ("BRMC"),
Highlands Physicians, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("HPI") and Bristol
HealthCare Network, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Corporation"),
and BRMC and HPI being referred to individually as "Stockholder" and
collectively as "Stockholders." :

WITNESSET H:

WHEREAS, the Corporation is a corporation duly organized and
existing under and pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware;

and

WHEREAS, the Stockholders desire to secure continuity of
ownership of the stock of the Corporation and believe it to be in
the best interests of the Corporation and the Stockholders to
impose certain restrictions and obligations upon the shares of
stock of the Corporation.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and the
mutual promises, covenants and conditions herein contained, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency
gflwhich are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as

ollows:

1. Preamble

‘ The preamble and recitals hereinabove set forth are hereby
incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement.

2. Sale and Purchase of Stock of a Stockholder

2.1 Transfer of Shares. No Stockholder shall transfer any
interest in all or any part of such Stockholder's stock in the
Corporation to a third party, without first complying with the
provisions of this Agreement.

2.2 Qffer to the Corporation and Other Stockholders. If a
Stockholder desires to transfer all or any portion of the
Stockholder's stock in the Corporation, the shares of stock owned
by the Stockholder shall be offered to the Corporation and then to
the other Stockholders as follows: )

2.2.1 The Stockholder or legal representative of a
Stockholder ("Offering Stockholder") shall serve written
notice upon the Corporation containing: (i) an offer to sell
stock to the Corporation and the other Stockholders; (ii) a
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copy of the written bona fide offer to purchase the stock of
the Offering Stockholder by a third party; (iii) the amount of
stock offered for sale ("Offered Stock"); and (iv) the price
per share; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the purchase price of the
Offered Stock and the payment of the purchase price shall be
no less favorable than the price and terms contained in the

bona fide offer.

2.2.2 For a period of thirty (30) days ("Corpora-
tion's Option Period") after the date of receipt of such
notice, the Corporation shall have the right to exercise an
option to purchase all or any portion of the Offered Stock.
Such option shall be exercised by written notice by the
Corporation to the Offering Stockholder and the other
Stockholders during the Corporation's Option Period.

2.2.3 If the Corporation does not exercise its option
or exercises its option to purchase less than all of the
Offered Stock, the other Stockholders shall have the right to
exercise an option, on a pro-rata basis, to purchase the
Offered Stock or remaining Offered Stock for a period of
thirty (30) days after the termination of the Corporation's
option period ('"Stockholder's Option Period"). Such option
shall be exercised by written notice from a Stockholder to the
Offering Stockholder, the Corporation and the other
Stockholders during the Stockholder's Option Period.

2.2.4 1If the Corporation and the other Stockholders
have exercised their option to purchase less than all of the
Offered Stock, then the Corporation, if it has exercised its
option, and the other Stockholders who have exercised an
option, shall be deemed to have agreed to purchase all of the
remaining Offered Stock, pro rata, in accordance with the
shares to be purchased by each such party exercising an
option.

2.2.5 If neither the Corporation nor the other
Stockholders shall exercise their options to purchase any of
the Offered Stock, the Offering Stockholder shall be free for
a period of ninety (90) days subsequent to the termination of
the Stockholders' Option Period ("90 Day Period"), to sell the
Offered Stock to the named bona fide prospective purchaser;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that no such sale shall be made on terms or
for a price, other than as set forth in the third party offer
or to any person other than a bona fide prospective purchaser
named in the notice given under Section 2.2.1 and that prior
to such sale the bona fide prospective purchaser becomes a
party to this Agreement. .

2.2.6 1If, after the lapse of the 90 Day Period, such
stock has not been sold in accordance with the bona fide offer
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described in the Seller's notice given under Section 2.2.1,
the Offering Stockholder shall make a new offer in accordance
with Section 2.2.1 prior to any other transfer.

2,3 Surrender of Shares; Resignations. At the time of the
initial payment of the purchase price the Offering Stockholder
shall surrender the certificates representing the Offered Stock
endorsed to permit transfer on the books of the Corporation. 1If
the Offering Stockholder or an officer, director, stockholder,
employee or agent of the Offering Stockholder is an officer or
director of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates, or a trustee on any corporate pension or profit sharing
plans or holds similar positions, such person shall, at the time of
the 1initial payment execute resignations, corporate records,
minutes and other reasonable documents as may be requested by the

Corporation.

3. Covenant Not to Establish Entity Similar to the Corporation.
During the term of this Agreement neither HPI nor BRMC nor their
officers, directors, shareholders or members shall directly or
indirectly become a partner, shareholder, or investor in, or
otherwise in any manner own, establish or operate an entity which
competes with the Corporation in the geographic area set forth in
Exhibit 3 or solicit the Corporation's payors or referral sources
referring payors to the Corporation for any such entity. = The
foregoing prohibition against solicitation shall not restrict a
party's right to conduct general marketing and advertising efforts
to persons generally in the relevant geographic market.

4. Arbitration. Neither party shall in any manner, whether
voluntary or involuntary, whether for cause or not for cause, cause
or permit the dissolution of the Corporation, terminate this
Agreement or its Preferred Provider Agreement with the Corporation
(together "Corporate Agreements'") without submitting the arbitrable
matter to arbitration as provided hereafter. No issues other than
termination of a Corporate Agreement under Section 4.1.3, or
dissolution of the Corporation under Section 4.2.2 shall be the
subject of arbitration. :

4.1 Material Breach.

4.1.1 If a party shall materially breach a Corporate
Agreement, the non-breaching party shall provide the breaching
party with written notice of such breach. The notice shall
specifically describe each breach of the Corporate Agreements.

4.1.2 The party alleged to have materially breached a
Corporate Agreement shall have thirty (30) days thereafter
("30 Day Period") to remedy or reasonably commence and
thereafter diligently pursue the remedy (if the cure cannot be




accomplished within the 30 Day Period) of any such alleged
breach.

4.1.3 Subject to Section 4.1.4, if either party shall
dispute: (i) that a material breach has occurred; (ii) that a
breach has been remedied; or (4ii) that the breaching party
has reasonably commenced and is diligently pursuing the remedy
of such breach in accordance with Section 4.1.2; such party
shall, during or within ten (10) days after the 30 Day Period,
provide written notice to the other party of its.intention to
submit the matter to arbitration as provided in Section 4.3.

4.1.4 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section
4.1.3, either party may terminate a Corporate Agreement
without arbitration if:

(1) the Internal Revenue Service requires a
termination of that Corporate Agreement
as a condition for the continuation of
BRMC's tax exempt status under IRC
Section 501 (c) (3) or legal counsel
reasonably acceptable to all parties is
of the opinion that the continued
effectiveness of that Corporate Agreement
contravenes the requirements of IRC
Section 501(c)(3); or

(i1) the Office of the Inspector General of
the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, or any similar state or local
authority, requires the termination of
that Corporate Agreement as a condition
to a decision by that authority not to
impose sanctions for violation of
applicable statutes or regulations.

4.2 Dissolution. Unless the parties shall mutually agree in

writing, neither party shall in any manner whether voluntary or
involuntary, whether for cause or not for cause, cause or permit
the Corporation to become voluntarily or involuntarily dissolved
except under the following circumstances:

4.2.1 A determination through agreement of the parties
or through arbitration as provided in Section 4.1 that a
material breach of the Corporate Agreements has occurred and
has not been timely remedied.

4.2.2 After November 2, 1995, the dissolution of the
Corporation is in the best business interests of one party and
not to the material business detriment of the other party.
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4.2.3 BRMC may cause the dissolution of the Corporation
if under the Promissory Note attached hereto as Exhibit 4.2.3
("Note") the total indebtedness outstanding is Two Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($200,000) or more after November 2, 1995
and, based upon generally accepted accounting principles, the
Corporation 'is incapable of repayment of the Loan during a-
five (5) year period. The determination of whether the
Corporation is capable of repaying the Loan during a five year
period shall be made by assuming that the balance of that
certain $360,000.00 note dated r 1993
executed by the Corporation and payable to BRMC is zero. At
either party's request, the Corporation shall engage an
independent, mutually acceptable accounting firm to make a
binding determination of the amount due under the Note and/or
the Corporation's capability to repay the Loan.

4,2.4 BRMC may dissolve the Corporation if the Internal
Revenue Service requires a discontinuation of the Corporation
as a condition for the continuation of BRMC's tax exempt
status under IRC Section 501(c)(3) or legal counsel reasonably
acceptable to all parties is of the opinion that continued
operation of the Corporation contravenes the requirements of
IRC Section 501(c)(3).

4.2.5 Either party may dissolve the Corporation if
the Office of Inspector General of the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services, or any similar state or local
authority, requires the discontinuation of the Corporation,
as a condition to a decision by that authority not to impose
sanctions for violation of applicable statutes or
regulations.

4.2.6 At any time after January 31, 1994, and prior to
March 1, 1994 ("lst Dissolution Period"), either party may
elect to dissolve the Corporation and terminate the Corporate
Agreements. A party electing to dissolve the Corporation
under this Section 4.2.6 shall serve written notice on the
other party during the 1st Dissolution Period.

4.2.7 At anytime after January 31, 1995, and prior to
March 1,1985, ("2nd Dissolution Period") either party may’
elect to dissolve the Corporation and terminate the Corporate
Agreements if the Corporation has not executed Payor
Agreements (as defined in the Preferred Provider Agreements)
covering a minimum of one thousand (1000) employees and group
participants, not including (i) any employee of BRMC, ‘and (ii)
any spouse or dependent of any employee or group participant.
A party electing to dissolve the Corporation under this
Section 4.2.7 shall serve written notice on the other party
during the 2nd Dissolution Period.
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4.2.8 If either party shall contest the basis for
dissolution provided in Section 4.2.2, such party shall,
within ten (10) days after notice of a party's intention to
dissolve, provide written notice to the other party of its
intention to submit the matter to arbitration as provided in

Section 4.3.-

4.3 Arbitration Procedure. If either party shall
desire arbitration pursuant to Section 4.1.3 or Section
4.2.2, of this Agreement the arbitration shall. be conducted

as follows:

4.3.1 Within fifteen (15) days after notice that
a party intends to submit a matter to arbitration, BRMC
shall select an independent arbitrator and HPI shall
select an independent arbitrator and the arbitrators
shall select a third independent arbitrator. The
arbitrators may not be in any manner related to a party
or its officers, directors, stockholders, members or
agents and shall be selected from the 1list of
arbitrators available from the National Health Lawyers
Association Alternative Dispute Resolution Service or
successor thereto.

4.3.2 The arbitrators shall conduct a hearing in
accordance with the hearing procedure as set forth in
Exhibit 4.3 ("Hearing").

4.3.3 Upon completion of the Hearing, the
arbitrators, by a majority vote, shall select either
the position of BRMC or the position of HPI.

4.3.4 The arbitration shall be binding on the
parties hereto as to arbitrable issues pursuant to
Section 29-5-302 of the Uniform Arbitration Act of the
State of Tennessee.

4.3.5 BRMC and HPI shall continue to perform all
obligations pursuant to the Corporate Agreements during
the arbitration provided in this Agreement.

5. Obligation to Make Subsequent Capital Contributions.

5.1 Capital Contribution. On the 15th day of each month
through October 15, 1995, each party shall contribute additional
capital to the Corporation, in an amount necessary ‘for the
Corporation to pay its then current obligations other than its
obligation under Section 3.3 of the Preferred Provider Agreement
between the Corporation and HPI.
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5.2 Reduction of Obligation in Certain Cases. The obligation

' of each party under Section 5.1 in any month to make a capital

contribution shall be reduced to the extent that HPI's obligatlon
exceeds the excess of

(i) the cash and cash equivalents of HPI on hand as of the
15th day of such month, taking into account as cash the
amount received by HPI from the Corporation for that
month under Section 3.3 of the Preferred Provider
Agreement dated , 1993 between HPI and the

Corporation, over

(11) $5,000

6. Remedies. Remedies at law may be inadequate and the parties
shall be entitled to equitable relief, including without
limitation, injunctive relief, specific performance or other
equitable remedies in addition to all other remedies provided
hereunder or available to the parties at law or equity. No remedy
made available by any of the provisions of this Agreement is
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other
remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity or by statute or otherwise.

7. Endorsement of Stock Certificates. All certificates of stock
of the Corporation, now or hereafter issued, shall be endorsed with
the following legend:

"NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the shares of stock represented

by this Certificate are subject to the terms of the -
STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT dated (date) , a copy of
which is on file at the office of the Corporation, and any
transfer of the within shares shall be void, unless said
transfer or assignment is in compliance with said Agreement."

8 Miscellaneous Provisions

8.1 Notices. All notices shall be in writing and personally
delivered or by fax, or sent by certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the parties at the last
address indicated on the records of the Corporation, or to any
other address specified in writing by such party. All notices
shall be effective upon receipt.

8.2 Entire Aqreement. This Agreement represents the. entire
agreement and understanding of the parties hereto. This Agreement
supersedes any and all other agreements with respect to the subject
matter hereof. This Agreement may be amended only in writing by
the parties hereto.
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B.3 Assignment. Except as otherwise specifically provided
herein, this Agreement may not be assigned without the express
written consent of the parties hereto.

8.4 Benefits. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and
shall inure to . the benefit of, the parties hereto and their
regspective heirs, executors, legal representatives, successors and

assigns.

8.5 Counterparts. This Agreement may be _executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original and all of which taken together shall constitute a single
instrument. '

8.6 Conflict of Laws. This Agreement shall be governed by
the laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to its
conflicts of law provisions.

8.7 New Stockholders. The Corporation shall not dssue or
sell shares of Stock to any person or entity not already a party to
this Agreement unless, contemporaneously with the issuance of the
shares, such person agrees to become a party to this Agreement by .
the execution of an Addendum Agreement in the form attached hereto
as Exhibit 8.7, which Addendum Agreement shall be binding and grant
the benefits of this Agreement as though such party were an
original party hereto. ~

8.8 Termination. This Agreement shall terminate
automatically upon the bankruptcy or voluntary dissolution of the
Corporation, or upon the occurrence of any event that reduces the
number of Stockholders to one (1). This Agreement may also be:
terminated by an instrument in writing signed by all those who are
parties to this Agreement at the time of the signing of such
instrument.

8.9 Attorneys Fees. In the event of any action or
arbitration proceedings to enforce any provision of this Agreement
or to secure or preserve the rights of any party against any other
party to any property which is the subject of this Agreement, the
Prevailing party will be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys
fees, court costs and expenses or arbitration and litigation
expended in the prosecution or defense thereof.

8.10 Waiver. A party's forbearance in the enforcement of any
right or remedy under this Agreement shall not be a waiver thereof.
A waiver of any right or remedy as to one event or circumstance
shall not be a continuous or future waiver. This Agreement may not
be amended merely by the course of dealing between the parties.
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pe executed as of the date indicated herein.

BRISTOL HEALTHCARE NETWORK, INC.

By: - Date:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to

Title:

STOCKHOLDERS

BRISTOL MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, INC.,
BRISTOL REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

By: Date:

d.b.a.

Title:

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

By: ' Date:

Title:
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PREFERRED PROVIDER AGREEMEN_T‘
, between '
HIGHLANDS WELLMONT HEALTH NETWORK,, INC.
and
HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC, -

. | 2 :
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 2 J ‘day of ZZ'_/(/(Z , 1998, by and

between Highlands Wellmont Health Network, Inc., (“Network™), and Highlands Physicians,
Inc. (“Highlands™). '

RECITALS

. WHEREAS, Network manages and markets a preferred provider health care, network .
for the use of Payors who desire to implement this network for their Eligible Persons.

WHEREAS, Network consists of health care providers and facilities who have agreed
to provide Covered Services to Eligible Persons pursuant to Payor Agreements; and

WHEREAS, Network desires to enterinto this Agreement with Highlands to arrange for
services of providers for the provision of Covered Services to Eligible Persons.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants herein
contained, and for the mutual reliance of the parties, it is mutually agreed by and between the
parties hereto as follows:

ARTICLEI
DEFINTIONS

1.1 “Eligible Person” means any person eligible to receive Covered Services under a

Plan. .

R

1.2 “Covered Services” means health care services the expense of which is paid or -
reimbursed pursuant to a Plan.

” [13

1.3 “Credentialing Criteria”. Credentialing Criteria” means the criteria established by
Highlands on behalf of Network for the credentialing and recredentialing of Participating
Providers other than institutions. The existing Credentialing Criteria are set forth in Exhibit 1.3.

1.4 “Payor” means the purchaser of Covered Services on behalf of Eligible Persons.

1.5 Payor Agreement” means an agreement, directly or indirectly, between Network and
a Payor for access to the Network’s Participating Providers.

1.6 “Maximum Benefit Schedule” means a schedule of maximum reimbursement
amounts pursuant to which the Participating Providers shall render the Covered Services. The

Maximum benefit Schedule shall be promulgated by Network and subject to the agreement of
Highlands.
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1.7 “Participating Provider” means a non-institutional health care provider who has
entered into a Participating Provider Agreement with Highlands. During the term of this
Agreement, Network shall exclusively use Participating Providers of Highlands as its non-
institutional health care providets.

1.8 “Plan” means those individual and group health benefit contracts or plans of a Payor
which respect to which services are to be provided under this Agreement.

1.9 “Utilization Management Program” means either the utilization managemeént
program established, administered, and/or subcontracted by Network or the utilization
management program required by a Payor. '

ARTICLE II
OBLIGATIONS OF HIGHLANDS

2.1 Highlands Participating Provider Agreement. Highlands warrants and represents -
that each Highlands provider subject to this Agreement has executed the Participating Provider

Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 2.1 (“Participating Provider Agreement”). Highlands shall
cause each provider executing a Participating Provider Agreement to fulfill the obligations of the
“Provider” under the Participating Provider Agreement on behalf of Network. Except as
provided under Section 2.3 of this Agreement, Network shall be deemed a “Payor” pursuant to
the Participating Provider Agreement. In all cases Highlands shall exercise its rights and perform
its obligations under each Participating Provider Agreement in a manner consistent with the

- rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement.

2.2 Recruitment of Participating Provider.

2.2.1 Highlands shall use best efforts to: (1) recruit a sufficient number of
Participating Providers to enable Network to market Network to Payors to obtain Payor
Agreements; and (ii) recruit Providers who agree to a competitive maximum benefit
schedule to enable Network to market Network to Payors to obtain Payor Agreements;
and (iii) maintain a sufficient number of Participating Providers to enable Network to
fulfill its obligations under existing Payor Agreements.

2.2.2 Highlands shall establish an “Associate Member” category for non-owner
and non-physician members. Credentialled Associate Members shall participate in
Network upon acceptance by Highlands and the execution of a Participating Provider
Agreement. :

( 2.2.3 Highlands shall be the exclusive credentialing @nd recredentialing agent of
Network for non-institutional providers during the term of the Agreement,

2.3 Responsibility for Compensation. Payors and/or Eligible Persons shall have the full
and final liability for payment of claims for Covered Services rendered pursuant to the applicable
Plan and neither Network, Highlands nor any affiliate of either, is or shall be an insurer,
administrator, guarantor, or underwriter of such Payor’s or Eligible Persons’ responsibility or
liability of any Payor to provide benefits under a Plan. '
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2.4 Suits and Other Actions. Highlands shall give prompt written notice to Network
whenever Highlands becomes aware that an Eligible Person or other person has filed a claim or
given written notice of intent to commence any suit or other action against Participating '
Provider, Highlands, or Network in connection with this Agreement. '

2.5 Name, Symbols and Service Marks. Network or Payor may use Highlands’ name
and each Participating Provider’s name, office address, telephone number, and description of
services in any director of Participating Providers or other such listings distributed by Network.
Participating Providers may use the name, symbols, trademarks, and service marks to advertise
their participation in the Network.

2.6 Grievance Procedures. Highlands shall cause each Pérticipating Provider to
cooperate with Network or its designee in complying with a resolution mechanism for
complaints initiated by Payors or Eligible Persons. ,

2.7 Absolute Discretion. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall interfere with or in
any way alter any physician-patient relationship and each provider shall have the sole
responsibility for the care and treatment of Eligible Persons under his/her care. Nothing
contained herein shall grant Network or Highlands or any party performing utilization
management the right to govem the level of care of a patient. Utilization management decisions
shall only effect reimbursement of a provider for services rendered and shall not limit the
performance of the services of a provider or effect a provider’s ;\)rofessional judgment.

2.8 Network Right to Enforce Participating Provider Agreements. Network shall be a
third party beneficiary of the Participating Provider Agreement; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,
Network shall not enforce the Participating Provider Agreement of any Provider (as defined
therein) without providing Highlands with notice and fifteen (15) days in which to cause the
Participating Provider to perform his/her obligations under the Participating Provider
Agreement.

ARTICLE III
OBLIGATIONS OF NETWORK

3.1 Services. Network shall (i ) endeavor to enter into Payor Agreements on behalf of
Participating Providers; (ii) implement and maintain systems to respond to Payor, Eligible
Persons and Participating Provider requests for information, and (iii) provide to Participating
Providers, information and/or clarification concerning the policies of the operation of Plans.

3.2 Standard Termé and Maximum Benefit Schedule. Network shall use best efforts to
obtain agreements by Payors to the Standard Terms as provided in Exhibit 2.7 of the
Participating Provider Agreement (“Standard Terms™) and the Maximum Benefit Schedule.

3.2.1 Participating Providers shall provide Medically Appropriate Covered
Services (as defined in the Participating Provider Agreement) to Eligible Persons of each
Payor executing a Payor Agreement with Network or revising an existing Payor
Agreement if the standard terms and maximum benefit schedule are substantially similar
to the Standard Terms and the Maximum Benefit Schedule.

3.2.2 If an additional Payor executes a Payor Agreement with Network or an
existing Payor revises a Payor Agreement and Section 3.2.1 applies, Network shall

P-44




)

)

O

provide notice to Highlands of the identity of the Payor and any other information
necessary for Participating Providers to fulfill their obligations under the Participating
Provider Agreement. :

3.3 Compensation to Highlands. As compensation for the services listed in Exhibit 3.3
attached hereto and made part hereof, Network shall pay to Highlands Nineteen Thousand, Four
Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($19,450.00) per month for a period of twenty-four (24) months, with
the first payment due and payable on March 15, 1998 and continuing on the 15* of each month
thereafter with the final payment due and payable on March 15, 2000.

3.4 Suits and Other Actions. Network shall use its best efforts to provide written notice
to Highlands of any written complaints received from Eligible Persons or written notice received
of intent to commence a suit or other action against Participating Providers in connection with
professional services.

3.5 Network Access Fees. Network may require Payors in a Payor Agreement to pay a
Network access fee each month to Network for Eligible Persons under a Plan of a Payor subject
to this Agreement. '

ARTICLE IV
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

4.1 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information.

4.1.1 Each party acknowledges that (i-) due to the nature of this Agreement, each
party shall have access to and acquire Confidential Information, as defined in Section
5.1.3, related to the business and operations of the other parties; (ii) all Confidential
Information of a party is solely the property of that party and constitutes confidential and
proprietary information; (iii) the disclosure of Confidential Information to third parties
would cause substantial loss to the goodwill of the other party; (iv) disclosure of
Confidential Information to a party shall be made due to the position of trust and
confidence that the party shall occupy and due to this Agreement and the restrictions
contained herein; (v) disclosure of Confidential Information would cause irreparable
harm; and (vi) the restrictions imposed upon the party would not hamper such parties in
their business operations.

4.1.2 In consideration of the acknowledgment set forth in Section 5.1.1 and in
consideration for this Agreement, the parties and their officers, directors, employees,
agents, successors and assigns shall hold any and all Confidential Information in the -
strictest confidence as a fiduciary, and shall not, voluntarily or involuntarily, sell,
transfer, publish, disclose, display or otherwise make available to others any portion of
the Confidential Information without the express written consent of the other party. Each
party shall use their best efforts to protect the Confidential Information consistent with
the manner in which they protect their own confidential business information.

4.1.3 “Confidential Information” shall mean information of a party that shall be
subject to patent, copyright, trademark, trade name or service mark protection, or
described as confidential by a party, or not otherwise in the public domain and related to
the business and operations of a party, including, without limitation, this Agreement and
the exhibits hereto, the Credentialing Criteria, the provider network of each party,
information relating to earnings, volume of business, methods, systems, practices or
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plans of a party, and all similar information of any kind or nature whatsoever which is
known only to persons having a fiduciary or confidential relationship with a party.

4.2 Medical Records. The parties hereto shall maintain the confidentiality of any and all
medical records which shall be in their possession and control, and such information shall only
be released or disseminated pursuant to the valid authorization of the patient whose medical
condition is reflected in such medical records or as shall be otherwise permitted under applicable
law.

4.3 Legal Restrictions. Neither party hereto shall be in default for failure to supply:
information which such party, in good faith, believes cannot be supplied due to prevailing law, or
for supplying information which such party, in good faith, believes is required to be supplied due
to prevailing law. ‘

ARTICLE V
TERMINATION

5.1 Termination, This Agreement shall commence on March 15, 1998 and continue
indefinitely unless terminated by mutual agreement of the parties or as otherwise provided in the
Stockholders Agreement by and between nghlands and Wellmont Health System, a Tennessee
corporation, of even date herewith.

Additionally, Highlands may terminate this Agreement on written notice to Network
given during any “termination window”, and any such termination shall be effective 30 days
following receipt of such notice. For this purpose, the term “termination window” means the 30
day period beginning March 15, 2000, and the thirty day period beginning March 15th of each
year beginning in 2002.

5.2 Insolvency. This Agreement may be terminated immediately by either party by

- giving written notice of such termination to the other party if the Network or Highlands shall be

adjudicated bankrupt, become insolvent, have a receiver of its assets or property appointed or
make a general assignment for the benefit of credltors or institute or cause to be instituted any
proceeding in bankruptcy. :

5.3 Qbligations After Termination. Following the effective date of termination of this
Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall be of no further force or effect, except that
each party to this Agreement shall remain liable for any obligations or liabilities arising from
activities carried on by such party prior to the effective date of termination, and the provisions
hereof relating to confidentiality of and access to medical records, proprietary information,
compensation, continuation of services shall survive termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI
MISCELLANEOUS

. 6.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and all attachments and other documents
furnished pursuant to this Agreement and expressly made a part hereof shall constitute the entire
agreement relating to the subject matter hereof between the parties.

6.2 Amendments. No amendments to this Agreement shall be valid unless it is in
writing and signed by an authorized representative of both parties.
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6.3 Governing Law/Severability. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the

‘State of Tennessee and applicable federal laws and regulations. If any provision of this

Agreement is held to be invalid, void or unenfbrceéble, the remaining provisions shall
nevertheless continue in full force and effect.

6.4 Third Party Beneficiaries. The obligations of each party to this Agreement shall
inure solely to the benefit of the other party, and no Beneficiary or other person or entity shall be
a third party beneficiary of this Agreement.

6.5 Notices. Any notice or other communication made in writing shall be deemed to
have been received by the party to whom it is addressed on the date indicated on the certified
mail return receipt if sent by certified mail, or one (1) business day after delivered to an
overnight delivery service if sent by overnight delivery, and addressed as follows:

If to Network:
Highlands Wellmont Health Network
One Medical Park Blvd.
Bristol, Tennessee 37620
Telecopy Number (423) 844-4184

If to Highlands or a Participating Physician:
Highlands Physicians, Inc.
2550 E. Stone Drive
Suite 220, Mailbox 8
Kingsport, TN 37660
Telecopy Number (423) 392-0006

Highlands shall give written notice to Network of any change in address and telephone number
of Highlands or a Participating Provider. Highlands shall give written notice to Network upon
termination of any Participating Provider’s status as a Participating Provider.

6.6 Assignment/Subcontracting. This Agreement may not be assigned by Network,
Highlands, or any Participating Provider without prior written consent of Network and
Highlands, and any assignment attempted without such prior consent shall be null and void.
However, it is expressly agreed that Network may contract with other entities in order to meet its
obligations under this Agreement and that Network may, directly or indirectly, enter into Payor

‘Agreements.

6.7 Independent Contractors. None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to
create, nor shall be deemed or construed to create, any relationship between Network and
Highlands other than that of independent entities contracting with each other hereunder solely for
the purpose of effecting the provisions of this Agreement. Neither of the parties hereto, nor any
of their respective employees, contractors or agents, shall be construed to be the agent, partner,
co-venturer, employee, or representative of the other.

6.8 Attorney Fees. In the event of any action or arbitration proceedings to enforce any
provision of this Agreement or to secure or preserve the rights of any party against any other

‘party to any property which is the subject of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled

to recover reasonable attorney fees, court costs and expenses or arbitration and litigation
expended in the prosecution or defense thereof.
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6.9 Waiver. A party’s forbearance in the enforcement of any right or remedy under this
Agreement shall not be a waiver thereof. A waiver of any right or remedy as to one event or
circumstance shall not be a waiver as to any other event or circumstance. This Agreement may
not be amended merely by the course of dealing between the parties.

The parties acknowledge that they have entered into this Agreement as 'of the day and year first
above written. :

HIGHLANDS WELLMONT HEALZAl NETWORK, INC. HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
4 d N
By: : ' By: £, plhe 7 W

044/;//. Worsshi - tiowerers A1z

Print Name Print Name
Title___ . Jovoder Titleém@ag;ﬁa
Date: %/4 ; P Date: 3;/5'{7’?2’
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EXHIBIT 1.3

CREDENTIALING CRITERIA

The Credentialing Criteria of Highlands are as follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL CREDENTIALS (TIER I)

1.1 Provider is either (i) a person. with an unrestricted
license or other authorization to practice in the state of
location; or (ii) a partnership, professional service corporation
or other entity, all of the partners, shareholders, members and
provider employees of which have an unrestricted license or other
necessary authorization to practice in the state of location. A
copy of Provider’s current valid license shall be provided with
Provider’s application to Highlands (“Appllcatlon")

1.2 Provider, where applicable, has active full and
unrestricted clinical and admitting privileges in Provider’s
spec1alty at a minimum of one (1) Partlclpatlng Provider facility
("Part1c1pat1ng Facility") or if Provider is a member of a non-
admitting specialty, maintain full and unrestricted privileges
approprlate to such specialty at a Participating Facility.
Provider shall maintain each Participating Fac111ty and other
haspital, medical or profe551onal staff app01ntment and all
clinical and admitting privileges granted in connection therewith
that Provider possessed as of the Effective Date of Provider’s
Participating Provider Agreement. A letter from each
Participating Facility stating the Provider has such clinical
privileges shall be provided with the Application.

1.3 Provider shall, if permitted under Provider’s license,
have and maintain unrestricted prescribing privileges. A copy of
Provider’s current DEA certification and state drug registration
("DPS"), if applicable, shall be provided with the Application.

1.4 Provider, where applicable, has not and shall not (i)
have any hospital appointment or privileges reduced, limited,
suspended or terminated or been placed on probation by any
hospital at which Provider has had a medical c: professional
staff app01ntment or privileges; (ii) been restricted from
receiving payments from Medicare, Medicaid or any other third
party reimbursement programs; (iii) been subject to disc;plinary
action by any state or local medical society, specialty society,
state board of medical examiners or the Drug Enforcement Agency;
or (iv) been subject to sanctions of any kXind whatsoever by any
person or entity for improper prescribing procedures or actions;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that, -in the discretion of Highlands, the
foregoing shall not apply to suspensions related to a reasonable.
delay in completing medical records. Any such actions shall be
reported by Provider on the Application.
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.1.5 Provider has not and shall not have been disciplined,
suspended or terminated from a PPO, HMO or other managed care
organization.

1.6 Provider has not been convicted of a felony.
1.7 Provider is in good general health.

1.7.1 Provider shall report on the Application any
physical or mental problems that may affect Provider’s
ability to practlce Provider’s profession. If Provider has
such disabilities the Provider shall provide, with the
Appllcatlon, a statement from Provider’s personal physician
stating that the disabilities shall not interfere with the
Prov1der s ability to provide hlgh quallty medical care.

1.7.2 Prov1der shall certlfy on the Application that
Provider does not have a history of and is not presently
abusing drugs or alcohol. A Provider with a hlstory of drug
or alcohol abuse may be considered for membershlp in
Highlands, within the sole discretion of Highlands, if such
Provider’s personal physician prov1des a statement that
Provider has been rehabllltated and is continuing with the
rehab llltatlcn program .

1.7.3 Provider shall certify on the Appllcatlon that
Provider does not have any communicable and/or chronic
infectious disease that may be potential danger to patients.

1.7.4 Highlands shall have sole discretion in the
determination of the impact of the health status of Provider’
for purposes of credentialing.

1.8 Provider shall purchase and maintain, at the sole cost
and expense of Provider, policies of professional liability
insurance in amounts as required by Highlands from time to time.
At the present time such insurance shall be a minimum of THREE

MILLION DOLLARS ($3,000,000,00)/THREE MILLION DOLLARS
- ($3,000,000.00). Provider shall authorize the insurance carrier
to issue to Highlands a certificate of insurance policies of
Provider upon the request of nghlands, and each such pollcy
shall contain an endorsement requiring the insurer to give »
Highlands not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of
any cancellation, termination or material altevation of such
- policy. Notwlthstandlng the foregoing, Provider shall provide
Highlands with notification within fifteen (15) days of any
cancellation, termination or material alteration of any such
insurance policies. Prior to the expiration or cancellation of
any such policy, Provider shall secure replacement of :such
insurance coverage upon the same terms, and shall furnish
Highlands with a certificate and endorsement as described herein.
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A copy of the issuing section of the policy reflectlng such
insurance shall be prov1ded with the Application.

1.9 Provider shall provide the following information on the
Application:

1.9.1 Details of any professional liability actions
that have resulted in adverse judgments or any financial
settlements.

1.9.2 Details of any pending professional llablllty
actions or claims or threatened claims wlth respect to
‘professional liability.

This information shall be reviewed by Highlands. The .
evaluation shall consider the frequency of such actlons, the
financial impact of such actions and the clinical circumstances
surrounding the alleged acts of malpractlce. nghlands is fully
cognizant of the current litigious conditions in the United
States and its evaluation shall consider the litigious climate as
part of the credentialing process. Providers shall not be
automatically disqualified from participation in Highlands due to
a history of judgments and/or settlements. Highlands shall have
sole discretion in the determination of the impact of this
information for purposes of credentialing.

1.10 Physician Providers shall be board certified in a
specialty recognized by the American Board of Medical Specialties
or other appropriate boards applicable to the specialty of
Provider in the sole discretion of Highlands. A copy of ,
Provider’s board certification or appropriation training shall
accompany the application. Expiration or re-certification dates
shall be indicated where applicable. Physician Providers who
have recently completed training and are board eligible, may be
considered for probationary membership pending board
certification; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,

1.10.1 1if a Provider shall fail to becone board
certified within five (5) years, the Participating Provider
Agreement of such Provider shall automatically terminate.

1.10.2 if a Provider is certified by a board that has
a requirement for mandatory recertification, such Provider
shall be required to satisfy the requirement for
recertification. If a Provider shall fail to become
recertified as reqliired, the Participating Provider
Agreement of such Provider shall be automatically
terminated. Providers recelVlng either tiaining or board
certification in or by a forelgn country/board may be
reviewed on an individual basis for consideration of
granting a waiver of the Credentialing Criteria.
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1.11 The Provider shall provide complete information with
respect to professional training which shall include, without
limitation, the following:

1.11.1 Undergraduate Education
1.11.2 Medical and/or Professional Education
1.11.3 Internship and Residency

1.11.4  Fellowships

1.11.5 Teaching/Faculty appointments

1.11.6 Professional publications '

1.11.7 References where required on the Applicatlon

The credentials of Providers shall only be acceptable if the
Provider’s practlce is limited to the specialty in which the
Provider has received training and Provider has completed an
acceptable residency program. - Highlands shall have the sole
discretion with respect to the determination of the impact of
this information for purposes of credentialing. Highlands
reserves the right to require specific formal training in new
procedures and/or technologies prior to credentialing,
recredentialing or, if applicable, recommending payment for
procedures.

1.12 Provider shall request the personal profile of
Provider from the National Practitioner Data Bank and attach a-
copy of the request to the Application. Upon receipt of the
profile, the Provider shall forward the original copy to
Highlands. If the profile has not been received by Highlands
within ninety (90) days of the date of the application, Provider
shall provide an acceptable explanation and request an extension
or the application shall be automatically terminated.

1.13 Provider shall, in the sole discretion of Highlands,
demonstrate a commitment to continuing medical education. The
attachment of a current Physician’s Recognition Award from the
American Medical Association shall satisfy this requirement. In
the absence of this Award, Provider shall attach to the
Application evidence of a minimum of fifty (50) hours of Category
I CME Credits within the previous two (2) year perlod
sat1sfactory to nghlands

1.14 Highlands shall utilize available data sources to
evaluate, where possible, the quality of care provided by the
applicant. Determination of ellglblllty, or lack thereof, of
Provider based on this information shall be in the sole
discretion of Highlands.

. 1.15 Applicant shall maintain approprlate medical records
and shall, subject to applicable law, prDVlde such records to
Highlands as deemed necessary by Highlands, in its sole
dlscretlon, for purposes of utilization management and/or quality
assessment,




0

L]

1.16 Applicant shall provide twenty-four (24) hour-a-day
coverage, seven (7) days a week by other Participating Providers
with training equivalent to the Provider. 1Individual exemptions
of this requirement may be granted for Providers for which there
are no local equlvalently trained Providers. Determinations of
equivalent training and the granting of any waiver of this
requirement shall be in the sole discretion of Highlands.

1.17 Provider shall: (i) properly maintain, calibrate and
license all diagnostic equipment in Provider’s offices; (ii)
maintain a formal guality control program for all office
diagnostic equipment; and (iii) allow diagnostic testing and
procedures to be performed and interpreted only by persons with
approprlate training and/or certification. _

1.18 Provider shall execute the appropriate release of
Highlands directing any and all entities.that may have
information with respect to the ability to practice high quality
medicine to prov1de such information to Highlands upon request.
Such entities 1nc1ude, without limitation, hospltals, medical
societies, state examining boards, Medicare intermediaries and

third party payors.

1.19 Highlands reserves the right to require independent
verification of any and all of the Credentialing Criteria and to.
perform site visits to the locations of Provider.

2. ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS NEEbS CRITERIA (TIER II)

- The Professional Credentials constitute the Credentialing
Criteria for the professional qualifications of Providers.
Providers qualifying under the Professional Credentials shall be
evaluated by Highlands to determine if such Provider fulfills the
Economic and Business Needs Criteria. The Economic and Business
Needs Criteria of Highlands regard the economic evaluation of the
Provider and a determination of the need for additional

Providers, additional specialties and/or additional geographical

representation:

2.1 Highlands shall utilize available data sources to
evaluate, where possible, the cost effectiveness of the patterns
of practice of a Provider. The evaluation factors may include,
without limitation: frequency of service; intensity of service;
average cost per DRG; average cost per encounter; usage of
anc1llary services; and a Provider’s charge patterns. A
significant differentiation by Provider in any of the parameters
subject to this evaluation may indicate a practice style and
philosophy incompatible with the business objectives of
Highlands. Highlands may determine, in its sole discretion, to
decline to execute a Participating Provider Agreement with any
Providers based upon this or any other information.
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2.2 Provider shall fully disclose to Highlands, any
ownership in any facility or service to which Provider may refer
Eligible Persons. Provider shall inform, in writing, Eligible
Persons of Provider’s ownership interest in any facility or
service prior to referring Eligible Persons. Provider shall not
be required to provide such disclosures with respect to services
integrated into the Provider’s office based practice and
available only to providers in such practice.

2.3 It is anticipated that the number of Providers
qualifying pursuant to the Professional Credentials shall exceed
the number of Providers required by Highlands. Therefore, a
Provider gualifying under the Professional Credentials shall be
evaluated under the Economic and Business Needs Criteria by
Highlands to determine if Provider’s participation enables
Highlands to better fulfill its business needs. The evaluation
shall include, without limitation: Provider’s specialty; the need
for a Provider in a SPElelC geographic area; the number of
Providers necessary to service the population; the relationship
of a Provider to other Participating Providers, and, unique
skills such as foreign language proficiency. Quallflcatlon under
the Economic and Business Needs Criteria shall be in the sole
discretion of Highlands. A qualifying Provider may become a
Participating Provider immediately or at a subsequent time as
Highlands expands its services, patients and/or service area.

2.4 From time to time, Highlands may, in its sole
discretion, to fulfill its business objectlves, offer
Participating Provider Agreements to Providers deemed to be
competent Providers who may not fulfill each aspect of the
Credentlallng Criteria. Input may be,sought from Payors. For
example, if nghlands required a Prov1der with a specific
specialty or a specific location and a board certified Provider
was unavallable, the requirement for board certification may be

_ waived in that location for a particular Provider otherwise

qualified.

2.5 It is anticipated that, from time to time, nghlands
may adopt various additional Economlc and Business. Needs Criteria

and/or performance standards. The adoption of additional
Economic and Business Needs Criteria and performance standards
shall be at the sole discretion of Highlands.
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EXHIBIT 2.1

1957 RESTATED

PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT

by and between

HIGHLANDS -PHYSICIANS, INC.

and

(NAME OF PROVIDER)
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1997 REgTAigD _
PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made

. and entered into as of the Effective Date set forth on the

signature page of this Agreement, by and between HIGHLANDS
PHYSICIANS, INC., a Delaware corporation ("Highlands"), and the
person or entity whose name is listed under the heading
“provider" on the signature page of this Agreement ("Provider").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Provider is either (i) an individual health care
provider duly licensed, certified, accredited or otherwise duly
authorized to practice in the states of practice; or (ii) a
partnership, professional service corporation or other entity
duly organized and existing under and pursuant to the laws of the
states of practice, the partners, shareholders, members and
professional provider employees of which (together the
“bProvider") are all duly authorized to practice in the states of .

practice; and

WHEREAS, Highlands desires to obtain quality, cost efficient
health care services from selected health care providers and to
negotiate agreements with purchasers of such services; and

WHEREAS, Highlands desires to engage Provider to furnish
such services and Provider desires to furnish such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the
mutual promises and covenants herein contained and for other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Preamble and Recitals

The preamble and recitals hereinabove set forth are
hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement.

]

2. efinit s

2.1 Plans. “Plans" means individual and group health
benefit contracts,_workers compensation programs, policies of

\
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health insurance, policies of automobile insurance, or other
plans of a Payor which shall be subject to this Agreement.

2.2 Eligible Persons. "Eligible Persons" means the persons
entitled to receive the Covered Services pursuant to a Plan.

2.3 Covered Sexrvices. "Covered Services" means the health
care services provided pursuant to a Plan.

‘ 2.4 Participating Provider. ‘"Participating Provider" means
those health care providers, including, without limitation,
physicians, facilities, ancillary health care facilities and
ancillary health care providers, who have directly, or indirectly
through Highlands agreements with other networks ("Leased
Networks"), entered into an agreement with Highlands to perform

the Covered Services.

2.5 Payor. "Payor" means' the party responsible for the
actual payment for Covered Services rendered to Eligible Persons
that has, directly or indirectly, entered into a Payor Agreement
with Highlands. Payors "indirectly" entering into Payor
Agreements with Highlands shall include, without limitation,
payors of entities leasing the Highlands Network ("Network

Lessee') .

2.6 ‘Payor Adreement. "Payor Agreement" means an agreement
with a Payor directly, or indirectly with a Network Lessee,
pursuant to which Participating Providers shall provide the

Covered Services.

2.7 Standard Terms. 'gtandard Terms" means the terms set

forth in EXHIBIT 2.7.

2.8 Fee Schedule. "Fee Schedule" means a schedule of ‘
maximum reimbursement amounts pursuant to which a Payor shall pay
Participating Providers to provide Covered Services.

Descriptions of current fee schedules pertaining to Provider are

set forth in EXHIBIT 2.8.

2.9 ilization . a gram. "Utilization
Management Program" means either the utilization management
program established, administered and/or subcontracted by
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Highlands or the Utilization Management Program required by an
entity or a Payor in a Payor Agreement.

2.10 Credentialing Criteria. “Credentialing Criteria" means

the criteria established by Highlands for the credentialing and
recredentialing of Participating Providers which may be amended
from time to time by Highlands in its sole discretion. The
Credentialing Criteria pertaining to Provider are set forth in

XHIBIT 2.10.

5.11 provider Manual. The "Provider Manual" means the
Highlands manual of rules, regulations, policies and procedures

of Highlands as provided to Provider.

2.12 Medically Appropriate.

2.12.1 “"Medically Appropriate" or "Medical
Appropriateness" means services or supplies which, under the
provisions of this Agreement, are determined to be: (i)
appropriate and necessary for the symptoms, diagnosis or
treatment of the injury or disease; (ii) provided for the
diagnosis or direct care and treatment of the injury or
disease; (iii) preventative services as provided in a Plan;
(iv) within standards of good medical practice within the
organized medical community; (v) not primarily for the
convenience of the Eligible Person or of any provider
providing Covered Services to the Eligible Person; (vi) an
appropriate supply or level of service needed to provide
safe and adequate care; (vii) within the scope of the
medical specialty education and training of a provider; and
(viii) provided in a setting consistent with the required

level of care.

2.12.2 Medically Appropriate services may not be
Covered Services under a Plan.

2.12.3 A Plan may provide a different definition of
Medical Appropriateness. If the definition of Medical
Appropriateness shall conflict with the definition in a
Plan, the definition in a Plan shall control.

2.13 Participating Provider Review Procedure. "Review

Procedure" means the procedure whereby a Participating Provider
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may request a reconsideration of (i) the termination of this
Agreement by Highlands; or (ii) a suspension as a Participating
Provider. '

3. erms and Fee Schedul
3.1 Standard Terms and Fee Schedule.

3.1.1 Provider accepts and is hereby bound by the
Standard Terms and the Fee Schedule.

3.1.2 Provider shall provide Medically Appropriate
Covered Services to Eligible Persons of each Payor executing
a Payor Agreement with Highlands or revising an existing
Payor Agreement if the terms and fee schedules are .
substantially similar to the Standard Terms and the Fee
Schedule.

3.1.3 If an additional Payor executes a Payor
Agreement with Highlands or an existing Payor revises a
Payor Agreement -and Section 3.1.2 applies, Highlands shall
provide notice to Provider of the identity of the Payor and
any other information necessary for Provider to fulfill the
obligations of Provider hereunder.

3.2 Modification of Standard Terms and Fee Schedule.

3.2.1 During the term of this Agreement, Highlands may
(i) modify or create new Standard Terms or a new Fee '
Schedule; or (ii) create separate terms and Fee Schedules
for various Highlands programs.

3.2.2 Highlands shall submit the modified, created or
negotiated terms and/or Fee Schedules (together -
"Modifications") to Provider. Provider shall have the
option to reject the Modifications by serving written notice
of such rejection upon Highlands within forty-£five (45) days
of the effective date of the notice from Highlands.

3.2.3 Failure to provide notice of rejection within
such forty-five (45) day period shall constitute acceptance
by Provider, and-the Modifications shall either replace the
existing Standard Terms and/or Fee Schedule or become
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additional Standard Terms or Fee Schedules for an Highlahds
program or for an individual Payor, as applicable.

3.2.4 If Provider rejects the Modifications for an
Highlands program or Modifications which have been
negotiated with an individual Payor, Provider shall not be
required to provide Covered Services to Eligible Persons in
such Highlands program or for such Payor, as applicable.

3.2.5 If Provider rejects the Modifications, Highlands
shall have the option to (i) implement the Modifications
without inclusion of Provider; (ii) withdraw the
Modifications; or (iii) terminate this Agreement in
accordance with Section 7.3.3. ‘

4. Obligations of Highlands

4.1 Administration. Highlands shall administer and, in its
sole discretion, determine the composition of the network of
Participating Providers of Highlands.

4.2 Marketing and Promotion. Highlands shall, within its
discretion:

4.2.1 market, advertise and actively promote
Highlands; and

4.2.2 solicit Payor Agreements from Payors offering
reasonable levels of reimbursement and Plans that may
include financial incentives or other programs to encourage
Eligible Persons to use Participating Providers;

4.2.3 Payors shall be required to comply with the
terms of this Agreement and shall not be required to
establish financial incentives or other programs to
encourade Eligible Persons to use Participating Providers.

4.3 Assistance. To permit Highlands to perform its
obligations pursuant to this Agreement, Provider shall assist
Highlands in marketing, advertising and promotion. Highlands
shall use its best efforts to furnish Provider with appropriate
materials to suppart such efforts.
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4.4 Information. Highlands shall use its best efforts to
(i) obtain current information from each Payor on a timely basis
with regard to the identity of Payors and/or Eligible Persons;
and (ii) maintain and disseminate such information to the
Participating Providers as Highlands shall, within its sole
- discretion, deem appropriate to keep each Participating Provider
reasonably informed as to the identity of the Eligible Persons.

4.5 iabilit or Claims, Decisions and Fees. Highlands

shall not be responsible or liable for any claims decisions or
for the payment of any claims submitted by Provider .for
furnishing Covered Services or non-Covered Services to Eligible

Persons. Highlands shall not be an insurer, guarantor or
underwriter of the responsibility or liability of any Payor to

provide benefits pursuant to any Plan.

5. Obligations_of Provider

S.1 Provider Standards. Provider hereby warrants and

represents that:

5.1.1 Provider is and, at all times during this

Agreement, shall be in compliance with the Credentialing

Criteria; and

5.1.2 the information contained in the application of
Provider for membership in Highlands is true and correct in
all respects and does not fail to state a material fact '
necessary to make the statements therein not misleading.

5.2 Provider Services and Obligations. Provider shallr

5.2.1 provide Medically Appropriate Covered Services
to Eligible Persons for which Provider is qualified and
~which Provider customarily furnishes to the general public
from the office locations indicated on the signature page of
this Agreement ("Provider's Offices"). Services rendered
from sites not listed as Provider's Offices shall be
considered rendered by Provider pursuant to this Agreement;

and

P-61




()

5.2.1 perform the Covered Services pursuant to the
standards of good medical practice within the organized
medical community; and :

5.2.2 treat Eligible Persons in all respects no less
favorably than Provider treats all other patients, and
determine whether or not to accept Eligible Persons for
treatment or terminate the treatment of Eligible Persons

only on the basis of the same criteria employed by Provider

to make such determinations in‘connection with all other
patients; and

5.2.3 obtain from Eligible Persons a written
assignment of benefits and an authorization to release
medical records, in a form approved by Highlands, cooperate
and comply with the billing and other procedures established
by Highlands or a Payor and set forth in the Provider Manual
or in other written communications from Highlands; and

§.2.4 submit all claims for Covered Services as
provided in the Provider Manual and pursuant to the Standard
Terms. Provider shall accept as full payment from each
Payor for the Covered Services deemed Medically Appropriate
pursuant to the Utilization Management Program the lesser of
charges customarily charged to other patients or the
consideration provided in the Fee Schedule. Provider hereby
waives any amounts from any Payor and any Eligible Person
(i) in excess of the fees customarily charged to other
patients or the amounts provided in the Fee Schedule; and
(ii). any amount from any Payor or Eligible Person for.
services which have been deemed not to be Medically
Appropriate by the Utilization Management Program. Provider
hereby acknowledges that payment for Covered Services
furnished to Eligible Persons shall be due solely from a
Payor and such Eligible Persons; and

5.2.5 subject to Section 6.3, provide any Payor and
Highlands, its agents and any utilization management company
engaged by Highlands with access, upon reasonable notice
during normal business hours, to the appropriate records and

. information regarding Covered Services rendered to Eligible

Persons for inspection and copying in such a manner as may
be reasonably requested by Highlands or a utilization
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management company to permit Highlands or a utilization
management company to implement the Utilization Management -
Program and perform its administrative obligations set forth
herein and to verify claims for Covered Services submitted
by Provider; and

5.2.6 within the dictates of good practice, and in the
best interest of Eligible Persons under Provider's care,
refer such Eligible Persons requiring referral to other
Participating Providers except in an emergency; PROVIDED,
HOWEVER, (i) if Provider is unable or unwilling to refer an
Eligible Person to another Participating Provider, Provider
shall contact Highlands prior to any referral to a _non-
Participating Provider; and (ii) if Provider shall refer
Eligible Persons to non-Participating Providers, Provider
shall, prior to such referral, obtain the written
authorization of the Eligible Person, which authorization
shall include an acknowledgement by the Eligible Person that
referred provider is not a Participating Provider and that
the performance of services by the referred provider may
result in higher charges than if, such services were
performed by a Participating Provider;

5.2.7 comply with the rules, regulations, policies and
procedures as enacted by Highlands from time to time and
summarized in the Provider Manual, comply with the
Utilization Management Program, participate in and observe
the protocols of the Utilization Management Program, submit
to performance reviews in conjunction therewith and be bound
by the payment decisions issued pursuant to the Utilization

Management Program; and

5.2.8 within ten (10) days of occurrence, notify
Highlands and provide Highlands with all information with
respect, to any disciplinary action against Provider or any
malpractice actions, judgments or settlements of Provider.
Provider hereby authorizes any Hospital, any governmental
agency or professional licensing, accrediting or certifying
agency, or any other person or entity to release to
Highlands any information pertaining to any such matters and
pertaining to the Credentialing Criteria; and
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5.2.9 consent to .the inspection by Highlands, Network
Lessees, independent credentialing entities, 1ndependent
accreditation entities, their agents and their _
representatives of the contents of the credentialing file of
Provider and all documents that may be material to an
evaluation of qualifications and competence of Provider and
consent to the release of such information to such parties.
Provider hereby releases from liability Highlands, Network
Lessees, their respective officers, directors, employees and
agents from their acts performed and statements made, in
good faith and without malice, in connection with evaluating
the credentials and qualifications of Provider. Provider
hereby releases from liability Highlands, Network Lessees

~and any and all individuals who provide information to

Highlands, Network Lessees, their medical directors and
their representatives and agents, in good faith and without
malice, concerning the Credentialing Criteria, Provider's
disciplinary actions, professional competence, background,
experience, ethics, character, utilization practice
patterns, health status and other qualifications to be a
Participating Provider; and

5.2.10 give written notice to Highlands within ten
(10) days if the practice of Provider shall add a partner,
shareholder, member or professional provider employee or if
Provider shall cease to fulfill the Credentialing Criteria.

5.3 Fees.

5.3.1 As compensation for the services provided by
Highlands pursuant to this Agreement Provider shall, upon
the execution of this Agreement, pay to Highlands a
credentialing fee in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars
($_500.00 ) and an annual fee of N/A
($ ) ("Annual Fee").

5.3.2 Highlands, by resolution of the Highlands Board
of Directors, shall have the authority to (i) deduct
reasonable administrative fees from payments paid by Payors
due to Provider or require provider to pay such
administrative fees to Highlands; (ii) deduct reasonable
administrative fees from capitation payments paid to
Highlands by Payors; and (iii) negotiate reasonable
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administrative fees with Payors for direct payments to
Highlands.

5.3.3 During the term of this Agreement, Highlands may
amend the Annual Fee by providing at least thirty (30) days
notice to Provider. Provider shall have the option to
reject any such amendment to the Annual Fee by serving
written notice of such rejection upon Highlands within the
thirty (30) day notice period. 1If Provider objects to the
increase in fees, Highlands shall have the option for a
period of sixty (60) days thereafter to withdraw the amended
Annual Fee or to terminate this Agreement. If Highlands
does not exercise its option to terminate this Agreement,
the amended Annual Fee shall be deemed withdrawn and this
Agreement and the current Annual Fee shall remain in effect.

6. Qonfidential Information

6.1 Legal Restrictions. Neither party hereto shall be in
default for failure to supply information which such party, in
good faith, believes cannot be supplied due to prevailing law, or
for supplying information which such party, in good faith,
believes 1s required to be supplied due to prevailing law.

6.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information.

6.2.1 Provider acknowledges that (i) due to the nature
of this Agreement, Provider shall have access to and acguire
Confidential Information as defined in this Section related
to the business and operations of Highlands; (ii) all
Confidential Information is solely the property of Highlands
and constitutes confidential and proprietary information of
Highlands; (iii) -the disclosure of Confidential Information
to third parties would cause substantial loss to the
goodwill of Highlands; (iv) disclosure of Confidential
Information to Provider shall be made due to the position of
trust and confidence that Provider shall occupy and due to
the agreement by Provider to the restrictions contained
herein; (v) disclosure of Confidential Information would
cause Highlands irreparable harm; and (vi) the restrictions
imposed upon Provider herein would not hamper Provider in
earning a living. |
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6.2.2 Provider (and the respective officers,
directors, employees, agents, successors and assigns of
Provider) shall hold any and all Confidential Information in
the strictest confidence as a fiduciary, and shall not,
voluntarily or involuntarily, sell, transfer, publish, .
disclose, display or otherwise make available to others any
portion of the Confidential Information without the express
written consent of Highlands. Provider shall use best
efforts to protect the Confidential Information consistent
with the manner in which Provider protects the confidential
business information of Provider; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,
Provider may disclose the Confidential Information to
attorneys, accountants or consultants of Provider who
require the Confidential Information to perform services for
Provider. Any such person shall execute a non-disclosure
agreement reasonably satisfactory to Highlands.

6.2.3 "Confidential Information" shall mean
information of Highlands that shall be subject to patent,
copyright, trademark, trade name or service mark protection,
or described as confidential by Highlands or a Payor, or not.
otherwise in the public domain and related to the business
and operations of Highlands, including, without limitation,
this Agreement and the exhibits hereto, lists of Payors and
Participating Providers and information related thereto,
information relating to earnings, volume of business,
methods, systems, practices or plans of Highlands and its
Payors, and all similar information of any kind or nature
whatsoever which is known only to persons having a fiduciary

- or confidential relationship with Highlands and its Payors
that owns proprietary rights in or to such information.

6.3 Medical Records. The parties hereto shall maintain the
confidentiality of any and all medical records which shall be in
their possession and control, and such information shall only be
released or disseminated pursuant to the valid authorization of
the patient whose medical condition is reflected in such medical
records or as shall be otherwise permitted under applicable law.
Medical records shall be maintained in accordance with the
Provider Manual.

6.4 Trademarks and Copyrights. Each party acknowledges

each other party's sole and exclusive ownership of its respective
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‘trade names, commercial symbols, trademarks and service marks,
‘whether presently existing or later established (collectively
*Marks"). No party shall use the other party's Marks in

advertising or promotional materials or otherwise without the
owner's prior written consent; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that Highlands,
Payors and other entities with agreements with Highlands may, but
shall not be required to, list Provider in the Highlands
Participating Provider directory or otherwise publicize the

‘status of Provider as a Participating Provider.

7. Term and Termination
7.1 Term and Voluntary Termination.

7.1.1 The initial term of this Agreement ("Initial
" Term") shall commence on the Effective Date of this
Agreement and shall continue for one (1) year.

7.1.2 This Agreement shall be automatically renewed
for additional periods of one (1) year (each a "Renewal
Term") unless either party shall.give written notice to the
other party at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to
the end of the Initial Term or of any Renewal Term.

7.1.3 If Provider shall relocate any of the Offices of
Provider, within ten (10) days of such relocation, Provider
shall provide notice to Highlands. Highlands shall have the
option, for ninety (90) days from the effective date of the
notice, to terminate this Agreement.

7.2 Termination of Agreement.

7.2.1 Except as otherwise specifically provided
herein, either party may terminate this Agreement for cause
upon the breach of this Agreement by the other party not
remedied ' within thirty (30) days after receipt by such other
party of notice thereof from the terminating party.

7.2.2 Anything elsewhere in this Agreement to the
contrary notwithstanding, Highlands shall have the option to
terminate this Agreement at any time upon notice if Provider
(i) fails to satisfy the Credentialing Criteria; (ii) fails
to purchase or maintain policies of insurance as required in
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the Credentialing Criteria; (iii) is disqualified or
suspended from practice or is threatened with
disqualification or suspension in any state, or has any
other license, certification or authorization required to
perform any duties hereunder restricted, suspended or
terminated; (iv) is disciplined or threatened with
disciplinary action by any governmental authority or agency,
managed care organization, hospital or other facility; (v)
is no longer a member in good standing of the medical or
professional staff of any hospital of which Provider was a
member as of the Effective Date, or if any such hospital
restricts in any way or terminates any privileges granted to
Provider; (vi) commits professional misconduct, violates the
principles of professional ethics; (vii) in the sole
determination of Highlands, has an excessive number of
professional liability claims filed or resolved against
Provider; or (viii) is subject to an indictment or
information for a felony.

7.2.3 1If Highlands exercises its option to terminate
pursuant to Section 3.2.4, this Agreement shall terminate on
the date designated by Highlands. ’ -

7.3 Procedure Upon Termination. ‘Upon the termination of
this Agreement by either party for any reason, whether for cause

or not for cause, whether voluntary or involuntary, all rights
and obligations hereunder shall cease, except (i) those rights
and obligations provided in Section 6 and this Section 7.4; and
(ii) those rights and obligations which shall have accrued as a
result of the operation of this Agreement. Upon termination

‘Provider shall:

7.3.1 continue to provide Covered Services pursuant to
this Agreement (i) until either the termination of each’
Payor Agreement in force on the date of termination or
twelve (12) months, whichever is earlier; and (ii)
thereafter, to Eligible Persons who shall be receiving care
from Provider until the earlier of the conclusion of any
treatment for a specific condition existing as of such
termination or the discharge or transfer of such Eligible
Person; and
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7.3.2 immediately discontinue use of any and all.
sighs, plaques, letterheads, forms or other materials
identifying Provider as a Participating Provider of
Highlands and each Payor; and

7.3.3 immediately disclose to each Eligible Person in
Provider's care, in the form prescribed by Highlands or by a
Payor, the possible adverse economic consequences to such
Eligible Persons of Provider's termination; and

7.4 Termination and Eligible Persons. In the event of

notice of termination of this Agreement and upon actual
termination of this Agreement, Highlands may (i) inform Eligible
Persons of such termination; (ii) inform Eligible Persons of the
economic effect of using Provider as a non-Participating
Provider; and (iii) recommend that Eligible Persons engage other
Participating Providers.

8. Miscellaneous Provisions

8.1 Provider-Patient Relationship. Nothing contained in

this Agreement shall interfere with or in any way alter any
provider-patient relationship and Provider shall have the sole
responsibility for the care and treatment of Eligible Persons
under Provider's care. Nothing contained herein shall grant
Highlands or any party performing utilization management the .
right to govern the level of care of a patient. Utilization
management decisions shall only effect reimbursement of Provider
for services rendered and shall not limit the performance of the
services of Provider or effect Provider's professional judgment.

8.2 Non-Exclusivity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
intended or construed to prevent either party from entering into
substantially similar agreements with other entities similar to
the other party.

8.3 Independent Contractors. Each party, its officers,
agents and employees are at all times independent contractors to

the other party. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to
make or render either party or any of its officers, agents, or
employees an agent, servant, or employee of, or joint venturer of
or with, the other.
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8.4 Notices. Notices shall be written and personally
delivered or by fax, effective on delivery, or sent by United
States mail, postage prepaid, effective on the third (3rd) day
following the date deposited in the mail, addressed to the _
parties as set forth below, or to any other address specified in

writing by such party.

8.5 Gender and Number. The use of the masculine, feminine
or neuter gender and the use of the singular and plural shall not
be given the effect of any exclusion or limitation herein; and
the word "person" or '"party" shall mean and include any
individual, trust, corporation, partnership or other entity.

8.6 Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire
agreement and understanding of the parties hereto with respect to
the subject matter hereof, and all prior and concurrent
agreements, understandings, representations and warranties with
respect to such subject matter, whether written or oral, are and
have been merged herein and superseded hereby.

8.7 Amendment.

8.7.1 This Agreement may be amended by Highlands at
any time upon written notice to Provider. Provider 'shall
have the option to reject the amendment by serving notice of
such rejection upon Highlands within thirty (30) days of the
effective date of the notice from Highlands. If Provider
rejects the amendment Highlands shall have the option to
withdraw the amendment or terminate this Agreement within
thirty (30) days of the effective date of the notice of
rejection from Provider.

8.7.2 The Provider Manual may be amended from time to
time in the sole discretion of Highlands.

’

8.8 Compliance with Terms. Failure to insist upon strict
compliance with any of the terms herein (by way of waiver or
breach) by either party hereto shall not be deemed to be a
continuous waiver in the event of any future breach or waiver of
any condition hereunder.

8.9 Rights of Parties. Except for the right of Highlands-
Wellmont Health Network, Inc., a Delaware corporation, to enforce
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this Agreement as a third party beneficiary, nothing in this
Agreement, whether express or implied, is intended to confer any
rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any
persons other than the parties to this Agreement and their
respective successors and assigns. )

8,10 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by

either party without the express written consent of the other

party.

8.11 Benefits. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and
shall inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their
respective heirs, personal representatives, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns.

- 8.12 Severability. If any portions of this Agreement shall,
for any reason, be invalid or unenforceable, such portions shall
be ineffective only to the extent of such invalidity or
unenforceability, and the remaining portion or portions shall
nevertheless be valid, enforceable and of full force and effect.

8.13 Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed
in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original and all of which taken together shall constitute a
single instrument.

8.14 Conflict of lLaws. This Agreement shall be governed by

the laws of the State of Tennessee without giving effect to its
conflicts of law provisions.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set thgir"hands
on the dates set forth below, as of the Effective Date set forth

below.

PROVIDER:

Signature of Provider or
Authorized Representative

Name of Provider

Address

' City, State, Zip Code

State License, Certificate

~ or other Authorization Number

‘Federal Tax I.D. or Social

‘Security Number

Date Executed by Provider

 IF BY A PARTNERSHIP,

PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION OR
OTHER ENTITY, ON BEHALF
OF THE FOLLOWING PERSONS:

(Print Names)

lines continued’

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

By: Kf//7zz~11}*év()

3

D. Nelson Gwaltney, M.D.
Name

Presidént
Title

Effective Date of Agreement
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Tl

Provider Offices (as defined
in Section 5.2.1)
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EXHIBIT 2.7
STANDARD TERMS

The following shall constitute the Standard Terms as defined
in this Agreement. As part of a separate agreement between
Highlands and Payors, Highlands shall use all reasonable efforts
to have Payors observe the Standard Terms. '

1. Covered Services. Participating Provider shall furnish
to Eligible Persons those Medically Appropriate Covered Services
customarily furnished by such Participating Provider in the same
physical setting and in the same manner as such services are
customarily provided to other similarly situated patients of
Participating Provider.

2. Payment to Participating Provider. Pursuant to the

terms of the applicable Plan, Payor or its agent and the Eligible
Person shall pay to Participating Provider the lesser of
Participating Provider's charges customarily billed to other
patients or the amounts set forth in the applicable Fee Schedule
as full payment of any claim submitted by Participating Provider
for Covered Services furnished to Eligible Persons pursuant to
such Plan.

3. Payment by Eligible Persons. Participating Provider

and/or any provider on call for Provider shall: (i)} charge or
bill Eligible Persons directly for, and use best efforts to
collect, any deductible, co-payment or coinsurance for Covered
Services specified in the applicable Plan, unless otherwise
prohibited in such Plan, in amounts which, when added to Payor's
payments shall not exceed the lesser of charges customarily
charged to other patients- or the consideration provided in the
applicable Fee Schedule; (ii) charge or bill Eligible Persons
directly for(any services that are not Covered Services; and
(iii) charge or bill Eligible Persons directly for any Covered
Services provided to Eligible Persons after the benefits set -
forth in a Plan to which the Eligible Person is entitled have
been exhausted.

4. Claims Submission. Each Participating Provider shall,
as provided in the applicable Plan, submit claims to Highlands,
Payor or Payor's ‘agent, on a UB-82 form or HCFA 1500 form, or
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successor forms, as applicable. Participating Providers shall
use best efforts to submit claims within thirty (30) days after
providing Covered Services. Any claims which have not been
submitted by Participating Provider within six (6) months after

‘providing Covered Services may be denied pursuant to the Plan of

a Payor. Highlands, Payor or Payor's agent shall apply the
applicable Fee Schedule, as of the date of the Covered Services,
to each Participating Provider's claim to determine the amount
due such Participating Provider.

5. Time for Payment. Except where coordination of
benefits applies, Payor or its paying agent shall use all

reasonable efforts to make all payments due to Participating

Provider within thirty (30) days following receipt by Payor, or
its paying agent, of a complete and proper claim form and other
information regquired to determine that the claim is payable under

the Plan.

6. Verification of Eligible Persons. Eligible Persons
shall receive Covered Services from Participating Provider upon
the presentation of appropriate written documentation supplied by
Payor identifying the patient as an Eiigible Person.

Verification shall be in accordance with Payor's customary
verification procedures or as negotiated by Highlands.

7.  Exhaustion of Benefits. If an Eligible Person shall
exhaust any benefits under any Plan, Participating Provider shall
arrange for payment to be made by such Eligible Person dlrectly
to Participating Provider.

8. Coordination of Benefits. If additional parties shall

be liable, under coordination of benefits, for payment to
Participating Providers for Covered Services rendered to Eligible
Persons, such other party or parties shall not be entitled to the
benefit of any rates set forth in the Fee Schedule, regardless of
any coordination of benefit provisions in such party's agreement
with the Eligible Person or Participating Provider and regardless
of whether such party is the primary or secondary insurer.

[The following prevision shall apply to a Payor Agreement by

and between Highlands and HMO Payors ("HMO Agreement") (as
required by law)].

P-75




)

)

)

9. HMO Insolvency. Participating Provider shall not have -
a right in any event, including but not limited to nonpayment by
an HMO of amounts due the Participating Provider under. this
Agreement, insolvency of an HMO (the "HMO") or any breach of this

‘Agreement by the HMO, to seek any type of payment from, bill,

charge, collect a deposit from, or have any recourse against, the

| Eligible Person, persons acting on the Eligible Person's behalf

(other than the HMO), an employer or group contract holder for
services provided pursuant to this Agreement except for the
payment of applicable co-payments or deductibles for services
covered by the HMO or fees for services not covered by the HMO.
The requirements of this clause shall survive any termination of
this Agreement for services rendered prior to such termination,
regardless of the cause of such termination. The HMO's Eligible
Persons, the persons acting on the Eligible Person's behalf
(other than the HMO) and the employer or group contract holder
shall be third party beneficiaries of this section. This section
supersedes any oral or written agreement now existing or
hereafter entered into between Participating Provider and the
Eligible Person, persons acting on the Eligible Person's behalf
(other than the HMC) and the employer or group contract holder.
This Section 9 shall be automatically amended to conform with any
applicable statutory requirements of the state in which services
are rendered by Participating Provider. '

~10. Service. Provider shall establish procedures,
including an appropriate call system, to provide that Covered
Services are available to Eligible Persons twenty-four (24) hours

per day, seven (7) days per week.

11. Laws Applying to HMO. All laws applying to HMOs in the
appropriate state shall be applicable to this Agreement.
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EXHIBIT 2.8

FEE SCHEDULE
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EXHIBIT 2.10

CREDENTIALING CRITERIA
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EXHIBIT 2.10
CREDENTIALING CRITERIA
The Credentialing Criteria of Highlands are as follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL CREDENTIALS (TIER I)

1.1 Provider is either (i) a person with an unrestricted
license or other authorization to practice in the state of
location; or (ii) a partnership, professional service corporation
or other entity, all of the partners, shareholders, members and
provider employees of which have an unrestricted license or other
necessary authorization to practice in the state of location. A
copy of Provider’s current valid license shall be provided with
Provider’s application to Highlands ("Appllcatlon")

1.2 Provider, where applicable, has active full and
unrestricted clinical and admlttlng privileges in Provider‘’s
spec;alty at a minimum of one (1) Part1c1pat1ng Provider facility
("Part1c1pat1ng Facility") or if Provider is a member of a non-
admitting specialty, maintain full and unrestricted privileges
appropriate to such specialty at a Part1c1pat1ng Facility.
Provider shall maintain each Participating Fa01llty and other
hospital, medical or professional staff appointment and all
clinical and admitting privileges granted in connection therewith
that Provider possessed as of the Effective Date of Provider’s
Participating Provider Agreement. A letter from each
Participating Facility stating the Provider has such clinical
privileges shall be provided with the Application.

1.3 Provider shall, if permltted under Provider’s license,
have and maintain unrestrlcted prescribing privileges. A copy of
Provider’s current DEA certification and state drug registration
("DPS"), if applicable, shall be provided with the Application.

1.4 Provider, where applicable, has not and shall not (i}
have any hospital appointment or privileges reduced, limited,
suspended or terminated or been placed on probation by any
hospital at which Provider has had a medical c: professional
staff appointment or privileges; (ii) been restricted from
receiving payments from Medicare, Medicaid or any other third
party reimbursement programs; (iii) been subject to disciplinary
action by any state or local medical society, specialty society,
state board of medical examiners or the Drug Enforcement Agency;
or (iv) been subject to sanctions of any kind whatsoever by any
person or entity for improper prescribing procedures or actions;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that, -in the discretion of Highlands, the
foregoing shall not apply to suspensions related to a reasonable
delay in completing medical records. Any such actions shall be

reported by Provider on the Application.
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.1.5 Provider has not and shall not have been disciplined,
suspended or terminated from a PPO, HMO or other managed care
organization. ,

1.6 Provider has not been convicted of a felony.
1.7 Provider is in good general health.

1.7.1 Prov1der shall report on the Application any
phy51cal or mental problems that may affect Provider’s
ability to practice Provider’s profession. If Provider has
such disabilities the Provider shall provide, with the
Appllcatlon, a statement from Provider’s personal physician
stating that the disabilities shall not interfere with the
Provider’s ability to provide hlgh quallty medical care.

1.7.2 Provider shall certlfy on the Application that
Provider does not have a history of and is not presently
abusing drugs or alcohol. A Provider with a history of drug
or alcohol abuse may be considered for membership in
#ighlands, within the sole discretion of Highlands, if such
Provider’s personal physician provxdes a ctatement that
Provider has been rehabilitated and is continuing with the
rehabilitation program .

1.7.3 Provider shall certify on the Application that
Provider does not have any communicable and/or chronic
infectious disease that may be potential danger to patients.

1.7.4 Highlands shall have sole discretion in the
determination of the impact of the health status of Provider’
for purposes of credentialing.

1.8 Provider shall purchase and maintain, at the sole cost
and expense of Provider, policies of professional liability
insurance in amounts as required by Highlands from time to time.
At the present time such insurance shall be a minimum of THREE
MILLION DOLLARS ($3,000,000.00)/THREE MILLION DOLLARS
($3,000,000.00). Provider shall authorize the insurance carrier
to issue to Highlands a certificate of insurance policies of
Provider upon the request of nghlands, and each such pollcy
shall contain an endorsement requiring the insurer to give
Highlands not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of

~any cancellation, termination or material altevation of such

policy. Notw1thstand1ng the foregoing, Provider shall provide
Highlands with notification within fifteen (15) days of any
cancellation, termination or material alteration of any such
insurance policies. Prior to the expiration or cancellation of
any such policy, Provider shall secure replacement of such
insurance coverage upon the same terms, and shall furnish
Highlands with a certificate and endorsement as described herein.
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A copy of the 1ssu1ng section of the policy reflecting such
insurance shall be provided with the Application.

1.9 Provider shall provide the follow1ng information on the
Application:

1.9.1 Details of any professional liability actions
that have resulted in adverse judgments or any financial .
settlements.

1.9.2 Details of any pending professional liability
actions or claims or threatened claims with respect to
profe551onal liability.

This 1nformatlon shall be reviewed by Highlands. The
evaluation shall consider the frequency of such actions, the
financial impact of such actions and the clinical circumstances
surrounding the alleged acts of malpractice. Highlands is fully
cognizant of the current litigious conditions in the United
States and its evaluation shall consider the litigious climate as
part of the credentialing process. Providers shall not be
automatically disqualified from participation in Highlands due to
a history of judgments and/or settlements. Highlands shall have
sole discretion in the determination of the impact of thls
information for purposes of credentlallng

A 1.10 Physician Providers shall be board certified in a
specialty recognized by the American Board of Medical Specialties
or other appropriate boards applicable to the specialty of
Provider in the sole discretion of Highlands. A copy of
Provider’s board certification or appropriation training shall
accompany the application. Expiration or re-certification dates
shall be indicated where applicable. Physician Providers who
have recently completed training and are board eligible, may be
considered for probationary membership pending board
certification; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,

1.10.1 if a Provider shall fail to becone board
certified within five (5) years, the Participating Provider
Agreement of such Provider shall automatically terminate.

1.10.2 1if a Provider is certified by a board that has
a requirement for mandatory recertification, such Provider
shall be required to satisfy the requirement for
recertification. ' If a Provider shall fail to become
recertified as reglired, the Participating Provider
Agreement of such Provider shall be automatically
terminated. Providers receiving either tvaining or board
certlflcatlon in aor by a foreign country/board may be
reviewed on an individual basis for consideration of
granting a waiver of the Credentialing Criteria.

P-81




)

()

1.16 Applicant shall provide twenty-four (24) hour-a-day
coverage, seven (7) days a week by other Participating Providers.
with tralnlng equivalent to the Provider. Individual exemptions
of this requirement may be granted for Providers for which there
are no local equivalently trained Providers. Determinations of
equivalent training and the grantlng of any waiver of this
requirement shall be in the sole discretion of Highlands. -

1.17 .Provider shall: (i) properly maintain, calibrate and
license all diagnostic equipment in Provider‘’s offices; (ii)
maintain a formal quality control program for all office
diagnostic equipment; and (iii) allow diagnostic. testing and
pro"edures to be performed and 1nterpreted only by persons with
approprlate training and/or certification.

1.18 Provider shall execute the appropriate release of
Highlands directing any and all entities.that may have :
information with respect to the ability to practice high quality
medicine to provide such information to Highlands upon request.
such entities include, without limitation, hospitals, medical
societies, state examining boards, Medicare intermediaries and

third party payors.

1.19 Highlands reserves the right to require independent
verification of any and all of the Credentialing Criteria and to
perform site visits to the locations of Provider.

2. [ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS NEEbS CRITERIA (TIER II)

The Professional Credentials constitute the Credentialing
Criteria :for the professional quallflcatlons of Providers.
Providers quallfylng under the Professional Credentials shall be
evaluated by nghlands to determine if such Provider fulfills the
Economic and Business Needs Criteria. The Economic and Business .
Needs Criteria of Highlands regard the economic evaluation of the
Provider and a determination of the need for additional
Providers, additional specialties and/or additional geographical
representation:

2.1 Highlands shall utilize available data sources to
evaluate, where possible, the cost effectiveness of the patterns
of practice 6f a Provider. The evaluation factors may include,
without limitation: frequency of service; intensity of service;
average cost per DRG; average cost per encounter; usage of
anc;llary services; and a Provider’s charge patterns. A
significant differentiation by Provider in any of the parameters
subject to this evaluation may indicate a practlce style and
philosophy incompatible with the business objectives of
Highlands. Highlands may determine, in its sole discretion, to
decline to execute a Participating Provider Agreement with any
Providers based upon this or any other information.
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2.2 Provider shall fully disclose to Highlands, any
ownership in any fa0111ty or service to which Provider may refer
Eligible Persons. Provider shall inform, in writing, Eligible
Persons of Provider’s ownership interest in any fac111ty or
service prior to referring Eligible Persons. Provider shall not
be required to provide such disclosures with respect to services
integrated into the Provider’s office based practice and
available only to providers in such practice.

2.3 It is anticipated that the. number of Providers
gqualifying pursuant to the Professional Credentials shall exceed
the number of Providers required by Highlands. Therefore, a
Provider qualifying under the Professlonal Credentials shall be
evaluated under the Economic and Business Needs Criteria by
Highlands to determine if Provider’s participation enables
Highlands to better fulfill’ its business needs. The evaluation
shall include, without limitation: Provider‘s specialty; the need
for a Provider in a spec1f1c geographic area; the number of
Providers necessary to service the populatlon, the relationship
of a Provider to other Participating Providers; and, unique
skills such as foreign language proficiency. Quallflcatlon under
the Economic and Business Needs Criteria shall be in the sole
discretion of Highlands. A qualifying Provider may beconme a
Participating Provider immediately or at a subsequent time as
Highlands expands its services, patients and/or service area.

2.4 From time to time, Highlands may, in its sole
discretion, to fulfill its business ob]ectlves, offer
Participating Provider Agreements to Providers deemed to be
competent Providers who may not fulfill each aspect of the
Credentlallng Criteria. Input may be sought from Payors. For
example, if Highlands required a Provider with a specific
specialty or a specific location and a board certified Provider
was unavallable, the requirement for board certification may be
waived in that location for a particular Provider otherwise

qualified.

2.5 It is anticipated that, from time to time, Highlands
may adopt various additional Economlc and Business Needs Criteria
and/or performance standards. The adoption of additional
Economic and Business Needs Criteria and performance standards
shall be at the sole discretion of Highlands.
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EXHIBIT 3.3

Services of Highlands Physicians, Inc. to
Highlands Wellmont Health Network

10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

Establish process that identifies and measures physician access issues. (The criteria for this
process must be responsive to insurers; employers, and employees.)

Provide a physician panel (primary care as well as specxahsts) which satisfies the
requirements identified in #1.

Develop physician newsletters to keep the membership informed of activities occurring
within Highlands Wellmont Health Network, and Highlands Physicians, Inc.

Distribute the Highlands Wellmont Health Network Physician Satisfaction Survey data and
review such data with physicians to improve satisfaction scores.

Coordinate the activities of the Utilization Management/Quality Assurance/Pharmacy &

‘review such data with physicians to improve satisfaction scores.

Provide co-medical directorships for support of Highlands Wellmont Health Network in
credentialing, utilization management, quality assurance, P&T and occasional sales support
of Highlands Wellmont Health Network activities.

Maintain physician network which includes monitoring of time limited credentials,
administration and operation of the credentials committee, and working closely with the
Highlands Wellmont Health Network provider relations staff to respond to inquiries and
problem resolution.

Provide for the recruitment and credentialing of ancillary provider applicants. (These may
include chiropractors, speech therapists, CRNA’s, nurse practitioners, physician assistants,
and others as determined by the Highlands Wellmont Health Network board from time to
time.)

Credential new physician and ancillary prowdcr applicants, including professwnal review of
their documentation.

Jointly, with Highlands Wellmont Health Network, evaluate the potential establishment of a
Provider Sponsored Organization, and if feasible, assist in development of the PSO
Application to HCFA, as well as evaluate potential equity position in an insurance product.
Expand the geographic coverage of the organization to include physicians of hospitals that
develop formal or informal relationships/affiliations with the Wellmont Health System.
Periodically update and distribute Provider manuals.

Periodically update and distribute Provider (physician and ancillary) directories. (HWHN to
pay for printing.)

Assist in the development of the Administrative Infrastructure of HWHN necessary to accept
and administer Global Capitation.

Provide for the delegated credentialing activities as specxf ed by JCAHO and/or NCQA,
including but not limited to, office site visits, chart reviews and patient satisfaction surveys.
Coordinate, develop and oversee systems necessary for HWHN to maintain JCAHO
Accreditation.
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Exhibit 3.4

ADDENDUM TO PREFERRED PROVIDER AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
HIGHLANDS WELLMONT HEALTH NETWORK, INC.
and
HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

This Addendum is made and entered into as of JuIy 1, 2000 by and between Highlands
Wellmont Health Network, Inc. (“Network”) and Highland Physicians, Inc.

(“Highlands™).
RECITALS

WHEREAS,V the parties entered into that certain Preferred Provider Agreement
(“Agreement”) dated March 4, 1998; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Agreement to provide for an increase
in the monthly compensation, to extend the Agreement, and to amend Exhibit 3.3;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufﬁcxency of which are
hereby acknowledged the parties agree as follows:

1. Amendment to Section 3.3. Section 3.3 of the Agreement is hereby deleted
and the following substituted therefore:

3.3 Compensation to Highlands. As compensatio‘n for the services listed

in Exhibit 3.3 attached hereto and made part hereof, Network shall pay to
Highlands Twenty-Two Thousand, Nine Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($22,950.00) per
month for a period of twenty-four (24) months, with first payment due and payable on
July 15, 2000, and continuing on the 15® of each month thereafter with the final payment
due and payable on June 15, 2002.

2. Amendment to Exhibit 3.3. Exhibit 3.3, which is attached to the Agreement, is
hereby deleted and the form of Exhibit 3.3 which is attached to this Addendum and
incorporated by this reference shall be substituted therefore.

Except as expressly amended hereby, the provisions of the Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect. The parties acknowledge that they have entered mto this
addendum as of the day and year first above written.

HIGHLANDS WELLMONT HEAJLTH NETWORK, INC. HIGHLAND PHYSICIANS, INC.

By: W @“ By: /WW//M

C:}\-nr\“ MaTRRA [ Waersh /fﬁufruvrz, -
Print Name . Print Name EC IR
Title: DReaneoal \5? Title: £kecicreire .b/rﬁ,e roz
Date: \f\.\\ﬁ_\\\sb | Date: /z/z//oe0 - o
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EXHIBIT 3.3
Services of Highlands Physicians, [nc. to
Highlands Wellmont Health Network

1.

2.

10.

11

14.
15.

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

21.

Establish process that identifies and measures physician access issues. (The criteria for this
process must be responsive to insurers, employers, and employees.)
Provide a physician panel (primary care as well as spec1allsts) which satisfies the requirements
identified in # 1.
Develop physician newsletters to keep the membership informed of activities occurring within
Highlands Wellmont Health Network, and Highlands Physicians, Inc.
Distribute the Highlands Wellmont Health Network Physician Satisfaction Survey data and
review such data with physicians to improve satisfaction scores.
Coordinate the activities of the Utilization Management/Quality Assurance/Pharmacy &
Therapeutics Committees and disseminate policies, procedures, guidelines and protocol created
by them and approved by the HPI and HWHN Boards of Directors.
Provide co-medical directorships for support of Highlands Wellmont Health Network in
credentialing, utilization management, quality assurance, P&T and occa510nal sales support of
Highlands Wellmont Health Network activities.
Maintain physician network which includes monitoring of time limited credentials,
administration and operation of the credentials committee, and working closely with the
Highlands Wellmont Health Network prov1der relations staff to respond to inquiries and
problem resolution.
Provide for the recruitment and credentialing of ancillary provider applicants. (These may
include chiropractors, speech therapists, CRNA's, nurse practitioners, physician assistants, and
others as determined by the Highlands Wellmont Health Network Board from time to time.)
Credential new physician and ancillary provider applicants, including professional review of
their documentation.
Jointly, with Highlands Wellmont Health Network, evaluate the potential establishment of a
fully insured Private Label Product.
Expand the geographic coverage of the organization to include physicians of hospitals that
develop formal or informal relationships/affiliations with the Wellmont Health System.
Periodically update and distribute Provider manuals.
Periodically update and distribute Provider (physician and ancillary) directories. (HWHN to
pay for printing.)
Assist HWHN in reviewing and negotiating MCO and Direct contracts.
Provide for the delegate credentialing activities as specified by JCAHO and/or NCQA,
including but not limited to, office site visits, chart reviews and patient satisfaction surveys.
Coordinate, develop and oversee systems necessary for HWHN to maintain JCAHO
Accreditation. '
Bill, collect and provide HPI physician and A/R Administrative (access) Fee management.
Create monthly HWHN Administrative (access) Fee revenue reports.
Assist with the coordination of converting the repricing of claims to an outsourced vendor.
Assist with the coordination of implementing a means whereby physician offices send claims
for repricing electronically.
Provide consultative assistance on drug information, pharmaco-kinetics and
pharmacoeconomics.
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' Exhibit 6.1

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
by and between

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

and
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EMBLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Emplcyment Agreement ("Agreement") is effective on the
effective date set forth on the signature page ("Effective Date")
by and between HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC., a Delaware corporation
("Corporation") and A. WALTER HANKWITZ ("Emplcyee').

IINESSELIH:

WHEREAS, the Corporatlon desires to engage Employee as
Executive Director; and

WHEREAS, Employee desires to serve as Executive Director on
behalf of the Corporation. .

1. Preamble and Recitals. The preamble and recitals
hereinabove set forth are hereby incorporated into and made a
part of this Agreement.

2. Emplcyment and Duties.

2.1 Employment. Corporation hereby employs Employee as
Executive Director. .

2.1.1 Employee shall perform such services and occupy
such positions and offices as the Corporation may determine,
consistent with the position of Executive Director;

2.1.2 Employee shall maintain and enhance the
reputation of the Corporation; and

2.1.3 Employee shall attend such professional
meetings, post-graduate seminars and otherwise take any and °
all actions as shall be reascnably necessary to maintain and
improve the professional skills of Employee.

2.2 Full-Time Position. Employee shall not be employed by
or perform gservices for any eocle proprietorship, partnershlp,
corporation, limited - liability company or any other entity
engaged in the same or similar activities now or hereafter
carried on by the Corporation, while employed by the Corporation,
w1thout the przor written consent of the Corporation.

2.3 Comgensatxon. Unless otherwise mutually agreed, all
compensation received by Employee in excess of One Thousand
Dollars ($1,000.00) per annum as fees for health care
professional services from all sources, including, without
limitation, teaching, publications or lectures shall be income to
and the property of the Corporation. ’

2‘4 Location of Services. The services to be performed by
Employee shall, to the extent consistent with the efficient
- performance of such duties be performed at the offices of the
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Corporation in the Tri-Cities, Tennessee area and/or at such
other locations as may be reasonably required by the Corporation.

2.5 Maintenance of Records. Employee shall truthfully and
accurately maintain all records, account for all monies and all
of the property of the Corporation of which Employee may have
cugtody and shall promptly deliver such records and monies to the
Corporation upon request.

3. Compensation and Benefits.

3.1 Salary. The Corporation shall pay Employee an
annualized base salary of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($150,0060.00) . The salary of the Employee may be increased by
the Board of Lirectors. _

3.2 Bonus.

3.2.1 <The Corporation shall péy Employee a one-time
bonus of Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) after
January 6, 1998 and prior to January 16, 1988.

F

3.2.2 Employee shall be eligible for such bonuses as
determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

5.3 Benefitg. Employee shall be entitled to the benefits
of the Corporation now or hereafter implemented by the ‘
Corporation.

3.4 Bonus Upon Sale.

3.4.1 If all of the stock of the Corporation is sold
or if substantially all of the assets of the Corporation are
sold ("salie"), while Employee is employed by the
Corporation, Employee may elect to be paid a one-time bonus
equal to the amount paid to a Stockholder owning one hundred
(100) shares of stock of the Corporation ("Election*). The
Election shall be pursuant to notice to the Corporation
within fifteen (15) days of notice to Employee of the Sale.

3.4.2 If Employee shall exercise the Election,
Employee shall waive the right of Employee to any payments
upon terminaticn of this Agreement as provided in Section S.
3.5 Vacation. Employee shall be entitled to four (4) weeks

of vacation per year (“Vacation®). The times and the duration of
Vacation shall be approved by the Corporation.

4. Term.and Termination.

4.1 Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement shall be on
the Effective Date and continue until December 31, 2000, unless
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earlier terminated pursuant to this Section 4. This Agreement
shall be automatically renewed for additional periods of one (1)
year (each a "Renewal Term") unless either party shall give
written notice at least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the
Initial Term or any Renewal Term.

4.2 Termination by Corporation. The Corporation shall have
the right to terminate this Agreemenct with notice upon the

occurrence of any of the following events ("Cause'):

4.2.1 The failure by Employee to comply with a
directive of the Corporation, if the failure continues for
ten (10) days after notice by the Corporation, or if such
failures require the Corporation to give Employee such
notice on three (3) separate occasions; orxr

4.2.2 Pailure by Employee to institute the business
plan or cbjectives of the Corporation if the failure
continues for thirty (30) days after notice by the:-
Corporation, or if such failures require the Corporation to
give Employee such notice on two (2) separate occasions; or

4.2.3 Any other substantial breach of this Agreement
by Employee not cured pursuant to Section 9.3.

4.2.4 Employee’s commission of or participation in any
conduct which Corporation shall determine negates the
ability to perform the functions of position; or

4,2.5 The indictment of Employee on charges of the
commiggion of a felony; or

4.2.6 The theft or embezzlement by Employee of any
property; or

4.2.7 The death of Employee; or

4.2.7 The Disability of Employee for a period of three
(3) months, unless otherwise extended at the scle dzscretlon
of Corporatlon.

(i) "Disability" or ®Disabled" shall be defined,
for the purposes of this Agreement, as the
inability of Employee by reason of physical or
mental infirmity, to perform the usual and
customary duties on behalf of the Corporation or
inability of Employee to perform such duties for
at least eighty percent (80%) of the time required
by a full schedule. Disability need not be
continuous or permanent for the rest cf the life
of Employee.
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(ii) 1If the Corporation and Employée are unable
to agree upon whether Employee isg Disabled, the
parties shall, by mutual agreement, within fifteen
(15) days from the date either party claims
Employee is Disabled, select a licensed physician
to examine Employee. The determination of such
physician shall be conclusive and binding on the
parties hereto. '

(iii) If the Corxporation and Employee are unable -
to select a physician within the fifteen (15) day
period provided herein, the determination of
Disability shall be made as follows: the
Corporation shall appoint a licensed physician and
Employee (or Employee’s legal representative) '
shall appoint a licensed physician, and the two
physicians shall together appoint a third licensed
physician who shall be the “physician®™ for the '
purposes of this Section. The physician. shall
examine Employee and determine if the Employee is
Disabled. -

(iv} If Employee shall be able to perform usual
and customary duties on behalf of the Corporation
following a period of Disability, and performs
such duties, or such other duties as are
prescribed by the Corporation, for a period of
three (3) continuous months, any subsequent period
of Disability shall be regarded as a new period of -
Disability as if there had been no previous
Digability. If the continuous period of the
performance of duties by Employee is less than
three (3) monthsg, the period of performance of
duties shall be disregarded and the subsegquent
period of Disability shall be deemed a ‘
continuation of the previous period of Disability
and the period of Disability shall be treated as a
gsingle period, excluding the period in which
Employee performed sexvices for the Corporation.

4.3 Employee shall give prompt notice to the Corporation
upon the occurrence of any of the events described in this
Section 4.

’

5. Payment Upon Termina;ion and Change of Control.

5.1 Terminatior by Corporati Wit t Cauge. If the
Corporation terminates this Agreement without Cause or if the
Employee terminates this Agreement due to a substantial breach of
the Agreement by the Corporation (subject to Section 9.3), the
Corporation shall continue to pay Employee the salary through the
end of the Initial Term or any Renewal Term.
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5.2 Termination by cOrgorétion With Cayse. If the

Corporation terminates this Agreement with Cause, or if the
Employee terminates this Agreement without a substantial breach
of the Agreement by the Corporation (subject to Section 9.3), the
Corporation shall continue to pay Employee the salary for the
legger of six (6} months or through the end of the Initial Term
or any Renewal Term.

5.3 Change of Control.

5.3.1 If a Change of Control (as defined in Sectiodn

5.3.2) occurs and thereafter a Substantial Breach (as

" defined hereafter) by Corporation occurs, Employee may give
notice to Corporation notifying Corporation of the Breach.
If the sSubstantial Breach is not cured within thirty (30)
days after receipt of such notice, Employee may elect to
terminate this Agreemant by giving notice of such election
to Corporation. Upon receipt by Corporatior of such an
election, the employment of Employee shall terminate. As
ugsed in this Section, *Substantial Breach" shall mean the
assignment tc Employee of any position or duties .
inconsistent with those specified herein or any material
diminution of the pogition of Employee, authority,
responsibilities, compensation or benefits or relocation of
the office of Employee to a location, outside of the Tri-
Citieg area without the consent of Employee.

. 5.3.2 A Change in Control shall be deemed to have
occurred upon the occurrence of any of the following (i)
upon the acquisition of the "beneficial ownership", as such
term is used in Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the %1934 Act"),
directly or indirectly, of fifty percent (50%) or more of
the outstanding Voting Stock (as hereinafter defined) of
Corporation by any "person" (as such texrm is used in
Sections 13(d) and 14(d) (2) of the 1934 Act), whether or not
any such acquisition occurs as a result of one or more
transactions (which may or may not occur at the same time),
or (ii) if all or substantially all of the assets or
business of Corporation are disposed of pursuant to a
transfer or series of transfers to one or more persons; or
(iii) a merger, consolidation or a transaction in which the
Common Stock of Corporation is converted into cash, other
gecurities or other property; or (iv) if Corporation is
materially or completely liquidated other than pursuant to a
proceeding under Chapter 7 of Title XI of the United States
Bankruptcy Code. "Voting Stock" shall mean capital stock of
any class or classes having voting power to elect the
directors of a corporation (excluding voting power subject
to contingencies if the contingencies have not occurred).
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» 5.3.3 Upon termination by Employee due to a Change of
Control and Substantial Breach, the Corporation shall pay to
Employee an amount equal to the amount Emgloyee would have
been entitled to if the Corporation had terminated Employee
without Cause as provided in Section S5.1. ’

6. Expensgesg. .
6.1 Reimbursement. The Corporation shall pay or reimburse

Employee for expenses incurred by Employee on behalf of the
Corporation with the prior written approval of the Corporation.

6.2 Personnel. The Corpobation shall furnish Employee with
personnel, supplies and equipment deemed necessary by the
Corporation for the performance of services hereunder.

6.3 gélogation Expenses.

6.3.1 The Corporation shall pay the relocation
expenses of Emplcyee and the family of Employee to move to
the Tri-Cities area ("Relocation Expenses").

6.3.2 Relocation Expenses shall not exceed Twenty-Two
Thousand Dollars ($22,000.00) plus.airfare.

6.3.3 Relocation Expenses shall include the persoﬁal
property of Employee and his family including two (2) '
automobiles and one (1) boat.

6.4 Itemization. The reimbursement of any expenses of
Employee shall be made upon the presentation by Employee to the
Corporation of itemized accounts or. receipts reasonably
satisfactory to the Corporation.

6.5 Pre-paid Expenses. If Employee is terminated for any
reason, whether for cause or not for cause, whether voluntary or
involuntary, any pre-paid expenses shall be deducted from any
remaining compensation due Employee or Employee shall repay the
_Corporation for the unexpired portion of such pre-paid expenses.

7. Non-Competition, Non-Solicitatjion and Non-Disclosure of

Confidential Information

7.2 Acknowledgement. Employee acknowledges that (i) due to
the nature of the services performed hereunder, Employee shall
have access to and acquire confidential information related to
the business and operations of the Corporation, including,
without limitation, finances of the Corporation, operational
procedures of the Corporation and the payors, providers and
referral sources of the Corporation ("Confidential Information'):
(ii) all confidential Information is solely the property of the
Corporation and constitutes confidential and proprietary
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information of the Corporation; (iii) the disclosure of
Confidential Information to third parties would cause subsCantzal
loss to the goodwill of the Corporation; (iv) disclosure of
Confidential Information to Employee shall be made due to the
position of ‘trust and confidence that Employee shall occupy and
due to the agreement by Employee to the restrictions contained
herein; (v) in the course of employment hereunder, Employee shall
have contact with the payors, providers and referral sources of
the Corporation; (vi) knowledge of Confidential Information and-
contact with the payors, prov1der5 and referral sources would
enable Employee, upon termination of this Agreement, to compete
with the Corporation in a manner likely to cause the Corporation ,
irreparable harm, and disclosure of Confidential Information
woulé cause such harm; and (vii) the regtrictions imposed upon
Employee herein would not hamper Employee in earning a lxving Q

 Tireugh the
7.2 Covenant Not to Compete. 1nat1on or non- thdngUUk
renewal of this Agreement by Co ause ("Cause
Termination®) or the terminatiod or non-renewdl of this Agreement,ﬁ,~“~
by Employee without a substa , _
Corporation (subject to Segfion 9.3) ("Employee Termination"), &J/Z/
Employee, for a period of“gix (6) months/for Cause Termination
and twelve (12) months for Employee Termination, shall not
directly or indirectly (i) compete with the Corporation from an
office within a twelve (12) mile radius of any office of the -
Corporation ("Area"); or (ii) become a parcner, member, employee,
agent, 1ndependent contractor, advisor, or investor, or
participate in any wmanner, with or in any sole proprietorship, -
partnership, corporation, limited liability company or any other
entity which, dlrectly or indirectly, cogpetes with the
Corporation by malntalnlng an office within the Area . v,
e Lesten Tersuyt Yis £ 57

M

7.3 ' Upon the erm1nat1on or non-
renewal of this Agreement by/ Corporation witHd Cause ("Cause At
Termination") or the termingtion or non-rengwal of this Agreement
by Employee without a substfantial breach of this Agreement by L/L,
Corporation (subject to Seftion 9.3) ("Employee .Termination"),

Employee, for a period of/six (6) months/for Cause Termination
and twelve (12) months for Employee Termination, shall not
directly or indirectly solicit the payors, providers or referral
sources of the Corporation or become a partner, member, employee,
agent, advisor, or investor, or participate in any manner, with
or in any sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited
liability company or any other entity which, directly or
indirectly, solicits the payors, providers or referral sources of
the Corporation.

7.4 Covenant Not to Solicit E es. Upon the
termination of this Agreement by any means or for any reason
whatscever, whether for cause or not for cause, whether
voluntarily or involuntarily, Employee, for a period of twelve
{(12) months following the date of such termination, shall not
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directly or indirectly solicit any of the existing employees of
the Corporaticn, in any manner, to perform services for Employee
or for any other sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation or
other entity. For purposes of this Section 7.4 *employee" shall
be defined as an existing employee or a former employee who had
been employed by the Corporation within the one (1) year period
prior to the date of termination of this Agreement.

7.5 Non-Digclosure of Confidential Information. Employee’
shall hold in a fiduciary capacity for the sole benefit of the

Corporation all of the Confidential Information which may be
obtained by Employee. Employee shall not, either during
employment hereunder or after termination of such employment,
communicate or divulge such Confidential Information, knowledge
or data to any person or other entity other than the Corporation
or persons, partnership or other entities as may be designated in
writing by the Corporation.

7.6 Survival of Covenants. The covenants of Employee set
forth in this section 7 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement, whether such termination is for Cause or not for
Cause, whether voluntary or involuntary.

8. Binding Arbitration. If a dispute shall arise under this
Agreement with respect to the interpretation of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement or if either party shall allege that
the other party has in any manner breached this Agreement, the
matter shall be submitted to binding arbitration. The
arbitration shall be conducted as follows:

8.1 Selection of Arbitration Service. The parties shall

select an arbitration service ("Arbitration Service") to perform
the arbitration services.

8.2 Conduct of Arbitration. ZExcept as otherwise agreed by
the parties, the arbitration shall be conducted in all respects
as if the case were litigation brought to trial in Federal Court,
including, without limitation, pleadings, discovery and trial.

" Except as otherwise agreed by the parties, the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure shall be applicable in all respects and the’
internal laws of the State of Tennessee shall be applied to and
govern the matter. ‘

8.3 Selection of Judge. The parties shall select a retired
Federal Court judge from the directory of the Arbitration Service
("Judge"). If the parties are unable to select a judge, the
president of the Arbitration Service shall select a retired
Federal Court judge for the parties.

8.4 Binding Arbitration. The rulings of the Judge shall be
final, cenclusive and binding on the parties and shall not be
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appealed, except as otherwise provided under the Tennessee law of
arbitration.

8.5 Costs. The losing party éhall,pay all of the
attorney’s fees and costs of arbitration.

8.6 Initiation of Arbitration.

8.6.1 Arbitration shall be inxtlated by notice from
one party to the other party of its request for
interpretation of the Agreement or its claim of breach.

8.6.2 Notices shall be given pursuant to Section 9.4
of this Agreement.

8.6.3 If the matter remains unresolved for thirty (30)
days after receipt of the notice, either party may initiate
arbitration by notice to the other party and to the
Arbitration Service. Thereafter, the terms of this Section
8 shall apply. -

9. Miscellaneous Provisions.

9.1 Benefits. This Agreement and the rights, interest and
benefits hereunder shall not be assigned, transferred, or pledged:
in any way bty Employee or any legal representative, executor,
administrator, heir, legatee, distributee, or any other person
claiming under Employee by virtue of this Agreement, and this
Agreement shall not be subject to executlon, attachment, or
similar process.

9,2 Remedies and Costs.

9.2.1 Remedies at law may be inadequate and the
parties shall be entitled to equitable relief, including
without limitation, 1njunct1ve relief, specxfic performance
or other equitable remedies in addltlon to all other
remedies provided hereunder or available to the parties at
law or equity. :

9.2.2 No remedy made availlable by any of the
provisions of this Agreement is intended to be exclusive of
any other remedy, and each and every remedy shall be
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy
given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity or by statute or othkerwise.

9.2.3 1In the event any legal action or other
proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement,
or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or
misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions
of this Agreement, the successful or prevailing party or
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parties shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’
fees and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding,
in addition to any other relief to which it or they may be
entitled. -

9.3 Default and Cure. Except as otherwige provided in
Section 4, in the event either party fails to perform as provided
herein, such party shall not be in default until the
non-defaulting party serves written notice, specifying any such’
failure to perform. If the party upon whom the notice is served
fails to cure within fifteen (15) days then, after the expiration
of said fifteen (15) day period, such party shall be deemed to be
in default, _ ’

9.4 Notices. Any and all notices or any other communica-
tion, provided for herein shall be given in writing by personal
delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, which
shall be addressed, in the case of the Corporation, to its .
principal office, and, in the case of Employee, to the last known
principal of residence as reflected on the Corporation records,
or to such other addresses ag a party may designate from time to
time. Such notice shall be effective on the date of receipt, or
if by certified mail, on the date of mailing.

9.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the
entire agreement and understanding of the parties and contains
all of the agreements with respect to the subject matter hereof.
This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, whether
oral or written, between the parties hereto with respect to the
subject matter hereof.

9.6 Amendment. No amendment or modification of this
Agreement shall be valid or binding upon the Corporation unless
made in writing and signed by a duly authorized officer of the
Corporation (other than Employee), or upon Employee unless made
in writing and signed by Employee. :

9.7 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned without
the express written consent of the parties hereto.

9.8 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,
and all of which together shall constitute a single instrument.

9.9 Non-Waiver. The waiver by the Corporation or Employee
of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate
or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. '

9.10 Severability. 1In the event parts of this Agreement
are found to be void, the remaining provisions of this Agreement
shall be binding with the same effect as though the void parts
were deleted.
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9.11 Qther Agreements. Employee represents and warrants .
that the execution of thies Agreement does not breach any other
agreement to which Employee is a party or violate any other
obligation of Employee to any other party.

'9.12 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be subject to and
governed by the laws of the State of Tennessee, without giving
effect to its conflicts of law provisions.

HIGHLANDS /PHYSI IR INC.

By: ‘ // : Date '1!&}4,7
NeNgbn Gwaltney, M.D., o
President : :

Employee:

. M y Date //{é _/fy
A. Walter Hankwitz A :

Effective .Date:

November 1, 1997
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" Exhibit 6.2

AMENDMENT TO

EMPLOYMENT_AGREEMENT
by and between

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

and

A. WALTER HANKKITZ
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AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Amendment to Employment Zgreement {(“Agreement”)
is effective on the effective date set forth on the
signature page (“Effective Date”) by and between HIGHLANDS
PHYSICIANS, INC., & Delaware corporation (“Corporztion”)
and A. WALTER HANKWITZ (“Employee”).

WITNESGSETH:

WHEREAS, the Corporation and Employee have entcred
into an Employment 2greement effective November i, 1997
{(“Agreenent”); and ST

WHEREAS, the Corporation and Employee desire to amend
the Agreement on the terms and conditions previded herein.

1. ©Proamble and Recitals. The preambie and recitals
hereinabove set forth are hereby incorpcratzed into and made
a part of this Amendment.

2. Amendment to Section 4.1. Section 4.1 of the §
Agreement is hereby deleted and the following substituted
in its stead:

4.1 Unless terminated earlier by the Corporation
or Employee, the Initial Term of this Agreement shall
be an the Effective Date and continue until December
31, 2000. This Agreement shall be automatically
renewed for additional periods of one (1) year (each a
“Renewal Term”).

3. Amendment to Section $§. Section $.1 and Section 5.2

of the Agreement are hereby deleted in their entirety and

the following substituted in their stead:

5.1 Without Cause Termination. If the

Corporation terminates this Agreement without Cause or
if the Employee terminates this Agreement due to a
substantial breach of the Employment Agreement by the
Corporation {subject to Section 9.3) (“Without Czuse
Termination”}, the Corporation shall continue to pay
Employee the salary for one (1) year from the date of
termination. ‘
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4.

£.2 With Cause Termination. Subject to Section
%.3, if the Corporation terminates this Agreement with
Cause (“Cause Termination”), the Corporation shall
continue ta pay Employee the salary for the lesser of’
(i} six (6) months from the date of termination; or
(ti} the date upon which Emplayee obtains new
employment.

5.3 Other Ternination. If the Employee resigns
without a substantial breach of this Agreement by
Corperation {subject to Section 9.3} or if the
Employee is indicted for embezzlement, the salary
shall cease upor ternination of Employee (“Other
Termination”).

Amendment to Section 7. Section 7.2 and Section 7.3

are hereby deleted in their entirety and the following
substituted in their stead:

7.2 Covenant Not to Compete. Upon the
termination or non~renewal of this Agreement,
Employee, for a period of twelve (12} months for a
Without Cause Termination and six (6) months for a
Cause Termination or Other Termination, shall not
ditrectly or indirectly (i) campete with the .
Corporation frem an office within a fifty (50) mile
radius of any office of the Corporation (“Area”): or
(ii) become a partner, member, employee, agent,
independent contractor, advisor, or invester er
participate in any manner, with or in any sole

" proprietorship, partnership, corporation, Iimited

liability company ar any other entity which, directly
or indirectly, competes with the Corporation by
maintaining an office within the Area.

/ 7.3 Covenant Not to Solicit. Upon the
termination or non-renewal of this Agreement,
Employee, for a period of twelve (12} months for a
without Cause Termination and six {6) months for a
Cause Termination or Other Termination, shall not
directly or indirectly solicit the payors, providers
or referral sources of the Corporation or become a
partner, member, employee, agent, advisor, or
investor, or participate in any marner, with or in any
sole proprietorship, partnership, corperatien, limited
liability company cor any other entity which, directly
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or indirectly, solicits the payors, providers or
referral sources of the Corporation.

§. Conflict and Affirmation. If the terms of the
Agreement and this Amendment shall conflict in any respect,
this Amendment shall govern. The parties hereby affirm the
terms of the Agreement in all other respects.

HIGHLANDS PHY3ICIANS, INC.

GO B s sl

Nelsen Gwaltney, M.D.,-. -
‘President

| Employee:

// M&%M Date: ”//‘:.///‘0

A, Walter Hankwitz™

Effective Date:

ﬁbw¢u¢¢x S,
£y ), 2000
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' Exhibit 6.3

LEASED EMPLOYEE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMEN'f, dated as of March 185, 1998, is made by WELLMONT
HEALTH SYSTEM,; a Tennessee non-profit corporation (herein “Wellmont™) and
HIGHLANDS PHYSICIAN S, INCORPORATED, a Delaware corporation (herein
“HPI”) licensed to do business in Tennessee.

WHEREAS Wellmont is a non-profit multi-hospital system that is a joint-venture
" partner with HPI in the Highlands Wellmont Health Network; and

WHEREAS HPI is a for-profit IPA that is a joint-venture partner with Wellmont in the
Highlands Wellmont Health Network; and

WHEREAS HPI has a need to increase its number of employees on a full-time basis to
enable HPI to conduct its day-to-day operations as well as provide services to Highlands
Wellmont Health Network with which it has a contractual commitment to provide such services;
and

WHEREAS Wellmont and HPI both desire to enter into this agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, and in consideration of

the parties’ mutual covenants and undertakings set forth hereinbelow, Wellmont and HPI do

hereby contract and agree as follows:

1. Leased Employees. From and after the effective date of this agreement, Wellmont
shall assign and lease to HPI certain of Wellmont’s employees bn a full-time basis for the
purpose of facilitating and supporting the day-to-day operations of HPI. Notwithstanding the
assignment of the leased employees to HPI pui'suant to this Agreement, Wellmont shall continue
to pay all compen;ation and benefits of such leased employees and HPI shall reimburse
Wellmont for such expense pursuant to Paragraph 4 hereof.

2. Supervision of Leased Emplovees. The Wellmont employees assigned to HPI shall

‘ be subject to the supervision and contro! of HPI officers and directors and shall fulfill such duties

as HPI officers and directors may direct from time to time.
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3. Leased Emplovee Benefits. Not withstanding the assignment of the leased employees

to HPI and HPI’s supervision and control of their day-to-day activities, the leased employees
shall be employees of Wellmont for all benefit purposes and shall continue to p;rticipate in
Wellmont’s employeé benefit programs (including Workers’ Compensation) according to their
status, seniority and other relevant factors. All such [eased employees shall continue to meet all
requirements for Wellmont.employees including continuing education requirements, physical
health standards, and other similar criteria to the extent applicable.

4. Leaﬁe Compensation. In consideration of Wellmont's ﬁssignment of employees to
support HPI’s operations, HPI shall pay to Wellmont, on a monthly basis or at such other
intervals as the parties may agree, such sums as‘shall be necessary to fully reimburse Wellmont
for all compensation and benefits paid to the leased employees by Wellmont including such
increases and adjustments. in compensation and benefits as may be implemented from time to
time.

5. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect for the period March 15, 1998

through December 31, 1998 and shall automatically renew thereafter for additional periods of six
(6) months each unless otherwise terminated by either party in writing upon not less than ninety
(90) days prior written notice to the other party. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon
the required ninety day notice for any reason, with or without cause.

6. Applicable Law. This Agreement is made and intended as a Tennessee contract and

shall be construed.and applied according to the laws of the State of Tennessee.

7. Supplements and Amendments. This Agreement may be supplemented by the parties
from time to time pursuant to written documentation identifying the names and compensation
and benefit levels of the leased employees, as such leased employees may changed from time to
time. This Agreement may only be amended or modified pursuant to written instrument Signed

by duly authorized representatives of each party hereto.
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8. Tax Considerations. In the event any change in applicable federal or state tax statutes

or regulations regarding leased employees hereafter creates a material adverse economic effect
for either party to the Agreement, the parties shall use their best efforts to amend or modify this
Agreement in such ﬁanner as will equitable address such circumstance.
IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed as of
the date first written hereinabove.
WELLMONT HEALTH SYSTEM

By:

Title:

HIGHLANDSZ P ICIANS, INC.

By:

Title: (L“l M U
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Exhibit 6.4
LEASE AGREEMENT

‘LHIS LEASE made as of the 18th day of December, 1997, between Lakeshore Properties, whose
address is Post Office Box 80, Warren, Michigan 48090 (hereinafter called the Landlord) and Highlands
Physicians, Inc. whose address is One Medical Parkway, Bristol, Tennessee 37620 (hereinafter called the
Tenant), WITNESSETH that the Landlord does hereby demise and let unto the Tenant and Tenant hereby
takes and lets the following described premises; to wit; approximately Three Thousand Four Hundred Seventy-
three (3,473) square feet of rentable area on the second (2nd) floor of the Landlord's building known as:
STONE EAST I said premises hereinafter called "Leased Premises”, all as shown on the floor plan designated
Schedule "A" annexcd hereto and made a part hereof, and the said building and land thereunder hereinafier
called the "Property”. [The Tenant's layout of the Leased Premises shall be accomplished according to the
terms of Schedule "D* attached hereto and made a part hereof’]

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Leased Premises, with the appurtenances thereunto belonging, unto
the said Tenant for and during the term of Five (5) year(s) (or until such term shall sooner cease and expire as
hereinafier provided), beginning on the 1st day of February, 1998, and ending on the 31st day of January,
2003, at the annual rental of Thirty-nine Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty-nine and 50/100 ($39,939.50) Dollars,
through January 31, 2001, which Tenant agrees to pay in lawful money of the United States in equal monthly
installments of Three Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-eight and 29/100 ($3,328.29) Dollars. Beginning
February 1, 2001, rent will escalate to Forty-three Thousand Four Hundred Twelve and 50/100 ($43,412.50)
Dollars, payable in equal monthly installments. of Three Thousand Six Hundred Seventeen and 71/100
($3.617.71) Dollars, plus adjustments as provided in Schedule "B" annexed hereto and made a part hereof,
payable, in advance on the first day of every month of said term without any set off or deduction whatsoever
and without demand, at the office of the Landlord. Landlord hereby acknowledges receipt of the sum of
$3,328.29 representing the first month's reat due hereunder.

COVENANTS OF TENANT:

1. And said Tenant, does hereby covenant and agree with said Landlord that it will, throughout the term of this
Lease and any renewals and extensions thereof:

A. RENT. Pay said rental at the times and places and in the manner aforesaid. Except as otherwise
specifically provided herein, any amount due from Tenant to Landlord, including but not limited to rent,
additional rent, additional payments, and all other sums, which are not paid when due shall be subject to a late
payment charge as additicnal rent of two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($250.00) in each instance to cover Landlord's
additional administrative costs caused by the late payment and shall bear interest at the highest rate of interest
which may be allowed by law (hereinafter referred to as "Interest") from the date due until paid, but the -
payment of such Interest shall not excuse nor cure a default by Tenant hereunder. Further, there will be a
$15.00 charge for any check returned to Landlord unpaid for any reason and Tenant will thereafter pay the rent
only with money orders, bank or certified checks. This obligation to pay late charges will exist in addition to
and not in place of any and all other rights and remedies provided under this Lease or at law. Rent is
specifically agreed by Tenant to be a reasonable use and occupancy charge for the leased premises. All
amounts, when received, shall first be applied to late fees;

B. USE. Use and occupy said Leased Premises in careful and proper manner for general office and
for no other purpose,

C. WASTE. Not commit any waste therein, nor at any time use or occupy the Leased Premises in

violation of the certificate of occupancy or like certificate issued for the building of which the Leased Premises
are a pant,;

D. COMPLIANCE. Conform to and obey all present and future laws, and ordinances and all rules,

regulations, requirements and orders of all governmental authontles or agencies, respecting the use and
occupation of the Leased Premises;

E. HAZARDS. Not do or permit any act or thing to be done in or to the Leased Premises which is
contrary to law, or which will invalidate or be in conflict with public liability, fire or other policies of insurance
at any time carried by or for the benefit of Landlord .with respect to the Leased Premises or the building of
which the Leased Premises forms a part or which shall or might subject Landlord to any liability or
responsibility to any person or for property damage, nor shall Tenant keep anything in the Leased Premises
except as now or hereafter permitted by the Fire Depanment Board of Fire Underwriters, or other authority

g jurisdiction, and then onlv in * -0 as not to increase the rate for fire
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insurance applicable to the building, nor usc the Leased Premises in a wrongful manner which will increase the
insurance rate for the building or any property located therein over that in effect prior to the commencement of
Tenant's occupancy. Tenant shall pay all costs, expenses, fines, penalties or damages, which may be imposed
upon Landlord by reason of Tenant's failure to comply with the provisions of this Article;

F. HEAVY OBJECTS. Not place a load upon any floor of the Leased Premises exceeding the floor
load per square foot area which it was designed to carry or which is allowed by law. Landlord reserves the
right to prescribe the weight and position of all safes, business machines and mechanical equipment. Such
installments shall be placed and maintained by Tenant, at Tenant's expense, in settings sufficient in Landlord's
judgment, to absorb and prevent vibration, noise and annoyance;

G. ASSIGNMENT & SUBLETTING. Tenant will not assign this Lease or sublet the Premises, or
any part thereof, without the prior written consent of Landlord; and any attempted assignment or subletting
without such consent shall be invalid. In the event of any such permiited assignment or subletting, Tenant
shall nevertheless at all times remain fully responsible and liable for the payment of rent and performance and
observance of all of Tenant's other obligations under the terms, conditions, and covenants of this Lease. No
assignment or subletting of the Premises or any part thereof shall be binding upon Landlord unless such
assignee or subtenant shall deliver to Landlord an instrument (in recordable form, if requested) containing an
agreement of assumption of all of Tenant's obligations under this Lease. Upon the occurrence of an event of
default, if all or any part of the Premises are then assigned or sublet, Landlord, in addition to any other
remedies provided by this Lease or by law, may, at its option, collect directly from the Tenant or subtenant all
rent becoming due to Landlord by reason of the assignment or subletting. Any collection by Landlord from the
assignee or subtenant shall not be construed to constitute a waiver or release of Tenant from the further
performance of its obligations under this Lease or the making of a new lease with such assignee or subtenant;

H. ALTERATIONS. Make no alterations or additions in or to said Leased Premises without the
prior written consent of said Landlord. If Landlord consents to such alterations, the Tenant shall, prior to the
commencement of any such work, furnish to Landlord all plans and specifications, names and addresses of
contractors, copies of all contracts, permits and licenses, indemnity insurance in a form and amount acceptable
1o Landlord and bond or waivers of lien against any and all claims, costs, expenses or damages;

1. RIGHT OF ENTRY. Pemit the Landlord to enter upon said Leased Premises-at all reasonable
times to examine the condition of the same, and to show same to prospective purchasers, mortgagees and
tenants,

J. TENANT'S PROPERTY. Re-confimm that all property of every nature of Tenant upon the
Leased Premises is liable to any rights of Landlord for any rental or other defaults by Tenant;

K. BUILDING RULES. By the execution of this Lease accept and agree to abide by the building
and parking area rules and regulations or any reasonable modifications or additions thereto during the term of -
this Lease. The current Building Rules and Regulations are annexed hereto as Schedule "C" and made a part
hereof.

L. MAINTENANCE. At its expense, keep the interior of the Leased Premises and fixtures in good
condition and will also repair all damage or injury to the Leased Premises and fixtures resulting from the
carelessness, omission, neglect or other cause of the Tenant, its servants, employees, agents, visitors or
licensees. Such damage shall be promptly repaired or replaced by Tenant, at its sole expense, to the
satisfaction of Landlord. If Tenant fails to make such repairs or replacements, Landlord may do so and the
cost thereof shall become collectible as additional rent hereunder and shall be paid by Tenant within ten (10)
days after presentation of statement therefor.

* M. NUISANCE. Not perform acts or carry on any practices which may injure the property or the
Leased Premises, or be a nuisance or menace to other tenants in the building in which the Leased Premises are
a part.

N. REPAIRS. Make all non-structural repairs to the Leased Premises as and when needed to
preserve them in good order and condition, damage from fire or other casualty insured by Landlord excepted.
Tenant shall also repair all damage to the building and the Leased Premises caused by the moving of Tenant's
fixtures, furniture or equipment. All the aforesaid repairs shall be of quality or class equal to the original
construction;

0. NOTICE TO LANDLORD. Give Landlord prompt notice of any defective condition in any
plumbing, heating system or electrical lines located in, servicing or passing through the Leased Premises and
followmg such notice, Landlord shall remedy the oondmon with due diligence but at the expense of Tenant if

irs are necessitated by damay N A Tenant's servants, agents, employws
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invitees or licensces as aforesaid. There shall be no allowance to Tenant for a diminution of rental value and no
liability on the part of Landlord by reason of inconvenience, annoyance or injury to business arising from
Landlord, Tenant, or others making or failing to make any repairs, alterations, additions or improvements in or
to any portion of the building or the Leased Premises or in and to the fixtures, appurtenances or equipment
thereof. The provisions of this Article with respect to the making of repairs shall not apply in the case of fire or
other casualty which are dealt with in Article 3B hereof;

P. LIABILITY INSURANCE. Keep and maintain public liability insurance naming Landlord as an
additional insured in the minimum amounts of One Million ($1,000,000) Dollars per person and Three Million
($3,000,000) Dollars per occurrence along with minimum property damage liability limits of Five Hundred
Thousand ($500,000) per occurrence, and with companies licensed to do business in the state in which the
Property is located and acceptable to Landlord. Tenant shall fumnish proof of such coverage to Landliord and
provided such insurance will not be cancelled or reduced without ten (10) days prior written notice to
Landlord;

Q. EMINENT DOMAIN. Have no claim for the value of any unexpired term of said Lease or for
any other item of loss other than loss of its moveable fixtures if the whole or any part of the Leased Premises
shall be acquired or condemned by Eminent Domain (including the threat of a taking) for any publlc use or
purpose and then and in that event, the term of this Lease shall cease and terminate;

R. WINDOWS. Not clean, or require, permit, suffer or allow any window in the Leased Premises to
be cleaned, from the outside in violation of any existing applicable law or of the rules of any board or body
having or asserting jurisdiction;

S. ATTORNMENT. And does hereby confirm that this Lease is subject and subordinate to ali
ground or underlying leases now or hereafter made and to all first mortgages which may now or hereafter
affect such leases or the real property of which Leased Premises are a part and to all renewals, modifications,
consolidations, replacements and extensions of any such underlying leases and mortgages. This clause shall be
self-operative and no further instrument of subordination shall be required by any ground or underlying lessee
or by any mortgagee, affecting any lease or the real property of which the Leased Premises are a part. In
further confirmation of such subordination, Tenant shall execute promptly any certificate that Landlord may

~ request;

T. SPECIAL WATER. If a water meter is installed, Tenant shall pay its proportionate share of the
sewer rent and all other rents and charges which are now or hereafter assessed, imposed or may become a lien
on the Leased Premises or the realty of which they are a part;

U. SURRENDER. Upon the expiration or other termination of the term of this Lease, Tenant shall
quit and surrender to Landlord the Leased Premises, broom clean, in good ocder and condition, ordinary wear
excepted. Tenant shall remove all property of Tenant and make all repairs necessitated thereby at its own cost, -
as directed by Landlord. Tenant's obligation to observe or perform this covenant shall survive the expiration or
other termination of the term of this Lease; and

V. INDEMNITY. Indemnify and save Landlord harmless from and against any liability or expense
arising from the use or occupation of the Leased Premises by Tenant, or anyone on the Leased Premises, or
from any breach of this Lease.

COVENANTS OF LANDLORD:
2. And the Landlord on its part covenants and agrees with the Tenant that it will:

A. MAINTENANCE & REPAIR. Maintain and repair the public portions of the building, both

exterior and interior except in case of damage arising from the negligence of a Tenant or its agents or
employees; and

B. UTILITIES. As long as Tenant is not in default under any of the covenants of this Lease, furnish
typical heat, electricity and air conditioning during normal business hours (8:00 am. to 6:00 p.m. Monday
through Friday and Saturday 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.), usual and customary janitorial services and provide for
the use in common of the elevators, restrooms and other like facilities of the building, water for ordinary
lavatory purposes, but if Tenant uses or consumes such utilities for any other purpose or in unusual quantities
(of which fact Landlord shall be the sole judge) Landlord may install a separate meter at Tenant's expense
which Tenant shall thereafter maintain at Tenant's expense in good working order and repair, to register such

consumption and Tenant shall pay for such utilities consumed as shown on said meter as additional rent as and
whaeq bills are rendered.
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MUTUAL COVENANTS:
3. Itis mutually agreed by and between the Landlord and Tenant that: -

A. COVENANTS. If the Tenant shall pay the rent as herein provided, and shall keep, observe and
perform all of the other covenants of this Lease by it to be kept, performed, and observed, the Tenant shall and
may, peaceably and quietly, have, hold, and enjoy the said Leased Premises for the term aforesaid, subject,
nevertheless to the terms and conditions of this Lease, including, but not limited to, any ground leases,
underlying leases and mortgages;

B. FIRE & DAMAGE. If the Building or the Leased Premises or any part thereof shall be injured or
damaged by fire, water, or other casualty, Tenant shall give prompt notice thereof to Landlord, and Landlord
shall, upon receiving such notice, proceed with reasonable diligence and in a manner consistent with the
provisions of this Lease and the underlying mortgages, to repair, or cause to be repaired, only such portions of
the Leased Premises as it is Landlord's obligation to originally furnish hereunder. If the Leased Premises shall
be rendered untenantable, in the sole reasonable judgment of Landlord, by reason of such damage, the rent
shall be abated for the period from the date of such damage to the date when the Landlord has completed
repairing only such portions of the Leased Premises as Landlord is required to repair as aforesaid, unless
Landlord shall make available to Tenant, during the period of repair, other space in the Building reasonably
suitable for the temporary carrying on of Tenant's business, in which event there shall be no abatement of rent;
provided, however, that if Tenant shall fail to promptly adjust his own insurance or to promptly remove his
damaged goods, wares, equipment or property, and as a result thereof the repairs are delayed, there shall be no
abatement of rent during the period of such resulting delay; provided further, that if such damage was caused
by some negligent action or inaction of Tenant or Tenant's employees, agents, licensees, or invitees, then there
shall be no abatement of rent, provided further, that if Landlord shall be unable to collect the insurance
proceeds applicable to such damage because of some action or inaction (before, at, or after the occurrence of
such damage) on the part of Tenant or Tenant's employees, agents, licensees, or invitees, then the cost of
repairing such damage shall be paid solely by Tenant; and provided further, that if Tenant shall use any part of
the Leased Premises for storage during the period of repalr a reasonable charge shall be made therefore against
the Tenant. Landlord shall not be liable for any inconvenience or annoyance to Tenant or injury to the property
or business of Tenant resulting in any way from such damage or the repair thereof;

, C. DESTRUCTION. In case the Building shall be so damaged by fire, water or any other casualty
that substantial alterations or construction shall be required (whether or not the Leased Premises are affected),
then Landlord may terminate this Lease and the term and estate hereby granted, by notifying the Tenant in
writing of such termination within sixty (60) days after the date of such damage, in which case this Lease and
the term and estate hercby granted shall expire as of the date specified in such notice and the rent shall be
apportioned as of the date of termination, subject to abatement as aforesaid from the date of such damage if the
Leased Premises shall have been rendered untenantable by such fire or other casualty;

D. DEFAULT. If the Tenant shall at any time be in default in the payment of rent or additional rent
herein reserved; or if the Tenant shall at any time be in default in the performance of any of the covenants,
terms, conditions or provisions of this Lease and the Tenant shall fail to remedy such default within ten (10)
days or if the Tenant shall be adjudged a bankrupt, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if
a receiver of any property of the Tenant in or upon said Leased Premises be appointed in any action, suit or
proceeding by or against the Tenant, or if the Tenant shall admit to any creditor or to Landlord that it is
insolvent, or if the interest of the Tenant in said Leased Premises shall be sold under execution or other legal
process, it shall be lawful for the Landlord to enter upon said Leased Premises, and again have, repossess and
enjoy the same as if this Lease had not been made, and thereupon this Lease and everything herein contained
on the part of the Landlord to be done and performed shall cease and terminate without prejudlce however to
the right of the Landlord to recover from the Tenant all rent due throughout the remaining term of this lease,
additional rent as provided herein, the costs of repairing any damage caused by Tenant and the costs of
re-renting the Leased Premises. Tenant shall be liable to Landlord for all costs and legal fees incurred by
Landlord in recovering possession of the Leased Premises or collecting damages;

E. WAIVER. The failure of Landlord to seek redress for violation of, or to insist upon the strict
performance of any covenant or condition of this Lease or .of any of the rules or regulations set forth or
hereafter adopted by Landlord, shall not prevent a subsequent act which would have originally constituted a
violation from having all the force and effect of an original violation. The receipt by Landlord of rent with
knowledge of the breach of any covenant of this Lease shall not be deemed a waiver of such breach and no

provision of this Lease shall be deemed to have been waived by Landlord unless such waiver be in writing
signed by Landlord;

F. LOSS OF TENANT'SPRC ™~~~ -t shall not be liable for any damage to
perty of Tenant or of others entrus P-109 nor for loss of or damage to any




property of Tenant by theft or otherwise, nor for any injury or damage to persons or property resulting from
any causc of whatsoever nature, unless caused by or due to the negligence of Landlord, its agents, servants or
employees; nor shall Landlord or its agents be liable for any such damage caused by other tenants or persons in,
upon or about said building or caused by operations in construction of any private, public or quasi public work;

G. REPRESENTATIONS. Neither Landlord nor Landlord's agents have made any representations
or promises with respect to the physical condition of the building, the land upon which it is. erected or the
Leased Premises, the rents, leases, expenses of operation or any other matter or thing affecting or related to the
Leased Premises except as herein expressly set forth and no rights, easements or licenses are acquired by
Tenant by implication or otherwise except as expressly set forth in the provisions of this Lease;

H. DELAY IN COMMENCEMENT. If Landlord is unable to give possession of the Leased
Premises on the date of the commencement of the term hereof, because of the holding-over or retention of
possession of any tenant, under tenant or occupants, or if the Leased Premises have not been sufficiently
completed to make the Leased Premises ready for occupancy or because of the fact that a certificate of
occupancy has not been procured or for any other reason, Landlord shall not be subject to any liability for
failure to give possession on said date and the validity of the Lease shall not be impaired under such
circumstances, nor shall the same be construed in any way to extend the term of this Lease, but the rent payable
hercunder shall be abated (provided Tenant is not responsible for the inability to obtain possession) until after
Landlord shall have given Tenant written notice that the Leased Premises are substantially ready for Tenant's
occupancy;

I. EXCUSE OF LANDLORD'S LIABILITY. This Lease and the obligation of Tenant to pay rent
hereunder and perform all of the other covenants and agreements hereunder on the part of Tenant to be
performed shall in no way be affected, impaired or excused because Landlord is unable to fulfill any of its
obligations under this Lease or to supply or is delayed in supplying any service expressly or implied to be
supplied or is unable to make, or is delayed in making any repairs, additions, alterations or decorations or is
unable to supply or is delayed in supplying any equipment or fixtures if Landlord is prevented or delayed from
so doing by reason of strike or labor troubles or any cause whatsoever including, but not limited to government
preemption in connection with a National Emergency or by reason of any rule, order or regulation of any
department or subdivision thereof of any government agency or by reason of the conditions of supply and
demand which have been or are affected by war or other emergency;

J. SECURITY DEPOSIT. Tenant shall deposit with Landlord the sum of Four Thousand Nine
Hundred Ninety-two and 44/100 ($4,992.44) Dollars upon execution of this lease as security for the
performance by Tenant of the terms of this Lease. Landlord may use any part of the security to satisfy any
default of Tenant and any expenses arising from such default, including but not limited to any damages or rent
deficiency before or after reentry by Landlord. Tenant shall, upon demand, deposit with Landlord the full
amount so used, in order that Landlord shall have the full security deposit on hand at all times during the term
of this Lease. 1f Tenant shall comply fully with the terms of this Lease, the security deposit shall be retumed to
Tenant afier the date fixed as the end of the Lease. In the event of a sale or lease of the building containing the
Leased Premises. Landlord may transfer the security to the purchaser or lessee and Landlord shall thereupon
be rcleased from all liability for the return of the security. Tenant shall have no legal power to assign or
cncumber the security herein described. Landlord shall not be required to pay interest on any securily deposit;

K. SERVICES. Any services which Landlord is required to furnish pursuant to the provisions of this
Lease, may, at Landlord's option, be furnished from time to time, in whole or in part, by employees of Landlord
or by the Managing Agent of the Property or by one or more third persons and Landlord further reserves the
right to require Tenant to enter into agreements with such third persons in form and content -approved by
Landlord for the furnishing of such services;

L. HOLDING OVER. If Tenant shall hold over afler the term of this Lease, Tenant shall be
obligated to pay therefore a monthly rental equal to double the highest monthly rent at any time payable under
the terms of this Lease. The provisions of this Section shall not waive nor in any way affect Landlord's right to
re-enter and repossess the Premises as elsewhere provided in this Lease or as provided by law; but in the event
that Tenant shall fail after demand by Landlord to deliver up possession to Landlord upon any termination of
this Lease (whether at the end of the term, or earlier upon Tenant's default, or otherwise), Tenant shall be liable
to Landlord for the double rent hereinbefore provided but without any rights of tenancy and solely as one
forcibly detaining possession of the Premises;

M. INVALIDITY. In case any one or more of the provisions of this Lease are held to be invalid,
illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other
provision hereof:
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N. PARKING. Tenant agrees to be bound by parking regulations in effect at the Property, together
with reasonable modifications or additions as may be necessary during the term of the Lease;

0. NOTICE. Any bill, notice or demand from Landlord to Tenant, may be delivered personally at the
premises or sent by registered or certified mail. Such bill, notice or demand shall be deemed to have been given
at the time of delivery or mailing. Any notice from Tenant to Landlord must be sent by registered or certified
mail to the last address designed in writing by Landlord; and

P. BINDING EFFECT. The covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Lease shall bind
and inure to the benefit of Landlord and Tenant and their respective heirs, distributees, successors,
administrators and executors provided, however, that no assignment by, from, through, or under the Tenant in
viclation of any of the provisions hereof shall vest in the assigns any right, title or interest whatsoever.

Q. DEFINITION OF LEASED PREMISES. "Leased Premises", as used herein, shall be computed
by measuring from the inside edge of the exterior glass walls to the office side of cormidors and/or other
permanent partitions, and to the center of partitions that separate the Premises from adjoining rentable area,
and shall include a proportionate share of public corridors, public toilets, air conditioning rooms, fan rooms,
janitors' closets, electrical closets and telephone closets on each floor, but shall not include stairs, elevator
shafs, flues, stacks, pipe shafis and vertical ducts with their enclosing walls. "Rentable Area of the Building",
as used herein, shall be the sum of rentable areas on all office floors. The rentable area of each floor shall be
computed by measuring to the inside edge of exterior glass walls and shall include all the area within the
exterior glass walls, but not including stairs (except for stairs specially designed for the use of a particular
tenant), elevator shafts, flues, stacks, pipe shafts and vertical ducts with their enclosing walls. In computing
rentable area, no deduction shall be made for columns and projections necessary to the Building.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this Lease has been duly executed by the Landlord and the Tenant as of
the day and year first above written.

WITNESSES (FOR LANDLORD) . LAKESHORE PROPERTIES, as Landlord

BY: Qawell "l 7t

ITS: Dig £cTor oF REAL ESTATE

WITNESSES (FOR TENANT) HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC,, as Tenant

vv: L, ppelly flovibeciZ
Y

ITS: W AW
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SCHEDULE"B"

ADDITIONAL RENTAL AND ADJUSTMENTS

Scction 1.1 In the event of any increases, in any calendar year, in real estate taxes or assessments payable
with respect to the land or building of which the Leased Premises are a part, over and above the amount paid
by Landlord for Taxes in the Calendar year 1997 (Base Year), such increases in taxes or assessments shall be
paid by the Tenant proportionately as the square footage hereunder bears to the tota! rentable square footage
of the Property. Landlord shall notify ‘Tenant of any such increase in taxes and shall indicate in such notice the
amount of Tenant's pro-rata share of same. Tenant's obligation hereunder shall be pro-rated for any calendar
year in which Tenant is obligated to pay rent for only a portion thereof.

Section 1.2 Tenant shall also pay to Landlord, as additional rent, the amount of any assessment or
instaliment thereof for property betterment’s or improvements which may be levied upon the Property in the
same proportion as hereinbefore stated.

Section 2.1 In the event of any increases, in any calendar year, in the operating expenses payable with
respect to the land or building of which the Leased Premises are a part, over and above the amount paid by
Landlord for operating expenses in the Calendar year 1997 (Base Year), such increase in operating expenses
shall be paid by the Tenant proportionately as the square footage hereunder bears to the total rentable square
footage of the Property. Landlord shall notify Tenant of any such increase in operating expenses and shall
indicate in such notice the amount of Tenant's pro-rata share of same. Tenant's obligation hereunder shall be
pro-rated for any calendar year in which Tenant is obligated to pay rent for only a portion thereof.

Section 2.2 Definition of Operating Expenses. For the purposes of Schedule B, the term “Operating
Expenses” shall mean and include those expenses paid or incurred by Landlord for maintaining, operating and
repairing the real property and the personal property used in conjunction therewith (hereinafter referred to as
the "Premises"), the cost of electricity, steam, water, fuel, heating, lighting, air conditioning, window cleaning,
jenitorial service, insurance, including, but not limited to, fire, extended coverage, liability, workmen's
compensation, elevator, boiler and machinery, war nsk, or any other insurance carried in good faith by

_Landlord and applicable to the Premises; painting, uniforms, customary management fees, supplies, sundries,
" sales or use taxes on supplies or services; cost of wages and salaries of all persons engaged in the operation,
maintenance and repair of the Premises, and so-called fringe benefits, including social security taxes,
unemployment insurance taxes, cost for providing coverage for disability benefits, cost of any pensions,
hospitalization, welfare or retirement plans, or any other similar or like expenses incurred under the provisions
of any collective bargaining agreement, or any other similar or like expenses which Landlord pays or incurs to
provide benefits for employees so engaged in the operation, maintenance and repair of the Premises; the
charges of any independent contractor who, under contract with Landlord or its representatives, does any of
the work of operating, maintaining or repairing of the Premises; legal and accounting expenses, including, but .
not limited (o such expenses as relate to seeking or obtaining reductions in and refunds of real estate taxes; or
any other expenses or charges, whether or not hereinbefore mentioned, which in accordance with generally
accepted accounting and management principles would be considered as an expense of maintaining, operating,
or repairing the Premises. 1fthe Premises are not fully rented during all or a portion of any year, or subsequent,
then Landlord may elect to make an appropriate adjustment of the Operating Expenses for such year,
employing sound accounting and management principles, to determine the amount of Operating Expenses that
would have been paid or incurred by Landlord had the Premises been fully rented; and the amount so
determined shall be deemed to have been the amount of Operating Expenses for such year. If any expenses
relating to the Premises, though paid in one year, relates to more than one calendar year, at the option of the
Landlord, such expense may be proportionately allocated among such related calendar years.

Section 2.3 At the time of any adjustment made pursuant to Section 2.1 hereof, Landlord shall fumish to
Tenant evidence of such increase in costs or operating expenses sufficient in Landlord's opinion to sustain the
adjustment in rent which it bills to Tenant. If Tenant is not satisfied with Landlord's determination of the
amount of such additional rent as provided for in Section 2.1 hereof, Tenant shall pay such additional rent, but
Tenant shall have the right to require Landlord to furnish to Tenant at Tenant's expense reasonable additional
supporting documentation of the basis for such increase within ninety (90) days of Landlord's notification of
such adjustment. Failure to do so will be construed as Tenant's acceptance of such adjustment.

Section 3.1  Billing for above Rent Adjustments. As soon as reasonable after the expiration of each
calendar year, Landlord will furnish the Tenant a statement showing the following:

(A)  Expenses and Taxes for said expired calendar year.
(B)  The Expenses and Taxes for the Base Year.
(C)  TheRent Adjustmer T T 7T 7 7 salendar year.
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(D)  The Rent Adjustment to be paid with each rent installment during such new calendar year
(bascd upon the Rent Adjustment for said expired calendar year).

Any amount due Landlord as shown on such statement shall be paid by Tenant within tweaty (20) days after
such statement is rendered. Any and all unpaid Rent Adjustments shall bear interest at the highest rate allowed
by law until paid.

Definition of Tenant's Proportionate Share - “Tenant's Proportionate Share” means the percentage resulting
from dividing the number of square feet of Rentable Area in the Leased Premises (3,473) by the number of

square feet of Rentable Area of space in the Property (53,072) Tenant's Proportionate Share being Six and
fifty-four one-hundredths (6.54%)) percent.

Approved by Tenant this 18th day of December, 1997:

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC., AS TENANT

By, L e 7, A/M«%
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SCHEDULE"C"

BUILDING RULES & REGULATIONS

Attached to and made part of Lease, dated December 18, 1997, between LAKESHORE
PROPERTIES, LANDLORD and HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC., AS TENANT.

Tenant agrecs for itself, its émployccs. agents, clients, customers, invitees and guests, to comply fully
with the following rules and regulations and with such rcasonable modifications thercof and additions thercto
as Landlord may make for the Building;

(A)  Any sign, lettering, picture, notice or advertisement installed within the Premises which is
visible from the public corridors within the Building shall be installed in such manner and be of such character
and style as Landlord shall approve in writing. No sign, lettering, picture, notice or advertisemnent shall be
placed on any outside window or in a position to be visible from outside the Building.

(B)  Tenant shall not use the name of the Building for any purpose other than that of the business
address of Tenant, and shall not use any picture or likeness of the Building in any circulars, notices,
advertisements or correspondence.

(C)  Tenant shall not obstruct sidewalks, entrances, passages, courts, corridors, vestibules, halls,
elevators and stairways in or about the Building, nor shall Tenant place objects against glass partitions, doors
or windows which would be unsightly from the Building's corridors, or from the exterior of the Building.

(D)  No animals or pets or bicycles or other vehicles shall be brought or permitted to be in the
Building or the Premises.

(E)  Tenant shall not make excesstve noises, cause disturbances or vibrations, or use or operate any
musical, electrical or electronic devices or other devices that emit loud sounds or air waves which may disturb
or annoy other tenants or occupants of the Building,

(F)  Tenant shall not make any room-to-room canvass to solicit business from other tenants of the
Building and shall cooperate to prevent same.

(G)  Tenant shall not create any odors which may be offensive to other tenants or occupants of the
Building.

(H)  Tenant shall not waste electricity, water or air-conditioning, and shall cooperate fully with
Landlord to assure the most effective operation of the Building's heating and air-conditioning. Tenant shall not
adjust any controls other than room thermostats installed for Tenant's use. Tenant shall not tie, wedge or
otherwise fasten open any water faucet or outlet. Tenant shall keep all corridor doors closed.

(4] No additional locks or similar devices shall be attached to any door and no locks shall be
changed except by Landlord. Upon termination of this Lease or of Tenant's possession of the Premises.
Tenant shall surrender all keys for door locks and other locks in or about the Premises and shall make known
to Landlord the combination of all locks, safes, cabinets and vaults which are not removed by Tenant,

) Tenant assumes full responsibility for protecting the Premises from theft, robbery and pilferage.
Except during Tenant's normal business hours, Tenant shall keep all doors to the Premises locked and other
means of entry to the Premises closed and secured.

(K)  Tenant shall not install or operate any machinery or mechanical devices of a nature not directly
related to Tenant's ordinary use of the Premises.

(L)  Tenant shall not employ any person to perform any cleaning, repairing, janitorial, decorating,
painting or other services or work in or about the Prermses except with the approval of Landlord, which
approval shall not be unreasonable withheld.

(M) Tenant shall ascertain from Landlord the maximum amount of electrical current which can
safely be used in the Premises, taking into account the capacity of the electric wiring in the Building and the
Premises and the needs of other tenants, and shall not use more than such safe capacity. Landlord's consent to

the installation of electric equipment shall not relieve Tenant from the obligation not to use more electricity
than such safe capacity.
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(N)  Tenant shall not overload any floor and shall not install any heavy objects, safes, business
machines, files or other equipment without having received Landlord's prior written consent as to size,
maximum weight, routing and focation thereof. Safes, furniture, equipment, machines and other large or bulky
articles shall be brought through the Building and into and out of the Premises at such times and in such
manner as the Landlord shall direct (including the designation of elevator) and at Tenant's sole risk and
responsibility. Prior to Tenant's removal of any such articles from the Building, Tenant shall obtain written
authorization therefor at the Office of the Building and shall present such writing to a designated employee of
Landlord.

(O)  Tenant shall not in any manner deface or damage the Building.

(P)  Tenant shall not bring into the Building or Premises inflammables such as gasoline, kerosene,
naphtha and benzine, or explosives or any other articles of an intrinsically darigerous nature.

(Q) Movement in or out of the Building of funiture or office equipment, or dispatch or receipt by
Lessee of any merchandise or materials other than hand-delivered packages, which requires the use of elevators
or stairways or movement through the building entrances or lobby, shall be restricted to the hours designated
by Landlord and in a manner to be agreed upon between Tenant and Landlord by prearrangement before
performance. Tenant assumes all risk of damage to any and all articles so moved, as well as injury to any
person or property in such movement, and hereby agrees to indemnify Landlord against any loss resulting
therefrom.

(R)  Landiord shall not be responsible for any loss or stolen property, equipment, money or jewelry
from the leased premises or the public areas of the building regardless of whether such loss occurs when the
leased premises are locked or not.

(S)  No food shall be prepared or cooked in the Leased Premises, and the premises shall not be
used for housing, lodging, sleeping or for any immoral or illegal purpose. Nothing contained in this clause,
however, shall be constructed to prohibit to Tenant's operation of an employee coffee lounge facilities in the
Leased Premises.

) (T)  The work of the janitor or cleaning personnel shall not be hindered by Tenant after 5:30"p.m.
" and the windows may be cleaned at any time. Tenant shall provide adequate waste and rubbish receptacles to
prevent unreasonable hardship to Landlord in discharging its obligations regarding cleaning services.

(U)  Tenant will refer all contractors installation technicians rendening any service for Tenant for
supervision and approval before performance of any such services, Tenant will not permit any mechanic's liens
1o be placed against the premises and that any contract Tenant enters into for work to be performed on the
premises will contain a waiver of mechanic's lien.

(V)  Tenant shall not (either with or without negligence) cause or permit the escape, disposal or
release of any biologically or chemically active or other hazardous substances or materials. Tenant shall not
allow the storage or use of such substances or materials in‘any manner not sanctioned by law or by the highest
standards prevailing in the industry for the storage and use of such substances or materials, nor allow to be
brought into the Property any such materials or substances except to use in the ordinary course of Tenant's

business, and then only after written notice to and approval of Landlord of the identity of such substances or
- matenals.

Tenant shall be responsible for the observance of all of the foregoing rules and regulations by Tenant's
employees, agents, clients, customers, invitees and guests. Landlord shall not be responsible for any violation

of the foregoing rules and regulation by other tenants of the Building and shall have no obligation to enforce
the same against other tenants.

Approved by Tenant this 18th day of December, 1997

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC., AS TENANT
By: / L, W »
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SCHEDULE "D"

SUITE LAYOUT, LANDLORD'S & TENANT'S WORK

A.  SUITE LAYOUT. Contemporaneously with the execution of this Lease, or within thirty (30) days
from the date hereof, Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish to Landlord four (4) copies of a Suite
Layout. Such Suite Layout shall be in such form and contain such substance as shall be acceptable to
Landlord's Architect, and shall indicate the desired layout of the Leased Premises including, but without
limitation: :

(i) Desired panitioning of the Leased Premises, doorways, openings, doors, and color and finish
thereof chosen from selections made available by Landlord;

(i)  Desired electrical convenience outlets, and other electrical equipment contemplated;
(iii)  Desired telephone outlets, locations and needs;

(iv)  Overhead fluorescent lighting fixture needs and locations, in conformity with the Original Plans
and Specifications; and

(v)  Locations of floor, heat registers and overhead air conditioning vents, in conformity with the
Original Plans and Specifications.

B. LANDLORD'S WORK. Landlord agrees that it shall cause its contractors to do the following
specified work in and to the Leased Premises, such work to be done for and in the name of Tenant and at
Tenant's sole cost and expense and in accordance with the Approved Suite Layout:

@) Installation of partitioning, doorways, openings, and doors;
(i)  Installation and connection of electrical convenience outlets; and

(iii)  Installation of telephone line conduits for the telephone outlets and requirements indicated on
the Approved Suite Layout (but not including the hook-up of such conduits, nor the furnishing,
hook-up or installation of any telephone equipment, all of which shall be done by the telephone
company as arranged by Tenant and at Tenant's sole cost and expense).

C. TENANT'S WORK. Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall do or cause to be done all other and
additional work in and to the Leased Premises as Tenant shall desire in order to prepare such Premises for
Tenant's occupancy, subject to all of the provisions of this Lease.

D. COMPLETION OF LANDLORD'S WORK. Landlord shall, from time to time during the course
of construction, provide information to Tenant concerning the progress of construction of the Leased Premises
and shall, when construction progress so permits, notify Tenant in advance (orally or in writing) of the exact or
approximate date by which the Landlord's work for Tenant will be completed and the Leased Premises ready
for Tenant's work. Landlord shall give written notice to Tenant of the date that Landlord's work for Tenant
has been substantially completed, stating that such work has been completed and that the Leased Premises are
ready for Tenant's work. Such work shall not be deemed to be incomplete if only minor details of construction
or decoration, or mechanical adjustments, remain to be done. If any dispute shall arise as to the completion of
Landlord's work for Tenant or the date thereof, a certificate furnished by Landlord's Architect so certifying
shall be conclusive and binding of that fact and date on all parties.

E. DELAY IN COMPLETION, In the event that the completion of Landlord's work is delayed beyond
four (4) weeks prior to the commencement date of the lease for any reason, including non-completion by
Landlord or Landlord's contractors of Landlord's work for Tenant, then this Lease shall not be affected
thereby, but the rent payable hereunder, as apportioned with respect to the period during which such
postponement occurs, shall be abated; provided, that there shall be no such abatement for any period of delay
in the completion date which shall be caused in whole or in part by Tenant through the delay of Tenant in
submitting the Suite Layout (or in making the necessary changes thereto to obtain the approval of Landlord's
Architect), or which shall be due to deviations demanded by Tenant from the Original Plans and Specifications
or Approved Suite Layout, or which shall be due to special work, changes or additions required by Tenant in
the layout or finish of the Leased Premises. Such abatement, if any, shall be in full satisfaction and settlement
of all claims which Tenant might otherwise have by reason of any such delay. Landlord's determination, in its
sole judgment, of the cause of any such delay shall be final, conclusive and binding upon all parties.
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[ NO DAMAGES. Neither Landlord, nor its officers, employees or agents, nor Landlord's Architect,
nor Landlord’s contractors, shall in any way be responsible or liable to Tenant, or to anyone claiming by,
through or under Tenant, for any damage, loss of business, expense, cost, or injury of whatsoever kind or
nature, related to, arising out of, or connected with any delay in or failure to complete construction of
Landlord's work for Tenant howsoever caused.

G. DISPUTES. The parties agree that any disagreement or dispute which tnay arise between Landlord

and Tenant concerning any of the work to be performed hereunder by Landlord, or the completion thereof,
shall be resolved by Landlord's Architect, whose decision shall be final and binding on all parties.

Approved by Tenant this 18th day of December, 1997:

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC,, AS TENANT

By://&%/é/wéf\( |
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Exhibit 6.5

AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT made and entered into as of the Ist day of March, 1998, by and between
LAKESHORE PROPERTIES (hereinafter referred to as “Landlord”), and Highlands Physicians,Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as “Tenant”).

WITNESSETH:

‘ The parties hereto entered into a Lease Agreement on December 18, 1997 , under which Landlord leased
to Tenant certain premises described in the Lease located in the City of KINGSPORT, County of SULLIVAN,
State of TENNESSEE, commonly known as 2550 EAST STONE DRIVE, SUITE 220.

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend said Lease Agreement for the purpose of changing the
term of the Lease.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and agreements hereinafter
contained, it is mutually understood by and between the parties hereto that the Lease is hereby amended as

follows:

1. TERM. The term of the Amendment to Lease shall begin on March 1st, 1998 and end on
February 28th, 2003.

2. TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Leased Premises, with the appurtenances thereunto belonging, unto
~ the said Tenant for and during the term of Five (5) year(s) (or until such term shall sooner cease and

expire as hereinafter provided), beginning on the 1st day of March, 1998, and ending on the 28th day
of February, 2003, at the annual rental of Thirty-nine Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty-nine and 50/100
($39,939.50) Dollars, through February 28, 2001, which Tenant agrees to pay in lawful money of
the United States in equal monthly installments of Three Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-eight and
29/100 ($3,328.29) Dollars. Beginning March 1, 2001, rent will escalate to Forty-three Thousand
Four Hundred Twelve and 50/100 ($43,412.50) Dollars, payable in equal monthly installments of
Three Thousand Six Hundred Seventeen and 71/100 ($3,617.71) Dollars, plus adjustments as provided
in Schedule "B" annexed hereto and made a part hereof, payable, in advance on the first day of every
month of said term without any set off or deduction whatsoever and without demand, at the office of
the Landlord. Landlord hereby acknowledges receipt of the sum of $3,328.29 representing the first
month's rént due hereunder.

CONFLICT. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Amendment and the terms of
the Lease, the terms of this Amendment shall control. All of the defined terms in the Lease shall
have the same definitions in this Amendment, unless otherwise defined herein. Except as set forth
in this Amendment, the terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain unmodlﬁed and in full

force and effect. -

(V3
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Except as hereinabove specifically provided to the contrary, all of the remaining terms, covenants,
conditions, and agreements in the Lease Agreement remain in full force and effect, and the Lease dated

December 18, 1997, is hereby acknowledged, ratified, and confirmed by the parties thereto.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first

above written.

WITNESSES: LANDLORD: LAKESHORE PROPERTIES

-~ —
Fred P. Calderone
ITS: Vice President
WITNESSES: TENANT: HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS,INC.

ﬁd’ CQ”/ = Y N Y
| NG
ITS@ZQJQM &M{
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Exhibjtg o

1997 RESTATED

PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT
by and between

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS. INC.

and

(NAME OF PROVIDER)
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1997 RESTATED
PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and

entered into as of the Effective Date set forth on the signature page of this Agreement, by and
between HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC,, a Delaware corporation ("Highlands"), and the
person or entity whose name is listed under the heading "Provider" on the signature page of this
Agreement ("Provider").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Provider is either (i) an individual health care provider duly licensed,
certified, accredited or otherwise duly authorized to practice in the states of practice; or (ii) a
pactnership, professional service corporation or other entity duly organized and existing under
and pursuant to the laws of the states of practice, the partners, shareholders, members and
professional provider employees of which (together the "Provider") are all duly authorized to
practice in the states of practice; and

WHEREAS, Highlands desires to obtain quality, cost efficient health care services from
selected health care providers and to negotiate agreements with purchasers of such services; and

- WHEREAS, Highlands desires to engage Provider to furnish such services and Provder
desires to furnish such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises and
covenants herein contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Preamble and Recitals

The preamble and recitals hereinabove set forth are hereby incorporated into and made a
part of this Agreement.

2. Definitions
2.1 Plans. "Plans" means individual and group health benefit contracts, workers

compensation programs, policies of health insurance, policies of automobile insurance, or other
plans of a Payor which shall be subject to this Agreement.

22 Eligible Persons. "Eligible Persons" means the persons entitled to receive the
~ Covered Services pursuant to a Plan.
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23  Covered Services. "Covered Services" means the health care services provided
pursuant to a Plan.

24  Participating Provider. "Participating Provider" means those health care
providers, including, without limitation, physicians, facilities, ancillary health care facilities and
-ancillary health care providers, who have directly, or indirectly through Highlands agreements
with other networks ("Leased Networks"), entered into an agreement with Highlands to perform
the Covered Services.

2.5  Payor. "Payor" means the party responsible for the actual payment for Covered
Services rendered to Eligible Persons that has, directly or indirectly, entered into a Payor
Agreement with Highlands. Payors "indirectly" entering into Payor Agreements with Highlands
shall include, without limitation, payors of entities leasing the Highlands Network ("Network
“Lessee" ).

2.6  Payor Agreement. “"Payor Agreement" means an agreement with a Payor directly,
or indirectly with a Network Lessee, pursuant to which Participating Providers shall provide the

Covered Services.

2.7 Standard Terms. "Standard Terms" means the terms set forth in EXHIBIT 2.7.

28 Fee Schedule. “Fee Schedule" means a schedule of maximum reimbursement
amounts pursuant to which a Payor shall pay Participating Providers to provide Covered
Services. Descriptions of current fee schedules pertaining to Provider are set forth in EXHIBIT
2.8.

29  Utilization Management Program. "Utilization Management Program" means
either the utilization management program established, administered and/or subcontracted by
Highlands or the Utilization Management Program required by an entity or a Payor in a Payor
Agreement. '

2.10  Credentialing Criteria. "Credentialing Criteria" means the criteria established by
Highlands for the credentialing and recredentialing of Participating Providers which may be
amended from time to time by Highlands in its sole discretion. The Credentialing Criteria
pertaining to Provider are set forth in EXHIBIT 2.10.

211  Provider Manual. The "Provider Manual" means the Highlands manual of rules,
regulations, policies and procedures of Highlands as provided to Provider.
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2.12  Medically Appropriate.

2.12.1 "Medically Appropriate" or "Medical Appropriateness" means
services or supplies whicb, under the provisions of this Agreement, are
determined to be: (i) appropriate and necessary for the systems, diagnosis or
treatment of the injury or disease; (ii) provided for the diagnosis or direct care and
treatment of the injury or disease; (iii) preventative services as provided in a Plan;
(iv) within standards of good medical practice within the organized medical
community; (v) not primarily for the convenience of the Eligible Person or of any
provider providing Covered Services to the Eligible Person; (vi) an appropriate
supply or level of service needed to provide safe and adequate care; (vii) within
the scope of the medical specialty education and training of a provider; and (viii)
provided in a selling consistent with the required level of care.

2.12.2 Medically Appropriate services may not be Covered Services
under a Plan.

2.12.3 A Plan may provide a different definition of Medical
Appropriateness. If the definition of Medical Appropriateness shall conflict with
the definition in a Plan, the definition in a Plan shall control.

2.13  Participating Provider Review Procedure. "Review
Procedure" means the Procedure whereby a Participating Provider may request a reconsideration
of (i) the termination of this Agreement by Highlands; or (ii) a suspension as a Participating
Provider.

3. Terms and Fee Schedules

3.1 Standard Terms and Fee Schedule.

3.1.1 Provider accepts and is hereby bound by the standard Terms and
the Fee Schedule.

3.1.2  Provider shall provide Medically Appropriate Covered Services to
Eligible Persons of each Payor executing a Payor Agreement with Highlands or
revising an existing Payor Agreement if the terms and fee schedules are
substantially similar to the Standard Terms and the Fee Schedule.

3.1.3 If an additional Payor executes a Payor Agreement with Highlands
or an existing Payor revises a Payor Agreement and Section 3.1.2 applies,
Highlands shall provide notice to Provider of the identity of the Payor and any
other information necessary for Provider to fulfill the obligations of Provider
hereunder.
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3.2 Modification of Standard Terms and Fee Schedule.

3.2.1 During the term of this Agreement, Highlands may (i) modify or
create new Standard Terms or a new Fee Schedule; or (ii) create separate terms
and Fee Schedules for various Highlands programs.

3.2.2 Highlands shall submit the modified, created or negotiated terms
and/or Fee Schedules (together "Modifications") to Provider. Provider shall have
the option to reject the Modifications by serving written notice of such rejection
upon Highlands within forty-five (45) days of the effective date of the notice from
Highlands. '

3.23 Failure to provide notice of rejection within such forty-five (45)
day period shall constitute acceptance by Provider, arid the Modifications shall
either replace the existing Standard Terms and/or Fee Schedule or become
additional Standard Terms or Fee Schedules for an Highlands program or for an
individual Payor, as applicable.

3.2.4 If Provider rejects the Modifications for an Highlands program or
Modifications which have been negotiated with an individual Payor, Provider
shall not be required to provide Covered Services to Eligible Persons in such
Highlands program or for such Payor, as applicable.

3.2.5 If Provider rejects the Modifications, Highlands shall have the
option to (i) implement the Modifications without inclusion of Provider; (ii)
withdraw the Modifications; or (iii) terminate this Agreement in accordance with
Section 7.3.3. ‘

4. Obligations of Highlands

4.1 Administration. Highlands shall administer and, in its sole discretion, determine
the composition of the network of Participating Providers of Highlands.

42  Marketing and Promotion. Highlands shall, within its own discretion: -

42.1 market, advertise and actively promote Highlands; and

4.2.2 solicit Payor Agreements from Payors offering reasonable levels of
reimbursement and Plans that may include financial incentives or other programs
to encourage Eligible Persons to use Participatinq Providers:

423 Péyors shall be required to comply with the terms of this

Agreement and shall not be required to establish financial incentives or other
programs to encourage Eligible Persons to use Participating Providers.
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43  Assistance. To permit Highlands to perform its obligations pursuant to this
Agreement, Provider shall assist Highlands in marketing, advertising and promotion. Highlands
shall use its best efforts to furnish Provider with appropriate materials to support such efforts.

4.4  Information. Highlands shall use its best efforts to (1) obtain current information
from each Payor on a timely basis with regard to the identity of Payors and/or Eligible Persons;
and (ii) maintain and disseminate such information to the Participating Providers as Highlands
shall, within its sole discretion, deem appropriate to keep each Participating Provider reasonably
informed as to the identity of the Eligible Persons.

4.5  Liability for Claims: Decisions and Fees. Highlands shall not be responsible or
liable for any claims decisions or for the payment of any claims submitted by Provider for
furnishing Covered Services or non-Covered Services to Eligible Persons. Highlands shall not be
an insurer, guarantor or underwriter of the responsibility or liability of any Payor to provide
benefits pursuant to any Plan.

5. Obligations of Provider

5.1 Provider Standards. Provider hereby warrants and represents that:

5.1.1 Provider is and, at all times during this Agreement, shall be in
compliance with the Credentialing Criteria; and

5.1.2 the information contained in the application of Provider for
membership in Highlands is true and correct in all respects and does not fail to

state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein not misleading.

52 Provider Services and Obligations. Provider shall:

5.2.1 provide Medically Appropriate Covered Services to Eligible
Persons for which Provider is qualified and which Provider customarily furnishes
to the general public from the office locations indicated on the signature page of
this Agreement ("Provider's Offices"). Services rendered from sites not listed as
Provider's Offices shall be considered rendered by Provider pursuant to this
~Agreement; and

3.2.2 perform the Covered Services pursuant to the standards of good
medical practice within the organized medical community; and

5.2.3 treat Eligible Persons in all respects no less favorably than
Provider treats all other patients, and determine whether or not to accept Eligible
Persons for treatment or terminate the treatment of Eligible Persons only on the
basis of the same criteria employed by Provider to make such determinations in
connection with all other Patients; and
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5.2.4 obtain from Eligible Persons a written assignment of benefits and
an authorization to release medical records, in a form approved by Highlands,
cooperate and comply with the billing and other procedures established by
Highlands or a Payor and set forth in the Provider Manual or in other written
communications from Highlands; and

5.2.5 submit all claims for Covered Services as provided in the Provider
Manual and pursuant to the Standard Terms. Provider shall accept as full payment
from each Payor for the Covered Services deemed Medically Appropriate
pursuant to the Utilization Management Program the lesser of charges
customarily charged to other patients or the consideration provided in the Fee
Schedule. Provider hereby waives any amounts from any Payor and any Eligible
Person (i) in excess of the fees customarily charged to other patients or the
amounts provided in the Fee Schedule; and (ii) any amount from any Payor or
Eligible Person for services which have been deemed not to be Medically
App~ropriate by the Utilization Management Program. Provider hereby
acknowledges that payment for Covered Services furnished to Eligible Persons
shall be due solely from a Payor and such Eligible Persons; and

5.2.6 subject to Section 6.3, provide any Payor and Highlands, its agents
and any utilization management company engaged by Highlands with access,
upon reasonable notice during normal business hours, to the appropriate records
and information regarding Covered Services rendered to Eligible Persons for
inspection and copying in such a manner as may be reasonably requested by
Highlands or a utilization management company to permit Highlands or a
utilization management company to implement the Utilization Management
Program and perform its administrative obligations set forth herein and to verify
claims for Covered Services submitted by Provider; and

5.2.7 within the dictates of good practice, and in the best interest of
Eligible Persons under Provider's care, refer such Eligible Persons requiring
referral to other Participating Providers except in an emergency; PROVIDED,
HOWEVER, (i) if Provider is unable or unwilling to refer an Eligible Person to

another Participating Provider, Provider shall contact Highlands prior to any

" referral to a nonParticipating Provider; and (ii) if Provider shall refer Eligible
Persons to non-Participating Providers, Provider shall, prior to such referral,
obtain the written authorization of the Eligible Person, which authorization shall
include an acknowledgement by the Eligible Person that referred provider is not a
Participating Provider and that the performance of services by the referred

- provider may result in higher charges than if such services were performed by a
Participatinq Provider;

5.2.8 comply with the rules, regulations, policies and procedures as
enacted by Highlands from time to time and summarized in the Provider Manual,
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53

. comply with the Utilization Management Program, participate in and observe the

protocols of the Utilization Management Program, submit to performance reviews
in conjunction therewith and be bound by the payment decisions issued pursuant

. to the Utilization Management Program; and

5.2.9 within ten (10) days of occurrence, notify Highlands and provide
Highlands with all information with respect to any disciplinary action against
Provider or any malpractice actions, judgments or settlements of Provider.
Provider hereby authorizes any hospital, any governmental agency or professional
licensing, accrediting or certifying agency, or any other person or entity to release
to Highlands any information pertaining to any such matters and pertaining to the
Credentialing Criteria; and

5.2.10 consent to the inspection by Highlands, Network Lessees,
independent credentialing entities, independent accreditation entities, their agents
and their representatives of the contents of the credentialing file of Provider and
all documents that may be material to an evaluation of qualifications and
competence of Provider and consent to the release of such information to such
parties. Provider hereby releases from liability Highlands, Network Lessees, their
respective officers, directors, employees and agents from their acts performed and
statements made, in good faith and without malice, in connection with evaluating
the credentials and qualifications of Provider. Provider hereby releases from
liability Highlands, Network Lessees and any and all individuals who provide
information to Highlands, Network Lessees, their medical directors and their
representatives and agents, in good faith and without malice, concerning the
Credentialing Criteria, Provider's disciplinary actions, professional competence,
background, experience, ethics, character, utilization practice patterns, health
status and other qualifications to be a Participating Provider; and

5.2.11 give written notice to Highlands within ten (10) days if the practice
of Provider shall add a partner, shareholder, member or professional provider
employee or if Provider shall cease to fulfill the Credentialing Criteria.

Fees.

5.3.1 As compensation for the services provided by Highlands pursuant
to this Agreement Provider shall, upon the execution of this Agreement, pay to.
Highlands a credentialing fee in the amount of five hundred dollars $500.00, of
which two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) has already been paid to Highlands,
and an annual fee of ($N/A) ("Annual Fee").

5.3.2 Highlands, by resolution of the Highlands Board of Directors, shall

have the authority to (i) deduct reasonable administrative fees from payments paid
by Payors due to Provider or require provider to pay such administrative fees to
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Highlands; (ii) deduct reasonable administrative fees from capitation payménts
paid to Highlands by Payors; and (iii) negotiate reasonable administrative fees
with Payors for direct payments to Highlands.

5.3.3 During the term of this Agreement, Highlands may amend the
Annual Fee by providing at least thirty (30) days notice to Provider. Provider
shall have the option to reject any such amendment to the Annual Fee by serving
written notice of such rejection upon Highlands within the thirty (30) day notice
period. If Provider objects to the increase in fees, Highlands shall have the option
for a period of sixty (60) days thereafter to withdraw the amended Annual Fee or
to terminate this Agreement. If Highlands does not exercise its option to terminate
this Agreement, the amended Annual Fee shall be deemed withdrawn and this
Agreement and the current Annual Fee shall remain in effect.

6. Confidential Information

6.1 Legal Restrictions. Neither party hereto shall be in default for failure to supply
information which such party, in good faith, believes cannot be supplied due to prevailing law,
or for supplying information which such party, in good faith, believes is required to be supplied
due to prevailing law.

6.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information.

6.2.1 Provider acknowledges that (i) due to the nature of this Agreement,
Provider shall have access to and acquire Confidential Information as defined in
this Section related to the business and operations of Highlands; (ii) all
Confidential Information is solely the property of Highlands and constitutes
confidential and proprietary information of Highlands; (iii) the disclosure of
Confidential Information to third parties would cause substantial loss to the
goodwill of Highlands; (iv) disclosure of Confidential Information to Provider
shall be made due to the position of trust and confidence that Provider shall
occupy and due to the agreement by Provider to the restrictions contained herein;
(v) disclosure of Confidential Information would cause Highlands irreparable
harm; and (vi) the restrictions imposed upon Provxder herein would not hamper
Provider in earninq a living.

6.2.2 Provider (and the respective officers, directors, employees, agents,
successors and assigns of Provider) shall hold any and all Confidential
Information in the strictest confidence as a fiduciary, and shall not, voluntarily or
involuntarily, sell, transfer, publish, disclose, display or otherwise make available
to others any portion of the Confidential Information without the expfress written
consent of Highlands. Provider shall use best efforts to protect the Confidential
Information consistent with the manner in which Provider protects the
confidential business information of Provider; PROVIDED, HOWEVER,
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Provider may disclose the Confidential Information to attorneys, accountants or
consultants of Provider who require the Confidential Information to perform
services for Provider. Any such person shall execute a non-disclosure agreement
reasonably satisfactory to Highlands.

6.2.3 "Confidential Information" shall mean information of Highlands
that shall be subject to patent, copyright, trademark, trade name or service mark
protection, or described as confidential by Highlands or a Payor, or not otherwise
in the public domain and related-to the business and operations of Highlands,
including, without limitation, this Agreement and the exhibits hereto, lists of
Payors and Participating Providers and information related thereto, information
relating to earnings, volume of business, methods, systems, practices or plans of
Highlands and its Payors, and all similar information of any kind or nature
whatsoever which is known only to persons having a fiduciary or confidential
relationship with Highlands and its Payors that owns proprietary rights in or to
such information.

6.3  Medical Records. The parties hereto shall maintain the confidentiality of any and
all medical records which shall be in their possession and control, and such information shall
only be released or disseminated pursuant to the valid authorization of the patient whose medical
condition is reflected in such medical records or as shall be otherwise permitted under applicable
law. Medical records shall be maintained in accordance with the Provider Manual.

6.4  Trademarks and Copyrights. Each party acknowledges each other party's sole and
exclusive ownership of its respective trade names, commercial symbols, trademarks and service
marks, whether presently existing or later established (collectively "Marks"). No party shall use
the other party's Marks in advertising or promotional materials or otherwise without the owner's
prior written consent; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that Highlands, Payors and other entities with
agreements with Highlands may, but shall not be required to, list Provider in the Highlands
Participating Provider directory or otherwise publicize the status of Provider as a Participating
Provider. '

7. Term and Termination

7.1 Term and Voluntary Termination.

7.1.1 The initial term of this Agreement ("Initial Term") shall commence
on the Effective Date of this Agreement and shall continue for one (1) year.

7.1.2  This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional
periods of one (1) year (each a "Renewal Term") unless either party shall give
written notice to the other party at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to
the end of the Initial Term or of any Renewal Term.
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7.1.3 If Provider shall relocate any of the Offices of Provider, within ten
(10) days of such relocation, Provider shall provide notice to Highlands.
Highlands shall have the option, for ninety (90) days from the effective date of the
notice, to terminate this Aqreement.

72 Termination of Agreement.

7.2.1 Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, either party may
terminate this Agreement for cause upon the breach of this Agreement by the
other party not remedied within thirty (30) days after receipt by such other party
of notice thereof from the terminating party. .

7.2.2 Anything elsewhere in this Agreement to the contrary
notwithstanding, Highlands shall have the option to terminate this Agreement at
any time upon notice if Provider (i) fails to satisfy the Credentialing Criteria; (ii)
fails to purchase or maintain policies of insurance as required in the Credentialing
Criteria; (iii) is disqualified or suspended from practice or is threatened with
disqualification or suspension in any state, or has any other license, certification
or authorization required to perform any duties hereunder restricted, suspended or
terminated; (iv) is disciplined or threatened with disciplinary action by any
governmental authority or agency, managed care organization, hospital or other
facility; (v) is no longer a member in good standing of the medical or professional
staff of any hospital of which Provider was a member as of the Effective Date, or
if any such hospital restricts in any way or terminates any privileges granted to
Provider; (vi) commits professional misconduct, violates the principles of
professional ethics; (vii) in the sole determination of Highlands, has an excessive
number of professional liability claims filed or resolved against Provider; or (viii)
is subject to an indictment or information for a felony. '

7.2.3 If Highlands exercises its option to terminate pursuant to Section
3.2.4, this Agreement shall terminate on the date designated by Highlands.

7.3 Procedure Upon Termination. Upon the termination of this Agreement by either party
for any reason, whether for cause or not for cause, whether voluntary or involuntary, all rights
and obligations hereunder shall cease, except (i) those rights and obligations provided in Section
6 and this Section 7.4; and (ii) those rights and obligations which shall have accrued as a result
of the operation of this Agreement. Upon termination Provider shall:

7.3.1 continue to provide Covered Services pursuant to this Agreement (i) until
either the termination of each Payor Agreement in force on the date of termination or
twelve (12) months, whichever is earlier; and (ii) thereafter, to Eligible Persons who shall
be receiving care from Provider until the earlier of the conclusion of any treatment for a
specific condition existing as of such termination or the discharge or transfer of such
Eligible Person, and
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7.3.2 immediately discontinue use of any and all signs, plaques;
letterheads, forms or other materials identifying Provider as a Participating
Provider of Highlands and each Payor; and

7.3.3 immediately disclose to each Eligible Person in Provider's care, in
the form prescribed by Highlands or by a Payor, the possible adverse economic
consequences to such Eligible Persons of Provider's termination; and

7.4  Termination and Eligible Persons. In the event of notice of termination of this
Agreement and upon actual termination of this Agreement, Highlands may (i) inform Eligible
Persons of such termination; (ii) inform Eligible Persons of the economic effect of using
Provider as a non-Participating Provider; and (iii) recommend that Eligible Persons engage othe'
Participating Providers.

8. Miscellaneous Provisions

8.1 Provider-Patient Relationship. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall
interfere with or in any way alter any provider-patient relationship and Provider shall have the
sole responsibility for the care and treatment of Eligible Persons under Provider's care. Nothing
contained herein shall grant Highlands or any party performing utilization management the right
to govern the level of care of a patient. Utilization management decisions shall only effect
reimbursement of Provider for services rendered and shall not limit the performance of the
services of Provider or effect Provider's professional judgment.

82  Non-Exclusivity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be intended or construed to
prevent either party from entering into substantially similar agreements with other entities
~ similar to the other party.

83 Independent Contractors. Each party, its officers, agents and employees are at all
times independent contractors to the other party. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to
make or render either party or any of its officers, agents, or employees an agent, servant, or
employee of, or joint venturer of or with the other.

84 Notices. Notices shall be written and personally delivered or by fax, effective on
delivery, or sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, effective on the third (3rd) day
following the date deposited in the mail, addressed to the parties as set forth below, or to any
other address specified in writing by such party. .

8.5  Gender and Number. The use of the masculine, feminine or neuter gender and the
use of the singular and plural shall not be given the effect of any exclusion or limitation herein;
and the word "person" or "party" shall mean and include any individual, trust, corporation,
partnership or other entity.
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8.6  Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement and
understanding of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and all prior and
concurrent agreements, understandings, representations and warranties with respect to such
subject matter, whether written or oral, are and have been merged herein and superseded hereby.

8.7  Amendment.

8.7.1 This Agreement may be amended by Highlands at any time upon
written notice to Provider. Provider shall have the option to reject the amendment
by serving notice of such rejection upon Highlands within thirty (30) days of the
effective date of the notice from Highlands. If Provider rejects the amendment
Highlands shall have the option to withdraw the amendment or terminate this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the notice of rejection
from Provider.

8.7.2 The Provider Manual may be amended from time to time in the
sole discretion of Highlands.

8.8 Compliance with Terms. Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the
terms herein (by way of waiver or breach) by either party hereto shall not be deemed to be a
continuous waiver in the event of any future breach or waiver of any condition hereunder.

8.9 Rights of Parties. Except for the right of HighlandsWellmont Health Network, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, to enforce this Agreement as a third party beneficiary, nothing in this
Agreement, whether express or implied, is intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by
reason of this Agreement on any persons other than the parties to this Agreement and their
respective successors and assigns.

8.10 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the
express written consent of the other party.

8.11 Benefits. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of,
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, executors, administrators,
assiqns.

8.12  Severability. If any portions of this Agreement shall, for any reason, be invalid or
unenforceable, such portions shall be ineffective only to the extent of such invalidity or
unenforceability, and the remaining portion-or portions shall nevertheless be valid, enforceable
and of full force and effect.

8.13  Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts,

each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute a
sinale instrument. '
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| 8.14  Conflict of Laws. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Tennessee without giving effect to its conflicts of [aw provisions.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands on the dates set forth
below, as of the Effective Date set forth below.

PROVIDER: HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.
By:

Signature of Provider or

Authorized Represetative

Name of Provider Name

Address Title

City, State, Zip Code Effective Date of Agreement

State License, Certificate

or other Authorization Number

Federal Tax I.D. or Social
Security Number
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Date Executed by Provider

IFBY A PARTNERSHIP,
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION OR
OTHER ENTITY, ON BEHALF

" THE FOLLOWING PERSONS:

(Print Names)

(signature lines continued)

Provider Offices (as defined
in Section 5.2.1)
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EXHIBIT 2.7
STANDARD TERMS

The following shall constitute the Standard Terms as defined in this Agreement. As part
of a separate agreement between Highlands and Payors, Highlands shall use all reasonable
efforts to have Payors observe the Standard Terms.

1. Covered Services. Participating Provider shall furnish to Eligible Persons those
Medically Appropriate Covered Services customarily furnished by such Participating Provider in
the same physical setting and in the same manner as such services are customarily provided to
other similarly situated patients of Participating Provider.

2. Payment to Participating Provider. Pursuant to the terms of the applicable Plan,
Payor or its agent and the Eligible Person shall pay to Participating Provider the lesser of
Participating Provider's charges customarily billed to other patients or the amounts set forth in
the applicable Fee Schedule as full paymerit of any claim submitted by Participating Provider for
Covered Services furnished to Eligible Persons pursuant to such Plan.

3. Payment by Eligible Persons. Participating Provider and/or any provider on call
for Provider shall: (i) charge or bill Eligible Persons directly for, and use best efforts to collect,
any deductible, co-payment or coinsurance for Covered Services specified in the applicable Plan,
unless otherwise prohibited in such Plan, in amounts which, when added to Payor's payments
shall not exceed the lesser of charges customarily charged to other patients or the consideration
provided in the applicable Fee Schedule; (ii) charge or bill Eligible Persons directly for any
services that are not Covered Services; and (iii) charge or bill Eligible Persons directly for any
Covered Services provided to Eligible Persons after the benefits set forth in a Plan to which the
Eligible Person is entitled have been exhausted. :

4. Claims Submission. Each Participating Provider shall, as provided in the
applicable Plan, submit claims to Highlands, Payor or Payor's agent, on a UB-82 form or HCFA
1500 form, or successor forms, as applicable. Participating Providers shall use best efforts to
submiit claims within thirty (30) days after providing Covered Services. Any claims which have
not been submitted by Participating Provider within six (6) months after providing Covered
Services may be denied pursuant to the Plan of a Payor. Highlands, Payor or Payor's agent shall
apply the applicable Fee Schedule, as of the date of the Covered Services, to each Participating
Provider's claim to determine the amount due such Participating Provider.

5. Time for Payment. Except where coordination of benefits applies, Payor or its
paying agent shall use all reasonable efforts to make all payments due to Participating Provider
within thirty (30) days following receipt by Payor, or its paying agent, of a complete and proper
claim form and other information required to determine that the claim is payable under the Plan.

6. Verification of Eligible Persons. Eligible Persons shall receive Covered Services
from Participating Provider upon the presentation of appropriate written documentation supplied
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by Payor identifying the patient as an Eligible Person. Verification shall be in accordance with
Payor's customary verification procedures or as negotiated by Highlands.

7. Exhaustion of Benefits. If an Eligible Person shall exhaust any benefits under any
Plan, Participating Provider shall arrange for payment to be made by such Eligible Person
directly to Participating Provider.

8. Coordination of Benefits. If additional parties shall be liable, under coordination
of benefits, for payment to Participating Providers for Covered Services rendered to Eligible
Persons, such other party or parties shall not be entitled to the benefit of any rates set forth in the
Fee Schedule, regardless of any coordination of benefit provisions in such party's agreement with
the Eligible Person or Participating Provider and regardless of whether such party is the primary
or secondary insurer.

[The following provision shall apply to a Payor Agreement by and between
Highlands and HMO Payors ("HMO Agreement') (as required by law)].

9. HMO Insolvency. Participating Provider shall not have a right in any event,
including but not limited to nonpayment by an HMO of amounts due the Participating Provider
under this Agreement, insolvency of an HMO (the "HMO") or any breach of this Agreement by
the HMO, to seek any type of payment from, bill, charge, collect a deposit from, or have any
recourse against, the Eligible Person, persons acting on the Eligible Person's behalf (other than
the HMO), an employer or group contract holder for services provided pursuant to this
Agreement except for the payment of applicable co-payments or deductibles for services covered
by the HMO or fees for services not covered by the HMO. The requirements of this clause shall
survive any termination of this Agreement for services rendered prior to such termination,
regardless of the cause of such termination. The HMO's Eligible Persons, the persons acting on
the Eligible Person's behalf (other than the HMO) and the employer or group contract holder
shall be third party beneficiaries of this section. This section supersedes any oral or written
agreement now existing or hereafter entered into between Participating Provider and the Eligible
Person, persons acting on the Eligible Person's behalf (other than the HMO) and the employer or
group contract holder. This Section 9 shall be automatically amended to conform with any
applicable statutory requirements of the state in which services are rendered by Participating
Provider.

10.  Service. Provider shall establish procedures, including an appropriate call system,
to provide that Covered Services are available to Eligible Persons twenty-four (24) hours per
day, seven (7) days per week.

11.  Laws Ap_- plying to HMO. All laws applying to HMOs in the appropriate state shall
be applicable to this Agreement.
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EXHIBIT 2.8

FEE SCHEDULE
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PHYSICIAN FEE SCHEDULE

Physician professional fees for this contract are based on the McGraw-Hill relative value
System (RVS), dated December, 1995, and the following conversion factors:

Type Service Conversion Factor
Medical $ 629
E&M $ 547
Surgical $105.00
Radiology $ 18.37
Anesthesia $ 42.00
Pathology $ 14.50

HCPC codes are reimbursed at cost. CPT codes with no relative value units estabhshed
are reimbursed at a fixed rate of 85 percent of billed charges.

These conversion factors set the Maximum Fee Schedule (MFS) for this contract.
Reimbursement will be the provider’s actual charges or this MFS, whichever is less.

Employer agrees to pay the MFS as computed above or the physician’s normal fee,

whichever is less. Other insurance industry reimbursement schedules such as Usual and
Customary do not apply.
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EXHIBIT 2.10

CREDENTIALING CRITERIA
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CREDENTIALING INFORMATION AND CRITERIA

‘Credenézaling of Providers ié-performed by HPI and RHNI
separately. To be credentialed as a BHNI Provider the provider
must be credentialed and recommended as an HPI provider to BHNI.

The Credentialing Criteria of Highlands are as follows:
1. PROFESSIONAL CREDENTIALS (TIER I)

1.1 Provider ig either (i) a person with an unrestricted
license or othar authorization to practice in the state of
location; or (ii) a partnership, professional gexrvice corporation
or other entity, all of the partners, shareholders, members and
provider -employees of which have an unrestricted license or other
necessary authorization to practice in the state of location. &
copy of Provider’s current valid license ghall be provided with
Provider s application to Highlands ("Application”).

1.2 Provider, where applicable, hag active full and
unrestricted clinical and admitting privileges in Provider’s
gpecialty at a minimum of one (1) Participating Provider facility
("Participating Facility®) or if Provider is a wember of a non-
admitting specialty, maintain full and unrestricted privileges
appropriate to such speciality at a Participating Facility.
Provider shall maintain each Participating Facility and other
hospital, wmedical or professional staff apgcintment and all
clinical and admitting privileges granted in connection thexewith -
that Provider pogsessed as of the Effective Date of Providexr’s
Participating Provider Agreement. A letter from each

- Participating Facility stating the Provider has such clinical
privileges shall be provided with the Application.

1.3 Provider shall, if permitted under Provider’s license,
have and maintain unrestricted prescribing privileges. A copy of
Provider’s current DEA certification and state drug registration
(“DPS#), if applicable, shall be provided with the Application.

1.4 Provider, where applicable, has not and shall not (i)
have any hospital appointment ar privileges reduced, limited,
suspended or terminated or been placed on probation by any
hospital at which Provider has had a medical or professional
staff appointment or privileges; (ii) been restricted from
receiving payments from Medicare, Medicaid or any other third
party reimbursement prograwms; (iii) been subject to disciplinary
action by any state or local wmedical society, specialty society,
state board of medical examiners or the Drug Enforcement Agency;
or (iv) been subject to sanctions of any kind whatscever by any
person or entity for improper prescribing procedures or actions;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that, in the discretion of Highlands, the
foregoing shall not apply to suspensions related to a reasonable
delay in completing medical records. Any such actions shall be
reported by Provider on the Application.
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1.5 Provider has not and shall not have been disciplined,
suspended or terminated from a PPO, EMO or other managed care
organization. : .

1.6 Provider has not been convicted of a felony.
1.7 Provider is in good general health,

1.7.1 Provider shall report on the Application any
physical or mental problems that may -affect Provider‘’s
ability to practice Provider‘s profession. If Provider has
such disabilities the Provider shall provide, with the
Application, a statement from Provider’s personal physician
stating that the disabilities shall not interfere with the

Provider‘s ability to provide high quality medical care.

1.7.2 Provider shall certify on the Application that
Provider does not have & history of and is not presently
abusing drugs or alcchol. A Provider with a history of drug
or alcohol abuse may be considered for membership in
Highlands, within the sole discretion of Highlands, if such
Provider’s personal physician provides a ztatement that
Provider has been rehabilitated and is continuing with the
rehabilitation program.

1.7.3 Provider shall certify on the Application that
Provider does not have any communicable and/or chreonie =~ -
infectious disease that may be potential danger to patients.

1.7.4 Highlands shall have sole discretion in the
determination of the impact of the health status of Provider
for purposes of credentialing.

1.8 Provider shall purchase and maintain, at the sole cost
and expense of Pravider, policies of professional liability
insurance in amounts as required by Highlands from time to time.
At the present time such insurance shall be a minimum of THREE
MILLION DOLLARS ($3,000,000.00)/THREE MILLION DOLLARS
($2,000,000.00). Provider shall authorize the insurance carrier
to issue to Highlands a certificate of insurance policies of -
Provider upon the request of Highlands, and each such policy
ghall contain an endorsement requiring the insurer to give
Highlands not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of
any cancellation, termination or material zlteration of such
policy. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Provider shall provide
Highlands with notification within fifteen (15) days of any
cancellation, termination or material alteration of any such
insurance policies. Prior to the expiration or cancellation of
any such policy, Provider shall secure replacement of such
insurance coverage upon the same terms, and shall furnish
Highlands with a certificate and endorsement as described herein.
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A copy of the issuing section of the policy reflecting such
insurance shall be provided with the Application.

1.9 Provider shall provide the following information on the
Application: :

1.9.1 Details of any professional liaﬁility actions
that have resulted in adverse judgments or any financial
settlements. :

1.9.2 Detalls of any bending professional liability
actions or claims or threatened claims with respect to
professional liability.

This information shall be reviewed by Highlands. The
evaluation shall consider the frequency of such actions, the
financial impact of such actions and the c¢linical circumstancas
surrounding the alleged acts of malpractice. Highlands is fully

. cognizant of the current litigious conditions in the United

States and its evaluation shall consider the litigious climate as
part of the credentialing process. Providers shall not be
automatically disqualified from participation in Highlands due to
a history of judgments and/or settlements. Highlands shall have
sole discretion in the determination.of the impact of this
information for purposes of credentialing.

1.10 physician Providers shall be board certified in a
spacialty recognized by the American Board of Medical Specialties
or other appropriate boards applicable to the specialty of-
Provider in the sole discretion of Highlands. A copy of
Provider’s hoard certification or appropriation training shall
accompany the application. Expiration or re-certification dates

.shall be indicated where applicable. Physician Providers who

have recently completed training and are board eligible, may be
considered for probationary membership pending board .
certification; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, ’

1.10.1 if a Provider shall fail to become board
certified within five (5) years, the Participating Provider
Agreement of such Provider shall automatically terminate.

1.10.2 1if a Provider is certified by a board that has
a requirement for mandatory recertification, such Provider
shall be required to satisfy the requirement. for
recertification. IXf a Provider shall-fail to beconme
recertified as required, the Participating Provider
Agreement of such Provider shall be automatically 4
terminated.  Providers receiving either ti‘aining or board
certification in or by a foreign country/board may be
reviewed on an individual basis for consideration of
granting a waijiver of the Credentialing Criteria.
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1.11 The Provider shall provide complete information with
respect to professional training which shall include, without
limitation, the following:

1.11.1 Undergraduate Education
1.11.2 Medical and/ar Professional Education
1.11.3 Internship and Residency

1.11.4 Fellowships

1.11.5 Teaching/Faculty appointments

l1.11.6 Professional publications

1.11.7 References where required on the Application

The credentials of Providers shall only be acceptable if the
Provider‘’s practice jis limited to the specialty in which the
Provider has received training and Provider has completed an
acceptable residency program. Highlands shall have the sole
discretion with respect to the determination of the impact or
this information for purposes of ¢redentialing. Highlands
reserves the right to require specific formal training in new
procedures and/or technologies prior to credentialing,
recredentialing or, if applicable, recommending payment for
procedures.

1.12 Provider shall request the personal profile of
Provider from the National Practitioner Data Bank and attach a
copy of the request to the Application. Upon receipt of the
profile, the Provider shall forward the original copy to
Highlands. If the profile has not been received by Highlands .
within ninety (90) days of the date of the application, Provider
shall provide an acceptable explanation and request an extension
or the application shall be automatically terminated.

1.13 Provider shall, in the sole discretion of Highlands,
demonstrate a commitment to continuing medical education. The
attachment of a current Physician‘s Recagnition Award from the
American Medical Association shall satisfy this requirement. In
the absence of this Award, Provider shall attach te the
Application evidence of a minimum of fifty (50) hours of Category
I CME Credits within the previocus two (2) year period
satisfactory to Highlands.

1.14 Highlands shall utilize available data sources to
evaluate, where possible,” the quality of care provided by the
applicant., Determination of eligibillty, or lack thereof, of
Provider based on this information shall be in the sole
discretion of Highlands.

1.15 Applicant shall maintain appropriate medical records
and shall, subject to applicable law, provide such records to
Highlands as deemed necessary by Highlands, in its sole
discretion, for purposes of utilization management and/or quality
assessment.
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1.16 Applicant shall provide twenty-four (24} hour~a-day
coverage, seven (7) days a Wweek by other Participating Providers
with training equivalent to the Provider. Individual exemptions
of-this requirement may be granted for Providers for which there
are no local equivalently trained Providers. Determinations of
equivalent training and the granting of any waiver of this
requirement shall be in the sole discretion of Highlands.

1.17 Provider shall: (i) properly maintain, calibrate and
license all diagnostic equipment in Provider’s offices; (ii)
maintain a formal quality control program.for all office
diagnostic equipment; and (iii) allow diaghostic testing and
procedures to be performed and interpreted only by persons with
appropriate training and/or certification. '

. 1.18 Provider shall execute the appropriate release of
Highlands directing any and all entities that may have
information with respect to the ability to practice high quality
medicine to provide such information to Highlands upon request.
Such entities include, without limitation, hospitals, medical
societies, state examining boards, Medicare intermediaries and
third party payors.

1.19 Highlands reserves the right to require independent
verification of any and all of the Credentialing Criteria and to
perform site visgits to the locations of Provider.

2. ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS NEEDS CRITERIA (TIER IIX)

The Professional Credentials constitute the Credentialing
Criteria for the professional qualifications of PFroviders.
Providers qualifying under the Professional Credentials shall be
evaluated by Highlands to determine if such Provider fulfills the
Econonic and Business Needs Criteria. The Economic and Business
Needs Criteria of Highlands regard the economic evaluation of the
Provider and a determination of the need for additional

Providers, additional specialties and/or additional geographical

representation:

2.1 Highlands shall utilize available data sources to
evaluate, where possible, the cost effectiveness of the patterns
of practice of a Provider. The evaluation factors may include,
without limitation: frequency of service; intensity of service;
average cost per DRG; average cost per encounter; usage of
ancillary services; and a Provider’s charge patterns. a
significant differentiation by Provider in any of the parameters
subject to this evaluation may indicate a practice style and
philosophy incompatible with the business aobjectives of
Highlands. Highlands may determine, in its sole.discretion, to
decline to execute a Participating Provider Agreement with any
Providers based upon this or any other information.
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2.2 Provider shall fully disclose to Highlands, any
awnership in any facility or service to which Provider may refer

- Eligible Persons. Provider shall inform, in writing, Eligible

Persons of Provider’s ownership interest in any facility or
service prior to referring Eligible Persons. Provider ghall not
be required to provide such disclosures with respect to services
integrated into the Provider’s office based practice and
available ofily to providers in such practice.

2.3 It is anticipated that the number of Providers
qualifying pursuant to the Professional Credentials shall exceed
the nunber of Providers required by Highlands. Tharefore, a 4
Provider qualifying under the Professional Credentials shall be
evaluated under the Economic and Business Needs Criteria by
Highlands to determine if Provider‘s participation enables
Highlands to better fulfill its business needs. The evaluation
shall include, without limitation: Provider‘s specialty; the nead
for a Provider in a specific geographic area; the number of '
Providers necessary to service the population; the relationship
of a Provider to other Participating Providers; and, unique
skills such as foreign language proficiency. Qualification under
the Economic and Business Needs Criteria shall be in the sole
discretion of Highlands. A qualifying Provider wmay bacome a
Participating Provider immediately or at a subsequent time as
Highlands expands its services, patients and/or service area.

2.4 From time to time, Highlands may, in its =ole
discretion, to fulfill its business objectives, offer
Participating Provider Agreements to Providers deemed to be
competent Providers who may not fulfill each aspect of the
Credentialing Criteria. Input may be sought from Payors. For
example, if Highlands required a Provider with a specific '
specialty or a specific location and a hoard certified Provider
was unavailable, the requirement for board cextification may be
waived in that location for a particular Provider otherwise
qualified. ' :

2.5 It is anticipated that, from time to time, Highlands
may adopt various additional Economic and Business Needs Criteria
and/or performance standards. The adoption of additional _
Economic and Business Needs Criteria and performance standards
shall be at the sole discretion of Highlands.
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. Exhibit6.7
HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

Subscription Agreement

Mr. A. Walter Hankwitz
Executive Director
Highlands Physicians, Inc.
2550 East Stone Drive

Suite 220

Kingsport, Tennessee 37600

Dear Sir:

The undersigned hereby tenders this subscription to Highlands Physicians, Inc.
(“Highlands™), and applies to purchase one hundred (100) shares of the class of common stock
of Highlands as is set forth on page 3 hereof (the “Common Stock”). As payment of the
purchase price, the undersigned hereby encloses a check payable to “Highlands Physicians, Inc.”
in the amount of $1,500 (the “Purchase Price Payment™).

Highlands agrees to hold such funds separate and apart from all other funds in a bank
account until this subscription is accepted. It is understood and agreed that Highlands may, in its
discretion, reject this subscription, in whole, for any reason. In the event this subscription is
rejected for any reason, Highlands shall promptly return the funds deposited herewith, without
interest and without deduction, to the undersigned.

The undersigned hereby covenants, represents and warrants to Highlands as follows:

I. Bona Fide Residence.

a. The undersigned is a bona fide resident and domiciliary, not a transient or
temporary resident, of the state indicated below. The undersigned is not a
nonresident alien of the United States.

b. The undersigned resides six months or more each year in the following state:

Kentucky O
Tennessee a
Virginia O
West Virginia O
Other O

1I. Documentation. The undersigned has received a copy of the Offering Circular dated

, 2001,
II.  Availability of Investment Information. Highlands has made all documents pertaining to

this purchase of the Common Stock available to the undersigned’s attorney, accountant
and the undersigned and has provided the undersigned, its attorney and accountant an

\20028\00001\CH202025.DOC-3
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opportunity to ask questions and secure additional information concerning the Common
Stock and Highlands and all additional matters considered by the undersigned to be
relevant to this investment.

Stockholder Agreement. In connection with the purchase and sale of the Common Stock,
each Common Stockholder is required to execute and deliver a Stockholders Agreement.
Under the terms of the Stockholders Agreement, each Common Stockholder is to provide
written notice to Highlands of any proposed sale of Common Stock. Highlands then has
the right, but not the obligation, to repurchase the Common Stock being sold at the
original purchase price. In addition, in the event a Participating Provider Agreement by
and between Highlands and Stockholder is terminated, Highlands again has the option,
but not the obligation, to repurchase the Common Stock then held by the Stockholder at
the original purchase price, plus any and all additional capital contributions made to
Highlands by the Stockholder.

Arbitration. The undersigned agrees that any controversy between Highlands, its
officers, directors, employees or agents, and the undersigned arising out of, or relating to,
(i) the preparation or contents of the information provided by Highlands or this
Agreement, (ii) the offer and sale of Common Stock, or (iil) any transactions in
connection with the foregoing, may be settled by arbitration. Any arbitration hereunder
shall take place before at least three (3) arbitrators, and the award of the arbitrators,
unanimously or by a majority of them, shall be final, and judgment upon the award
rendered may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. The undersigned agrees that
notice of any such arbitration shall be sent to the undersigned by mail at the mailing
address shown on the signature page hereof, and the undersigned waives personal service
thereof.

Cancellation. The undersigned hereby acknowledges and agrees that it is not entitled to
cancel, terminate or revoke this offer or any agreements made by the undersigned
hereunder and that such offer and agreements shall survive the death or disability of the
undersigned.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Subscription Agreement
this _ day of , 2001.

(NOTE: PAYMENT MUST BE MADE BY CHECK MADE PAYABLE TO HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.)

Indicate location of practice:

Kingsport, Tennessee (Class A Common Stock)
Bristol, Tennessee (Class B Common Stock)

Big Stone Gap, Virginia (Class D Common Stock)
Rogersville, Virginia (Class E Common Stock)
Holston Medical Group (Class F Common Stock)
Johnson City, Tennessee (Class G Common Stock)

oOo0ooono

Social Security Number

Residence Address Mailing Address (if different)

Signature

(Print or Type Name)

STATE OF )
) SS.

COUNTY OF )

On , 2001, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public,
personally appeared , known to me to be the
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and knowledge that he/they
executed the same.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.
(SEAL)

Notary Public in and for said County and State

My Commission Expires:
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Exhibit 10,
CONSENT OF BAYLOR AND BACKUS o

The Board of Directors
Highlands Physicians, Inc.

We consent to incorporation by reference in the Offering Circular on Form 1-A
of Highlands Physicians, Inc. of our report dated March 6, 2001, related to the financial
statements of Highlands Physicians, Inc., as of December 31, 1998, December 31, 1999
and December 31, 2000, and the related statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and to the reference to our firm under the heading
“Experts” in the Offering Circular.

Baylor and Backus
Certified Public Accountants

Partner //

Johnson City, Tennessee
Dated:_oy/23 /©2.




Exhibit 11.1

WMROSS &
= HARDIES

A Partnership Including Pr

January 25, 2002

Highlands Physicians, Inc.
2550 East Stone Drive
Suite 220

Kingsport, Tennessee

Re:  Offering Circular, dated January 25, 2002 on Form 1-A
Ladies and Gentlemen:

We refer to the Offering Circular on Form 1-A filed June 21, 2001, Amendment No. 1 to
Form 1-A filed on October 16, 2001, Amendment No. 2 to Form 1-A filed on November 28,
2001 and Amendment No. 3 to Form 1-A filed on January 25, 2002 (collectively, the “Offering
Circular”) being filed by Highlands Physicians, Inc., a Delaware corporation, (the “Company”)
with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”), relating to the offer and sale of the following securities of the Company:
10,000 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock, par value of $1.00 per share; 10,000 shares of
Class B Voting Common Stock, par value of $1.00 per share; 3,800 shares of Class D Voting
Common Stock, par value of $1.00 per share; 2,500 shares of Class E Voting Common Stock,
par value of $1.00 per share; 10,000 shares of Class F Voting Common Stock, par value of $1.00
per share; and 7,500 shares of Class G Voting Common Stock, par value of $1.00 per share
(collectively the “Common Stock™).

Each term used herein that is defined in the Offering Circular and not otherwise defined
herein shall have the meaning specified in the Offering Circular.

We are familiar with the proceedings to date with respect to the proposed offering of the
Common Stock and have examined such records, documents and questions of law, and satisfied
ourselves as to such matters or procedure, law and fact, as we have considered relevant and
necessary as a basis for the opinion expressed in this letter. In such examination, we have
assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as
originals, the conformity to originals of all documents submitted to us as certified copies or
photocopies and the authenticity of the originals of such documents.

Based on the foregoing, and subject to the qualifications set forth hereinafter, we are of
the opinion that the Common Stock has been duly authorized and, when issued and sold in
accordance with the Offering Circular, will be legally issued, fully paid and nonassessable shares
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Highlands Physicians, Inc.
January 25, 2002
Page 2

of Common Stock of the Company, all as may be provided for under the laws of the State of
Delaware including any and all statutory provisions, all applicable provisions of the Delaware
Constitution, and the reported judicial decisions interpreting such laws and the Delaware
Constitution.

This opinion is limited to the matters set forth herein. No opinion may be inferred or
implied beyond the matters expressly contained herein.

We hereby consent to the reference to our firm under the caption “Legal Matters” in the
Offering Circular, and to the filing of this opinion as an Exhibit to the Offering Circular.

Very truly yours,

ROSS & HARDIES

By: MOMMO\(&@M/

A P4
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SIGNATURES

The issuer has duly caused this Offering Statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Kingsport, in the State of Tennessee on
Jan. 25, 2002

HIGHLANDS PHYSICIANS, INC.

o ML A

Dr. Nelson Gwaltn@\)
Its: President and Director
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN TO ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose
signature appears below constitutes and appoints Dr. Nelson Gwaltney and Mr. A. Walter
Hankwitz, and each of them, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, each with full power
of substitution and resubstitution for such person and in his name, place and stead, in any and all
capacities, to sign any amendments to this Offering Statement and to sign any Offering
Statement for the same offering covered by this Offering Statement including post-effective
amendments, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming that
each of said such attorneys-in-fact and agents or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to
be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Offering Statement has
been signed by the following persons on this'25thlay of jan, , 2002, in the capacities indicated.

7 %/é/

Dr. Herbert D. Ladley
Its: Vice President and Director

By: MJZ MOZ WM&%MD

Dr Gregory L. ‘DeMotts

Dr. Carl Bendeck
Director

Q%MMW

Dr. Arthur Boyd
Director

fos [ b

Dr. §tephen Combs
Director

A

Dr. Mark Dixon
Director
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Dr. Tony S ton

Director
Dr.R. Dougras Striikland
Director

s A o Aileud M

Dr Lenita Thibault
Dirgetor

Q;L[ Aﬁ//n IV~

DY. Jere Fergusoﬁ

Director &J

Dr. RlCh d/Foster
Director

Dr. Matthew M. Gangwer

Director
. M

Dr. "f'homas W. Green v

Director
Drﬂohn Grg %fﬁth
Director

@/MWV\&’/}{W

Dr. Thomas E. Mitoraj
Director
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Dr. Bef(E. Tagert /

Director

0-4 Ao 12

Dr. David Thompson
Director

Dr. Ronald L. Williams
Director

Ll DLAA

Dr. Robert D. Buck
Director

Dr. Christopk€r P. Stapleton
Director
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